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We are a leading UK commercial

- propeity company focused on high

quality retail and London offices

- Our objective is to deliver sustainable

long term value for all our stakeholders

We do this by creating Places
People Prefer

Under_'lying Prufit;

£390m

iFRS net assets

59,476m

2016: E9.419m

Customer satisfaction® )

8.1/10

2014: 7910

We integrate social and environmental information throughout this

Report in line with the international integrated Reporting Framework.

This reflects how sustainability is integrated into our placernaking
strategy. governance and business operations. Our industry-teading
sustainability strategy is a powerful tool to deliver lasting value

Key metrics for the vear
Portfolio valuation EPRA NAV per share! Dividend per share
{proportionally consolidated')
£139on  915p 292,
20145: €14.6bn 2006 N 2016:28 36p
Underlying EPS! Carbormintensity reduction  Tolal propertyreturn®
{index score since 2009}
318y 449 31%
2016:341p 2014: 40% 20m6: 11.3%
Totat accounting return’ IFRS profit before tax IFRS EPS
2.7% s195m 188,
2005: 16.2% 20: £1,331m 2M4: 131.2p
* See Glossary for definitions.
For more information Feedback Integrated reporting
We value your feedback.

You witl find links Please contact us at;

throughout this Report to

guide you to further reading Qur corporate website

of relevant infarmation. woww.britishiand.com/

: contacts for all our stakehalders.
For more information
visit our website Fotlow us on Twitter

www.britishtand.com

@BritishLandPLC

For more information visit www.britishland.com/sustainability




Places People Prefer
Curating theenvnomnentmsuieandout,
using our scale and placemaking expertise

Customer Orientation
Responding to changing lifestyles
We use our insight inio customers:
neads and identify major loig lerm
Irends lo create environments in
tune with changing Lfesiyles.

C.aplml Efficiency
Disciplined use of capital

We allocate our capital, manage
our finances and pariner with

like-mindad organisations fo deliver

sustainable long term value.

Right Places
Creating great environments,
inside and out

W= design engaging, sustainable
places which bring pecple togzther
through the right rmax of eccupiers,

services and activities.

Expert People

The knowledge and shills to detiver
Wz employ Expert People and
work with specialist partners

to create insight, develop skills
and build capability,
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Presentation of financial infarmation

The Group linandal statements are preparad under
mmm&msmmmimmam
fuads are shown as a single line item an the income
sla!anenland | balance sheet and all subsidiarias
are cmvsmdaledal TG :

M considers the b prmpally on
a pmpm'tmnaﬂy consalidated hasis when satting

the sirategy, detu‘lmmng annua! priorikies, ma!ung
investrmnent and finencing decisions and reviewing
performmance. This wcludas the Group's share of-
joint ventures and funds on a Une-by-line basis and
exdudes nen-contrulling interests in the Group’s
suhsidiaries. The finanda! key performance indicators
maﬂmweswmdohmssbass Refer lothe Finandal
review for a discusSion of the 1FRS resutis.
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Scraregdic Repure

BRITISH LAND AT AGLANCE
Our placemaking expertise delivers

buildings and environments that reflect
the way people work, shop and live

. Retail Hightights ’

Total portfolio Qur Reiil portfolio s focused on a networkof  —  1.3million sq f1 of fettings and renewals
We provide buildings and envirenments mulhi-tet Regional and Local cenires, reflecting 1% ahead of ERV
which cater o Ihe changing needs of the muodemn consumer lifestyles. We provide high _ Muthi-tot ERV up 2.4%
people who uss them. Dur proparties quality retail and leisure with best in class : P
bring businesses and peopie togethern sarvres meeling 3 range of consumar needs. We  —  Parliolic veluation down 1.8%
they are lunciional and authenlic with provade places ko shop, eal and be entertained; — Qver £1 billion of capital activi L

. . - . - P s clivity, refining
the right mix of gccupiers, services and places which are co ang At our focus on sur multi-let pactictio

activities and we use cur placemaking and which connect with local commusmbies.
framewaork te enhance not jusl individuat :
buildings bul the overall emeronment.

s191bo- |90

assels undar managesaant

313.91)&

British L and ownad

28m sq ft

of Roor space

$636m-

contracled rent

m

British Land owned

989 sz -

aCcupancy rate
60v%
8 3 ol the population
igt . d average

rpired lease term

1 Drake Gircus :
/ Our Regional centre in Plymouth. This year
on its tenth anniversary we extended our
To read maore information abgut our © .| ownership by acquiring the New George
performance, go to pages 28 10 37, Street Estate linking the retail cenr and

the proposed leisure scheme, enhancing
our control of the environment and providing
turther scope lor asset managernent.

* Includes 100% of the assels oomned by www britishland.com/DrakeCircus
the Group’s joint venlures and hunds.

’ ™
::::.;::Z g;e ngr:;p sm;:.:x. ,:-‘fnma_ums To read more information about our
interests in the Group's subsidiaries, 9 ] Retait portfolio. go to pages 32 1o 34.

¥ See Glossary kur definitions. :
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Offices

Our Otces portfolio is locusaed on our London
campuses which alse include a mix of retail,
leisure and residential to create attractive
and engaging ervironments. They reftect

thz lifesiyle of today's workforce and appeat
o @ broad rangz of occupiers. Quiside our
campuses, we gwn a number of high quality
standatone buildings in weli-connected and
well-managed locatons.

£8.5bn

assals under .
management

65000

people work 3Cross gur
Offices portiolio

100 Liverpool Street, Broadgate

Our plans at 108 Liverpool Straet significantly
increase the reiail offer at Broadgate and provide
high quality, lexible workspace appealing loa
broad range of occupiers, This redeveloprment,
al the gateway o the campus, adjacent ta the new
Crossrail station progresses our vision to create
aworld-class, vibrant, mixed use destination

al Broadgate.

wwwebritishtand. com/100LiverpoolSireet ©

To read more information about our
Offices portlolio. go to pages 35 ta 37,

¢ Following disposal of 508 interest in The Leadanhall
Buitding completing aller the year end. _

mpuses 783

Highlights

- Exchanged on the sate of 58% imeresl
in The Leadenhal! Building fer a headline
price of £1.15 billion [100%)

~ 273.000 sq ft gt iettings 3nd renvanls
1.4% ahead of CRY i the year

~ Cver 700,000 sq ft of letings undsr offer
or in advan<ad neqoliations
- Porilolio waluaticndown0.7%
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1200

international brands to locad start-ups
ara basad a1 our properties.

Our places are increasingly
mixed use

Across our portotio, we are broadening the
mix of uses o betler reflect peopls's changing
evenis space and broader commerdal usas, in
addition te 2n expanding reiail and dining offer.

Canada Water

We are developing our masterplan for Canada
Water. our 44 acre opporiunity in London, wiuch
will be a mixed use urban centre from the starl.
Working wath the London Borsugh of Southwarnk
and tha local cornmunily, sur praposals fealure
green and communily spaces and a netwark of
pedestnian links and waterways, drawing on the
herilage of the area. Qur plans incude a broad
roix of potential uses including retad, teisure,
entertainment, higher education ang workspace
alongsidz up o 3,500 new homes.

www.britishtand.com/CanadaWater

Eden Walk

Eden Walk, our 538 000 sq it mixed use,
regeneration scheme in Kingston upon Thames
will comnprise 40 new relail and restaurant uniis.
380 new homes and 35,000 sq {i of high qualily,
modern and flexible office space, aswell as

a cinerna and public spaces {or events.

www.britishland.com/EdenWalk



Strategiv Repaet

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

- We have led our sector in a number
of outstanding deals reflecting the
quality of our portfolio

John Gildersleeve
Nen-Exetutive Chatrman

Not many people predicted the political
Total accounting return® oulcomes seen over the last 12 months, not
onlyin the UK, but around the world. it was

2 s ?% certainly an eventlul year.

2014: .35 - | But good businesses become slmnger when
they are put te Lhe test and | am delighted lo
repart that_ despite uncertainty causad by the

Dividend per share UK'’s decision te leave the EU, we have nol ondy
d ated the resiflience of aur busi
29 2 but also shown how our strategic approach
8 p enables us to respond te such issues.
2016: 28B.36p

tn the weeks following \he EU relerendum
thers was a peak of uncertainty around the

Qa7 stralegic approach is based on leng

term rends. We track consumer and soupier
exprciatons and key thames impar ling our
business o ensure we addiess thesa increating |

- Plates People Prafer. As the worlds of werk ang

ieiwizre become inoeasingly connectad this
s led 4o our assets becoming mere mied use,
so that people can utfd the neads of muthple
dermands on their tme. Gur London affice
campus approach and mulb-tet retal centre
focus has proved to be a raa! differentiator

in this respacl. creating nol only eutsianding
Buildings bt enabling ws to make substantial
improvements e the overall ewironments

i vk they sit.

Many of gur srvestments over the year have
baeen to streciure our partiolio arcund these
themes ard of course wark on the majority
o tham started before 73 June 2014 We hag
already postioned our business Lo respond.

So despite the uncarizinty caused, British Land
has parformed well and | would tike to thank
everyone who works for and with us for their
contniiution during this unpradictable time,
Undertying Profit for the year was £3%4 millicn
up 7.4%. The vetuation of our porifolic was
manginatly down 1.4% with EPRA NAY down
jush B £% at 13 pence per share with both
occupizr and invesior demand rematning

gond geer the year. Significanily, valuation
performmance in the second half was stronger
than the first

The Board has recommended a fourth quarter
dividem of 7.3 pence per share making a total
ot 29.2 pence for the year. Together with the
movernent in nel assel value, this biings total
accounting return 1o 2.7%. We have proposed
a first quarter dividend of 7.52 pence per share
ant 30.08 pence for the finandal year ending
31 March 2018 representing 3 Further 3%
increase signalling our confidence in

growing incomne over the medium teom,

Last year | commented that macro-economic and - |
poliveat risks had affacted the FTSE 100, Shares .

in readl estate have been signifrcandly impacted by

uncertawnty. As a largely domeslically focused

business eperaling in sterting, UK REIs are more

exposed 10 the implications of Brexit on the UK

> 33 full imipacts that would be felt by busi

) % and the UK as a whale. For us in very broad
WOmBh's represeniation across Executive terms, we considered the potential impact
Commitlee members and direct repor ts? on consumer confidence affecting our retait

business and what the result could do
' > to business confidence. in particular the
97 ' - choice of global organisations te locate

i % {arqe parts of their businesses in London.
of all electridty we purchase comes from . .

renewable sources, working trwards 100%
as an RE100 partner

' Please see the Glossary for definition.
T Hamplon-Al der Review, N 20%6.
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ea y than the miajority of the FTSE 100.
Experience also shows that gaps between
share prtce and reported values expand during
tmes of encertainty and there conlinues to

be awidz range of views on the potential
impact of the W's decision to leave Europe -
on our markets.

So while our business is in good shape we
adknowiedge that Lhe environment is more
unczrlain. We have led our secior in 3 number
of sulstanding deals reflecling the quality

of our portfolio. Just 2 couple of weeks afler
the £ referendumn we exchanged on the sale
of Debenhams’ lagship store on Oxlord Street
for EABD snitlion. on taris agreed before the vote.
And i March 2017, togetherwith our JV partners




Oxforﬁ Properiies we exchangad contracts fer
the sate of The Leadenhall Building for a headline

‘price of €1.15 batlion, the most expensive buildmg

eversﬂdmme(:nyoﬂmﬂm

We've also had good letting acivity over meymr
solif evidznce that our properties are delivering
what our customers want_As a resultowr porifolio
is virrally full at 98%. in a changing warld,
suslainable places are becoming i easiigly
sought after and continue lo create valise a5 they
are both resitienl and well pesitioned to respond
to changing custemer needs. Wa are proactively
designing new buitdings with a focus on haalih,
wellbeing and productivity of the consumears

and employees who will use those bulldings.

In addition, initiatives to daliver cur Leca Charter
make positive loca! contributions and hatp cur
places become part of thair tecal communities.

As the Government's Minimum Eneray

" Efficiency Standards have the polential o affect

pruperty values, our awerd-winning effidency
programme has positioned our perifclio

wall and we have become 2 partnar of REI00,
committed to using 100% eletlnuty from
Tenewable sources. Our targel for 3% of cur
UK supplierwaridorce o be apprentices by
2020 also aligns with Government armbitions
and our Supply Chain Charler supporied

our first Modemn Slavery Act Disclosurs,

We continue to be recognised for our leading
stance on sustainabilily issues. tollowing cur
2016 Queen's Award for Enterprise: Sustainzbie
Develgpment. Our industry-leading energy and

carbon reductions resullad in Brilish Land being -

named European Seclor Leader in the 2016
Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark for
the third year runining, and winning the CIBSE
Test of Time Award 2017, We have cut enargy
intensity by 35% and carbon intensity by 44%
across our portfolio since 2009, as we make
strong progress towards our challenging 55%
reduction target by 2020. -

Details of ihe changes to our Board and
Commitiees during the year, and since

the year end, are set oul in the governance
raports which bhegin on page 60.

John Gildersleeve

Mon-Executive Chairman

For the Chairman’s governance review,
see pages 60 ta 66,

Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark 2016 - European sector
teader for retail/offices [listed}

Highlights of the year

1

3

1.3m sq ft of lettings
across gur Retail portfolio,
11% ahead of ERV

Altracting new occupiers, upsizing
existing relalters and increasing
leisure and food & beverage.
Continued outperformance of footfall
and sales growth benchmarks.

Exchanged £1.5bn of asset
sales, 9% ahead of valuation
Including our 50% interest in

The Leadenhall Building for £575m,
the C400m disposal of Debenhams.,

Oxiord Street and £226m of superstores,

reducing supersiore weighting in the
porifolio 1o 4%.

Established our Bright -
Lights skills and emplovment
programune fuor our suppliers,
occupiers and local
communities

includes 70 placements on gur Slarting

Cut in Retsil programme, with 75%
moving into fong term employment.
1.7% apprentices in our lier 1 supply
chain pilol study as we work towards
our 2020 target of 3%.

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017

Progressed Tm sq ft

of lettings across our

Office portfolio

77000 sg h of lettings completed
with ovesr FO0 000 sq 1t under affer or
in advanoad negatiations; s includes
140,000 sq ft of tettings 21 7 Clarges

- Streeq and & Kingdom Sireet shortly

after complation on terms ahead of
pre-referendumn ERVs.

Progressing onr development
pipeline with 2.3m sq ft of
planning consents secured and
a further 1.3m sq ft submitted
Includes planming secured at
Eden Walk, Blossom Sireet
and 283 Finshury Avenue and
submissions for Meadowhail
Leisure and 1 Triton Square.

W



Stratedic Hepert

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Our results reflect the significant
demand from both occupiers and
investors for the places we create

Chris Grigg
Chief Executive Officer

Underiying Profit growth'

A 4%

to E390m {2014: E363m]

Valuation movement'

-14%
0.4% reduction in EPRA NAY per sharet

1©915p [2016: 919p)

Customer satisfaction'

8.1/10

12016: 79/10}

C vity progr beneficiaries
35,600

induding jobseekers_apprenlices

and schoolchildren [2016: 29.500)

? Pleasa see the Glossary for definiions.

We have delivered good resulls despite
challenges in gur markels following the EU
relerendum. Our markels ware stronger

than many anticipated and our sirategy, which
positions us to benefit from long termn trends.
is delivering. Rising consumer expectations,
the blurring of work and leisure ime and Lhe
transtorming impact of technology are the
key th shaping d d for our space.
Nearly one year after the EU referendum, we
see clear signs that the impact of these trends
is accelerating, driving polarisalion in our
markets. Our teasing performance has been
good, contribuling te strong earnings growth;
we have intensified our focus onwhere our
placemaking expertise can enhance value,

1 attracting a broader range of occupiers: andwa

have sold well, providing the capital to exploil
opportunities we have within our portiolio.

Qur strategy is lo dilerentiate our space

by providing places which reilect people’'s
changing tifestyles. We use our placemaking
experlise to create great environments both
inside and outside our byildings - creating
Places Pegple Preder. This underpins our
{ocus on cur multi-let relail properties and
our London campuses which are increasingly
mixed use.

Investment markets were weaker in the first
hall, refleciing uncertainty both before and
after the EU referendum, but improved in
Lhe second half as the UK economy proved

6 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

resitient. Overall, our EPRA net asset valve was
down just B 4% ia 915 pance per chare Reted and
Qifices valuations were down 1.6% and .73
expension in the first hall bul moedest contraction
in the second half. Gur disposals provide clear
evidence to support these valuations.

Cur portiolio is virtually bt wilh occupancy

of 98%. Despite the tow level of vacancy. we
signad 1.7 million sq ft of lettings 2nd renewals
i the year, on average B.0% ahead of ERV. In
both the retail 2rd office markels we are seaing
an increasing focus on the best space in the
hest locations.

tn Olfces, where the resull of the EU
referendum aealed greater uncertainty, we
have seen eooupiers continuing to commit, but
often after ionger and more thoughthul decision
making processes. Our leasing performance
was stong. with space let or termms renewed
on 279.000 sq {t of space in the year, on average
1.4% ahaad of ERV. This indluded the resmnaining
space at The Leadenhat! Building and Marble
Arch House. Al 7 Clarges Streat, the office
space was over B% let just four months alier
taunch. In addition, we have 700,000 sq ftof
space under offer or in advanced negotiations
across our development pipeline. This includes
102,008 sq ft at 4 Kingdom Streel where stmost
80% of the office space was undar affer within
2 week of completion in April 2017, on terms
ahead of pre-referendum ERVs. and 1 Triton
Square where we are under offer on 315,080

sq ftrepresenting all of the office space on”

the proposed redevelopment.

Gur Tocus on Londen remains. We expect Landon
to continue as aleading global oty reflecting its
diverse pool of intellectual capital and reputation
for innovation, as well as its culture, language
and strong regulatory and legal framework.
Our activity this year is testameni 1o the quality
of our space which reflects the needs of today's
occupiers. By providing space which rellects
the evolving way people are working and

" blending their work and teisure lime, we help

our oooupiers attract and retain key talent.

Our newast spaces are more flexible, catering

ta the demands of big and small companies wilk
the oplion of shorler lease lertn arrangemenks.
This year, we will be launching a branded flexible
workspace offer which enables us to capture
incremental demand from the increasing
number of small businesses taking space in
London as well as meeting a growing need
amongst our exisling occupiers for lexible
space for specific projects and teams. We have
already agreed our first flexible workspace
tetting at 2 Finsbury Avenue, extending our
retationship with an existing occupier at
Paddington Central for their digital team.

In Retail. demand remained firm in the year,
déspite wider uncertainty lor consumers and
retailers alike. We lel more space on better
terms o a wider range of occupiers than in the
previous year. This amounted to 1.3 million sq ft
of teasing. an average 10.8% ahead of ERV.
Consumer spending was resilient in the months
followang the EU referendum, bul weaker sales



data in recent munihs suggests that consumers
are becoming mare caulious with higher prices
wnpacting disposable incomes. Retellers are also
anticipating 3 more chatlenging ermironment,
with impert cost inflation, higher business rales
in some areas a2nd the National Living Wage
putling pressure on margms.

These dynamics have increzsad relailers’ locus
on space which allows them o trade profitably
across a range of channzls. Dur Regional and
Local porfolio supports their strateqy. Our
Regional centres provide a broader offering,
suiled to larger, Magship stores and attracting
visitors from 2 wide caichment for a longer
dwell time, Our Lozal centres are coavenient
and accassible and so they work well for dlick
and collact 2nd more targated shopping trips,
aswell a5 providing a range of amenities for
local communities. Qur placemaking aclivities
and our commUnAly endaGement encourage
new and repeat visits to our siles and this has
driven continued cutparforrmance in bath
foolfall [shead of bendhunark by 240 bps) and
relafter in-store sales growth (720 bps ahead]

We have made good progressonour |

" developmenl pipetine. Aswell 2s completions

al & Kingdom Sireat 3nd the effices elzmant of
Clarges, we committed to the redevelopment

of 109 Liverpos Street 2t Broadgate and works
commanead thers in Dacember. UBS have nvw
vacated 800,390 sq it of space acress the campus
on completion of their eccupancy of 3 Broadgate.
{ocaled at the gateway to our Broadgate
campus and adjadcent to the newt lverpool Street
Crossrail station, this develepmant progresses
our vision to oreale a world dass, miked use
deslination at Broadgate providing 2 range of
space, including sigrificant additional retail
and restaurants.

Gioss investiment aclivity since the start of
the year totalied £2.6 billion ardd included the
exchange of our 50% interestin The Leadenhalt
Building, which is due to complete latér this
month, reftecting cur disciplined approach to
capital allocation. This project has delivered
anmatised returns of 25% for us and our IV
partnes singe our cammitment in 2000 and
demonstrates how cur standalone office
properties provide liquidity, allowing us to
develop and trade opportunistically. On the
retail side, we sotd €881 million of single-lat
ang non-cere retail assels, including
Debenhams, Oxdord Street for €400 million
and £226 riltion of superstores, reducing the
wighting of superstores within eur por tolio
ta A%. Cur £195 million of acquisilions ware
focused on adjacendes to existing holdings.
nolably the New George Street Estate in
Plymouth [E64 million] which complements
Drake Circus and 10-40 The Broadway

|E42 million}, adjacent to Ealing Broadway.

The net impact of our activity was a 7.4%
increase in Undertying Profils to £390 miflion.
Like-for-like income graw?h of 2 9%, together
with lower finance costs reflected in a further
reduclion of our waighted average intefest rale
10 3.1%_ has more than offset the impact of
disposals. Diluted underlying EPS was up

10.9% at 37.8 pance per share. The final
dividend payment will b2 7.3 pance per share,
bringing the full year drvidend to 79.2 pence per
share, an wncrease of 3.0% and conlributing o
a total accounting raturn of 2 7%. The Board

-is proposing a quarterty dividerd of 752 pence

per share or 30.08 pence lor the coming yaar.

a turther incraase of 1.0%. The impact of recent
sales and expiries on fulure profils. our arget
paycut ravo, and the uncerlath enarosnnend
influenced the Board's thinking, a5 well as the
oppartunities thal we have within the porifclio

_to gnoaw income over the mediom lam.

The impact ¢l our investment actwity has been
1o reduce our proportionally consolidated LTV
6 299% at March 217 fram 32 1% in Mardh
2014. This falls lurther to 246.9% pro forma

for the sate of The Leadenbalt Building. With
our completed developments substantally

let. and good progress on planring and pre-tet
discussions goross the pipaline weare
well placed to exploil the opiionalily we have

te create vatue and grow income. We have

i idenlified near term and mediurn term

opportunities that enable us to apply our
development and placemzking expertise
in prograssing ihe delivery of cur sirategy.

Lasl week, we oblained approval from

the London Borough of Camden on the
redevetopment of 1 Trilon Square al Regent's
Place, whera we are under offer on all of the
office space. We expect lo commit to this, as

well as refurbishments of 135 Bishopsgate and

1 Finsbury Avenue ai Broadgzate in the coming
months with an assodated cost of CEI00 million.

Loaoking further ahead, our medium term pipeline
covers a range ol uses, indluding oificeted
devalopmentiniondon and retail and mieed use
development across the countsy, notably Eden
Walk in Kingston where we received planning
permission for our 538.000 sq It mixed use
regeneration during the year. We vill maintain
an appropriate level of development risk: for
our office-led develepments coramitment is
tikely to be influenced by the progress of pre-lel

"discussions. We have a disciplined 2pproach

to capital allocation and retain flexibility to
respond to the changing ervironmenl.

In addition, we are enaking progress ai Canada
Waler where we are working dosely with key
stakeholders induding the London Borough of -
Southwark. We held our fourth public cansuliation
in May 2017 and are targeling submission of

a ptanning applicalion around the end of this
finaneial year. We have held discussions vath
awide range of potential occupiers and bave

-been encouraged by the respanse.

British Land received the Queen's Award {or
Enterprise in 2014, the UK's highesi accolade
for business success. One year on, we ane
conlinuing to deliver strong ecoromic, soaal
and evironmental performance. Our industry-
leading energy and carbon reduciions resulted
in Brtish Land being named European Sector
Leader in the Global Real Estate Sustainatility
Benchrnark for the third year rufining and in
the COP Climale A List, we rank in the top 7%

-

of global comparges tatkling dimate change.
W have lzunchad Bright Liahts. our skills

znd emplarnent programimes halping a vida
range of people into work within our induslyy,
That includes vwithin British Land. | was atse
particuiarly plessed to announce that we hag
updai=d cur palicy on Shared Parenta! Pay te
provde equal enhanced benelits for 2l parents,
one exzmple of howwe are promoting the
deveinpment of a diverse and indusive leam.

Outlook

Lowking forwerd, the pictae isa mixed one_

The Brexit preress has bagun bat uncerzingy
will coniinue for some considerable ime. Though
vire, we can expact more inflalion and incressing
pressure on digposable inoomes. This will irnpact
consisner behaviour and retsiler profitabllity,.
London eccepiars, paritcularly inancat
imstinetions, gre making coniingancy plans it
there is 2 wide range of prssitie oulcomes hare.
Cir corwvars2tions with occupiers tell us that

2 laTge majrily condinue te valuz Lendon and
belizve I ils place 35 2 global centre, as we do.

Although we are seeing businesses taking
lenger o comnmit and being more thorough in

| 2ssessing oplions, we see polarisation of both

aooepier &g mvestor demang accelarating with
an increasing fecus on the best quality space.
Our resaills show that our space conlinugs to be
anraciive lo accupiers and inveslors alike, with
sireng teasing auross the portfolio, profitabla
disposals snd matenat cslperformance on

our Relail operating metnics. This refledis e
continuing execution of our sirategy, proviging
space thal respands to changing blestytes

snd really fulfits customners needs.

In this pncertain enviranment, we expeed to
beneht from the resilience of our business, the
quaiity of our pertlolio and the strength of our
finznges. We also look forward with cautious
oplimism as we believe that we can ganaraie
inciemental returns by allocaling eagital to
development opportunities we have created,

-whilst keepisrg risk 2l an appropriate level and

flexibility 1o respand to changes in our markets.

Chris Grigg
Chief Executive Officar

For more information on Qur business
model, see pages Wand 11

For more information on our 2017
full yesr results presentation see
wwwbritishiamd comfresults

For more information on our approach to
sustainability see www.britishland.com/
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Srratediv Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Qur priorities for the vear ahead

Crustomer Orientation
- Further develop cusiomer insights
- - Deliver technology drven innovations

Right Places

- Deliver next staps of the
Broadgate Masierplan

- Submit Canada Water planning

- Deliver flexible workspace ofier

Capitol Efficiency
- Beat budgel and achieve leasing largets
- Recycle capital ta improve returns

Expert People
- Promote an inclusive, periormance
" friven cullure
- Create a more customer focused
argaaisation

with Chris Grigg

How is British Land
responding to BREXTIT?

We run British Land to take advantage of
long term trends but also to be resilient,
sowe are positioned to operate in a range
of market conditions - property is a cyclical
business. The quality of the asseis we

own and the strenglh of our hnances
serve us well as we face the patential
chaltenges of Brexit.

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Brexit is just one latior impacting oer
markels. Technologyis at the heart

of many far-raaching changes we are
seeing. In London, Brexdl is acceierating
the lrends we are already responding
to: how peaple wark aad live. the growih
in creative and tech industnes, and

the refative dacline in damand lrom
traditional banks.

We continue to believe in London in the
long tarm and are encouraged by the
demand we are seeing from oooupess
and irvestors for our buildings since

the wale. However, we have planned

for a pervod of uncertainty: we have
moderaied oor speculative deeclopment
risk and have continued to diversily our
office occupier base. We have made good
pragress on teasing discussions andg this
puls us in a strong position (o commat

ta new developments Lo generate
incremerntal relurns, while keeping

risk al 2 sensible tevel.

Sales over the last year, including

The Leadenhall Butlding, have reduced
our leverage further puttingusina
strong pasitten to take ad q
invesirment oppor lunities we have
created within our porifolio.




What makes British Land different®

We have a clear purpose at British Land 1o
areate Places People Prefer and this drives
the business. We have a relentless focus
on customers 5o we create the places
theywant; not just indwvidual buildings but
external environments too - it's something
| refer 1o as ‘inside and oul’. And, we have
the scale and capabitities 1o deliver on

this lonyg term approach..

This means we invest heavily in data and
insights lo understand whil customers
really want, informing where we allocate our
capital. This ensures our properties reflect
the changing way peopie live their lives and
prowvide whal businesses need Lo thrive.

By investing in well locateg schemes

we can create great spaces alongside the
broad range of amenities, experiences and
services people want as their work and
home lives becoming increasingly blurred.
This ts why our London campuses and
mulli-let retail centres are becoming
more diverse and mixed use.

Our operalional scale, expertise and

long term approach rmean we have the

capacity and skills to make the imvesiments
“required and 10 deliver the benefils.

It is the combination of all these things
which makes us different,

You talk a lot about customer
focus — why is this important to
a property investment company?

Successful businesses understand ang
deliver what their customers wani. For
us the interesling conwversation has been
defining who our customers are_itU's nol
just the businesses who lease space at
our retait centres and offices but also

the people who wark in them, the people
whe choose to shop and spend Lime there
and the local communities who tive in
and around them. Underslanding these
different stakeholders and the reasons why
they prefer one location to another s what
creating Places People Preferis aboul.

An gutstanding place caters lor alt and
often increases Lhe connection between
thern_ I your customers prefer your ptace
then your husiness is wall positioned for
success. That's why we focus on long term
trends affecling howwe work, shop and
live and invest in our properties lo ensure
they remain relevant 10 our cusiomers.

This means people not only want lo be in
and around our properties but want o slay

66

Understanding these
different stakeholders
and the reusons why
they prefer one location

to another is what
creating Places People
Prefer is about.”
Qur values
Our values underpin everything vwe do.
They are:
Dowhat is right, Work efficientty
not what is easy as one team
- Make commerciat Make things
decisions that create happen
longtermvalue -

there tonger too. Our new Leisure Quarter
at Glasgow Fort comprises restaurants,

_ green public spaces and children's pocket

parksin which to gather, socialise and
play. More car parking was also added

in response to shopper feedback, This.
with other investments, is changing the -
damographic of people shopping at

the cenire and the retailers we atiracl.

In turn footfall has continued to increase
and this is fuelling rental growth.

We are changing our | ondon campuses oo,
Broadoaie, ance home 1o predominzatly
large City finandial institutions, is bacoming
a seven- day-a-week location. Itis the
targest pedestrianised commertial space
in London and is responding to the changing
needs of office occupiers, banefiting from
its position in 2 dynamic part of London

and the openaing of Crosseail. The way we
are configuring buildings and offering more
flexible space on more Rexible terms mean
we are already appealing 1o a wider range
of occupiers. By adding rore reslaerants,
shops and events wa are broadening the
appeal well beyond the employees of the
businesses based there.

For more on Chris’ views see
wwrw_britishiand_ com/CEObloyg
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Sirucegic Repurg

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We apply our placemaking expertise to our

high quality portfolio to generate enduring
demand from a broadmngeofogcupwrs

i Inputs

- ) Capitnl Efficiency
We hinance our business with a combination of
equity and debt We manage the balance o adjust
the scale and nisk profile of the Company.

How we create value

We apply our placemaking
expertise to create great places
Jor modern lifestyles. These
are Places People Prefer.

Our scale brings operalional sffidencies, influence
and access to opportuntiies. as well as the capacity
tp invast in our portiotio.

We have choices over how to allacale our capital. We can
invest in the existing portfolio, develop new properties or
purchase properlies_ We evaluate the prospective returns of
each opten 1o inform ou? Siotation of capial We &i50 consider
returning surplus capital o shareholders.

Customer Orientation

We can choose lo sell properties to crysiatlise the value that we We understand our

create. This provides capilal for reinvestmenil into opportunities with tomers’ f i

greater prospeclivz returns for shareholders. We monilor opportunities . l’? sor |

to dispase of assets which are nol aligned with our strategic priorities and identify _n"a:lor _Ong

or do not mest our return aspirabons on an ongeing basis. term trends impacting cur

) . _ ) markets, to ensure that
For more information on Capital Efficiency see pages 22 and 23. the places we create and
' operate respond to people’s
changing lifestyles.

Expert People

We have proven expertise in the areas required lo detiver rnost For more information on Customer

vatue from out portlotic. As well as established property skill sets Orenlation see pages 16 and 17.

such as assel g L and develop t, we are investing

in capabilities required {0 ensure our properiies meet the changing

ways that people work. shop and live indluding data analytics

and insights_ markeiing and customer service,

For mare information en Expert People see pages 28 and 25.
‘We undertake around
o 44,000

> Our relationships and partners cuslomer surveys each
“Qur relationships with a range of stakeholders year """“a":‘?a“dm our
H ncluding our customers, iwestmenl partners ocoupiers and their customers
N PV . and employees want from
: and the communilies in which we operate are our places

key Lo our surcess.

For mare information on our stakeholdars
see page 15

10 British Land | Annual Regort and Accounts '2i117



Financial performance
Rental incpme from our properties, less
operaling and finance costs, is recognised
as our Underiyng Profit As a Real Eslate
invesinent Trust {REIMT) we are required to
disirivute a1 least 9075 of tax exasnpd property
income to shareholders as dividends.

£50m

invested in enhancing
environments acnyss the
portiolio in the last year Other mcome, expenses and movements
in the valuzivon of our properiies lranslate
1o mgverment m our nel assael value.
For more Efocrnation on owr fnencet
performance see pages 37to 42,
Right Places e have assembled a high
Our understanding of quality portfolio on a large
long term trends and cur scale. We focus on multi-let
customers has driven a retail across the UK and -
focus on places in well oﬁm-led campuses in London
connected locations where which are increasingly mixed
we can control the breader use. Our customer focus
environment to deliver and our actions t0 enhance
- L ’ » - . "

- a better expenence..“e our places drive endnnng Positive o es
apply our placemaking demand for our properties for our stakecholders :
framework to create from a broad range : ~ Dividends and long term capital :
Places People Prefer. of occupiers. growth for shareholders :

- Enjoyable, convenient experiances
Far more infarmation on which promote wellbeing jor the
Right Places see pages 1810 21. users of our properties .
- Improving sales performance ,

and productivily lor our occupiers

- Altraclive sustainable emaronmenis,
events, jobs 2nd skills development

We benefit from our scale and o o e communitios
operate our assets over the long - Profitable, collaborative business
term to create sustainable for our suppliers. _
vahee for all stakeholders. ot g oS
‘/E\ : .......................................... E :
eeeeeeereeeeeseseeoebe s PoSitve outcomes forour customers 1o :

: reinforce demand for our places

BritishL_and | Annual Report and Accounts 2017 11



Sreniediv Repare

MARKET TRENDS AND HOW WE ARE RESPONDING

Our business is positioned to
benefit from long term trends

Key long term trends

The UK’s changing role in global markets :

London witl remain a2 leading glebat aty. bul will {3ce near ferm uncertainty 2s the lerms on

which the UK leaves the EU are negoliated. We may see mmsed mssum on emnployment

in finandat services and related seciors as busk London and the UK -

rernain the best location for them. The weaker curvancy translates o higher inpul costs for

retailers, with consumers potentiaily facing lower dispesable incomes as inflation intreases. |

Population growth and urbanisation

The UK populalion is expected te grow from 45 million in 2015 to over 74 million in 2040,

Much of the increase is expecied 1o be in ils largest dities, particulariy London, where i '
there is an increasing emnphasis on altreciive mixed use ervironmants.

,

Transfornmtive impact of teduology
Technatogy is not only driving changes in how we work and shop. it is having a profound impact
on the space we accupy. The ability lowork remately changes haw we use office space. increasing

the demand {or flexible and co~working space. in resp to onling, relaiters are devetoping
sophisticated omni-channel sirategies, ard are uswg technology to respond o changmg
consumer behavmur

Evolving worker and consumer expectations

The dishnthan between work and leisure ime is increasingly blurred so people expect a
range of amenities and services, and a cheice of leisure and enterteinment aclivities ta form
an integrat part of the places where they work. shop and tive. This is increasing demand for
mixed use environments which are well integrated with locsl communities and provide a
superior and dillerenlialed offer.

Wellbeing and sustainability

Peuple’'s wellbeing is strongly influenced by Ihe places where they spend lisne. Increasingly.
companies are focusing on providing workspaces which promote welibeing and increase
productivity. The quality of workspace has become a iool to atiract and redain key tatent and
retailers are choosing to locate their stores in environmenis which entourage custarner toyally.
Thereis also a growing expectation that buildings should reflect enwvironmental concerns. -

British Land | Annual Repart and Accounts 2017



How we are responding

For rore infoymation on Jur
stralegy see pages 14 and 15.

66

We focus on our customers and curate
the environment inside and out using
our scale and placemaking expertise.”

Investing in London

The impact on London f the UK's departure frem the EU is undear, bult ils capadity to evolve

15 well established. We baliove thal the sase of deing business, #s intellactual capital_culture,
diversity and reputation for innovation undengins London's leng termappest as 2 gloda\ business
and cultural centre. 98% of our portioio is localed here, and £4 bilbon of gur assets arzin

close proximity to Crossrail stations, reflecting the ¥npartance of well-connecied space to

our CUStoMmers.

Getting closer to our customers .

Our strategy is focusad on our accupiers and their customers and employees. We have invested
in the skils and resources we need o better understand their preferences. In Retail, our data
profiles the demographics of locat catchments and our sheppers, as well 25 when and how
people use gur centres, highlighting the palentiat of each scherne. In Difices, we survey office
workers and engage wilh key decision makers from a renge of businesses, providing imporiant
insight into how to improve our work spaces.

Creating great environments

Across gur business, our strategy is to conirol the wader environment on both our multi-let
relail centres and our London campuses, enablingus to deliver places which are attractive and
authentic but also functional and eflicient. Our ervirenmenis are designed to reflect people’s
changing lifestytes, where the distinclion between wark and leisure time is increasingly blurred.
We target a mix of occupiers and services which reflect the lecal calchmenl and provide events
which enliven aur places and bring communities together.

Maintaining a flexible development pipeline

Developrnent has been ag important driver of returns and we have asserabled a pipeline

of opportunilies across a range of uses. In the more vncertain environment, our appetite for
speculative development has moderaled, but we are well placed to progress our plans when
the tirme is right. The majority of the development opportuniies in our portfolio enhance
existing assets.

Promoting health and wellbeing

We are focused on delivering environments which promate weallbeing and improve productivity.
Social places, green spaces and initiatives which encourage active living, such as cycle racks
and fitness centres are incorporated where possible and wellheing activities form an important
part of our events programme across both our Retad and Oflices portiolios. AL 100 Livecpool
Stireet, we are targeting the WELL Building Standard which supports wellbeing innovations
that help create healthier, more productive offices.

For more information on sustainability
seo www, hritishiand. com/sustainabitity
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OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Qur strategy
determines how we
create Places People
our annual priorities Customer Orientation Right Places
Responding to changing lifestyles Creating great environnrents.
" For our priorities tor the - Expand the use of data andamlyucs m and ont
year ahead goto page 8. 1o drive insight Focus on mized use. ldzsiyle real estate
- Levarage technology to develap high quahlv - Position our places lo appeal to 2 wider
For more information on value-added services for our orcupiars range of accupiers
hovw we performed in the — Develop our brand to be recognised : - trwestin existing assets and emarging
lastyear goto page 26 and 27, for creating Places People Prefer locations which benefil from regeneration
’ " and growth
Places
People
Qur systainability focus areas are Capital Efﬁciency . Expert People
aligned to our strategic priorities,
Disciplined use of capital Tbe Imowledge and skills to deliver
- Recyde capitat io maxlmlse performance Mainlain and enhance key skills sets,
. - Manage our develap o e and particularfy i technology. cusiomer service
o P - hnandial leverage white maintasmng and insights
Wedlbeing | Community the benafits of scale ] - Promote an inclusive ang diverse cuiiture
- Leverage experlise through cross-team
collaboration
Future- Skills and
Creating Places This generates Together with an
People Prefer long term growth optimal capital
For more inflormation See drives en(hlri.ng in rents and structure this
'"'"fl’:a‘:;;'“"'“"" " demand for our capital value delivers sustainable
properties , long term value

14 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017




Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all our stakeholders

We do this bycreatmgPlacesPeopIePrqﬁzr

Investment partners
- Access lo high quality
real estale

- Access to aur data-driven
insights and capabilities

~ Asset management and
davelopment skills

- Strong relatianships
including with local authorities
and communilies

- Scale of investment
and financing

Investors

. — Access to high quality,

tiquid real estate imvestient
- Slable, growing dividend
- Sustainable long term returns

For more information an
our financial performance
go to pages 37 1o 42,

-

s
- High quality. wibrant
enmaronments which drive

footlal and customer loyally.

and encourage employee
retention

- Flexable space which can
2adapi to changing needs

- Affordatile and efficent bustdings

For more information
. L an gur major gcoupiers,
see the table on page 1856,

Suppliers

- Aflundamental role as partners
in delivering placemaking

- Regular comsnunication
and transparency

- Consistent commerdial lerms
for profitable partnership

- Shared insights, innovation
and skills development

For our Supply Chain Charter

goto mwwbritshiand.com! ) ocal communities
P - Inclusive places with a
sense of community

- ingful local relationships

- Fadilities and services that
connect with and enhance
the overall area

- Piaces which support
locat jobs and skills

Far our Local Charter go
to www.britishland.com/
community

Consumers

- Comvenience anxd a rix
of ncoupiers

- Outstanding customer
services and facitities

- High quality environmenis
which premote weltheing

- Choice of leisure and
enerrinment activities

To read more an Custamer
Orientation go to pages
16 and 17.

Emplovees

- Potential to develop skilts
and opportunities

- Working wath some of the
best people across the most
exciting projects in the sector

- An mcusive enviromment

— Opporlumties lo make
a positive difference

Toread more on Expert
People go to pages 24 and 25.
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QUR STRATEGY - CUSTOMER ORIENTATION

Customer Orientation

Responding to

changing lifestyles

We use our insight into customars’ needs and
identify major lang term trends to create
environments which reflect changing tifestyles

Who are our customers?

Our customers are the end users of our
properties as well as our oooupiars. We engage
wilh the people who visil our Retail centres and
our Dffice proparties, as well as the emnployees
and residents who work and e, in and around
them, {0 provide buildings and environments
which meel their changing needs.

How we understand our customers
Our Insight learn operates across the business,
cotfecting and analysing data indewelop our
understanding of who cur cusiomers are,_how
they behave, what they experience and what
their preferences are. This kntgwledge andg the
long lerm irends impacting our business iset
oul an page 12 to 13} infarm our approach

for each asset within our porticlio.

In Retail we yse this information o understand
the prelerences of peaple visiling our centres
and olhers within our catchments. This helps
us to balance our space appropniatzly between
retail, leisure 2nd food & beverage and guides
which brands we should be targeting. It provides
valuable feedback on whal peaple like about cur
services and environments and where we can
improve, and helps us assess the impact of
enhancements we undertake. We collect dala
an trading and occupancy cost raties so we can
identify occupiers who are vader ar over irading
and locale them in the most appropriale space.
Far each cenlre, we are ahie Yo map the shopper
missions the centre serves and undarstand

the potential range of consumer journeys it can
capture. This informs our vision of how to position
the centre and whal changes we should make
to profitably grow footialt and consumer spend
for aur gccupiers.

The main siructucal shift impacting UK spending
habils in recent years has been the icreasing
role of the internet. We areate places that enable
our occupiers lo trade profitably across a range
of channels. Ta help us belter understand the
role of physical space in each channel we
partnered with retail consultancy GlobalData

1o quanhiy the True Value of Stores.

16

Understanding our
Retail customers

- Wa coltect geographic and
" demogrepiic data on tocal

catchments, induding online
dala fnern ©.3 mitlion individuals

~ Wea coliect operational data including

_foatfall, dwell time and sales on the

snajority of our multi-let assets

- Weunderiakz 40,000 shopper
surveys each year

- Wa collect data from c_12 million visits
1o our Retail Gentre websites each year

Qur research [shown in the chart below) shows
that cick ang collect and store browsing beosts
physical sates by 5%, rising to 9% for non-
grocery spend. Click and collect custemers are
incredibly valuable because they spend around
S0% more than the avarage shopper, meluding
spend in addition to the items being collected.

8900

of all UK retail sales touch a physical store

As well 25 benafiling from this, retailers alse
save 0N Gelivery O0sis and creale additional
appartuniies i engage consumers. The
volurmne of dicdk 2nt collect ransachions

in e UK s feresast fo double gver the naext
five years, Our Loca! cenires already capiure
£4% maore sk a2nd cotiec] ransaclions
Ihan the natanal average evidencing how
the combinalion of convenient locations,
Iree car parking ang guality environments
appeal te the dick and collect shopper.

I Offioes aur foous is on untdersianding
perspectives on the warkplace of today s office
warkers. Tlmymrwelamﬂmd the Qlfice
Agenda, 2 ile whare we engage with
senior dedision makers amongst Curent and
prospeciive corupiers an 1ssues which malter o
tham. Today's sooupiers see thelr workspace as
a tool to attract and retaim key talent so our first
area ol lacus was onwhal made 3 great place to
work, with particalzr smphasis on millennials’
who will be the printipal users of our space over
the coming demdes. Qur survey of over 1000
office warkers revealed that location and
transport Hnks were the mostimportant
factors, and in London, 3% of millennials said
the "buz?’ of 2 location was also importan.
Around 90 of London miltennials want food &
beverage and reia® opiicns nearby, dlustrating

Troe Value of Stores research
€13 £&bn
.m.n &
£
‘g B ol sl et
2 =
3
5
&
Pysctsore Cheand  Onlinesdles. Teelue  Onkne s Gnline  Malorderand Vol el
Colfect sales  browsed dsiores  rotbrowsed  pureplsy Wsmmg sales
instore nstate salles
- mﬂmm
> Ot ol stare ;

ops

= Oniine that touches the sinre

Sree- Qlobalaraffah Land Ky A4

For mare information see www. britishland.com/TrueValueciStores
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Understanding our
Office customers

— We surveyad 1,600 office workers
and decision makers on what makes
agreal ptace wwork anda further
1080 on ‘stnart’ oifice tachnology

- We surveyed 1,500 visitors and 250
employees 3CFoss QUr C2MpBUses on
their expasience

- We measare fanifall across our campusas

~ We run focus groups with existing and
prospective occupiers 2bout what lhey
need from 2 campus

just how dlosely work and sodal lives row
averiap. This insight supports our fpous on
carmnpus emaronmants with a mix of reted and
Ieisure uses and inflizances e way we design
and configure new buitdings.

Surveys aooss our tampuses were also
supportive of cur approach. Customer
satisfaction levels wase high scoring 4 out of 5,
with architecture and landscaping, overall
atrmosphere and safety all scoring partoularty
well. The combined net promoter soore for all of
cur campuses [a measure of willingness among
affice workers to recommend their place to workl
was above the benchmark for Landon. We will
monitar this on an ongoing basis t assess our
parformance in meeling customer neads.

L ooking forward, tachnology is providing

the ¢apacity to make our buildings ‘smarter’,
wilh systerns that can adapt automatically, for
example moderating lighting and temperature
to individual needs. This was the second area
of focus in the Office Agenda and our surveys
showed that 875 of deasion makers would
require smart lechnology in their office next
time they moved. This will be a forus forus

in the coming years andwe will be making
100 Liverpoo! Street 'smart irom the start’.

The Office Agenda is avaitable at
hitp:/lotficeagenda.britishiand.com

British Land workplace sarvey:
What makes an ideal office?

g SEE
— 3 [~ ]
s s
2
N
Location Safety & Public Comwrmmnad  Buzz of Nearby
Security transport areas iration food &
WAl O London Millennials %

tmghd provided by oo dataatiraciad
oroupiers o new lorRals and locations.

To read about how we oregte places
which reflect customer preferences
using our placemaking framework,
gotopages 18to 23.

We airn (o develop collaborative long termn
relztionships with our occupiers. Wa have a
structyred dient relationship management
pregramme ang are happy to share our insights
on consurner befraviours and today's workforce
wath our cusiamers. This is particularty
benslical in leasing discussions as we
position our assets {0 appeal to a broader
range of accupiers.

In Retail we use our detailed understanding

ol local catchments, demegraphics, spending
patierns and consumer preferences to affectively
larget new occupiers. Acress our porifolio, we
can idznlify areas where retzilers are under-
represented, and where our catchments match
the profile of their target shopper. Combined
with persuasive foatfall and sales dala, and the
modern, attraclive emvironments al our tenties,
we are successiully altracling eccupiers

10 geographies and retail lormats inwhich
they have not previously operated.

In @ffices we have established a consistent
approach {o our relationships with all levels

of occupier; fror our day-to-day contacts

- 91.7)

187.2)

o

Ounidoar
nedaf

- beverage

From a sunvey of over 1,000 UK oftis war

2015 and Lanuary 2014
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Reflecting arstonmes needs
Al Blasgow Forl, we have respondes (o Qrsiormss
Eredaack by norsasng G park capacty and G

through to key strategic Secisien makers. We
share trends we have identified and reseanch
we have collecled a2round haorwe workers veould
1ike to and o vs2 thair office space. This helps
our ocoupéars mea the changing neads of
taday’s workforce and improve their overatl
wellbeing. In turn, s approach helps us

to refine gur cun propesition.

One new area of fotus for us is Rexibie
waorkspace. Technology is driving change in
peaple’s working patienns, oreaiing demarnd

for guality space which is flexite in terms of
bath the configuration of the physicat space and
the lease arrangements. Our carnpus-based
office portfolio positions us well to address.
this growing need, whether i respect of smatl
and expandmg businesses of larger companies
raquiring addad flexhility. We have establiched
a stnall in-house team to deliver against these
needs, 50in June 2017 we will lavnch our lirst
Aexible workspace at Broadgaia with plans

to roll oul this offer across our compusas.

Broadgate Estates

Wa provide 2 consistend and hagh standard
of customer service atross our portfobin
through our property management cornpany

‘| Broadgate Estates, which is responsible for

the day-to-day operation of our assets as well
as those of third parties. In autumn 2016 we
completed the iransition of the managament of
our Relail assets o Broadgate Estales. Having -
& single crganisation responsible for all assets
enables us 1o rapidly caplure and transler hest
praclice learnings across our portioke. World
Host traning and a2ccreditalion has been rolled
Ut across ow campuses and mulli-lel reYail
centres. improving the quatity of cuslomer
service across the portiolio. Further initiatives
o enhance the expenience of customers at cur
places are planned.

For more information on Broadgate Estates,
9o to www.broadgateestates.co.uk
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

Right Places

Creating great environments,
inside and out

We design engaging, sustainable places
which bring people together through

the right mix of occupiers, services

and activities.

Our strategic focus

Together wilh the tong lerm trends

Isee pages 12 and 13] we have identified.
it is ovr understanding of our customers
that guistes o sirategic focus on creating
Places People Prefer.

In Retail our appiroach reects our-
undersiznding of the consumer, so we
provide places where people can shop,

23!, and be enterlaimed; places which

are convenient and accessible, and which
connect with local remmunities. We dassify -
our multi-tet retzit cenires as "Regienal’
which attract visilors from a wide catchmenl,
and Local” which reflect the needs of

local communities. Our research tells

us that convenience is the mosl important
consideration in any shopping Lrip. sewe
concentraie ah assets which are well served
by public infrasiructure and where parking

is wadely avakable. Our sirategy s to own

and operate asseis which are the preferred
destination for the journmeys they serve within

“their calchments. We are aclive in disposing

of single -let retail assets which don’t
provide apporiunities for us 1o deplay
our placemaking expertise.

In Gffices our main focus is on office -led
campuses which also inchude a3 mix of redail.
ieisure snd residential (o create altraclive
and engaging environmenis. They reflect

the lifestyle of today's worklorce and appeal
1o a broad range of nccupiers. Togeither our
three London campuses, Broadgale, Regent's
Place and Paddington Central account lor
78% of cur oifice portfolio lfotlowing the sale
of The Leadenhall Buildingl. We also own
standalone assets and small clusters of
assels in strong locations wilh well-managed
environments. These provide bguidity in the
Offices portfolio. allowing us to develop and
trade more opportunistically.

Our strategic focus
Offices

Lifesiyle orientated mixed use offices

Campuses
Larga, office-led mixed use
tifestyle campuses

Standalone
Single assels and small dusters

The importance of London

We expect Londen lo remain a leading
globat City. It plays host to an ecosystem
of inteirelated busi s and s uniq
atlractions including the ease of doing
husiness._ its intetlectual capilal. culivre,
diversity and reputation for innovation
undarpin its long lerm appeal. We believe
it will continue to benefit rom population
growth angd urbanisation, driving long term
dermand for our places. in lhe months
follovang the EU referendum several
ieading global businesses rom a range
of sectors, including technology and
Rnance, reaffirmed their commitment te
London with significant teases, providing
& strong vote of confidence in the City.

Deploving our capital

Our focus an Right Places informs our
investment dedisions —what to acquire,
what lo develop, which capital projects to
invest in and what to sell. All properties

Lhat we purchase must be aligned with our
strategic facus and have the potentiat lo
meet the evolving needs of changing lifestyles.
We are active in selling those properties
within our por tiolio which do not meet these
criteria. Development and capilal projects
are the main ways that we can enhance

our properties to better meet customers’
evolving demands and have been an
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Retail
Mulii-ley lifestyte centres

Regional
ARlraCting visitnrs irom a mde
calchmen nr a planned np

Local
Fitling into the deily life of local cormmunities

imaportant driver of retums. We discuss
our approach to managing cur capital further
in Capstal EHiciency on pages 22.and 23.

Creating Places People Prefcr
Our under adi q of our cust

helps vs assess lhe potential olwr assels.
For each assel, we craae a business

Man af how io achieve that potential.

Our plaremaking framework provides

a consisiant approach to enhancing

our assets as Wa Connect, We Design,

We Enhance and We Entiven.

Connectis about providing places which
are convenient andg easily accessible, with
car parking or public transport nearby: it is
also about connecting with people thiough
our branding znd markeling and leveraging
technategy to engage with users of aur
places efhiciently and with wapact. imporiantly,
it is also aboul cur connechions within the
communily and cccupiers. We work with
comumurity organisatons, iécal people and
employers lo ensure gur places meet their
needs and foster a sense of comnmumity,
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Right Places is about identifying the best locations
and using our placemaking expertise to deliver

Places Peaple Prefer.”

Retail
Regional Local
Misstons wxdude lersure—dominated Missions include local neighbourhood
nips, tamily day out and the big shopper, corwenien leisure and single
ticket shop item pick-up
Typically >30 occupiers Typically 15-30 accupiers
Foclfall =10 mitlion, spend Footfall often <8 million, spend
>£100 million per annum <E£100 million per annum
Drive-time »20 minutes Drive-time <13 minutes
Dwell »60 minutes Dwell <460 minutes

Retall offer covers multiple categories
with depth of choice in each .

Retail offer covers multiple categories
and indludes tocal services and
amenities

Significant leisure and food & beverage,

e.g. restaurants, cnama

Convenient leisure and food &
beverage, e.g. gym and coffee shops

Offices

The benefits of campuses
- Qur campuses account lor 78% -
of our Difices portfolio ’

- OHice-ted, mixed use environments -
reflecting changing lifestytes

- Placemaking enhances and enlivens -
envirenments, appealing 1o a broader
range of occupiers

- Benefit from streng and improving
infrastructure

- Provide a range ol flexibie
accornmodation for cocupiers

- Drive long lerm growth through
development

The role of standalone assets

Smmiall clusters and more
apportunistic single site assets

Strong lacations within
well-managed environmenis

Benefil from regeneration or
infrastructure improvements

Provide future refurbishment
and development potential
Shorter investenent ime horizon
providing porifolio liquidity

Provide greater {ocation Hexthility
for occupiers

Anirnating our space

mnibrellaz Swreat” mmwumwdung
pabiliic art moiaToth 3 From d:
ronsiiti-rotoared v, hoipang tnenl;mn
Southbate, eur Regaonct retad centre in Bath. ln s
Grstiwaal s3les and tpasl! 71 SeuihGate increased
iy 2% It vz, exngoyed by fre milion peaple and

v a papadiar future on st media, reaching
e tham 200,000 Fediker wsers and 40,600
Fatahook vsars.

Our focus on design is about creating places
which are both funclronal and attraclive, and
which complernent the surrounding area.

We consull extensively with local peaple before
any developmeani, Al Canada Walter for example
wa launched our tourth public consultation

in May this yaar ahead of submilting planning.

Tha next step in our framework is 1o enhance
our places with the right mix of uses - retail,
office, residential, ptaces to eal, drink and be
entertained and to targel an occupier mix which
is appropriate for the catchment. We use our
data lo quide everything iram the eccupiers we
{anget Lo thair aptinnal loCation at our schemes,

1t atso tnferms where and howwe invest in

enhancemenis to secure the best refurn.

Finally, gur programmie of events, the
hospilality we show our customers and the
distinetive features of ouwr properties enliven
aur buildings and their evironments, making
them places people enjoy visiting, spending
hime and retuming to. Qur partnership with
argamisations such as the National Literacy
Trust bath strengthens our links wilh local
commumities and halps enliven our spaces.
Our weark with the New Diorarna Theatre at
Regant’s Place is a goad example of how we
are angaging wilh local communities at our
campuses. We have made more than 40,000
54 1 of rehearsal space available to them on
atemporary basis, crealing one of the largest
perferming arts spaces of its kind in London.
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QUR STRATEGY ~ RIGHT PLACES

Placemaking is how we create
- attractive and engaging real estate

— We —

with aris charity Creste. Theywoeked
with profeccional artsis at Edan Wil
in Kingsien, Padgingion Cantral,
SouthGate in Bath, Surrey theays.
Wisiteley in Tareharh and 31 our head
office to daliver ore3linee actinties,

C . v enlivening owr plates.
nect
Communication Accessibility Community 90(y
Digilal conmvectivity, brandi C isnce Supparting (1)
and mariaiing and areass for local people ol o7 can parking
andg eocupicrs spaces are free
community proj
‘The Regani's Place Community
Fund, a joint inthadive balwesn
Bniish Land and our orcupiors
has invested £30 600 Hes year in
a jobs dub for pecple at risk
of homelessness. a health chub
Tor the over 60s. mentor ing for .
sfudants and accessible theatre
perfor 2« for local resibants
524
of our London i
asseis are dose to
Erogsrail statiens
img: driving pe e
Wai A £6 ekl ingihe
emwronment 3t our L ecal centre Tdlgae
* in Colchesier, reconfiguring the car park,
mnproving landscaping and signage,
Altracting new brands adding a2 playgroend and installing
Our €40 miltion refurbishrent of

20

Megdowhalt is on track 1o complete
by the end of 2017, The improvemnents
have already helped aliract new
brands Lo Meadowhall including
Neat’s Yard, Nespresso, Hawes &
Curtis, Flannels and Ghost London.

#'We —

Design

aseries of mosaics induding one
designed by Incal schoolchildren.
ERV growth in the year follorwing

completion of the works vwas 14%.

.. Promating wellbeing
Form Authenticity Function We have completad ow; programme gl pubibc
Fificient and effective  How our users feal and Facilities realmi ats g entral,
buildings and spaces  inleract with ihe space and safely timed to coincide with the taurich ol 4 Kingdom
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Street. tandscaped areas and ouldoor seating

create places to netax and spead time outside the ‘
offvce arwd an art installation “Message from the

Unsaan World™_a tribute to comuier sceskisl

Alan Turing how spans Lhe witdth of Bishaps

Bndge Road enlivening the space undarneath

the brdge.
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Enhance

OCccupier mix - Segment mix  Occupier service
Qooupievs and- Balm of diferent SUppOTIing oCCypiars and
T ity ts anduses British Land valus add

Lt

Bringing people together
Seasonal evests at Broadgate
included ice skaling at Christmas.
which atiracted 28,000 skaters and
\ive screening of sporting eveats,
over the summer, suth as the
Olympics and Wimbledon, Qur

regular evanisinclude Broadgate

Live, gurweekly music session
and our artisan lood markets
which are held twice monthiy.

|  Enliven

Customer service
On site hospitality
and cusiomer sefvice

Over 10%

targe! retad food & beverage allocaten, |
at Broadgas Corvenity 1ess than 4%

Abroader range of uses
O plates Jor the retdeveiopment of
831 feerpool Strest a1 Bmadpste
wifll adtd $10.00D =q fi of retal spare
Encludig 2 rondiog restaurant
- Thes badfids aan the swress of

Broadgate Circle, whéch hronghl
11 e bramds 20 This pand of the
Eity, endl & instnament=] inoresting
avibrenl, mixed usa destination
2! Broadgata.

Upgrading the offer

Sine=: aonaering Ealing Broadeay

i A3, we heva r2-Bt 3% of the

cenire b naw ocrupiers. This incldes

tarandsamamdﬂsymem

= ML. ] E15 endilsan

m!wmumduasmw

Clas Ohison. We have irensfoomead the

d—'ﬁmxgdfm‘nﬁtmmm

Wasahi Le o], Fuor e

Bayamiummenﬂmm

Innovating to drive footfall f

This yaar we expanded 'Eals fram the
Street”. our pop-up dNing concepd wiich
saw the British Land Reulomasiar bus visk
10 o éurr Regional and Loca] reiall centres
ing tha bask in British sireat food.
The contapt was extended kater in the year,
with "Strest Siyle’, a fashion and beauty
s, widch ran across seven ratall contres.
These injtiatives widen our ¢elail, dinirg and
latsure offering, and areate more dynamic
shpping environments.

Leveraging technology to efitertain
We taunched Freazy's Christimas Adventure,
an app-based childred's game, a1 21 Ragianal
a2nd Lotal conires across our partfolio.
The virival present hunt ran over six
weeks ahd was one of the UK's targest ever
Med reatity gzmes in retail propesty.
Ihaappmsdmﬁoadedaumsta‘mmm
ganarating over 15,500 cornpetition entries.

We —

Events Memorable experience

Bringing penﬂe logather Craating Lasiiag, positive
and attracting visiors

impressiens
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OUR STRATEGY - CAPITAL EFFICIENCY

Capital

Eﬁicwncy

Disciplined use of capital

We allocate capital, manage cur finances
and partner with like-minded organisations
to deliver sustainable long termvatue.

Capital allocation

We lake a disciplined apprusch (o allocating
our capital. We forecast returns for each of
our properties annually and we are active

in selling assets with lower prospeciive
raturns, providing capiial for reinvestment
into apportunities with greater returns for
shareholders. Assets with \ower prospeciive
returns are generally those where we do not
have the apportunity to apply our placemaking
expertise 1o oreate vilue. This indudes single-
let relait assets and those assets where the
greatest spportunities for us to add value hine
already been realised, such as completed,
well-let developments. These properties are
often attratlive lo investors who wish 1o take
a rnore passive approachia property ownership
o¢ who aliribute greater value to stable incame
over a tonger tine horizan.

We have choices over how to invest our capital
ang assess the returns available both on
opportuniies within the portfolio and acquirng
new properties. Often investments wilhin the
porliolio, or acquiring proper ties adjscent to
our exisling holdings, result in complemnentary
benetfits. enhancing returns. This is particularly
the case on our campuses. Risk on invesiments
within the partfolio is also moderaled by

our existing knowledge of properties and
stakeholders such as occupters and

planning authorities.

Developments have delivered some of our
strongest relurns, bul are inherently highey
risk, particularty when pursued on 3 speculative
basis. We manage our developmenl exposure
carefully, limiting it to 15% of the total portfolio
by vaiue with a rnaximurm of B%, to be developad
speculatively i e. without a pre-let or salel

at any time.

Qur development exgosure moves withinthis
range depending on our appetite in the prevaiting
market conditions. Reflecting the uncertainty
teading up to the £U referendum and since its
resull our speculative developrnent exposure
has moderated to just 4%.

22

The scale and nature of cur portfolio and

our aclions lo creale opbonalily in lhe last
fewyaars mean that we have a range of value
enhanang development opportunitizs available
o us. We believe that we will maximise refums.
over the megium term by retaining Rexibility

to pursue many of these opportunities when
market davnand justifies it The benefils 1o
shareholders of a mére immediate capital
relusm are 2n importand consideration for

the Board and this is assessed periodically
alongside othar uses of capital.

For more information on our development
pipeline, see tables on pages 29 te 31.

Debt and leverage

We employ both debt and equity financing.
We manage thz mix between them to balance
the benelits of leverage, including 4 greater
ncome return, aganst the risks, including

a magnification of the impact of property
valualign mavernents. Loan to value {LTVI
on a proportionally consotidated basis

is our primary measure of leverage. We
am lomanage eur LTV through the property
cydle sych that our financial position would
remain robust in the event of a significant
fall in property values. This means we do

not adjust our approach o leverage based
on changes in property market yields.

The scale of gur husiness, the guality of our”
assets and the security of our rental stream
enable us to access a broad range of debt
finance on attractive terms. We raise debd
from a variety of sources across a spread

of maturities to ensure the Group and its
jont vantures and lunds are appropriately
linanced with actively rnanaged refinancing
nisk. We atso maintan significant undrawn
revalving loan facilities Lo provide flexiblity
and support corrent and future requiremenls
af the businass.

For more on our approach to flinancing,
see pages A3 to 45 for our Financial
policies and principles.
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Orer the last five years
we have sold £4.8 billion
of assets and reinvested
£4.2 billion in acquisitions
and decelopments

better aligned with our
strategic priorities.”

Superﬂnm:aies

Vie e i s of

mmmdmmmmm
arm W&%ﬂﬂ

Mmrmdwmm 13% i 2012

Recycling capital

We sold Debenharns Ragship Oxiond Street store
Tor E460 mitlion i _July 2014 on tevms agreed zhead
of the referendum,. Thes disposal reflects the results
of our capital allocalion protess and tur strategic
focus on mutii-lel assels where we can controd

the vader ennronment.



¥ finain hi
Togaher with GIL car juint ventude

partner, we are invesiing in Broadgate
1o oreate o vibrand, world dass, mixed
usa destination_ in 2015w complzied

the

167 Broadgals Cirde

andm 24, UBS teok oocupaiion of

40%

of 2558 ih grsd ventures and funds

Crystallising value from development
Along with Gur par tners, (xford Properties, we
exchanged on the sale of The Leadenhall Building this
yeor. This decision to sell reftected thal the greatest
valuz aeation oppartunities from devetopment and

- leasing had been realised. The price, whith was
shead of valuation, arysiatlisad an annualisad IRR
of 25% since out commitmeent to develop in 2010
and damonstrales investors’ continuing appelite
for well Let, well located tarddings in London.

Sl.Sbn

assets sold since March 2016

Making sense of BREEAM
e analysis shows that the additional swestment
BREEAM Excnliond

to achiave

susiainabllity ralies

on our office schemes i ks than 1% o dasign
and cosstrucan costs. In our expanience. hslfngs

with

strong sustaimability ratings 2re easiar mrent

aﬂadmhuhaquiadswmm
quahtywmummwd!ba\gaﬁm
futureprooted =t dirnate ch A

4msqft

of BREEAM Excellenl officws, shogs,
homes and fesute Spame

£378m

invesied in davelopmani and acquisilions

RedugimwrWnl
We are fitting 24,000 sq i1 of solar

panels al Serpentine Green, Péterbonough,

follovsing the success of apilotat |
St Stephen’s, Hull This installation
is expacted lo generate a relum on
tawestment of 13% aver 25 years and
save 3,300 ronnaes of carbon, aswell as
reduding reliants on tha Mational Goid.

Q7%

of atl elecinaty we purchase across
ouwr porticlio comes from resewable
sourtes, working lowards l!!l'ﬁb as
an RE1B0 partnes

ki )

Strategic pm'tnerahxps

We yse sirategic parinecships to achieve
benzfits of scale and spread risk. Around
£0°% of our owned assets by valye are n jomt
veniures and funds, induding Broadgate
and Meadowhall, Within these structures,
we kypically provide asset managemend,

devalopment, comarate ang finance senvices,

forwhichwe eamn fees, enhancing our awerall

‘with pariners, key customars and suppliers.

Energy cfficieat by design

We focus on athieving high sustainahitity
standards on cur developments, optimising
energy eificiency and genereling renswable

enemy on site, rather than buying eifsets fon '

carbon neutrality. Qur spproach delivers east
savings for eccupiers, well managed buildings
for the paople who wark, shop and live in
them and better assets for investors. We have
delivared energy savings for acoupiers of
E£13 million over six years, ai the same tima
as optimising lighting, lemperatures and air
quality for wellbeing and efficiency. We are
alsaimproving energy modelling and ploiing
Solt Landings to close the gap between
efficiens design and perfermance.
)
Far more information on
carbon reduclion, see page 38.
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OUR STRATEGY - EXPERT PEQPLE

Expert People

The knowledge and skills
to_deliver

We employ Expert People and work
with specialist partners to treate insight,
develop skills and build caparity.

Our 450 employees are split between British
Land and our proper iy management business
Bruadgale Estates. The scale of cur operations
has enabled us to ailract an expert team, with
the range of capablities required to own and
operate real eskate successhulily, and respondg
to the changing needs of cur markets. Wa
have access 0 a broad nelwark of contacts.
spanning occupiers, planners, Government
and tocal authorilies, siralegic pariners

and investions, 5o we see many o the mast,
altractive investment opportunities as well as
parinering 2nd funding possibiliies. We work
closety with industry experts and specialists
50 we develop buildings which benefit from
the iatest lechnologies and provide spaces
that promote wellbeing ang produciivily.

Our peaple strategy focuses on creating
a leamn who can deliver Places People Prefer.
Nurtunng talent and supporting development
i5 an impertant pant of the culture at British
Land. We have a formal annual appraisal
process for each mamber of our leam and
empower all enployees to progress their
careers wilh personal developmeni, plans.
We aperate a range of online respurces o help
empleyees develop their skills and wark with
Cambridge University 1o run a Leadership in
Reat Estate programme. Forty of our stafl have
benelited from this programme since il was.
launched in 2014. We are atso rolting oul
training facused on gitching and negotiating
skills, recogmising the impartance of these
aspects of customer engagement as well
as people management. This yaar we have
embedded new capabilitins, particularlyin
cusiomer-focused research and markeling,
where we are using dala analytics to generale
ighils into ¢ beh and digital
resources to keep them up te date with
ackivilies around the partfolio. We are investing
in technotogy across the business, upgrading
our core operaticnsl systems. and vsing
artficial inlelligente solutions to halp ensura
our network is beiler prolecied. We are mindful
of cyber security and have enhanced our

24

security position as well a5 rolling o oyber
awareness iraining 2cress both British L and and
Broadgate Estates. As our business bacomes
increasingly mixed use, we are also improving
the way we work across our teams teveraging
shills from diffarent parts of the business
across tha whole. Qur Insight team aowworks
across the portfolio and we are increasingly
integrating oparalions across our cone aam
at British Land and Broadgale Estales in
hunclions such as technology. HR and Rnance.

Wée are focused on creating a cullure which
encourages diversity and indusion. 5o the policy
throughout British Land is to empley the bast
candidales available in every position regardless
of sex_race, ethnic origin, nationality, colour,
age, religion or philosophical beliel, sexual

{ orientation, marriage o dvil partnership,

pregnancy, matermity, gender reassignment
or disability. We arz a member of People

in Property. a forum for Hurnan Resources
direclors in real esiale, and a signatory o
their guidelines on diversity and inclusionin
recruitment. We are also working towands the
National Equality Standard, which sets oul
equality, diversity and inclusion criteria against
which busir are d Ity.

For the second year running, Chris Grigy
was ranked in the top 20 Ally Executives by
Outstanding and the Financat Times and
we are pleased that BL Pride. our leshian,
gay. bisexual, transgender [LGBT| and allies
network established in November 2015
marched in the 201§ Landeon Pride Parade
in support of the Albert Kennedy Trust,

Ourwomen's network had a very successhul year,
hosting four career management warkshops
for women, as well as four "in Conversation’
events which are open to everyene, Parental
leave coaching has been introduced ang the
mentoring scheme we piloled last year for
veomnen has now been rolled out across the
company, oflering guigance and suppor! to boih
male and fernale employees. Wa Currently have
three ferale Directers on the Board, Lucinda
Bell_ Chiel Financial Officer, and Lynn Gladden
and Laura Wade-Gery, both Non-Executive
Directors. As a1 31 March 2017, 47% of
employees across British Land and Broadgata
Estates were female, induding three out of 10
of our Executive Committee. This placed usin
the lop 20 of F TSE 100 companies having at
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3%

Hify 3@ iy il ap@Teni iry
P 3% of our UK smeplier warkforon by 2020

teasl F3% women's representation across
Exeoutive Cosnenitiee members and their direct
repols as reporied in the Hamplon-Alexander
Revizw in Novernber 2016,

Promoting health and wellbeing acress the
business 15 an mportant part of our culture.
This year we launthed a Wellbeing Committee
wihich will focus on mentzl health and personal
veetlbeing and we have updated our policy on
Shareq Parendal Pay to provide equal enhanced
bensfits tor all parents following the birth or
adopiion of 3 child. We also’sel oul new flexble
working guidelines and are leveraging
technology to enhance both productvly

and employee wellbeing. We encourage

the recrustment of underrepresented ethnic
rmiorities through our support for initiatives
such a5 Pathways to Property, Budding .
Brunels and UrbanPlan UK. These schemes all
encourage young peopla from 3 wida range of
backgeounds lo consitles careers i real estate.
Our valunteering pregramme olfers our staff
appav lusnities o cennect with local communities
and devaeliop thes skalls, particularly through
shills-based votumeesing for example as charnity
trusteas and schoot govenmors. 0% of British
L sialf took part involunteering activilies
and 16% unglertook skilts-based volunteening
Uwroughoul the year.

Both British L and and Broadgate Estates
participaie in the ‘Best Companies’ survey
publishad in The Sunday Times_ This survey
provides an objective measure of employee
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Being an apprentice at
Meadowhadll and then
progressing into a permanent
role here, every dav is
different and I con always -
faced with something

new, which I enjoy.”

Chloe Simmonite, Customer Service
Assistant at Meadowhall

Deweloping fiture talent

Over 100 apprentives have warked
on the conslruction of Clarges
and 4 Kingdom Street through
aur Bright Lights ohkills and
employment programene.

Encouraging creativity
We entered 2 new design partnership
with the Royal Collegs of Art, the world s
aumbar one art and dasign university,
d\allengmgstudentstomnducemam
o devel opporlunities
aaussowrpor!fohn 'I'i\ﬁyeaf the first
of a lhree year partnership, has seen

3 oppor »
n the residenbal and offioe markets.

Providing h—auung.slu'llsandempluyment

Through our Bright hghlspmg:a:mne.

we helped d 70 young peopl rk

on careers in retall and hospriality this year. .

We detivered Bright Lighis Starting Gutin

Retai! and Hosgpitalityin parinerstip with var
- - etall andleisure oboupers and The Source

Skills Academy, which we established

wilh Sheffield City Council in 2003.

of Bright Lights redail and hosprtatity
trainees progressed smto ernployment

satisfaction and valuable feedback on howwe
can lecus our actions in this area to improve
further. As parl of our conlinuous progremme

of employee engagement_ both Brilish Land

and Broadgate Estates host company meelings
where directors update the leam on business
activities, finandat results and siratagy.
Colleagues at all levels of the business are
aliered the opporiunity in pariicpaie in our
well-established all-empioyas share schemes,
Sligning ther interests with thuse of shancholders.

We have long recognised the imporianca of
deveteping the skilled workferce of tomentow
for our business and markels. Through our
Bright Lighls skills pregramme, we pariner
with occupiars, suppliers and locat autharitizs
1o support apprenticaships, training, work
exparience, internships and empleyment at
ourplaces. We suppart the Pathways to
Property scheme, and are pleased to have
recruited one of the graduales to join our own
graduate scheme, starting in Seplember 2017,
Over 21,500 paople beneliled from our skills,
amployment and educationsl inifiatives this
year. Dur Supply Chain Charter seis out 12
principles we require our suppliers to wark
towards and we partner with occupiers and
suppliers on fair working practices including
lhe Living Wage Foundalion.

Qur respact for human rights is embedded
in how we do business. We are a signatory

1 to the UN Global Compact which supperisa

core sat of values, including human rights, and

have made appropriate disclosuresin respect

of the Modern Slavery Act. We are also a

member of APRES_ an acbon programme on
responsible and ethécal sowrcng aoress the
consireion industry.

7 s
] F M F
Britich Land 529 4% 52% 4E%

Broadgaie Eslales 53% 47T%  52% 48%
Group totat 53% &7T% 5% 48%

MmaanrEmnmand
their visws st www.britichiand.com/blogs
To rezd more about shdlls develnpment

9o to W hritishland com/skitls

For aur Sugaply Chain Charter go to

For rave inflormation on the Board
of Drectors see pages 546 to 57,

For our Modern Slavery Act Disclosure
go to wwwbritishlard com/fmsa

Britich Lavd i in the

Top 20

o FTSE m:lmmameshavﬂ'lgalleaslﬁf‘&ms
reprracanialitn aomes ereulive CMINtEes Members
and direct reporis. 2s reported in the Hamplon-
Atexander Revizvs, MNovernbes 2016

Technology in Lishon and the enlrance,
gallery and courtyasd of tha VEA.

ﬁwﬁmwm,«mmﬂe

We pariner wilh the Albert Keanedy Trust, |
ad\aﬁlyuﬂmhprmdesmmodabon
and support for vul 1687 peepl
Wewramhﬂwsahhm
and this year seven Brigch Land volunteers
speqt lime al the sale house helping with
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QUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

How we performed
over the past year

QOur priorities in the year were What we have achieved
~ Attracting re@iler and leisure oocupiars i new
formats and new locabions R
- Providing the Rlexiblity for existing ocorpiers (o upsire
- . - 30.000 customers surveyed as paci of our True Valee
Customer Orientation 20 Stores research
- lmprove wndarstanding . - Around 40,000 shopper surveys conducted acress
of our customers: our Retail portfolio eachyear
- meﬁumg — Nearty 4 000 office worlers surveyed on thaeir
evpivirg customar needs parspechvas on the warkplace

- 1.7m sq {t of leasing across Retail and Bifices, 8% ahead

of ERV
- - Ower 130000 sq K of space under offer or in advanced
Right Places negotialions across office devalypments
i - 85,000 sq i\ of space let on a short term or meanwhile
- Use placemaking basis, which enliven cur campuses and address lease
to deliver improved expiries while preserving oplionality for redevelopment
Cuslomer experience - Progressing oyrvision al Broadgale: on site al 108
- Accelerata dalivery of Livarpool Street [520.000 sq i) planning submitted
mutti-let Regionat and on a relurbishmeat of 1 Finsbury Avenue {269,000 sq il
Locat litestyle rétail and 135 Bishopsgate (325,000 sq 1Y) with tncreased retail
- Progress Canada Water and leisure provision at hoth; pt gachievedona
wision and masiarplan radewlopmenl ol 2&3 Finsbury Avenue (563,000 sq

~  Entire 310.000 sq ft of office space undar offer fora pre-let
2t 1 Triton Square redevelopmaent. Regenl's Place

- Public realm improvemeants completed at Paddington
Central ahead of launch of § Kingdom Street

- In the West End, office space al our recenity compleied

A at 4 ¥ 1 Street, 7 Clarges Straet

and Yaldmg House are now around B0% let or under
offer al renis ahead ol pre-referendum ERVs ona’
nel efleclive basis

- 7.4% increase in Underlying Prolil to £390m
~ El1.5bn ol assel sales exchangad 9% ahead of valuation
- E8BIm retai disposats inchuding EADDT Debenbams

Cap'ml Efficiency Oxford Street and £226m superstoras, intreasing
o 3 enulti-let % of retail portiotio to 78% [March 2016: 715
- Deliver budget - Sale of our 50% interest in The Leadenhall Building,
- Progress devetopments ahead of valvalion §£1.15bn. 100%)]

atongside matenal pre-leis - Acquisition of New George Sireet Estale_adjacent
- "Conlinye to sell single-let to Drake Circus and proposed leisure scheme

and non-core Retail - Acquisition of 10-40 Tha Broadway adjacent

1o Ealing Broadway Local retail centre
- Increased our ownership of Hercules Unit Trust
to 76.5% [2014: 75.2%)

= Organisational design initiatives and IT unp s
implemented to improve efficiency
- Combining British Land and Broadgate Estates

Expert People . resources into Centres of Excellence for Technology,

; P HR and finance operations. leveraging best pracilice

- improve Company and generating efficiencies
organisational ~ Bright Lighls skills and employment programme
effectiveness o launched, working with our occupiers and suppliers

- Embed placemaking 10 buitd people’s skilts and help them Find employmenl
across the bysiness - 29 people benelited [rom pitching and negotiating trasning

- Continuing focus on creating anh inclusive culture which
celehrales dversily; successiul year for our Women's
Network and BL Pride with Wellbeing Cormiltee
formed in the year
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Gur objective

Deliver sustninable long term
vahee for all our stakeholders

~ Gifice Agenda wabsite launched to engage wih key
decision makers at current and patential cocupiars

- Commenced fit oul of 5,000 sq ft of flexdble
vaorkspace pilot a1 Broadgate lor the digita! wam
of an exisling occupier

- Commiited {o both the WELL standard for
Wellbeing and the WinedScore Platinum rating
for internet conneciivity and nrastruciure at
103 Liverpas! Sireet

~ B&% shopper score for perception of wellbeing
ai our Retail asseis and 87% eocupier scome for
sense of pride in office space 2t our campuses

- Planning submitied on 322 000 sq ft Leisure

Hall at Meadowhatl: on track o complete £60m
refurbishment be{ore the end of 2017

- Planning achieved for 538,000 sq h rixed use
re-development of Eden Walk, Kingston

— Comgleted Glasgow Fort fesure quarter and on

stie with aleisure extansion al Naw Mersey, Spaka
- Progressing plans at Canada Water with public

coasuliation in May 2017; on trackto submit

planning around the end of the financial year

- Applying our Local Charter so our places

becomz part of their tocal community

—  EV.¥m commumity prograrmve benefiting 35.600
peopte [2016: £1.2m and 29.500) including children
andjobseekers

- Augmenied reality games azross retait
partfatic and esiablished programme of
events al our campuses

- LF¥reduced 1o 29.9% 1256.9% proforma for sale of
The | esadenhall Building] kom 32 1% at March 2018;
no requarement o relmance untit early 2021

— 2.3msq {t of planning censents secured wilh a
Turther 1.3 sq ol planning applications Submitted

- 93% of devetopments on krack to achieve BREEAM
Excellent for offices and Excellent or Very Good For -
retail [2014: 82%: 2020 target: 100%]

- 35%ceduciian in landlerd energy inlensity and 44%

reduction in carbon inlensily versys. 29, index scored
{2016: 39% and 40% respectively: 2020 target: 55%)

- 98% of waste diverted from landfill [2014: 98%:
2020 target- 100%}

- Ranked in the top 200f FTSE 100 companies havng

at least 33% women's r!presenlailon across € Exco
and direct reports. per H

- 100% of employees and 72% of supplier workiorce

at our managed propertres paid the Living Wage
Foundation Wage (2016: 100% and 72% respectively]

- L7k apprentices m pilet study ol tier 1 supgpliers and
3.1% for tier 2 developrment suppliers (2028 target: 3%)]

- 0% Britsh Land employee wnium.eenng and R skills--

bhased volunteering in local communities mm BE%
and 15%: 2020 targets: 70% and 20%

- Poly on Shared Parental Pay updated to provide

equal enhanced benelits to all parents
For definitions see Glossary on pages 177 to 179,



Our KPis — how we measure up

Total accounting return (TAR)

€0

2L.5%
Customer satisfaction @
Oulol 1G
2047 EX

7015 78

We extensively survey the users of our places
to assess our perfarmance and identify
oppartunities fur improvement.

Total property returns @
vsiPD
il 31% -150hps
2016 11.3% in line

2015 X509 +130bps

We have underperformed the IPD benchmark
1his year reflecting our lack of exposure 1o
indusirial, the sirongest performing category. Our
Retait and Qflices portfolios each outperformed
their respective benchmarks by 70 basis points
and 10 basis points respectively. '

Loan to value (LTV)
= proportgonally consolidated

2015 35 3%
We manage our leverage such that LTV sheuld

nol exceed a maximum threshold it market
yields ware 10 Hise o previous peaks.

Best Companies survey ’ @
2017 One to watch

One star
2015 One star

- Total accounting return is our ovaratl maasura
of perlormance. Rt is the dividend paid plus
the growth in EPRA NAY per share

- Duning the year, we generated a TAR of 2.79%.
Our drvidend increased by 3.0% to 22.2 pence
per share and our EPRA NAV decreasad by
0.4% to 713 pence per share

Sustainability performance
- Dow Jones Sustainability Index World
ardd Europe 2014: ¥5th percentite
- FTSE4Good 2014: 95th percentlile
- Global Reat Estate Sustainability Benchmark
2014: European Sector Leader Diversified

Wa use ivfustry-recognised indices to treck our
sustainabitity perforrnance. We were pleased
o have been awarded the Queen's Award far
Enterprise: SuStainable Jevelopmant 2014,

Speculative development commitment
% of standing investments

2017 £0) S 17%
2015 £0.5bn 38%
2015 i EQ.4bn A%

Develapment supports value and fuivre income
growth, hut adds risk. We keep our commilted
development exposure at less than 15% of our
investment portiolio. with a maximum of 8%
developed speculatively.

®

Weighted avernge interest rate’
- proportiosally consolidated

Qur low cost of finance supports our
financial pertormance and we have
had success inreduting it

The Best Companies survey published by
The Sunday Times provides an extensive and
ohjective measure of employee engagement

Links 0 remuneration

Long-term @ Annual

Incentive Plan

Incentive award

Far our Remuneration Report
see pages 731088,

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Risk indicators we monitor:

- Forecast GOP

- The margin belween pmperiyyaelds
andg lnng term barrewing cosls
- Propeity capita! growth and ERV
growth forecasts

Management compensation linked to:
- Toial accounting retumn relative ko relavant
COMPArAIOT GHOUPs

Risk mdltatnrswe monitor:
Consumer confidanee

- Empluyrnenl forzcasts for
relevant sectors

~ Market letting risk Iva!:ancaes

- expiries, spec ¥ |

~ Management compensation linked tn

~ Company repasiafon with all stakeholdars
- Supporling the defivery of suskainability
objactives

Risk indicators we monitors
-_ Properly capitalsrelurn and ERV
growth forecasts
- Total and speculative devel ! e
- Progress of developments against plan

Management compensation linked to: .
- Total property returns retative to IPD
- Execution of targeted acquisitions
and disposals
- Progresson key projects including
developments

Risk indicalors we manitor:

~ Caovenant headroom

- Perieduntil refinancing is required

- Percentage of debt at fized interest rates

Management compensation linked to:
- Execution of debt financinos
Progress on strengthening the dividend

Risk indicators we monitor:
-~ Unplanned executive depariures

M t comp tion linked to:
- Quallly of peaple ard management renewal

For how we manage risk in delivering
Our stralegy see pages 46 to 53.
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¢ Keport

PERFORMAMNCE REVIEW

Our high quality portfolio continues
to generate strong income streams
with high occupancy and long leases;
we also have optionality to create
value from our development pipeline

Market and strategy :
Itis nearly ona yaar since the U¥ voled to leave
the Eurapean Union. In that fime, the economy
has outperformed expectations, with GOP
projeclions for 2017 revised upwards to an
average of 23b and unemployment betow 5%,
its lowest in over 40 years. However, we have
entered a prolonged penod of uncertainty and
. businesseswill face a number ol headwinds.
Mindfut of this background, but facing a clear
need to move forward, occupiers are continuing
to make decisions, bul plans are taking longer
to come to fruition,

This is reflected inour markets. IPD capital
return fell 2.4% in the three months immediatety
following the referendum but since then, six
manihs of posilive capitat returns totalling
2.0% have partially reversed thus position.

On the invesiment side, overall volumes are
down year on year. However, London offices
Saw a pick-up in aclivity towards the end of
2014, and momentum was susltained into 2017,
with a number of high profile transactions,
concluded at tight yields, generally ahead of
valuation. This intluded our exchange of The
Leadenhalt Building, which demonstrales the
continuing appeal of high quality, well located
properties in London. In retail, activity has
heen subdued with a lack of quality stack being
brought to the market. This has resulted in
limited transactional activity in mutti-let retait,
although long term, secure incorme assets
remain attractive to a range of investors.

We expect Brexit-related headwinds to impact
our gccupational mackels. in offices, it will he
some years before we have clarity an the impact
of proposed requlatary changes which may
alfect secupier demand, particularly in financial
services. However, demand Irom more creative
settors, which has accounled for a growing
share of activity in recenl years, has held up
well, and we are encouraged that a number of
teading glabal companies have reaffirmed their
commitrnent to London since the referendum,
Vacancy rales hava risen from low levels to
marginaily above tong term averages in both the ¢
City and West End loltowing recent development
cornpletions. We expect further supply to apply
downward pressure en market rents, but

our expenience today is that the right space in
strong iocations continues to command rents
around pre-referendurmn tevels. Central London

28

and import cost inflation. These lactors will
heighten their {ocus on the besl space, where
ty gale. demand has held up well. On the
consumer side, conhdence wall ba vulherable
I political 2rd economic yncertainties and we
have seen some evidence of softening retail
spend in the first part of 2017 with inflation
irnpacting disposable income.

Our view is that Brexit will accelerate
polarisation in our markets. In recen! years
wa hava pesitioned our business to benafit
from the {ong termn trends driving demand
for space, by providing places which reflect
people’s changing ifestyles. Qur data-driven

£139bn

portiolio valuauan

3.1%

totak pmperl'y return

1.19%

ERY growih

-1.4%

valuahion movament

8.3 years

weighted average unexpired lease lerm

98y,

occupancy rate

449

carbon intensity reduction since 2009
lindex scorel

development is forecast to be at elevated
levels, but we are increasingly seeing plans
being deferred or cancelled, and a significant
proportion of the supply proposed in 2019
ang 2020 remains uncommitied.

Retailers are facing a mare challenging
environment with cost pressures froma
number of sources including the National
Living Wage, business ratesin some areas

approach lo understanding how people use our
propariies quides investment and placemaking
activilies across our portiolio, as welt as our
approach to targeting an increasingly broad
range of ocrupiers, We provide places with

a blend of uses and a mix of servicesin
attractive environments, accommodaling

the preferences of our gcoupiers, their
customers and employees. Thisis most
effective where we cantrol the wider
survoundings, under pinning aur facus

an our mulkli-lel retai properties and

Gur London campuses.

Portfolio performance

Qur portfolio saw a valuation Tall of 1.4% over
the year. The decline of 2.8% in the first hall
was primarily due to outward yield shift of

19 hps. This was partiatly oifset by 2 vatuation
increase of L6% in the second half when yields
moved inwards hy 5 bps and we henefited
froem the impact of sales, particularly our

50% interesi in The Leaderhail Buitding which
exchanged in the year, Valyations were also

supported by continuing ERV growth.

The value of our Retail portlolio was down 1.8%
reflecting tokat outward yield shift of 14 bps,
with 18 bps movernent in the first hatf partially
offsel by 3 bps contrachion in the secand half.
We saw variation within Retail. with the sirongest
ERV growth on our multi-let portfolio at 2.4%.
This was 2.5% al our Locat centres. marginally
ahead of our Regional centres at 2.3%. We

saw a valuation fall on supersiores of 5. 2%,
reflacting a fall in ERVs of 4 0%. bui a stronger
performance across our other single-let assets
with valuations up more than 5%. This rellected
the sale of Debenhams, Oxford Street and
lease extensions and rent increases agreed
across our Homebase portfotio.

Difices were down 0.7% with outward yield
rmovernent of 15 bps fer the fult year, as 21 bps
expansion in the first hall was partially offset
by & bps contraction in the second half. We saw

Valuation ERV  Tulal praperty

Vatuation movernent growth return

Year ended 31 March 2017 Lm % % - *
Retail 6.654 a8 16 35
Offices & Residential 7015 10.5 05 30
Canada Waler ridl 0.8 09 18.31
Tatat 13,940 f1.4) 1.1 31
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the largesi valuabion falls on assels withnear
term expiries. parucutarly those properties
vatated by UBS at Broadgate. Conversaely,
UBS’s new building 5 Broadgate gained invaluz
benefiting from a long lease with RP1 linked
uplifis. The value of The Leadanhall Building
also increased reflecting the sale price
agread 24% above valuation.

The value of Canada Warer fell 10 8% reflecting
the valuer's reassessmant of davelopenent
risk and returns, particutarly on resigential,
aswell as plamning and feasibility cosis

not recovered. This £4-acre regeneration
opportunity is vatued at £6 million per acre.
The nexl major vahise creation step is expetied
to be on securing planning.

Qur portinlio cutparformed I1PD at the sector
{evel, with Retail and QHices 40 bps and 40
bps ahead on a capital relurns hasis. Ovarall
we ynderperformad the IPD universe which
comprises 20% industrial assets which
performed wall Lhis year, by 110 bpsona
capilat relum basis and by 150 bps en a

total relurn basis. .

Imvestment and development activity
The gross vatue of our invesiment activity
sinte 1 April 2018, as measured by cur share
of acquisilions, disposals, capital spend on
davelopments and ather capilal projecis was .
£2.0 biltion, Thisindudes £1.5 billion of sales on
sversge 9% zhead of valuation, at anaverage
yield of 4%. Net divestment was £1.1 billion.

Offices sales included our 50% interest in
The Leadenhall Building, which exchanged - .
in March for a headline price of £3.15 illion
{10055}, The sale, to C C Land. is conditional
upon C C Land sharehotder approval. A Special
General Meeting of the shareholders ol CC
Land has been convened on 18 May 2017

" toapprove the transaction. We expecl the
transaclion to complete shortly thereafter.
This Wransaction is a good example of howr
our standalone office assets provide liquidity
allowing us te devalop and {rade opporturastically.
At our carnpuseswe focus on delivering -
susizinable returns over the long term.

In Retait. we made E881 million of disposals,
3% ahead of valuation, comprising £709 million
of single-let properhies and £172 mitlion of

£20Obn

. -

ﬁ!.; S5bn
£0.5bn

atqAsiEans and capitat expenditore

1.4m sq ft

leatings and renenals

+8%

Lattings and reneweals ahaad of ERVY

mulli-lzt assels which weie nol aligned )
with our strategic gozls. The largest sale was
Dabenhams, Oxlord Street for a price of F400
million. We sold £2246 mition I£410 million gross
valuel of supersiores induding £116 million as
part of our Tesco IV swap transaclion which
exchanged and cempletad alter the year end,
resulling in the termination of the last of our
five Tesco joint ventures. In aggregale. our
Tesco joml ventures delivered an annualised
retum of over 10% since the first one was
established in 1997 Over the last five yoars, we

have now sold over £900 million of supersiores,

reducing their weighling in the Relait portiolio
from 22% to 8% and in the ovarall portfolic
from 13% lo 4% Mulli-lel retadl now accounts
{or 78% of the Retail portfalio increasing from
T1% al the start of the year.

We have progressed sates al each of
‘our residential schemes with £54 million
exchanged over the year, on average £.5%
ahead of valuation with a further £27 million
.reserved al prices in line with March 2017
valuations. Sales at Aldgate Ptace ware
exchanged al prices n line with valuation,

leaving just one apartment to sell. Al The

Hempel Colleclion, sates accelerated following
the laynch in March 2017, and a redoction in
prices by 1%, Ae Clarges. Mayfair we intend o
market the remamng 11 apartnands lstiowang
cornpletion in late 2017 but we 2greed the sale
of ang of the larger apartmenls in the year ahead
of valuation lotlowing a one-off 2pproadh. This
actraly reducas our residential properties to
s2ll to £210 milfion of which £158 million is

a1 Clarges. ~

Qur £193 million of acquisitions in the year were
focused on 2djzcencies to existing holdings.
rosably sur £66 million acquisiion of the New
Gaorge Street Estate in Plymouthwhich ies.
betwean Drake Circus 2nd our propesed letsurs
scheme and cur £4% million purchase of 1040
The Broadway, Ealing which is adjacent to aur
Ezling Broadway Local retait centre. In both
ases these acquisitions complement and
enhance cur existing plans.

Bevelopment spend totzlied £183 milllionin the
year. We completad almost 200,600 5o it of office
Space at § Kingdom Street, Paddinglon Cenlrzl
and 7 Clarges Street and 187 apartments

at Aldgate Place [Phase 1} and The Hempat
Collection. Capital expenditure erhandig cur
assels was 107 million, induding extensions
and unil reconfigurations at our muth-lel retait
assels with directly assodiated income uphiits,
We have tvested £44 million improving our retail
enwironments, hotably at Meadowhail which
accounted for £23 million, as part of eur E60 .
million (100%) refurbishment. This completes

at the end of 2017, and is the most significant
imvastinant in the centre since it apened in 1950,
ensuring that it continues to masl conEumars’
evolving expectations. We are already seeing a
good response from occupiers with 37 long term
letlings and renewal s signed here in the yar.
We have also invested £5 million enhandng the
public realm at our Landon campuses, primarily
Paddington Ceniral. as part of a £12 million
investrnent programme. '

Following development completions, cur
specilative developmenl exposure has redued
10 below 4% This is well within our internal

risk threshald for speculative development.
This dhreshold was ceduced Lo 8% of overall
portfolio value from 10% in the year. reilecting
a moderation of our appetite for speculative
develepment risk given unceriainty in our
markets. Our most significant commitment

is 100 Liverposl Sireet at Broadgate: telalling

Retait Difces Residenbal  Canada Waler Tost § 520,600 sq it, including 90,008 sq [t of redail.
From 1 April 2014 . Gm £ Em £ £ 1 Itis due to complete at the end of 2019, with
Purchases' 187 - - 8 195 | costs to come of £152 million (British L and
Sales [88Y 1509 (56) - 1,568 f}aml-d"{:;m_cm:{mmmd;“ﬁﬂﬂ s?;: :

. . eistre eprnent at New Mersey, e -

Development Speivd : ) 132 2 10 183 | L hich is largely pre-let and expect to complele
Capital Spend N 18 - - 167 | the residential slement of Clarges, Maytair
Net Invesiment (5831 1459 135} w8 {1,059] | later this year. :
Gross investment 1179 i il 18 2,033 )

On a proportenally consotidated basis including the Group’s share ol joint ventures and funds

! Indudes £43m acquisitions and £116m dispoisals that exchanged and completed post year end as part
of lhe: Tesco IV swap iransaciion resulting in a net E73m disposal of supersiore assets; also indudes
a further £47m acquisition that exchanged and completed post year end.

T O which. £575m Offices sales and £19m Residential sales campleting post yoar end.
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Canstruction cost forecasts continue 1o

. suggest a stovwwdown in the rate of growth over

Lhis yzar and next_ despile increasing pressure
on input costs, Dur experience suggesis thal
cost inflation is rarginalty lower than il has
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Srracegic Bepart

PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Developunnts
Brhish Land share
Crem Cesibe BRViey!  Resifentil Spec

Sqit Wit comglss ERY © under elfer : dee?
AL 31 Miawch 2017 000 m Om fm m m 3
Completad is’iyear - 483 343 37 16 n -
Commilted £73 478 218 4l 1 278 4%
Mear term 1.053 345 338 43 sl - &%
Medium arm 3.031
Canada Weter 5.500

On a proportionaty consolidyied basis induding the Group’s share of joint ventures 3nd funds lexcepl ares

mm:sstmaamm
* Spenlate

ﬁddh'm}asmluemphnmslslnmelzsspamlagaam—sdmaasa

dapeligarant
propartian of yve Ewvesiment portiolio veive. The naar term figure quotad is the curvant potition pro farma

anmdmmwm

been over lhe Llast hwe years, However, we
continue o take a caulious view and mainkain
prudent allowances within project budgels
te reflect speqiic saclors and lecations. 6%
of the costs on aur committed devetopment
programme have been foed.

Qur divestments, tutalling £1.5 biltion this year,
our planning sctivity and progfess on leasing
discussions Mngrove our oplienality and leave
us wetl placed to rnake mnelydecsmnson

[a:]] W5 in eur d Pip

Qur completed develop ..;am" bstantiatly
{et, with almaost 0% of the office space at

£ Wingdom Stree( under offer, 2wl over 80% of
the office spare at 7 Clarges Sireel lel. Leasing
discussions oa aur commilted pipetine are
progressing and we are under olfer on all of

the office spate al cur proposed redevelopment
of 1 Triton Square. This activity enables us

10 progress developments whilst keeping
speculative comrnitments at an appropiate
level. We secured planning consanis lotalling
2.3 million sq it in the year aoross Lthe portiolio
and submitted planning applicalions on a further
1.3 mallion 5q h. This provides for a puch wader
range of opportunitizs in the near and medium
term than we had at the siart of the year.

In aur near term pipeline, we expect io commil
to the refurbishments of 1 Fhshury Avenue’
1288.000 sq ft] and 135 Bishopsgate 1325,000

sq ft} al Broadgate, in the comning months
lollowing receipt of pd g and agreement
with gur joint venture partner. Our plans at both
include incressing retait ang leisure space by
88.000 sq ft including a cinema and roof lerrace
being added to 1 Finsbury Avenye. Royal Bank

- of Scolland witl be surrendering their fease ar
135 Bishopsgate in June 2017 ahead of expiry in
2017 and we will receive a paymenl of £34 milbon
[100%) compensating for the remaining lease
term and dilapigaltions; we are already seeing
good interest on a significant porion of the space
here_ At 1 Triton Square we are qsrently under
offer on all of the office space, and have received
appraval Irom the tondon Borough of Camden
for gur redevelopment. Subject 1o completion of
the planning process and the pre-fet, we expect
10 commil and to skart on site in Manch aext year.
This will coincide with the expry of short term
leases agreed to maintain optionality for the
redevetopmen of this site while mitigating
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helding costs. On the retail side. we are refinmg
our plans for 2 104,000 5q ft leisure scheme at
Drake Circus in Plymouth and wa expect to starl
on sile next year. In lotal, these commilmants
amount o £338 million of spend and would lake
our speculative dzveloprment commilznent to 6%,

Looking lurther ahead, our mediur;'\ term
pipeline covers a range of uses, including
cifice-led development in London, and retail and

.| mired use developments across the country and

at Canada Waler. The majority of these projects
areincome produdng, findluding 283 Finsbury
Avenue and Edens Walk} or are held at Low cost
{Blossom Street and the proposed teisure
scheme at Meadowhall] providing us with

caat optionality on the iming and nature of our
commitraent. The total potential cost assodiated
with these opportunities is £1.4 biltion plus
Canada Water. We will maintain an appropnate
level of development risk, and so on aur
cHice-led developments, comnmitment is likely
to be influenced by the progress of pre-lel
discussions. We have a disciplined approach
1o capilal allocation and retain the flexibility

to respond o the changing environment.

Opportunities at our camgp include the
105.000 sq It Gateway Building at Paddington
Ceniral, where we are in advanced negoliations
with an operater for a boutique hate! on the site
of the current managemen! suite. We expect
to proceed if these discussions are successiul.
subject 10 planning. We are also working o
enhance the existing consent for a 240,000 sq It
olfice building at the: site of 5 Kingdom Street.

In the meantime. we have let space on a short
term basis to Pergola Paddington Central,
who are creating an 850-capadcity pop up dining
concept which benefits the broader campus.
At Broadgaie, we have secured planning fora
563,000 sq It redevelopment of 283 Finsbury
Avenue; UBS have vacated 2 Finsbury Avenue
and we have secured short tesm leltings on 90%
ol ihis space whilst their lease al 3 Finsbury
Avenue remains in place tbreak in late 2018).
fLooking further forward, we expect 10 take
vacanl possession of 1-2 Broadgate in summer
2012 and are working up our ptans for 2 375,000
sq (t scheme which will inctude a substantial
relail element. At Blossom Sireet, we have
secured full consent on a 340,800 5q i office-ted

mixed use developrment.
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OCur retafl oppartunities indude 2 372 000
sgitles tension at Meadowhall We have
suhmilled our plans and expect a decision ovar
e sunnaner with @ view 10 SI2rting on ske in
2018, Our plans envisage a multi-level Leisure
Hall with dining and entertzinment oplians
alongsade high quatily indema] and extarnal
spates for events and community use,
iaCiuding new restaurants, I Mew cnems,

café court and gy,

Edan Walk s 2 535,000 sq it mired use,
regeneraion scheme ir Kingshon, whidh we
mmmﬁmwﬂ\lﬁ&&nmmﬂm

© for Gar develop which
mduﬁeswmwreﬂaﬁandrestaumntunﬁs
380 neww homes 2nd 35,000 sq R of high quality,
madern ant Haxble alfice spare. Our proposal
will create an estimated §00 additional johs for
local propte. We are progrescing oul pians to
SEQUEE vacant possession of the sie_ and expect
toc = develop L in 2017 but in the
mazniime the soheme s income producing
wilh 2 yielt of 3.4%.

Canads Water is the most significant
development agportundy in our medivm lerm
pipetine: the shopping centre and teisure scheme
remain income producing wath a yiald of 2.8%.
We are warking dlasely with the London Barough
of Soultnwark. the Greates London Authaorily,
Transpadt for London ard the toa! communsty
on our masterplan for the 44 acre site, with plans
for up fe 5.5 miltion sq & of space across a wide
fange of uses. This indludes 2 million sq i of
workspace and 1 mitlion sq [t of retail and leisure
space Aongside educational and cultural uses
and up to 3,500 new homes. These wilt include
a raux of affordable and enarkel priced housing
aswell asa more targsied provision, including

t 2ccos datfon: The revised masierplan
integrates principtes of suslainabitity and
wellbeing which will creale a new urban
centre for London. Qur aclive programme
of engagement with the local community and
olher slakeholders includes our fourth public
constutlation which started earlier this month
and we are targeting subimassion of a planning
application around the end of the financial year.
We will evaluate phasing of the project and
potential funding struciures as we move doser
to secuning ptanning. In the meantime, we have
been engaging with 3 wide range of potentiat
occupiers and are encouraged by the interess. in
the shert term, we have created an exciting new
events space 2 the Printworks to raise the pubtic
profite of the area and to gener ale income, as
well as testing the appetite for this kind of fadlity
within our plans. The space has already played
host to Secr=t Cinemna and Mulberryin London
{ashion week, and now regularty hosts cultural
avends. In lotal, almaost 130,030 people have
atlended events there.

More details an the portiolio, property
performance, individual devetopments and
aseets sobd and acgired during the year
can be found in ihe detailed supplementary
tables on pages 16210 171.



Our actions this year hove
positioned us to exploit
optwnaluy we have created
in our development pipeline

Committed

100 Liverpool Street, Broadgate

520,000 sq ft

Comgpleting: 2019
Olﬁmleddaelownmlatnsegmwuswmle
campus, adjacent 10 new Street Crossrail

station. Plans include 90,000 5q 1 of retail andleisue.

Clarges, Mayfair lresidential]

34 apartments
Completing: 2017

Mixed use development comprising 34 uney
aparuments of which 40% pre-sold by value],
1 apartmems to sell on completion,

New Mersey, Speke [leisure]

66,000 sq ft

Cympleting: 2018
Letsure extension, 445 pre-lel and anchored
by an H-screen Cineworld.

Near term

1 Finshury Avenue, Broadgate

288,000 sq f¢

Target commitment: 2017

Refurbishrmen with a mix of retail and leisure a1
ground Roor. mcluding a cinerma, with more Aexible
office space on the uppar floors and roof terrace.

1 Triton Square, Regent's Place

366,000 sq it

Targel commitment: 2017

Radevelopmean ol exisling building adding 125.000
sq it of offive space. Underoller for pre-iet of entire
office space.

Drake Circus, Plymouth [leisure]

104,000 sq ¢

Target commitment: 2018
Leisyre extersion will includs » 12-screen Cinewsortd,
13 restavrant unils and £20 car park spaces.
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Medium term

Gateway Building, Paddington Central

105 000 sqft

Blossom Street, Shoreditch

340,000 sq ft

Planning oblained: 2016

ﬁreﬂ:ﬁedsdnpwnnﬂueﬁm Our plans
dnracternlfme:wnhamnoillwplam
de refail and resd g rowrch of

lheungmalfm nﬂhebuhh\gs

Canada Water

55m9q&

Tagelplmm\:ulddﬂleﬁwtdpr
4b acre moed e i in London
Our mastaplan, covesing 3.5 million sq i, eywisages a
broad min of workspace. retait and leisure, residential
and community use. Existing uses provida an incame:

yeldof 3%,
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RETAIL PLACEMAKING

Weve had a successﬁjlyear We have
leased well, our operational metrics
continue to outperform and weve

grown our rents, particularly where

we have invested

Chares Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure

Our Retail business has had a successful
year, evidenced by our continued Strong
leasing, our operational melrics which are
outperforming and our ERV growth which is
ahead of the market. particularly where we
have invested. This is our tenth consecutive
year of outperformance on a total returns
basis. This is lestament to our strategy,
which is to create outstanding places for
modern consumer ifestyles.

The growth of enline has driven polanisation
inretall as occupiers are increasingly lacused
on the best_ and the most appropriate space
to profitably grow sates across all channels.,
We expecl this Irend to accelerale in the
caining years, as relailers face a range of
headwinds such as cost inflation and weaker
consumer spending while the terms on
which the UK leaves the EU are negotiated.
For mnany of our occupiers, lhe besg space
maans a number af fagship or "hub” stores
supplemented by a network of more converient
outlets which ensure sufficient coverage and
are an important parl of online fullilment
networks. including click and collect. This
mirrors our siralegy in Retail which is 1o
operate both Regional centres. atiracting
visitors from a wide catchment for planned
trips. with a breadth anid depth of retait and
leisure, and Local centres which it into the
daily life of communilies and are more
convament and accessible.

Retail highlights of the year

. Qur Retail portfolio

£6.6bn

partiolio vailustion {Bedish Land shara)

98

occupancy rate
86
{eask ength to hrst break

312m

annuzl leatfall

Our portfolio has the
polential lo reath

60

of the population

Source: CACI Retail Footprint 2014
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Local — Mavflower, Basildon

156,000 sq ft
3m

aravsat foottall

Regional - Fort Kinnaird, Edinburg}

560,000 sq ft
13m

annual footfatl
Growing food & beverage and leisure
across ouwr ndti-let portfolio

10

o

% of rant

March March Mavdch
015 A1 017

March
013

March
poiitd

Our locus is on our oocugiars and their
ustomers and we use 3 range of sources o
undersiand needs. We angage with consumens
direcily through shopper surveys ant celtect
data on their online inftaractions, generating
insighls about how, when and whase people
like to shop. This guides everything frem aur
investrment in the portfolio tu the acoupisrs

we are targeling, enabling us (o positicn our
centres {0 be the bestin their caichmeny, for
the range of shoppzr missions they serve. A
high level of customer services is a key elemenl
of our offering and we now manage our retail
assets in-house through Broadgate Estates:
this transilion was completed n the year and
wa have been very pleased with how s has
enabled us lo deliver a consistens and a high
standard of service across our reiail pertiolie.

This year, fonitall and in-stene sates lwhich
exclude dick and collect and the beost to ondine
from physical stores), outparformed thetr
bendhnarks by 240 bps and 220 bps respectively,
but both were flat overall Differing dynamics
were evidenl agoss our portfolio, with feolfal
at our Regional cenires dewn 1.9% byt sates up
€.3% illustrating how peaple are visiting these
larger centres less frequantty, but spending
more. At our Local centres, footiall wasep 2.1%
bulin-slore sales were down 0.7% reflecting
greater dick and collect usage al these sites
which is nol included within in-store szlas. Qur
True Value of Stores research, cenducted in the
yearwith retail consaliancy Sloba!Dale Mustrated
the important role physical steces play in botsting
sates across other channets, including dick and
collect. Onaverage, dick and collect usage is 46%
greater al our L ecal centres than the natienal
average and click and collect cusiomers spend
around SG% more than the average shopper.
This oulperformance illustrates thatina
polarising markel, our centres are attracling a
dispreportionate share of consumer demand.

This year, despile a more uncer tain rading
enviranment, and with the portfolio virtually full

‘| at 989, we let more space, on better lesms, to

awider range of occupiers than in the previgus
year. Letlings and renswals totalting 1.3 million
sq It were signed in the year, on average 1.8%
ahead of ERV. Qur Regional centres accounted
{or approximately two-thirds of this activily but
both Regional and Local centres achieved leasing
termns which were strongty ahead of ERV.

Our leasing coverad a broad ranga of seclors,
but we were particutarly successfulin Iashion,
hamewares and food & beverage which
accounted for 25%. 27% and 15% of leasing
respectively. Reflecting our customers’
preferences, aur plans are to ingrease the
leisuce and food & beverage allocation across
cur portfolio trom the current position of 10%
lup from £% tour years agol, and we made good
progress on this in the year with 133,880 sq ltof
lettings. We are particularly pleased that several
of gur occupiers have chosen our assets for their
firstout of town tocatiens including Thaikhun,

‘Wahaca, Smiggle. Superdry, Chartes Clirkard

and Pret-A-Manger. This success reflecis an

’

Grer 500 chulsiran ok g2t in the Young Raadars
.E - g . . n

ressngly sepinsicated pitching process '
wrhitch leverages our insights to haelp prospeciive
oocupizrs undzrstand our offer and positianing
withon our catchunents, A number of aperators,
inclusting Primark. JD Sports. Sporis Direckand
Sdrulh chose to locate more of their Ragship
stiores with us in the year, by adding o their
exrsiing space 21 gur Regional cenlres. At our
Lortal centres, vee savy new leilings lo Wilko,
River iland, dando’s and more community
ierused occwpiars sudch as Explore Learning

and lzcz! gyms. We are also appealing to more
premium brands, particularty where we have
invasted and Meadowhall is a good 2xample of
s, Neal's Yard, Nesoresso, Hawes & Curtis,
Alanasls v Ghost Landon all signed in the

year as ovr £60 mitlion (1063] refurbishment
programme fkears comgletion,

This strong dernand for our space is reflected in
the re-letting of 90% of the 247,080 sq it of space
relurned o us following BHS administration,
wiih long term leases al levels sigruficantly

N excess of previous passing rent.

Like-for-like rental growth [excluding
surrender premiums| was 2.0%. driven by cur
sirong ieasmg activity as well as rent reviews
wilh over 120 reviews seltled on average 3 4%
ahead of passing rent and ahead of valuation
assumplions. This year we renewed eight
Homebase leases, tolalling 283.000 5q ht
exteqwing the lease term lo 15 years, increasing
ronts ang providing 2 significant capital uptift
for cur single-lat porthotia.

£RY growih aoross our smulii-let properlies

was 2.4% and this performance provides strong
evidence that our stralegy is working, trvestment
in our assels, guided by our insights has driven
demand for our space, bringing our portfolio to
near full eccupancy, and generating the demand
tension naaded to drive rents, We are particularly
pleased that ERV growth acruss assels beneliting
from gur ivestmeni was 3.2%, which was ahead
of the pastfolio average. At Colchester ERV
growth was nzarly 14% following completion of
our E6 milkion investment Lo improve the public
realyn there_ incheding a new playground, the
addition of public art and reconfiguration of

the car park.
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Srruaregic Repoer

RETAIL PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

66

The changes British Land is making to its centres will
make them some of the very best around. The concept
of continually updating the experience, improcing the
public realin and getting the balance right betwveen
retail and leisure is so important. The incestinent

in their assets is spot on.”

Timothy Mclgund, CEQ Paperchase

Enlivening our plates
Emnlsamasmehnmolmnmmwmm
drive fogtfall toour © 3 Bath

3.5%

total property return

Development spend in the year was £20 million
andinduded 3 newlesure quarter at Glasgow
Fort, waih four new restaurants and a mukt-

slnreycarpaxtaddmgmﬂspacesandlmeaan

1.3msqft

of retad talings amd rerewais

1% |

iBngs and reneaals whesd of FRY

2400p.
220bps

in-store sales growth ahesd of the benaturark

70

vtk phiac ts i cur TS Qo NG
Startmg ol o Retad programans. pert of
Bight Lighss

21
of our cenires proviing Cursiomers with
augmented reality games during the year

46%

mare dick and collect usaye at ouwr Lecad
an the nalicnal

¥

completing inlate 2017 Al Teesside. we are on
site with a £30 milten refurbshmand programme
10 coinGde with the centre’s, 25th anniversary.
COur inprovements Tocus on the public reatm

and ¢ sarvice faalities and vl deliver

car park capacity by over J0% to accor d
growing visitor numbers. This follows leisure
and retal extensions in 2013 and 2015 which have
ungerpinnad improved operational performance
at the centre. The centre is now ranked top in
s calegory by CACH in Scotland. Dur leisure
extension at New Mersey. Speke_ where
construclion commenced this year will add

an tl-screen Cinema, pee-tel (o Cinewarld,

anl six restauran! vnits. sigrsficantly enhancing
the {eisure offering at this centre. Opening

in symmer 2018, we have already pre-let
restaurants to Wagamama's, Nendo's and TG1 .
Frigay. This year we achieved planning consents
on 840,000 sq ft. covering 3 range of activity from
large mixed use developments to small-scale
imrovements 1o existing properties, providing
aptionality lor the future.

-1.8%

valuation mrement

1.6%

ERV growth

£1.2bn

gross itwestment activty

£881m

retail disposats al average yield of £.3%

7901w

of solar panels across five cenlres,

This year, capilal spend in the Retail portfolio
totalled £91 mitlion of which just over hatl were
mitialives delivering an immediate increase in
income. The remaindar were initialives to enhance
ts with longer term benefits for

ViVEr

our assets. The refurbishment programme at

with more planaed Meadowhall vas the mos! significant of these,
acrgunting for £23 million [British Land sharel.
This is part of our £60 million [W00%)] upgrade
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more Rexible space for our aroupiers.

Our insight has also quidad aur placemaking
slaged avirtual Christmas present huni at 21
Loral and Regianal cemtres, the largast ever
augmented reality game in UK retaif property.
Eats from the Sireet, showcasing ihe besh m UK
street Inod returned 1o 1en of pur cemres and we
launched Street Style a fashion and beauly event
which ran atross seven of our assets. Gur Young
Readers Programme, run in parinership with the
Mational Literacy Trust and retail oocupiers, is in
its sixth yaar and wae 252 pleased that over 5,000
children took part this year, Our Braght Lights
skills programme provided work placements
with our ret¥l and leisure ocoupiacs kv 78 tocal
unemployed young people of which 75% moved
into permanent jobs soon afles: initialives such as
these help enliven our places, altracting new and
repeal visiors lo our centres and foster stronger
connections with local commusnities and our
occupiers. The peaple who tive in and around owr
assels are animporiant part of our catchment
and their loyally is increasingly relevand as
customers have greater chowces around hoaw

and where they shop.



OFFICES PLACEMAKING

We've had a strong year. We have made

good progress letting space across our

development pipeline and our campuses
are appealing to a broader range of
occupiers than ever before

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Our Qffices business hes had 2 string year.

The portiolio is virtuatly full and we have made
good progress leliing space aoross our recently
completed, commilled and near term pipeline,
In line with our sirateqy to creale ouistanding
places for modern professional and consumar
lifestyles we are increasing the mix of uses
3aoss our campuses, o appes! 1o 2 broader
rangza of ocoupers.

Office lake up i central London has been led
by the technology and madia sectors, which
are now the mosl significan companent of
demand. accounting for nearty one third of
activity in 2014_ With its pod! of intarmational
talent and reputation for innovation, London

has proved Lo be a magnet for these new

and growing companies. This rand is

driving 2 change in the type of space which

is succeeding, with & growiing emphasis en
Rexibility. co-working and wellheing. 25 well
as environments which are compatihle with
the way people’s wark 2nd tetsure timne overlap.
Finandal services acoounded for vndes 2050

of take up, l2ss than half the figure in 2000.
This trend may accelerate further with
regulalory 2nd poticy changes fellowing Brewt,
but the feedback we have is that the preference .
of inandal services companies is o refain the
majority of their operslions in London because
overwhalmiingly this is where their enployess
want Lo live and work. '

Qur Offices portfolio in London

£6.3bn!

portfolio valualion [British Land sharel

98

oCCUPINCY 1At

4.8 years

lease length to first break

1 Proforma for sale of
The Leadenhall Building.
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GFFICES PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

QOur campuses
Broadgate (30% interest)

Regent'’s Place

Paddington Central

Standalone
7 Clarges Street, Maviair

Qur siraiagy focuses on providing the right
space, the right services, and the right
emITenIENis 1o maet this breader spetirum
of demand. We have engaged more actively
whth the users of our space, and this yaar,
lavnched the Oifice Agenda an online
platform where we share key insights with
waorkers angd dedsion Mmakers on topical issues

_induding the role of real eslate in atiracting

ani rataining talent and ‘smart’ olfices.
Our sureeys of nearly 4,000 office workers
and decsion makers provided valuable
insight into what makes a great place ta
warl, helping our oocupiers refine their
olfice sirateqy and enabling us to belter
reftect thedr needs.

Al tha portfolio level, ihis includes broadening
the rangs of uses on our campuseswitha
highey atlocation (o retail and leisure, aswell
as detivering more flexible office space with
ficorptates which are easily divisible, enabling
us to targel a wider range of octupiers. Al the
campus leval, we are applying our placemaking
framework by enhancing and enlivening our
assets with 2 comprehensive programme of
avents including exhibitions, artinstallations

2.8%

Wi property refesm

-0.9%

valuasian movEmeni

05x

The success of our approach is cemonsirated
by our leasing actvily, which this year tolatted
279.000 sq 1. 4% ahead of ERY. 33,000 sq fL
related 1o refd, leisuee o commmuimty Space.
We have let 3 further 85 800 sg it on 2 short
term or mesmwhile basis, adding uses which
enliven our campuses and address lease
expiries widie preserving optrenality for
redevelop 1 We ware ph dihatia

+

concerts, wellbeing activities, pop-up shops,
bars, markets and restaurants, and live
screening of sports, theatre and fitin. We also
partner with our sccupiers on comemunity
inmitiatives, such as the Regent's Place
Comynunity Fund, where our partnership

with accugiere has invested £30,000 this y2ac
1o support tocal community projects. making a
positive difference and sirengthening our links

-with local communilies. We survey occupiers

across our campuses and our results showthat
satisfaction levels are high, and have improved
over the last two years, garticularly amongst
key decision makers.

66

They arent just landlords.
They take a real interest
in the campus.”

Harry Tsakalotos, EBRD

36 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017

of 0Ur MO COCUPIETs, re-committed
t0 our campuses in the year. including
Facebook who have agread terms to lurther
extend their ccoupation of 106 000 sq ft at 10
Brodk Street. A1 20 Teilon Stree, Dimenrsionat
Fund Advisors have agreed Lo 3 re-gear, 1aking
their term to 1 years foriginal expiry June
20201 veth an sdditonal 12808 sg Hang
Credit Agricote have agread 1o extend their
140,600 sq it lease at Broadwalk House from
20719 to 2025. This aclivity, as well as the final
letlings at Marble Arth House and The
Leadenhall Building has increasad like-for-like
rert across the affice portfolia by 4.5%. -

‘We are also telling well across our recently
completed and near term pipeling whilst
sutcesshilly expanding our ax of uses. At

4 Kingdom Sireet, Paddington Centrat, we
weve almasi 80% under offer on the otfice
space within a week of completion in April.

In aggregate, these leases are on lerms 3%
ahead of pre-relerendom net effective ERVs .
and over 25'% ahead of our lrvest 3
Committee assumplions at.commilment in
20V4. We have signed a two year lease with
Pergola Paddington Cemvat {or an BS0-capacity
pop-up dining destnation on the site of 5
Kingdorn Street. The venue will feature some
of Londons most pepular restaurants and
bars, including Patty & Bun, DF / Mexico and
Raw Press and the offering will change each
season. Al Broadgate, we are addressing
vacancies al 2 Finstury Avenuewith 90 000
s 1t of sheri 1evm lettings, indluding to
Theatre Delicatassen, 3 fintech company

and an architecture practice,




We started on site at 100 Liverpuol Sirest in
the yaar I slis at the gaisway 10 our Broadgate
carmpus, adjacent lo Liverpoo! Sirest siztion
wehare the first Crosseail services will
commence nexi year. It covers 520600 sg ft
lanincrease of 140.000 sq fil and i< designed
1o be divsible inlo units 35 smatt 25 3,000 sq i
with shared ladilities catering to demand from
smaller businesses. 90,000 sy fi is altocaisd
o retail and restaurants, and we are
committed lo both the WELL standard for
wallheing and the WiredSonre Pratinum rading
for internat connaclivily and infrastruciure.
This development is a good itlusiration of
our strategy in Offices to deliver baidings
whith meet evolving custemar needs and
appeal to a broader range of Dtm;ﬁea"s ’
The redavelopment is expected to more

than double rents al the buitding.

Thz naxt phase of development will see the
mix of uses continue to evolve. Qyr revised
plans for 2 288,000 sg Tt refurbishraent at

t Finshary Avenue indlude 3 cinerma, retail
andg restaurants at ground floor, and our
proposals at 135 Bishopsgate allocate 42000
sq ft te retail. We have submittod plans for
refurbishment of these buildings, and are in

- discussions with prospective orcupiers on
nearty half of the combined space. We expect

+1.4%

leilings vs ERV

s1.15bn

headline sale price of The Leadenhall Buitding
1100%}

£150m :

developmant and éapilal spend

700000 sq ft

of lettings under oier or in advanced
negolialions across our CAmMpuses

-

to cornmit to koth refurbishments in the

coming menths with an 2ssecialed cost of

£90 million_ A1 Paddington Caniral we are

in advanced negoliations with an operator

to pre-izt @ bouligue holzl and all day dindng
cuncept of the.S4E of the existing menayenand
suiie [the Gateway Buitdingl. At Regent's Place
we are pleasad thal we are under offer on -
310,000 sq ft representing all of the office |
space al our proposed redevelopment of

1 Triton Square, end received approvat from
the Londen Boreugh of Camden last week.

This rneans that acress our campuses,

vz are under offer or in advanced negobiations
an over 700,000 ¢ f1 of space with significant
discissions ongoing across the London
business with potenta! occupiers on a further
B50,008 sq It of space, which could trigger
further developrent commitments.

As part of aur campus ulterihg we will

shortly launch a branded Rzxible workspace
ofler which enables us to caplure incremental
demand from the increasing number of smalt
businksses Llaking space in London as wall

as enseling a growing need amongs our
axisting eccupiers for flexible space for specic
projecis and teams. Qur first flexible deal is
on 25,000 sq it 2t 2 Finsbury Avenue, extending

Enlivening our campuses .

our retatisnship vath an exiskng otcupiar

ai Patdingion Centrel, who need additional .
spege for their digital tearn. This Bilistive
strengihens exisling rélaiionships ar'agj attracts
naw QOORETS o car campus, potentially our
Core oeniEs of the huture. We have allocated

‘further spece 2oross cur GRMERseEs ipchiding

a1 4 Kingdom Stredi. and ve have commenced
fit-out 20r0ss 80000 sg it

Following the exchange of The Leadenhall
Building. our slzndalons: effice poriiclio
accnunts for 27% of Gffices. AL 7 Clarges
Sareet, the 5 000 sg ft oifice etement of our
mixed wse Sevelopment in Mayfair, we were
pleasad that over 88% of the space was lel
or under offer just four menths after ils
Launch in Seplember. Wie achizved 2n
average renk of £113 psl, on terms in Gne
with pre-rizferendum nat effective ERVs,
gualily cffice space in London. At Yalding
Houseé [79.500 sq il we have 2t lour of the
six Rloars and are undar offer on the hnal
two. Like The Leadenhail Building, these
are buildings where we can develop and
wrade eppertunistically, Lo provids liguidity

W our partiolio and enhance refyms.

Pergola, an 830-sseater outdoor dining concept a1 Paddington Central,
wall host some of London's most popular bars and restawrants,
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Strategic Repare

CLIMATE RELATED PERFORMANCE

In a changing climate, our futureproofing
programme creates commercial opportunities
and helps us anticipate regulation, resource
constraints and stakeholder expectations

Carbon reporting

We actively manayge greesnhouse gas emissions
aaress gur business. Qur energy efficiency
programme has saved occupiers £13 million
gross over Six years and we're commitiad o

using 100% elactricity from renewable sources.

British Land was indeded tn the CDP
Climate A List of the top 9% of global
companies tackling climate change.

Our target o aut carbon intesnsity by 55%

by 2020 versus 2009 (index scored] exceeds
science-based targels. refleciing our support
for the COP21 commilment 1o bimit gloha!
warming to 2°C.

Wa have reported on atl emission sources |
regquired vnder the Companies Act 2004
[Steategic Report and Directors’ Reports]
Regulations 2013. These sources fall wathin our
ennsolidated {inancial stalement and relate to
head olhce activities and controlled emissions
from our managed portfolio. Scope 1and 2
emissions covers 97% of our multi-let managed
porliolic by value. We have used purchased
energy consumplion data, the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
[revised adilion] 2nd emission factors frem the
UK Government s GHG Corwersion Factors lor
Campany Reporting 2016,

Scope 1 and 2 emissions imtensity {tonnes COx)

.

Emission from combusiion of fuels has
increasad by 1%, largely due lo waather
affecting gas use in Difices. Emissions from
purchased plectritity has decreased by 12%,
targely due 1o changes in UK grid amission
{actors and changas in our por tolie.

For consistency with presious yeas s, carton
data in this Report is caloulated vsing

the location based methodotogy. Whea the
markel basad methodology is applied, sur
carben emissions reduce by 28 000 tonnes,
factoring in that most of the eleciricity we
purchase comeas from renewable scurces
IREGO backed). .

As the graph opposite shows, Scope 3 emissions
assodiated with our places are signsficantly
farger than the Scope 1 and 2 emissions that

we have more influence over. Scope 3 emissions
come from activiliés; that we don't direcily
ranage, such as visitors travelling by car

to shopping destinations, oCCupiers’ eazigy
use in the space they lease [rom us and the
manufacture of construction matenals for
developrnents. By underslanding and moniloning
Scope 3, we identify and prepare for future risks
trom shifts in energy and carbon reguliation
and. at the sarne lime, take steps to reduce
our impact on climate change.

Year ended 3T March m7? 2016 2200
Per m? - Offices [net lettable area) 0.069 0075 p1a
Per m? - Relail: enclosed 0.057 0073 0%
Per parking space — Retail: open air 0.084 0043 0106
Per Em: - Gross rental ang related income from ged portivlio! 87.39 73.48 -
- Absolute Scope | and 2 enissions fonnes GO.e)
Year ended 3t March m? 3t 2007
Combustion of fuel: Managed portfolio gas use and fuel use ‘
in Brilish Land owned vehicles 7.348 7.284 5.136
I'Jperalin.»n of facilities: Managed porifolic refrigerant 1055 from
- air conditioning 28 644 -
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling hro.urmuse:
Managed porifolio electricity use 34,149 38710 41186

! Gross Rental income IGR] from the managed portiotio comprises Group GRA of £4£2 million (2016: 251 milion).
plus 100% of the GRI genarated by joint ventures and funds of EA37 mitlion [2016: £451 milbon}, less GRI
ganerated by assels culside the managed porifoho of £259 million 12016: £315 matlion).
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Our carbon footprint*

i

WSoope 1 0.3%
OS5oope2 Q8%
BScopel 79.12%

' Based on 2092 and 2014 bt

For matket based data, see qur
Sustainability Accounts 2017 at
‘www.britishiang.com/data

Opportunities and risks
We C issioned a review of cli [
opportunities and risks in 2017. Our pordoliois

Tt edd

| wall posiienad through our lutureproofing focus,

Opportunities include:

- -Antidpating occupier demand for climale
resilien] properties

- Delivering énergy and carbon cosl savings
{2017: £13m gross}

~ Generating an site energy [2017- 2, 588MWh}

- Oulperforming Building Regulations
12012-2017- 21.2% belter on average)

Risks include:

- Rising eneryy costs

— Energy and carbon faxation, such as
the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme

- Climate legislation, such as Minirum
Energy Efficdiency Standards [2017: 4%
of portiolio at risk

- Flood risks, impacling on asseat value
and insurance costs [2017: 3% ot
portfolio high risk)

- Costincreases linked with carhon-intensive
consiruction maikerials

For our lull methodalogy, explanation

of changes and Pwl's independent
assurance, see our 2017 Sustainability
Accounts at www hritishland.com/data



FINANCIAL REVIEW

It’s been an active year with £2 billion
of capital activity, increasing financial
capacit ; iding flexibility to &

e otk s

£390m  £19Sm
378p . 29220p
N5y . £9Sba
299%  3d%

* See Glossary lor definitions.

? See Tablz B within supplementary disdosure for recongliations -

o IFRS metrics.

3 See Note 2 within finandal statemnents for catculation.
* See Note 17 withia linancial staterments tos calculation

and reconciliation Lo IFRS snmetrics.

: Onaprmomomtlycnrmhdaieclbaslsmctudmglhe&uups

share of joint veniures and funds

Overview

We delivered a good sei of results espadally in ihe context of an
uncertain environment, with Undarlying Profit growth of 7.4% and
underlying earmings per share [EPS)growth of 10.9%.

EPRA net assel value par shere (NAY) decreased by 0.4% reRecling a
porifotio valuation f241 of 1.4% on a propartionatly consoligated basis. It
also includas the impact of ne longar trealing the 1.5% convertible bond
as ditulive, as the share price was below the exchange price of 693 pernce
al the year end. Excluding thiss adjstmeni, NAY decreased by 1.7%.

Wa have been aclive, with £2.0 bitlicn of gross capital activity [E1.1 bition
of net capital activityl This comprises £1.5 billion of disposals of primarity
smngle-let Retail assels 2nd eur 5% intesest in The Leadenhall Building
which completes after the year end. We have reinvested £0.3 hitlion in our
developments and capital expenditure acress the portiolio, and made
£0.2 billion of acquisitions, grimarily of assets adjacent to existing holdings.

The nei proceeds from this activity improve sur finenoa! resilience and
provide capacily for reinvesiment into our porifolio, particularly on the
bread range of developrent epportunities within our axsting pipaline.
The proportionally consolidated toan to value ratio [LTV) has decreased
10 29.9% [rom 32.1% at March 2036, Owr actions have reduced the
propariionally consoltidaied weighted average interesi rate to 3.1%
from 3.3% at March 2014 Adqusting for the receipt of proceeds frosm
the sale of our 50% mierest in The Leadenhall Building, LTV is 26 9%
and the weighted average interest rale is 3.4%.

Underiying Prolil increased by 7.4% to E390 raillion; the wnpact of net
sates has been more than offset by like-for-like rental growth, financing
actty and a reduction in adminisirative expenses. The Group's aperaling

" cosl ratio has reduced by 100 bps lo 15.8% [2015/16: 16.8%1L

IFRS profit before tax for the year of £195 million is lower than the prior
year profil of {1,331 million, primarily due to the negative property
vatuation movermnen i the year,

As previously announced in May 2015, we increased the dnadend far
the year ended 31 March 2017 by 3.0%. Looking lorward to next year
we intend {0 increase the dividend by 3 lurther 3.0% to 36.08 pence
per share, with a quanterly dividend of 7.52 peaice per share.

Presentation of financial information

The Group financial statements are prepared under IFRS where
the Group's interests in joint vertures and funds are shown asa
single tine ilem on the intomne statameni and balance sheet and
all subsidiaries are consolidated 21 100%.

Managernent considers the businass principally on a proporticnally
consolidated basis when saiting the sirategy, delermining annuat

-priorities, making investmerd and financng decisions and reviewing

performance. This includes the Group's share of joinl venlures and
funds on a tine-by-line basis and excludes non-cantrolling interests
in the Group's subsidienes. The inanciat key performance indicators
are also presented on this basis.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

A sumunary income statemnenl and suramary balance sheei which
recondile the Group income statements to Brnsh Land s inteTesls
on a propor Bionally consolidated basis are incudad in Table A within
the supplementary disciosures.

Managsment minitors Uindertying Prafit 25 this mere accuraiety

reflects the Group's linancial performance and the undertying recifving

performance of aur core property rentat activily, as opposed o0 IFRS

metrics which indude ihe non-cash valuation mowameni on the property

porifolio. 1t is based on the Best Practices Recommendations of the

Eurepean Public Reaf Estate Association IEPRA] which are widaly

used gliernate melrics to their IFRS equivalents.

Managamen! also monitors EPRA MNAY as this provides 2 lransparsnl,

and consistent basis lo enable comparisoa between European properly

compames. Linked 1o this, the use of Tolat Accounting Ratum allows
gement to itor return to sharehalders based on movemenis

in a consistently applizd melric_being EPRA NAY, and dividends paid.

Loan ko value [proportionally ¢ lidgated] is siso ed by
managament 35 3 key measure of Ihe level of debl employed by the
Group to meet its siralegic objactives, along with a measurement
of risk. 11 also allows comparison 1o sther pruperty companias
who sirmilarly monitor and repork this rneasure.

Income statement

1. Underlying Profit ‘

Undgarlying Profit is the measure that is used intarnatly to assess
incomne parformance. No comgpany adjusiments hava been made in the
cuirent or prior year and therefore this 1s the samea as the pre-tax EPRA
earnings measure whichindudes a number of adjustrments to the IFRS
reported profil before tax. This is presented betow on a praportionatly
consolidated basis:

2018+ a7

Sadion £m m

Gross rentat inceme 454 843
Property o tiey enses [34) 33
Net rental income 11 &20 610
Net fees and other incame ‘ 17 17
Administrative expenses ’ 13 198) 88)
Nel hpancing cosis ; L2 1180) 153
Undertying Profit 363 3
Non-controtling intereses in Undertying Prufit : 14 %
EPRA adjustments’ 954 (209
IFRS profit before tax 2 1.2 195
Undertying EPS 14  341p 3I78p
IFRS basic EPS 2 N2 138
Dividend per share 3 2836p 29.20p

* EPRA adjusiments consist of invesirmam and develapmaent propaity
revaluaions, gainsflosses on invesimenl and rating property dispasals,
changes o the ki value of nanoial instruments and assodaled dose oul
cosis. These items are presented in the ‘capital snt other” colurn of the
cansolidated incorne statermnent,
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1.3 Net rentalincome 1€m)
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The £10 million decrease in net rental income dyring Lhe yazr was the
result of like-for-like growth and leasing of devalop ts partaiiy
oifsetting the mmpact of capital actvity and lease expries.

Like-for-ike rentsl inceme growth wes 2.9% excluding the wnpet of
swender premia. Retail growth was 2.0% (1.6% ncuding e impact
of surrender premial. This was driven by sirong leasing activity, assel
menagement aciivities, such as splilting units, and additional turnaver
and car park incoma.

Difice and Residential like-for 1ike growth was 4 5%; just over hall

of this was due to the tetting up of oumpleted davelogmends that are
g int the like-lor-like portielio, pred: tty The Leadenhalt Buitding
and Marble Arch House which are both now Rull. The remaindar is
attributahle o strong rent revisw aciaily, particularly 3l Regent’s Plame.

Lease expiries relating to praperties in our development pipeline .
aduced net rents by €8 mitlion indluding £3 million at 180 Liverpant

‘Streel where we are on site and £3 million at 1 Trilon Square whickh

¥ under offer for redevelopment on a pre-let basis; we have receivad
approval {or this development frem the 1L.ondon Borough of Camden.
The successiul letting of our recently completed developrnent
prograrmme provided €10 miltion of additional rent this year.

This brings the aet inpact of dmlupmenls on net rental income

to £2 milion.

Looking ahead {0 nexl year. we expect transactions completing
post year end lo redute rent by €18 miltion and fulure lease expiries
relaling to propertlies in the devetopment pipetine 10 reduce rant

by Cé million. Rental income growth will be driven by the letting

up of developments and like-Tor-like growth.

1.2 Net financing costs {€m)
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Finanang costs were £27 midlion tower this year.

Debt refaled transactions over ihe last two years, inctuding the £350
millior zers coupon convertibte bond, reduced costs by £16 million this
year. In the current year, we used sales proceeds 1o repay unsecured
revolving credit fadlities and we completed the early repayment of the
£295 milion TBL Properties Limited sacured loan. We agraed ona year
extensions on a latat ol £1.4 billion of cur unsecured factities and agreed
a naw E100 million bitateral facility. Qur lizbility menagemeant, which

is NPV pasitbive, reduced NAV by 4 pence par share.

Our approach o interesi raie management remains an imporiant facior
inreducing interest costs. The dacision to keep a portion of our debt at
Roating rates has seen us benefit from lower market rates which has
resultad in a reduction in linancing costs of £9 miltion. The proporten
of our projectad debt held al fixed rates is 40% on average over the

nexd five years. At 31 March 2017, our debt pro farma for the sale of the
Leadenhall Building was 78% fixed on 2 spot basis.

1.3 Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by €8 miflion this year as a result
of managing down our cost base and lowar variable pay. The Group’'s
cperaling cost ratio has reduced by 106 bps to 15.6% [2015/14: 16.6%).

1.4 Underlying EPS

Undertying EPS was 37.8 pence [2015/14: 341 pence] based on Undertying
Profit after tax of £390 million 12015/16: £363 million. The increase in
undarlying EPS of 10.9% is more than the incraase in Underlying Profit

of 7.45 as the 1.5% convertible bond is no longer dilutive. As the share
price was beitw the 693 pence exchange price at year end, no dilution
adjustment was made 12015/14: €4 million interest added back and
shares increased by 57.8 million], in line with EPRA guidance.

2.IFRS grofit before tax

The main difference between IFRS profit before tax and Underlying. Profit
is that it includes the valuation movernent on investment and development
properiies and the fair value movements of financial instruments.

in addition, the Group’s investments in joint ventures and funds are
egquity accounted in the IFRS income statement but are included on

a proporiionatly consolidated basis within Underlying Profit.

The IFRS prolit before tax for the ya2ar was £195 million, compared

to a profil before tax for the prior year of £1,331 million. This reflects
the vatuation movement on the Group's properties which was

€768 million less than the prior year and he valuation movement
onthe properties held in joinl ventures and funds which was £338
million less than the prior year, in both cases resulting from outward
yield shift and a lower level of ERV growth in the current year.

IFRS basic EPS was 18.8 pence per share, compared te 131.2 pence
per share in the prior year, driven principatly by property valuation
rmovemnents. The basic weighted average number of shares inissue
during the year was 1.029 million {2015/16: 1,025 million).

3. Dividends .

In lire with the intention announced in May 2016, we increased the
dividend by 3.0% for the year {a March 2017 which gives a full year
dividend of 29.20 pence per share.

The fourth interim dividend payment for the quarter ended 31 March 2017
will be 7.30 pence per share. Payment will be made on & August 2017
to shareholders on the register al close of business on 30 June 2017.

The increase in Uniderlying EPS of 10.9% resulled in a reduction
in the dividend pay-out ratio to 77% [2015/16: 83%l.

In proposmgtha dridend lor the coming year., the 8oard took inte 20tounl
the current market emironment, our target payout range and drivers of
next year's profits. it is the Buard's intemion o inorease the dividend by
3.0 m 201713 (o 3008 pence per share. with a Guarterty dnadend of
752 pence per share, refleciing confidence in our ability to grow income
over the madum larm.

Balance sheet
Mms Ay
Sechion £ €m
Properties &t valuation U648 13,940
Other nun-curreni assels 138 158
. 14785 14,098
Other act asrent lakditiss - 2577 1344
Adjusted nal debt 6 (47651 14.223)
Other non-current liabilities 190} i
EPRA nat assets [undiluted) 9675 9498
bion impact o] coswertible bond 400 -
EPRA not assets [dituted) iGO7% 9.4Y8
EPRA NAV per share ‘ & 99  95p
Non-conirolling interests.* A
1.5% convertidle bond dilution {400) -
Other EPRA adjustiments’ . 3320tz
IFRS netassets 5 9419 9476

' EPRA nel assels exdudz the marik-lo-mariet on eflective cash flowhedges and
related debt adjustmentis, the mark- to-markel on the oseertible bends aswell
a5 ¢afermed texation oh proparty and derivalive revatuations. They indude the
vatugtion surplus on trafing propartias and ara adjusted for the diluthe Fnpact
ol share gptions. 201516 also inclugdes an adjusiment for the dilutive impact of
the 1.5% comertibla bend maturing in 2017. No dilution adjusiment is made for
the £350 million raro aoupon conver tiite bond maturing in 2020 Deiatts of the

. EPRA adjustinents are incluted in Table B within the supplementary disclosures.

4. EPRA net asset vatue per share (p)

- )
R LE S
v [ JEER__ Mo

wahustion rans-

- achion  bond

ey opts  dhdion
reversal

The 0.4% decrease in EPRA NAV per share reflects a valuation decline
of 1.4%_Values fell by 2 8% in the firsi six months, followed by an upward
revaluation of 1.5% in the second half of the year. The movement in the
year reflected outward yield movement of 15 bps. pactially offset by

ERV growth of 1.1%. Net sales exchanged of over £1.5 billion. including
Debenhams, Gxford Street and The Leadenhall Building, provided a
positive condribulion to the portfolio capital return of 0.9%.
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Repare

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Retzil valuabions were down 1.8% with outward vield 1ent of

14 bips partially offset by LRV growth of 1.69%: the multi-tet portfolio saw
stronget ERY growth of 2.45%. driven by good feasing acinaty. Further
information ¢ Retail valualion parformance can be found on page 32.

Otlica and Residential vatuations were down 0.5% with outward yietd
movement of 15 bps partially offset by ERV growth of ). 5%; We agreed
the sate of The Leadanhall Building at a price 24% ahead of tha 30
Seplernber 2018 veluation and the veluers have recogased the majonity
of Lhis increase in the 31 March 2017 valuation. Further information on
Office 8 Residentiat valuation performance can be found on page 35.

Tha 4 pance impact of finance ransaction costs promarily relates to earty
repaymen! of term debt and termination of associated ikeres] rate swaps.

Thare is a 12 pence benefil to EPRA NAY due to the reversal of the,

1.5% convertible bond dilution indudad in the 2015fi4 resulis. As the
share price was below the 693 pence axchange price at y2ar end, no
dilution adjustment was made [2013/16: £400 million debt deducted from
net asset value and diluted number of shares iIncraased by 57.8 million].
Exviuding this adjustmant, NAY dacreased by 1.7%.

5. IFRS net assets

IFRS nel assels at 31 March 2017 were £9.476 million, & decrease of
£143 mitlion from 31 March 20146. This was primarily due to RS profit
before tax of £195 million being less than the dividends pa;d in the year
of £296 million.

Cash Aow, net debt and financing
4. Adjusted net debt [Em]!

' Adjusted nel deblis 2 proportionally € bdaled
Group net debil as disctosed in Note 17 and the Group’s share of jeint venture
and funds’ net deb excluding the mark-to-markel on effective cash flow hedges
and related debt adjustments and non-controlling interests. Areconciliation
hetween the Groyp nel debl and adjusted ned debt is included in Table A within
the supplernentary disclosures.

Capital activity reduced debt by £0.5 billion in the year. Completed
disposals during the year included the sale of Uebenhains, Oxford Streel
tor £400 million, & portiolio of nan-core Retail assets lar £19 million and
exght supersiores totalling £111 malion [British Land share). Acquisiions
comgpleied in the year included the New Gearge Streel Estale in Plymouth
{or £4& million which will now be managed as an integrated part o

" Drake Circus, Qther investments included devalepment expenditure
of £189 million and capilal expenditure of E74 million related to asset
management on the standing portfolic.
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'Net divesiment induding transaciiens comgieting afiar the year end

increased to £1.1 billion. This includas the exgected completion of the
salz of The Leadenhall Building sale for £575 million [British Land sharel
and the completion & the Tesco J¥ swep transacpon resuliing in 2 nal
divestment of £73 million of supersiore assais.

We received a £19 million capitel payment recesved in Decamber 2018
from UBS in refation to the deveiopment and accupation of S Breadgale,
and subsequant axit 6f 100 Liverpesd Strecd_ including B-10 Brozdgate.

7. Fimancing -
& P § ot

ame 2y 201 mz
Natdeblfadusiadnaidel?  £3.617%m €3,094m £ 765m  £4,223m
Prinapal amount .
of gross dahi £3.552m £3,069m E5.08%m  €£4,520m
Loan to value 7BIN nb% 32 0% 99%
Weighted average
inlerest rate 248% P 33% A
interast covar 33 £5 30 34
Waighted average -
deb!t maturity 7.2 years &9ysars B.lyears 7.7yearg

1 Group data as presanted o ote 17 of the nanca? <ia s, Thepr eacmptly
MMMNBMMSMMMWMM et dehl
am#exdudelhamark -1o-tnariet on elfetive oash Amwhedges and retated debl,

s and non-controlling

O L=

The balance sheet remains resitient, LTV and weighted average interest
rale on drawn debt were raduced and intarest cover improved. Gur
proportionally consolidated LTV was 23.7% 2t 31 March 2017, down 220
bps from 32.1% at March 2014 maindy refiecting the impact of disposals.
This reduces by a further 300 bps 1o 26.9% pro forma for the sale of The
Leadenhall Building. Note 17 of the financial stalements sels out the
calculation of \he Group and proportionally consotidated LTV,

The strength of the Group's balance sheet iz reflected in Briish Lang's
senior unsecured credil rating which continues to be rated by Fitch at
A- with the Outlook upgraded to "Positive’.

Qur propertionally cansolidated weighled avarage interest rate reduced
1o 3.1% at 31 March 2017 from 3.3% at 31 March 2015 This refiects '
a 60 bps reduction principally as a resull of sur financing activity

and decisions, parbally ofiset by a nse of 46 bps due o repayment

of cheaper {adilities with sales proceeds received. This increases

10 3.8% pro forma for the sale of The Leadenhalt Bullding.

Our weighted average debt maturity is eight years.,

British Land has £1.8 billion of cornmilled unsecured revotving banking
facilities. Of these facilities, £1.7 billian have maturities of more than
two years and £1.3 bitlion was undrawn at 31 March 2017. Based on our
current commitments, these faciities and scheduled debt maturities,
wae have no requirement to refinance yntit early 2021 regardiess of
whether our convertible bonds are cash or equity settted.

Further informalion on our approach Yo financing is providad in the
Financial polities and principtes section on pages 4310 A5,

Lucinda Bell
Chiel Financial Officer



FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding
which enables us to deliver our

property strategy

Leverage

We manage our use of debl and equity finance
to balance the benehits of leverage agains! the
risks, including a magnification of property
valuation movements. A loan o valus ratic
LTV imeasures our leverage. primarily on

a proportionally consolidated basis inciuding .
our share of jonl ventures and funds and
exctuding non-controlting interests. At 31
March 2017, our proporhonally consolidaled
LTV of 29.9% was higher than the Group
measure of 22.4%.

We aim to manage our 1 TV through the praperty
cydle such that our financal position would
remain robust in the event of a significant fall
in property values. This means we do nol adjust
our approach Ip leverage based on changes

in property marke! yields Consequerntly our
LTV may be higherin the low point in the

cycle and will trend downwards as market
yields tighten,

Debt finance

The scale of our business combined with the
qualily of our assels and rental income means
thal we are able to approach a diverse range of
debt providers to arrange finance on attractive
terms. Good access to the capital and deht
marketls is a competitive advantage. allowing
us to lake opporiunities when they arise.

The Group's appreach 1o debt financing for
British Land is to raise lunds predominanily on
an unsecured basis with our standard finandal
covenants [set out on page 451 This provides
Hexibility and low operationat cost. Our joint
venlures and funds are each financed in

‘ring- fenced’ structures without recourse

to British Land for repayment and are

secured on the relevanl assets.

Presented on the following page are the
{ive guiding principles that govern the way
we structure and manage debt.

Monitoring and controlling our debt
We monilor our debl requirement by focusing
principally on current and projacted borrowing
fevels, available faciliies, dabt malurily ard
interest rale oxposure. We underiake sensitivity
anatysis W assess the impacls of propesed
ransaclions, movements ininteresl rates

and changes in property values an key balance
sheet_ liquidity and profitability ratios. We

alsa consider the rizks of a reduction in the
avaitability of finance, induding a lempaorary
disruplion of the debt markets.

Basad on our current commilments and
aveflable fadlities, the Groug has no requinement
torefinznce until earty 2021 lirespective of
whether the settlement of the 1.5% 2012
convertible bond is with equity or debt).

British t and’s committed bank fadlities lois
£1.8 billion, of which £1.3 billion was undrawn

_at 31 March 2017.

For more on managing aur risks, including
financial risks, see pages 46 10 53.

Managing interest rate exposure

We manage our interest rale profite
independently from our debt, considering the
sensilivily of undertying earnings lo movements
in market rates of milerest over a five year
period, The Board sets sppropriate canges.

of hedged debt over that period and the

tonger term.

Our debt finance s raised at both fixed and
variable retes. Derivatives [primanty interesi rate
swaps and caps) are used lo achieve the desired
interest rate profite across proportionalty
consolidated net debt. Currently 60% en average
of projecied net debtis hedged aver the next five
years, with a decreasing profite over that period.
The use of denvatives is managed bya Derivatives
Committee, using delegated authority from the
Board. The interest rale managenent of joint
ventures and funds is considered separately
by each enlity's Board. taking into account
appropriate factors for its business.
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Counterparties

We monitor the cradit standing of cur
counterpartes to mimmise our (sk exposure
in pladng cash degasits and arrenging
Gerivatives. Reguiar revews are made of the
extenal oredit ralings of lhe counterpartias.
Foreign currency .
Our policy is v have no majerial enhedged .
nel assets of liabilities denomiraled in
loreign oRTenGes.

When altractive terms are avalable, the
Group may choose 1o barTow in currendes
other than Sterling, and will fully hedge the
foraign curTancy exposure.
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Our five guiding principles

Diversify
OQUT SOUTCeS
of finance

matenty
of debt

Maintain
fAexibility

Maintain

Qheet metrivs

We monitor finance markeis and seek to access different scurces of inance when the relevenl market conditions are laveurable
10 mest the neads of our business ang, where approgriate, those of our pint venlures and funds. The scale and guality of ow
businzss enables us 16 3CCess 3 broad range of unsecurad and secyred, Tecoyrse gnd non-recourse deiby.

Ve develop and maintain long tesm relationships with banks and deit investors. We aim to 2void reliance on particular sources

of furdds and borrew fram a karge number of lendars from ditlerent sectors in the marhet 20ross a range of geographical areas.
wiith = lolat of 30 debt providers in bank facililies acd privete plecements alone We work to ensare lhat debt providers understand
our business, adopling a transparent 2pproach to provide sufficient disclosures to enable them te evaluate their exposure within
the gverall context of the Group. Thesa factors increase our altractiveness to debt providess, and in the L35t fve years we have
arranged £4 6 billion [Britich Land share £3.2 billion) of nzw finance in unsecured and secured bank Woan fadlities, US Private
Placements and convertible bonds. ln addition we have xisting long deted debentures and securitsation bonds. A European
Madiom Term Nole programme has also been maintained o enzhle us (o 200ess Sterling/fure wnsecured bosd markets

when it i appropriale for our business.

s4.5bn

1adal draen cai [propoctionatly consolitated)

The matunly profile of our debt is menaged with a spread of repaymen dales, reducng our relinzncing risk in respect of iming
and marke! conditions. We monitor the various debt markeis 5o thal we have the ability to act quickly te 2rrange new finance

a5 opportunities anse which mesl our business needs. As a resull of our lnanding 2clivity. we are comfortably ahead of our
preferred refinancing daie horizon of not less than two years.

The current range of debl maturities is within ena 1o 19 years. In actordante with our usual practice, we expect to refinance
fadilities ahead of their maturities. '

4.4 years

average debs rmaturity lpropor i y € H H

In addition to cur drawn debl, we always aim Lo have a good level of undrawn, committed, unsecured revolving bank tacilities.
These facitilies provide financiak iquidity, reduce the need 1o hold reseurtes it cash and deposits, and minimise costs ansmg
from the ditference belween borrowing and deposit rates, while reducing credil expasure.

We arrange these revolving credit lacilities in excess of our committed and expected requirements o ensure we havz adequate
financing availability to support business requirements and new oppod tunilies.

£1.3bn

undrawn revotving oredit facitities

Qur facilities are slructured to provide valuable Hexibility for imestment aclivity exacytion, whether sales, purch .
developments or assel management initiatives, Our revolving credit Faclities provide huit operationst flexbility ol drawing and
repaymenl [and cancellation if we require] at short notice without addibenat cost. These are amanged with standard terms and
finandial covanants and generally have maturities of [ive years. Alongstde this unsecured revolving debit our secured term deblin
debentures has goad asset security subslilytion rights, where we have the ability o rrove assels in and eul of the Security pool.

£1.8bn

Iotal revolving credit facitities

We use beth dgebt and equity financing. We aim to manage LTV through the property oyele such that our financial position would
remain robust in the event of a signiticant fall in property values and we to not adjust our approach Lo leverage based on changes
in property market yields.

We manage our interest rate profile independently from our debt. setting appropriate ranges of hedged debl over a five year
pel‘ii))d and the longer term.

2999 A 3.6x

LTV lproportion2lly eonsolidated]  semiorunsecured © anlerest cover proportionally © idated)
crudil rating .
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Group borrowings

Unsetured finanong for the Group indedes
bitateral and syndicaled revolving bank faclities
fwvith intiaf terms usualiy of five years, often
extendablel: US Private Pacements with
maturities upio 2027; and the comwertible
bonds ratuning in 2017 and 2020.

Secured debt for the Group lexcluding debt

in Hercules Unit Trust which is covered under
“Borrowings in our jnint ventures and funds']

is prowded by debentures with longer matunitias,
up o 2035

tnsecured borrowings and covenants .
The same financial covenants apply across
aach of the Group's unsacured facilitins.
These covenants, which have been conssiendy
agreed with all unsecured tenders sinca
2003, are:
= Net Borrowings nol to excead 175%

of Adjusled Capilal and Reserves
- Net Unsecured Bomowings not to

exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assels

No income or intesest tover ratios apply
to these facilities, and there are no othey
unsecured debi finandal coverrants in
the Group.

The Unzancumbered Agcets of the Group, not
subjact to any security. stood at £46.4 bitlion
as al 31 March 2017,

Although secured assets are excluded

from Unencuimbered Assets for the covenant
catoudations, unsecurad lenders benefit from the
surplus value of these pssets above the related
debt and the free cash Row from them. Ouring
the year ended 31 March 2017, these assets
generated €49 million of surplus cash after
payment of inlerest. In addilion, white

" investments in joint ventyres do not form pari
of Unencumnbered Assets, our share of lree
cash flows generated by these ventures are
regutarly passed up to the Group.

Unsecured financial tovenanis

Secured borvowings

Secured dett with recourse lo British Land is
provided by debentures at fired inlerast rates
vath long rmaturities and limited amortisation.
These are secured against 8 combined poot of
assets with CommMon covenants: the valee of
those assets is required to cover the amount
of these debentures by a minimem of 1.5 times
and net rental incoma rust cover the interest
atleast ance. We use aur nghts under the
dabantures o withdraw, substitute or add
properties lor cash collateral}in the secunly
pool, in order to manage these cover ratios
alfectively and deal with any asset sales.

Secured debt withoul recourse to British
Land comprises a fixed rate debenture of £30
million for BLD Property Holdings Ltd to 2020
secured by a small portfolio of properties.

The £295 million securad bank toan for TBL
Properties Limited land its subsidiaries] was
repatd earty on 30 September 2016

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
External debt for our joint ventures and

funds has been arranged through long dated
securilisations or secured bank debt, accerding
to the requirements of the business of

each venture.

Hercules Unil Trust and its joint ventures have
term toan facilities maturing in 2019 and 2020
arranged for their business and secured oa
property portiolios, without recourse to British
Land. These leans include LTV ratio twith
maximum levels ranging from 60% to 65%)
and income based covenants.

The sacuritisations of Broadgate [£1,616 mallionl,
Meadowhall [E570 mitlion] and the Sainsbury's
Superslores portfolio |£3467 millionl. have
weighted average malurities of 11.4 years,
9.7years, and §_‘J years respectively. The key
financiat covenant applicable is to meet interest
and scheduled amortisation lequivalent to 1

013 4 015 2015 a7
Al 31 March % S % *® *
Nei borrowings lo atjusied capital and reserves’ N A0 38 3% 29
Net unsecured borrowings to unencumbered assets? 23 3t 29 28

28

Highest dunng the year ta 31 March 2007:
a 3‘*
2%
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I3

tumes cover); there are no LTV covenanis.
amaortisation with the balance mrstanding
reducng to approxinnataly 205 to 30% of

the arigmal smount raisad by expected final
mzhurity, thus mittgating refinznding risk.
There is no ehligation on British Land o
remedy sny hreach of these covenams in the
dathi amrangament of joint ventures and funds.
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Effective risk management is
integral to our objective of delivering
sustainable long term value

Lucinda Bell
Chair of the Risk Commillee

For British Land, effective nsk management

is a cornerstone of delivering ous strategy

and mtegral to the achievemnent of our objective

of detivering susiainable long term value. Wa
irlain a comprehensive risk L t

process which serves to idenlify, assess and

respond (o the principal risks facing our

business. including those risks that could

threaten the Group's solvency and liquidity. as.

well as identifying emerging risks. Qur approach |

is not intended to eliminate risk entirely, byt

tead to g our risk TS Lross
the business, whilst al the same time making
the most of our opporturiities.

Ouwr risk management framework
Our integrated approach combines a top
daown stralegic view with a complementary
betlom up operational process oullined in
the diagram on page 47.

The Board is responsible for the overall
approach to risk management with a particular
focus on determining the nature and exlenl

of exposure to principal risks it is willing to
Lake in achiaving its strategic objectives.

This is assessed in the context of the care
strangths of our business las symmarnsed on
the right] and the exiernal envirgnment in
which we operale - this is our risk appelite.

The Audit Commitlze takes responsibility tor

| overseeing the effectr of risk 1) &

and internal control syslems on behalf of
Board, and also advises the Board on the
principal risks facing the Group including those
that would threaten iis solvency or iquidity.

The Execulive Directors are responsible for
delivering the Compary’s sirategy and rmanaging
categonses our Nsks nlo external strategic
and operalional risks and the Risk Commitize
lcomprising the Executive Directors and chaired
try the Chied Financial Officer] is responsibie for
managing the prinopal risks in each categoryn
order 1o achieve the Group's performance goals

Whilst responsibility for oversight of risk
management resis with the Board. the effective
day-lo-day management of risk 15 embedded
within our operational busiress umits and
forms an integral past of how we work. This
bottofm up approach ensures potentbial risks
areidentifiad al an early stage and escalated
as appropriale with mitigations put in ptace

1o manage such riks. Each business unit
mainkans a comprehensive risk register which
is reviewed quarterty by the Risk Coramittee.
with significant and emarging risks escalated
to the Audit Committee.

To read pnore about the Board and
Audit Committee’s risk aversight,
9o 1o pages 65 and 70.
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British Land core strengths

- High quality portfolio locused on
multi-let retail across the UK and
office-ted campuses in London

= Placemaking o create Places
People Prefer

~ Customer orieniation to respond
o changing Westyles

- Diverse and high quality octuper base

- High occupancy and long lease
tengths provides secure cash Rlows

- Mixed use development expertise

- Ability to source and execute
altractive investment deals

- Eflicient capital structure with good
access lo capital and debl rmarkets

= Suslainabilily embedded in
our stralegy

To read more abaut Bur business
model, go to pages 10 and 11.



The Group's risk appotite is reviewed anmesly
=5 pari of the annua| stretegy revicw process

' et approved by the Board. This evaluation

ndes the actions we take in axeculing our

Our risk appetite
. hange in
inteamal risks including current aptimal thresholds) i the year g
@ twesimant ~ Execution of targeted acquisitions and disposats in ’ @
strategy line with plan loversean by Ivesimnent Committes)
- Review of gveratl portiolic prospeciive performance IRRs)
- Percentage of portiolio in non-core seclors
@ Davelopnrent - . Total development exposure <15% of portiolia
strategy - Specdlative development exposure <8% of portiolio

[2014: <107 i
Progress on exacution of key development projects
agaunst plan

(3) People

Unplanned executive departures
Employee engagement [ Best Companies” surveyl

Capital
@© Copat

LTY should not exceed a maximum threshold inan
economic downtum if markel yields were lorise o
previgus paak levels
‘Cevenant headroom

& Foanes

. Period untd refinanding is requered of nat less than

® @ @@

| We have mod 4léd0ur# {op

strategy v years
-~ Percentage of debt at fowed interast rates over nexl
fve yoars
fncome ~ Market lelling risk including vacanties, upcoming
austainability expiries. and breaks and speculative developmant
- Weighiad average unexpired lea<e term
~ Conceniration of exposure to individual ocoupiers
ar sectors
Our risk management framework
Top down Bottom up
Strategit risk management QOperational nisk management
Review éxternal ervironment /\\‘
Robusi assassment of principal ricks
- BOARDY Assess effectiveness of nisk
; i ADI
Sel nisk appelite and parameters COMMITTEE managamant systems
Determine strategic action points Report on principal nsks
\// and uncestainties
'dfﬂlify principal risks //\_____
Darect delivery of strategic actions REK Consider completeness of
in line with risk appetite et identifved risks and adequacy
. - QIRECIOSS of mitigating actions
Maonitnr key risk indicalors -
Consider aggregation of risk
\/ exposures across the business
Execule sirategic actions /,/,—\\
Report on key nisk indicators Report current and
HUSINESS emerging risks
naITS _

—

Identiy. evaluate and
miligate operational risks

recorded in risk reqister

.

- strategy. We have identified 5 suite of Key Risk

Indicators (KSis] to monitor the Group's risk
profile las summarisad on the leftl, which
are reviewad quarierly by the Risk Committee,
10 ensure that the aciivities of the business
remain within our risk appetite and that gur
sk exposure is well matched lo changes
oyr buziness and cur markets. Thesa includs
the maosi Significant judgements affecting
our risk expusare, induding our asset
selaciion and investrnent stratagy: the level
of cocupational and development exposure
2 gur financisl leverage.

The Boerd has considered the Greup's risk
appetite in Bght of the outcomz of the UK's
referendum on continued memnbership of -

the EU. Cur strategy, whidhis based an

loirg tarmn trends, endures; we had already
positionad the business for a range of qutcomes
wviith modest development ezpasure. high

sactupancy and robust finances. However, we '

have a range of facticat levers to address the
evndving political and economic uncarssinties.

® aciivity,
reflecting increased unoertainty. We reduced
our intesn2l risk matric for the maximym -
we will develop speculativaly from 10% of
the portlolio to 8%, althaugh our current
expgsure is much lower at 4%.

Gur finanaal position is sirong; our
prapertionally consolidated LTV has reduced io
29.9% reflecting asset sales aad our Bnardng
has an average term of zighl years on drawn
debi wath no requirement lo refinance yniit
early 2021 '

Fhe Board considers that the Groups
nsk appelite is appropriate to achieve
qur stralegic abjectives. Our businessis
both resitient and wall placed o capture’
value in the long lermn.
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING DUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

QOur risk assessment
Change . E
Key strategic infisk 1
Printpat prioriios assessment
risks affected inyear
External risks
Etonomic @g@
olttook
{2) Puliticat and €1}:10)]
ragulatory
outfook
C al {
@ pmpeﬂyme"i:n.:esmr g@) B
demand g
®tccupier @8 ® 2
tenant defaull
Availability and ®

coslof ﬁmce

Catastrophic
business evenl

@8

@@

Internal risks

@8®

Investment
strategy

Development

sirsiegy

2®

® @

@ People

Capital

® @

® @&

Impact
Nmmemmmmmmlmmb;mmnmmmmm@
me&mm‘;m@WWﬁmwm

—
I

struciure l(ey
Strategic priorities Change year an year
@ ::::lf.\!; @ & ~ Customer Orieatation @ Unchanged
8 rignptaces Increased
@ weome biley 8® (©) Capital Efficiency Reduced
828 Expert People

- Qur changing risks and focus
The Board has undertaken a robust assessment
of the principal risks and uncertainties that the .
Group is exposed to in Llight of the long term:
trends we are [acing [see pages 12.and 13}and
in light'of the EU referendum resull. Sevecal i
our principal nsks are elevated as 3 result of the
increased political and economic uncertainty
las shown by the risk heal map abovel.

Looking forward, risks that also could be
impacted while the lerms and brming of exitare
negotiated. and p ially beyond are: investor
and occupier demand, availability of inance,
execution of invesiment sirategy and income
sustainability. We remain mindiul of potential
headwinds going forward and our risk appetite
and tactical decisions witl reflect the evolving
environment 1o ensure the business remains
both resilient and well positioned to capture
upside in the futyre.
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Aiso, several of our principal risks have evolved
i nature; the regulatory environment is now
recognised within a breader "Potitical and
Regulatory Qutlook” risk; and the "Development
Sirategy risk has been expandad to inctude
development cost inflation.

suppor s the efleciive management

of rishs, whils? maintaining a practical
approach and meating the requirements
of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

We have buill on our existing process by

Other areas of focus for the Risk
Committee during the year included:

- Culture

- Cyber security

— Assel level crisis plan

- Fraud and whistieblowing

- Effectiveness review of our nisk process

During the year, we have undertaken an
effectiveness review of our risk management
process, as well as an internial audit. Qur risk
Management pracess appropriately
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bedding risk gement tiscu
in the relevani business vnit management
commitiees and provided training for our
risk spadalists across he business.

This year we hosled a major dvil contingencies
exercise similating a large scale crilical
incident at one of our mulli-let retail assets.
This was undertaken with support from several
potice lorces, fire and ambulance and other
national agencies and enabled us to tesi our
capabilities and preparedness in the event

| ofa signilicant emergency.



The principal risks facing British Land are
summarised on pagas 50 to 53, induding
an assessment of the potential ipact and
likekihood and haw the risks have changed
in he year, together with how they relate
o our stralegic pricities.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board on 15 May 2017 and signad
onits behall by: 4

Lucinda Bell
Chiel Financial Officer

Viability statement

Assessmvent of prospects

The Group's annuzl corparate planning
giotess indudes the complebon of a stratege.
rEVigv, Neassessing Lhe Groan's rgk appatite
ardd updating the Eroup's forecasis.

The Group's stralegy providas the locus for
aur annuat priorities and & formally reviswed
anvally. This process is led by the Chiel
Exaustive Heough the Exacutive Commities and
ncludes the actve engagement of the Board.
Part of the Beard's rols s ta ronsider whather
the strategy takes approgrmie aooount of the
Group's principal risks. The latest updaies

to the strategic plan and Growp's risk appeiite
wixa apnroved by the Boardin March 2017

The strategy and sisk appatite drive the

_Group's forecasts. These tover 3 e year

peiied and consist of a base case lorecast
which indlutas commitied transaciions enty.
a2nd a forecast which also includas non-
cemmitipd iransactions the Board expects
the Group to make in line with the Groups
strategy. A five year forecast is considered to
be the aptimal balznce batwean ihe Graup's
long term business modst to creatz Places

_ Peeple Prefer and the i<t that property

evestment is a long lerm business bwith
weighted average lease lengths and debt
maturitias in excess of five years), sifset by the
prograschealy unmalishle natere of lorecagling
n Later years, particularty given the histericalty
cydital nature of the UK grepertyindusiry.
Assessment of viability

For the reasons outlined 2bsve, the paniod ovar

" which the Directoss consider it Feasible and

appropriate to report on the Group's viability
15 the bve year period 1o 38 March 2022,

The assumptions under pinning these forecast
cash flows and covenant compliance forecasts
were sensitised Lo explore the resilience

of the Group o the potenlial impact of the
Group’s sigruficant risks, or 3 combination

of those risks.

The principal risks tabte which follows on
pages 5010 53 summarises those matters
that could prevent the Group from delivering
on its strategy. A number of these principal
risks, because of their nature or potential
impact, could atso threalen the Group's
ahility lo continue in business in its curreal
form il thay were to occur.

The Direclors paid particular attention to the
risk of a delerioration ¥ econormnic cullook
whach cotd sopact property fundamentals,
including investor and occupier demand which
would have a negative impact onvaluations,
and give rise (o 3 reduction in the availability of
Tinance. The remaining peindpal risks, whilst
hawng animpact on the Group's business
model. are nol considered by the Directors

to have a reasonable likelihood of impacting
the Group's viability over the five year period
103 March 2022
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o be severe bud plausihle; and to take holl

actoun of the avilablity of miikgating actions

thzt coutd be taken to awoid of reducs the

impact or comurrence of theunderlying nisks

redating to 2 Sngle "downusrn scaana’:

- Dorntumm in economic outlook: Key
Fssumpiens indisding oorupanny, void

. periods, renial growth and yizlds were

sersilised in the downiem scenariv o

reftect raasenably lixely (evels assockatsd

vath 2a economic downiurm, scluding:

- arofutiicn in ocoupier denand, with
afall in etcupancy rate of 5 and
Offices and Reta® ERV dadines of -

- areduction in investimant progesty

T demand in the leve] seeninthe lask
severe dovniurm in 200272009, with
sutwan] yreld shift lo B net initial yaeld

- Restrictad avaitability o} finanoe: based
en the Groug’s current commiiments and
available fadlities there is no requireman)
to refinance uniil early 2021. In the normmat
course of business, finanding is arrenged in
advance of expacted requiraments and the

Directors have reasonzble confidence that

.additionz! or replacement debi facites will

be put in place. In the "dovenium scenaro,

the following sensitivity of this assumpion
was congucted:

- areduchon in the guailabdity
finance. for the final iwo years of the
five year assessaent in tantam vath
the Group's refinancing date

The cutcome of the "downbuim scenario’

was that the Grovp's covenant hzadroom
based on existing det ki.e. the level by which
investment properly values would have to fall
before a finéncial covenant breach occurs)
detreases from the current 38% 1o, atits
lowestlevet, 114, indicabing covenanis on
exsting laclities would not be breached.

In the "downlumn scenar’, mitigating
actions would be required to enable the Group
to reel its frture liabilities al the refinancing
date, principally through asset sales, which

" wauld allow the Group to continue ie mast

its liabilities over the assessment period.
Yiability statement

Hawing considered the forecast cash Aows

and covenant compliance and the impact of the
sensitivities in cambination in the ‘downturn
scenaria, the Direclors confirm that they have
a reasonable expectation that the Group wall

be able to continge in operation and meatits
liabilities as they fall due over the penod

1031 March 2022.

Going concern

The Directors alsa considered il appropriale
to prepare lhe financial staterments an the
going concern basis, as explained in the
Governance review.

To read more information on going
concern, gu to page 45.
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Sreategic Repare

PRINCIPAL RISKS

- External risks
Risks and How we monitor in
impacts and marnage the risk the vear '
Economiie  The UX econnmit dimate - ThaRiskC 1 the ager mmmmmmm
outiook and lulsre movements in aavironment in which we- qmeﬂygto fammwmma@emdmmmmeu
interest rates present risks FKESS any changes Lo the | wizh 3Tty BTYprEVInG in
and opportunitiesin k prstifya re o the risk the saoond half of 2016, albeR we have seen same
and finanding markets and the appetite of the business merMWmﬂle&s{m
busi of qur = _ Indicators induda forecast GDP growih of 2017, There ma % A 1arzd
which can imparct both the Wtﬁ.hﬁdﬂéﬁanﬁ?wm& mmmsmmmmma;.dm
delivesy of aur strategy and confidence, interest rates and indlationfdeflason geopoliical dhauges, with @ wide spectrum of
aur Anandial aremdaed.asvdlasmm!bmkqmdm ﬂmmmm&m
and grvemmen policy updales mwm*@'ﬂﬂﬁ; Euﬂxnﬁm
- e stress test our business plan against pr—— pm'wqum d2vatuatio
a downtum in econamic sutlack to ansure 25&“‘% by the
o hinancial pasition is sufficiantty flexiblz
ani resilfenl in it of p (oY Froabrinds and
- Our resilienl business model focuses on a high mmwmmmmmam
quality portiolin, with secure income sieems andaisk A T
and robust finances DRI, e (e AN both
aashand 2nd vwell pasitionad (o capiure upskde
the ftwre.
Puoliticn] and  Ségnificant political eventsand -  Whilst we are nol able to influsnca the auttome Tvisre Feshzins wwhdar ity ahm the naivre of
regllzxtm'r changes, including of siguificant palitical events, wea do take the / Britain's exi froon and fulure nelatons with the EU,
L the decision to teave the £U, uncartainty related to suth svents and the range hengende how this could arpad the UK econgmy.
outhook brings risks principatly in of possible oulcomes in2o actount whan making Furthamare, tha glohal gaspoliticat and trade
two areas: Strategic mvestment and finanting decisions SOV METIREG M3
- feluciance 0f vesiors. - Internally we renew and monitor and . X
and businesses tomake emenging policy and legidation to ansure thal we Vieare« hat the H e of our
i and ooopat taka the nacessary steps to ensure compliance. bussiness, with s v keoves., high avcupancy and
ducisions whils theoytcoma  Additionally we engage public atfairs consullants oy finerecial pasition, wogeiher with the actions.
) reenaing uncertain and 10 ensure that we are property briafed on the W harve aken, aves tur iusiness well poitienes.
.~ ondelermination of the polential policy and regulatary implications
cutcome thefmaactanthe 0 political events. Wher spprapriate. we
case o invesiment in the ach with ather industry participanis and
UK. and un spedlic paticies represeniative bodies (o contribute (o the
and regulation iroduced, debate on regulatory changes
partiadarly those which
direcily impart roal estare
or our custormners
Commercial Reductionin investor demand - The Risk Committee reviews the properly markey trrvesiment vobiames were was in 2015 although '
property for UX read estate may result quariefty lo assess whether any changes o the there hat, heen a pick-ag i activity Mmore recentty,
. N in falls in asset valuations and rnarkel oullock present risks and opportunities parbcuiarty in Cintral Landan athices. UK property :
mvestor could arise from variations in- whith should be reflecied in the exacution of mhwmmmm@mm
demand R ; our strategy and our capitel allocation plan. The by the relals ide yield nap b ty
the health of the UX economy < oy
o Committee considers indicators such as margin mmmmwmmmﬂ
- theattractiveness " hetween property yields and borrowing costs Supported by CUrTency movements.
inwesiment in the Ul andpmpettv:apllalgmwthforecmlswhchat
~ availabiity of inance and vd alongside the © i The marke for Uhe iost aliTaciive asSeLs remsins
- relative atirac & ey andexmdmdachnty liquit and in the centra! § andon office marked there
of other assel classes and trends Feave Beem a nuimber of high profile transactions
- Wea focus on prime assets and seclors which inciuding o sale of The Lesdenball Building.
we believe will be lets susceptible oves the _
rmediutn RN Lo 4 reduction in occupier and Prima yicids have remained broadly stable,
Invesior demand although markel pricing is becoming increasingty
. . . N polansed with some soltening in demand Ffor more
- Sirong retationships with agents and direcs secondary assels, We have continued to be active
investors activein the market : ang suocessiubly exchanged on the sale of £1.5 billion
- We stress tes! our business plan for the of anss, owratl 95 2head of valuation.
elfect of a change in property yields
J
Key ‘
Change fram last year Our principal Key Risk indicalors

are highlighted valhin Howwe
moniler and marage the risk’.

ﬁ.sk&:pnsureiﬂsi‘naeased
@ No signaficani change in risk exposure
Risk exposure has reduced
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Risks and
impacts -

How we monitor -
and mamage the risk

Change in

the vear

Occugiter

and tenant

Asnilability
and cost
of finonce

Catastrophic
business

ovent

Tha Risk Committes reviews mdicaters of
ooougEer demand quartarty moluding consumer

hers kntavlad

g2 and experience of oooupar

- ﬁmn@gyﬁmaﬂimm

in guiding execution of cur strategy

We have a high quality. divarsified ooougser hase

and monitor concentration of expoaars tn i
oouniers of seciors. We parform rigoross otougiar

covenani chedks ahead of approving deals and on
anongm\gba&ssnmatwe:anbepmmm
L] ker oocupitTs

ETT SN

An external evenl such as
a civil emergency, induding a
targe-seale terrorist attadk,
cyber arime, extreme weather
soouTeEnce, environmental
disaster or power shoitage
could severety disrupt gtohal
markets fincluding property
and ﬁmcei and cause

t damage and
d’mphnn to British Land's
portfglio and operations.

Ongoing engag: mant with dur accupiars. Through
wﬂey&tuymAmmmng:ammwamk
together with our occupiers to find ways to best
meetliwirmﬁngraquimls
Ou's.lslamatﬂnysuaiegylmksazhmmmm

in rezd demandd remeined e in the year, gespite
wiger uncertamy frem consimmers and reteders atike.
Hmraﬂasm!w\gamddlm
W with o pr
dmmmmmwm

While eocupier damand in the Londan office markzl
has boan more cauliols post-referemdunn, ake-up
s ichioes up with everall Eke-up wer the year in line
with I t2n year ;er2ne London's troad appeal

heellhandm:llhwzg.mqyeﬁiuarcy ¥
and design toour stratagy.
O sodial and enviroamental targets helpus
cwrdywﬁhmlegxs!ahmamﬂrespmm

ds; lar ple, we expedt all
n!ﬁmdevdupmmlslobeBR‘EEAMEndlﬂu

Market barrowing rates and read estate aredit
fabdity are monitored by the Risk C

* quarterly and reviswed requiarty in order toguida

our financing actions in executng our strategy
We mmmrmrprqected LTVand our debt

Fequir internally g
rqowishnlsedmhwruwmgievﬂs. dabtmahurily,
awilatle farililios and interest rate exposire

Wa maintain goodiong term relationships with
our key finanong partners

The scate and quality of our business enables
us 1o access a diversa range of sources of finance
with a spread of repayment dates. We 3im atways
10 have a good level of undrawn, committed,
unsacured revolving laclilies o ensurewe -
have adaquate finandng availability 1o Suppon .
busness reguirennents and upportunities

Wa work with indusiry bodies and other relevant
m'gamsamrs o participate in any debate

on ernerging finance requlations where cur
interesis and those of our industry are affected

Wa maintain a comprehensive crisis response
plan acruss all businessunits as well as a
head office business conlinuity plan

The Risk Comrnittes monitors the Home Office
terrotisth threat levels and we have access

to security threat infermation services

Assel emergency procedures are regutarty
reviewed and scenario tested. Physical
secunlymeasures arein place at properties
and develapment sites

Our Sustainability Cemmillee monilors
envirgnmental and dlimate change risks.
Assed risk assessments are carried out to
assess a range of risks including securily.
food, enaronmentat, health and salely

We have implemeated corporate cyber security
systems which are supplemnenied by incident
management, disaster recovery and business
continuity plans, all of which are reqularty redewed
to be able 1o respond 10 thanges in the threal
landscape and organisational requirements
We also have appropriale insurance in place
across {he partiolio
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lﬂlﬂl’ ‘hnscwm:cdmwmlrlmm
arange of ind: G Frong ¢ d from
hmwmmm%mm
vatamty rates rismg s bobly the City and West End
follinessiong recens dovalapoment complialions and expedt
s o apply dovvimwzrd pressure on maikes rents;
ey accelerating palarisatin ouwands higher
quality places will provide smpoent ber rents i the
et lncations.,

As well s pofiy and chianges, arising
fromn tha UK s deparasre brom the EU, sach as
mmmmmNm

changing requiremsnts zmud scate of central London
office ecoupiers. These position us vl to banefit
frorn any shift in desmand.

There has been marked volaility reacting
lomatm-mmafﬂpnbnwlumﬂ\!ia

o UK REITS and other good quatily read esiate
iwestars., Developmend finance without pre-lets
s mose ffioull o obizin,

W have continued to athieve Atractive finanangs and
agread one yeer extensions on a laiz] of £1.4 bilion of
our unsecyred Eacitities and agreed a new £100 million
bilateral lacility in Uhe year.

The Home Qffice threst level from international
\errortsm remains “Sawere. (ur business continuity
plansanﬁassatmgmqpmcedumhamheen

d2nd dwhare appropniate.
Waarermndfuln{cyha secuntyns&saﬁd have
ed our Iy pesition aswell as rofling

out cybar awareness Waining across both Brtich
Lanrd and Broadgate Estates. Wa contivue to
meniter the cybar threat landscape induding

thz impact oh ous Supply chain and any
implicalions of new regqulatiens.



Srrutegiv BReport

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED .

Internal risks
Risks and - How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the yvear
hmuestipent  ipoerder tomeetourstrategic - Ourinvesimant strategy is deterrainzd to be Whilst the outhtok in our snariets will remgin
4 Ieg\" objectives we aim to irvest cmsﬂmlmmmmganﬂappmxnsm unteriain tor stene Grne, we have an 2nduring
i inand exit from the right on the eval =Arateqy which is based on lung ferm trends and
Responsible properties at the righttime. Progress aganst the siralagy and contnusng this pasitisns our high qualily portfolio to benelit
executives: Underperformance could alignmant \?dﬁmurrisk appalile is discussed roen increasing pelasisation and to atiract a
Chris Grigg. resull fromchanges in at each Rick Comerittes with raference o the broadar range of ovcupiers. Inline with owr
iCharles narket seatirment as well as propesty markets and tha externat econcmic Strategic pricrilies, we hare accderaied gur
Masdsloy, inappropriate detertrination H Tocus an lifestyle criented roal estae: we have
Timn Rolerts ardemmonoprmperty . N X recyded capilal to MAXenise reluTms antg we
strategy. o g: ~ MeBoemcarEsouonanaual sWABEL ISR | conting closer In ur Crstomens.
- sectorssl of v overail corparate sirategy moluding e
andwaighting mswmmmw mmeme[lﬁbﬂimnﬂ
o N - ladividua) invetment dacisions are sSR! e asset dispasals a1 3% 2b L W i
- - Erung ol imesiment and rohamst risk evatuat ty our disciplined 1 our mvestmant activity, with £195 meilon
divastment decisians Canmitize intluding considaration of refwmns of acquisinons, primandy of praparties which are
- evposure to developments relative lo risk adjusted wrdie rates ooraplefhentaty o exktting dssals and £292 milion
- assel tanand, regian - Revizw of prospective pey foswhance of insdividial capital spend ondevetop ol ph ing
oncenlration assels and thew busivess plans
- 0¥ o - Wafosiar collaborative relationships with
OUT Co-siwesters and enter into comarship
agreements which balance the inleresis
of the parties,
Development B g t provides an - Wemanage our levels of total and speculative 4} Dentoprivert has baen animpartant driver of reéhenns
trategy opportunity for outperfarmance development exposure as a proporiion of the and we have assembled a ppabine of development !
bt usually brings withiit isestmeant portfolio valuz within a target venge opporiunities with the optianality 1o progress whan
Responsible  gleyatedrish. - 1a%ing into account associated risks and the Bre time is ight. 1.2 mors Uncertain efvironmen), we
executives: This it reflected inour impact on key financial meirics. This is masitored have moderated our curnent spaadative devetoprnent
Chyris Grigg. dedision-making process . quarterty by the Risk Committee along with mmm&%wmmmmm
Charles arvund which schemes to progress of developments against plan planning and pre-let disc acrss the pip
Maudsley, develop, the timing of the - Prigr to committing Lo 3 development, the Group and posiponed gursetwes 1o make imely dacisions
TimReberts  devalopment, sswellas the undmakesademdamma(msambyw an our develpperents gaing forvward.
cxecution of these projects,
Davelopment stralegy of mﬁm to rigk adjusled hurdle rates For more an our development programme.

addresses several development ~  Pre-tels are usad 1o redute development letting seepages 27 o3t .

arsks that could adversaly impact nish whare considared appropriate
undertyingincomeand capital . Competitive landering of construction contracts

. performance including: and, where appropriate, fixed price conlracts

- development laiting expasure ered into . .
- construclicn iming ~  Delailed selection and dose monitoring of

and costs {including contractars including covenant reviews

oonstruckion cost inflatign]  _ Experienced development management ieam :
- major contracter lailure closely monitors design, construction ang :
- adverse planning judgements overalt delivery process

- Earlyeng ani strong T e

mlh planmng authorities

- Wealso actively engage with the communities
in wehich we operate. as detailed in our Local .
Charter, 1o ansame that our dovelopmen activities
consider the interests of all staksholders .
- Wemanage environnirenial and sodal risks s0oss
our development supgly chain by engaging wilh
our suppliers. including through our Supply Chain
Charter, Sustainability Brief lor Developmenis
and Health and Safaty Policy

Key
Change from last year . Our principal Key Risk indicators
are hightighted within ‘How we
Risk o o hasi sed maoniter and manage the risk - . - .

@ No signilicant change 1 Nsk axposure

. Risk exposure has reduced
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.

-Risks and How we monitor Change in - P
impacts and manage the risk the year
People Anumhwofumcaibusms. - OurHR straegy is ¢esignad (n mandmise Experi Poople s ona of the lnsr core fonus 2reas
provesses and dedisions lie risk threugh: of our sAralegy. We ssmpuwer our peopts in meke
! tvas, e honds ol atewr people. ~ inforrned and sidlled recr processes Uz vinost of thodr potential. During the yasnwe »
Chris Ging - Falwra toreonul, develop ~ taleny, performence managemed and hmuﬂuﬁsmdammhwn?amm;sﬁtfw
and retzin stalf and Birectors = R argenicstona eifec
coith thie 7t Aells and succession pliswdng hur leey rates admmewdmemgandhaaiﬁm
experiznce magreSAtin . - highly competiive chmpaneation snd benelits effaring enhanced Shared Parentsl Pay
i underparformance - wgdmwmhm 12 e,
impact the effectireness .
gmmm- - Theriskis thresgh Nsnweaahmssedmmh@amﬂm’emm
iy gxgagmwveyslmmm&agm‘&ﬂm dhersity and mdursion 2nd are wogking
making, mpacting ompanies’ survayl, emplomes bandner ermeds he National Equality
husecs performance p . earice We 1hiss through the 3
number of ynplanned exboutive departures. Formere onour Expert People,
in atdifion 1o coarducting et miervicws see pages 24 and 25.
" - Wea angage vwith cur suppliers o mate dezr owr o
requiremn2is i manaying key riskes mduding
heaithand salaiy, mmmmwﬁ
soda! and et I'ﬁs.== d El
cur Supply Chain Charter
Capital Our capital shructure -~ We manage eur use of dehy and equity fnance to @ W@MWWMMLWM
dructure recognises the balance halantz the benefits of lewmage snains b rigks, woighted svarage nderest rale on drawn dabt havwe
B betewen perfurmance, mdeding 2 magnification of the mpact o properrty madutad end interest cover has improved. The impact

of pwesiment acthaly in e yoar wos a nat detreass
i Ot of £0,5 billion, The sirength of the Group's
balance sheed is refllacied inour seoior wisecured

valuation mossments
Wa zim to ge our LTV th

—leverage rskandﬂexihﬂhy
Hspmsi!!e - Levarage maznifies -

fh the property

<apitad relurns, bath cﬁemmawfmmlpmvmﬂﬂm
LummBell pasitve and negalive robust in the 2vant of 3 significant izl in property G rating nkidh was realiirted by Fitdh 21
- Aniicreaseinteverage values. This means we dbnol adiwst aur approeth - znd quitowh was upgradad tn Positve’.
S Py 1o leverags based on changes in piropdrty ’ - . N iat potics
ahbreadh nfms market yrelds Fae onour I';na . >
on bomovding {aatiies - We manage our investman? acthsly, the ste and seepages 4385,
and mapincresse liming of which can bé unavan, s well as mer
finance costs : development COMMITM2NIS (6 ensure thai our
LTV lval remnains appropriate
- We levarags our equty and achieve benefits of
scate whilz spreading risk through juint veniures
and funds which Jre bypically partly ftngnced
by debl vithout recourse to British Land :
Fimance l‘-‘mamesl_rateﬁy =~ W have frvz key principles guiling g finsndng Given the quatity of oy business, we have contanred
addresses risks both to wtudiaﬁemployedtﬂgﬁhﬂﬂnnmregahns&s 1o achieve attractive financings which impre=

earmings and igurdity. As well a5 being welt priced,

sirategy
continuing selvency and
o Financing is robust with an gverage termn of aighl,

¢ in this area: diversify our sountes of finance, phace
Responsible ‘ pnﬁlsgm!ed.

maturity of debi porifolio, maintain liguidity.

executives: Failure to manage refindnting maintain Rexibility, andmamtam shrang balance yazrs on drawn dabl and no requirement for the
Lucingds Bail reqmrmm(sn\ay[m{[ma sheet metrics Group 1o fefinance unid earty 2021, Our commitied
shartage of funds to sust - Wae the period uniit refinaring is required, bank faciites wial £1.8 billion ol which £0.3 billren
the operations of the business which is a key determinant of linancing activity. and wars undrirem al 31 March 2017,
repay facilities as requt: mmmmwm
' ;;mue = asthey arty evol g - L For more on our financiat polices,
. - Wezare« o g and ing see pages 431045,
relationchips with cur key ﬁnancmg partners.
- We are mindiul of refevant emerging requiation
whwmmﬁ\epmmmllompadmemyﬂm
we finance the Group .
Income We are mindful of maintaining - We undartake comprehensive profit and cash Daspite e uncertanty. lheqmmyotwpu'lfum
mmmslaamhlemsmm flow (orecasling incorporaling scenanio analysis - and envir s has ¢ d to attract strong
which utderpin a stahle and tonmdelme:mactdpmpnsednm oot tarest with good leasing performance.

Re-_f.ponsih!e * gronwineg dividond and provide
execytives: the platform fromn which to
Ludnda Bell,  growthe business. a
Chortes o consider sustainabilit
Maydsley, dmrmmmesmmmy
" TmRoberts  _ exacution of investment
strategy and capital
recyding. netably iming
of reinvesment of sale
proceads
nature and structure . -
of leasing activity
- nature and tming of
asset management and
develocpment actmity .

~ Pro-active asset managenment apgreach to
maintain strang occupier ine-up. Wa moniler
cur markel Iettmg exposure including vacancas,
upcoming expiries and breaks and spenilame
devetopment as wall 25 our weighted a\mage

. unexpired lease term

- Woa hava a high quality and divarsifted acoypier
bace and monitor concentration of exposure
to individual occupiers or sectors

- We are proattive in addressing key tease breaks
and expiries to minimise periods of acancy

- We actively engage with the communities
in which we gperate, as delailed in our Locat
Charter, lo ensure we provide buitdings that
mezel the needs of all relevant stakeholders

Dur incoms streams are secure; andarpinned
by a high qualily. dwaseucwplerbmwﬁhm
stCupancyandan average tease leivgth of 8.3 years.

Vi actively manage Ihelmpact of o investment
strateqy and office lease axpiries on our indome
profde. Lecking fanward, we're conscious of patantial
hessdwinds for oUr GOCUTers, howevar we Continue -
to expact our high quality purllnlm tobenehit rom

ingreasing polarisation.
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Governance and
remuneration

Board of Directors

Chairman’s governance review’

Qur governance struciure

Governance review

Report of Lhe Audit Commmittee

Report of the Nomination Commilles

Remuneration Report - .
Letter from the Chairman of the Remuneration Committes
At a Glance ‘
Annual Report on Remuneration

Directors Report and additional disclosures.

Direclors responsibility staterment

SouthGate, Bath {right]
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Goverounes

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy

and leads British Land to achieve

About the Board
Board Compasition as at 31 March 2017

Board of Directors

™~
kY

\

i

L

o

W Non-Exeantive Chairman
0 Indepandenit Man- Executive Direclors
B Execulve Direciors

.Directors’ core areas of expertise'

Property
i

Finance _
Retail and consumer
Public sector
Academic 6%

+ Same Direclors are represented in more than one categary.

Executive Directors’ appointments

50% 50%

appointed internally appointed externally

Length of Non-Executive Directors’ tenures.,

Under J years
3to b years

Over & years

Board Committee membership key

O Audit 0 Remuneration
Commiliee member Comemnitiee member

0 Momination O Chairman of a
Commitiee member Board Committee
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Non-Exeﬁxﬁw Chairman

John Gildersleeve

Appoinied as a Nen-Executive Director in Geptember 2808 and as
Chawrnanon 1 January 2013.

Skills and experience: John is deputy chairman and senior independent
director of Spire Healthcare Group plc and deputy chairman of TatkTatk
Telecom Group PLC. He was formerly chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Group. New Look Retait Group, EMI Group and Gallaher Group: a
non-executive director of Dixens Carphone ple, Lloyds TSB Bank PLC.
Vodafene Group and Pick n Pay Stores [South Africal and an execulive
directar of Tesco plc. iB3.016&.

Executive Directors -~

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

Appointed to the Board in Janwary 2009.

Skills and experience: Chris has more than 30 years’ experience in

the real estate and financial industries in a range of leadership roles.
Until Novernber 2008, Chris was chief executive of Barclays Commerciat
Bank, having jeined Barclays in 2005. Prior to that, Chris spent 20 years
21 Goldman Sachs. Chris is a non-executive director of BAE Systems plc,
amember of the hoard of the British Property Federalion and of the
executive board of the European Public Real Estate Association.




Executive Directors

c
Lucinda Bell

Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board in March 2011 and as Chief Financial Officer
in May 2011.

Skills and experience: Lucinda is a chartered accountant with aver

25 years of industry experience. She is Chairman of Broadgate Estates
Limited, Brtish Land's property management business. Lucinda

is a non-executive director of Rotork plc, where she is Chair of the

Audit Committee and a mernber of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees. She is a member of the Accounting for Sustainability

CFO Leadership Netwurk.

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure
Appointed to the Board in February 2010.
Skills and experience: Charles juined British Land from LaSalle
investment Management where he was Co-Head of Eurcpe, Managing
Director of the UK business, a member of the Management Board
and an internalional Director. Prior to joining LaSalle he was with

© AXA Real Estate Investrnen! Managemenls for seven yzars where

he was Head of Real Estate Fund Management in the UK.

Tim Roberts

Head of Offices and Residential

Appointed to the Board in _tuly 2006,

Skills and experience: Before joining British Land in 1997, Tim
was a partner at Drivers Jonas, in the Investment Agency team.
He was formerly 2 non-executive diractor of Songbird Eslates.
Tim is Trustee of Landfud, the property indusiry chanty, and
Chair of their Grants Commilice.

Lord Turnbull @ @

Senior Independent Director :

Appoiated as a Non-Executive Birectorin April 2006,

Skills and experience: Lord Turnbull erderad the House of Lords in 2005
as a Crosshench Life Peer. He relired as Secrelary of tha Cabinet and
Head of the Home Civil Service in July 2005. Lord Turnbull previously .
held the positions of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and
Permanent Secrelary at the Department of the Environment. He was
formerty a non-execulive director of Prudential PLC, Arup Group and
Frontier Economics Ltd and chasrmnan of BH Globst Limited. Lord
Turnbull will step down from the Board at the end of the 2017 AGM.
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Governanee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Non-Executive Directors

Aubrey Adaws @

Appointed ac 3 Man-Cyeculive Director in Saptember 2068

Skills and experience: Aubreyis group chair of L&, the housing
assodiation and residential developer. He is also chairman of the board
af trustees of Wigmore Hall. Aubrey was formerly head of property within
RBS’s Restructuring Division, and has vaniously been a non-executive
director of Pinnacle Regeneration Group Limited. senior indep
director of Associated British Ports PLC, non-executive chairman
of Unitech Corporate Parks PLC, Air Partner PLC and Max Property
Group PLC and thief execulive of Savitls PLC.

a
L.}

Lynn Gladden § .

Appointed as a Mon-Executive Director in March 2015

Skills and experience: Lynn is Shell Professor of Chemical Engineering
at the Universily of Cambridge, commissioner of the Royal Commission
for the Exhibition of 1851, a fellow of the Royal Society and the Royal
Acagemy ol Engineening and a non-executive director of IP Group plc.
She was lormerily a member of the Council of the Engineering and
Physical Sciences Research Council and held the position of pro-vice-
chanceltar fer research at the University of Cambridge untit the end

of 2015,
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Simon Borrows @

Appoiiad a5 & Non-Executive Director in March 2011,

Shilis and experience: Simon is the chief executive of 3i Group pic and a
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV, the Dutch holding
company lor 31's investment in Action, the non-feed discount retatler. He
woorked for 28 years in the banking and finance indusiry, most recently as
dhaizman of Greenh#fl & Co. Internalional LLP. He was also chiel executive
officer of Baring Brothers International Limited, the corporate finance
divisiun of NG Barings and was anon-execulive director of inchcape pic.
Simon will step down lrem the Board at the end of the 2017 AGM.

Agpuinled as a Non-Execulive Director in Apal 2011.

Skills and experience: Witliam is Managing Pariner of Bridgepoint, ohe
of Europe’s leading private equily groups, which he has led since 2002.
He alsa serves as chairman of the board of Pret AManger and president
of Dorna Sports SL, the rights holder 1o the Moo GP warld motorcycling
championships. He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has extensive operational and Lransactional experience. William
will become Senier independent Direclor at the end of the 017 AGM.



Laura Wade-Gery @

Appoinizd 33 a Non-Executive Director in May 2015,

Skilts and experience: Laura is a irustee of the Royal Opera House

and Aldeburgh Music and a member of the Government Digilal Strategy
Advisory Board. Between July 2011 and September 2016 Laurawas - .
executive direcior Multi Channel 31 Marks and Spencer Group ple.
Previously. Laura served in a number of senior positions at Tesco PLC
and was a non-execulive direcior of Trinity Mirror plc.

Tim Score @@’ .

Appointed as 3 Non-Executive Director in March 2014,

Skilts and experience: Tim is a non-executive director of Pearson plc
and HM Treasyry. an independent member of the Football Association's
audil commitlee and a senior advisor o Brunswick Groug on financial
malters. He was chief financial officer of ARM Holdings PLC from 2002
to 2015 and has held senior financial positions al Rebus Group Limited,
William Baird plc. | ucasVarity plc and BTR plc. From 2005 to 2014_he
was a non-executive director of National Express Group PLC, including
timne 35 inderim chairman and six years as senior independerd director.

' Asrom 1 Apd 2017, .

Lord Macpherson of Earfs Court @°

Appointed a5 & Nen-Executae Dirsctor i Doceanbor 2004,

Skills and experience: {ord Macpherson is chairman of C. Hoare &

Co ang a director of The Scoitish Americzan Invesiment Company PLG.
Re was the Permanent Searetary to the Treasury for aver 10 years fram
2005 io March 2016, leading Live depariment through Whe financial crisis
and the subsequent period of banking reform. Lard Macpherson trained
as an economisl working st both the £B) and Peat Marwick Consulting.

25 trom 1 April 2017,
Company Secretary

Elaine Williams

Skills and experience: Elaine was appointed Company Secretary and
General Counselin 2015, She was formerly Deputy Grovp Company
Secretary at HSBC Holdings plc and, prior to thal. a partner

al Freshiields Brackhaus Dennger.
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CHAIRMAN'S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate

Governance and Remuneration
sections of our Annual Report

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

British Land has a highly effective Board, as once again camfirmed by s .
year's Board evaluation. Lord Macpherson, Jormerly Perrnanent Secretary
o HM Treasyry. was appointad as 2 Nen-Executive Direcsar in Dacember 2016
and wa have recently announced that Preben Probensen, Chial Executive of
Close Brothers Group plc. vall join the Board gn T Seplembar 2007, These
appontmants will further strengtihen the diverse rmi of shills andg experence
of our Directors.

Lerd Turnisull and Simon Barmows witl relive fram the Bozrd 21 the end of
the 2017 AGM. Lord Turnbull has served as a Director for mvore than 11 years.
ard Sendn for bwo three year lerms. | would e to thank eemm both for theg-
valuatie contnbution as Board members. Lord Turnndl willl 3850 step down
as Senior Independent Director and wall te succeedsd by William Jackson,

All Directars, other than Lerd Turnbull and Simon Bormows, will starnd for
elaction or re-election at the 2017 AGM. We recognise the valire that Directors
who serve for many years bring lo the Board and are delighted that Aubrey
Ad. who will have servad as a Non-Executive Director for almost nine

Directors’ meeting attendance during the vear
ended 31 March 2017 (A.l.2) (&)

Board mesiings
John Gﬂdersleeue 7
Chrig Grigg ur
Aubrey Adams K/t
1 ucinda Bell n
Simon Borrows ' u?
Lynn Gladden - . 7
William Jackson ) w?
Lord Macpherson' ans
Charles Maydsley ! "7
Tim Roberls mnr
Timn Score ) } n
Lord Turnbull 7
Layra Wade-Gery! . &7

' Lord Macpherson was appginted to the Board on 1% Dacembey 2016,
? LauraWade-Gery was unable ko atiend one Board meeting duz (o
travel disruption.

As reported in the Chiel Execulive's review. we have detivered good results
in an eventful year as we have continued with our sirategy of differentiating
our space by providing places which reflect people’s changing Ufestyles.
The design and delivery of our stralegy continues to be supported by our
robust governance structuee which ensurses effectve decision-making
based on the right information. The Board plays a valuable rote in
encouraging debate about our strategy and its implementation
and overseeing the idenlification and rmanagement ol key risks.

More infermation on Our strategy can be tound

on pages 14 and 15.
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years by the time of our 2017 AGM, has agreed 1o serve for a further one
year term as an independent Non-Executive Director. Aulirey's considerable
experience in the propeny seclor is an npertant part of the mix of shills and
knowdedae on our Board. The process is under way to recruil an additional
Director with property sector experience 10 ferther sirengtihen the Board.

Read our Board biegraphies on pages 54 to 5.

Corporale culture is inareasingly an zrea of focus forinvestors, governance
7y badies, our cust s and olher slgkeholders. The Board is
committed ko inftuencing and shaping British Land's culture and belizves
that setting the “tone from the lop’ and slrong governance undespin a heatthy
inclusive cutture, which is a key part of detivening tong term business success.
The Board has supported the execulive team in the significant amnount of wark
that has been done this year in reinforcing e behawours that are expected
of British Land employees. increasing employee engagemnent and mnhmnng
to develop a more diverse and inclusive culture at British L and.

Read about sur diversity and inclusion initiatives on pages 24 and 25.

The Boardwill continue 1o focus this yaar on monitoring British Land's culture
and promoting good governance that supports openness and accountability
throughou! the business, including open engagement with stakeholders.
Further details on the impact on culture of strategic and fimandiat decisions
can be foend on page 62,

We welcome feedback from sharehslders. Your feedback helps us shap
pur governance structure and the way we do business, | leok forward to
hearing your views at. and in advance of, our 2017 AGM. :

.

Jobn Gildersleeve

Non-Exacutive Chairman



OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Non-Executive Chairman
- Leads the Board and ensures it
oparates ellectively

- Migintawes a cuiture of openness and debate

- Ensures sifective dialogue between the
Beavd and shareholders

Board-

Board of Directors
- Responsihle for bong lerm seocess

— Approves major ransactions

independent Nan-Executive Divectyrs

- Work with and challenge Executive Directors
- Provide an smlependand, extamal perspaclive
- Contribute with a bread range of expenence

and expartise

Chief Executive and Execytive Directors
- Day-to-day managoment of {7 busmess
and implameanialion of sirategy
- Dwerall responsibility lies with dhe Chied
Exenunive, with spacific 2ress delegated
10 the Executive Direciors [Relail
Finance. Ofhres)

Board Comnuttees — report on their activities to the Board

Audit Commitiee

~ Owversees financial and narrative reperting
- Pravides assurance 1o the Board on
effectiveness of intermal control, nisk
managemenl systems and audit processes

- Reviews effactivenass and objeciivity
of external and intemnal auditors

Audit Committee Report
see pages 67 to 70.

Nomination Cammittee

- Leads process for Board appointments
and syccession planning - .

- Ensures Bozrd and senwe rmanagement
have appropriste skills, knowledge and
axperidnce to operaie effechively and
deliver stratzgy

Nommation Committee Repart
see pages T and 72

v

Remuneration Committee

-~ Sels remuneration policy and remunesation
of the Chairman and Executive Direclors

~ Approves annual and long lerm
performance ohjectives and awands

Remuneralion Report
see pages 73 to 88

: l\ianagemeﬁt Committees — report on their activities to the Board and its committees as appropriate

Executive Commiltee

- Considars day-to-day operational matters
tor running the business
- Revizws performance of the Groups
assels and development programme

- Reparts o the Board

- Members are the Exacutive Bireclors
2nd senior execulives. chaired by the
Chiel Executive OHicer

Health and Safety Commiittee

- Reviews performance against targets and
drives actions in pursuit of the Company's
health and safety goals

- Reparts to the Risk Commiltes

- Three subcornmittees: Construction,
Managed Portfolio and Head Office

Investment Commiittee

-~ Reviews, approves or recommends
capital iransactions

- Recommends major iransacions
for Board a2pgroval

~ Reports to the Board

- Members are the Executive Directors.
chaired ty the Chiel Executive

Sustainability Committee

~ Reviews performance and manitors
progress against sustainability tamgets
and key initiatives

- Assesses emerging social, environmental
and elhicat issues. assessing associated
risks and consideration of mitigating actions

- Reports to the Risk Committee

Risk Committee

— Manages strategic and operational risk in
achiaving the Company's perfortrance goais

- Recornmends appropriate risk appetia evels
and muonitors rsk exposure

~ Reviews operaiina of risk management
processas

- Reports to the Audit Committee

-~ Members are the Execulive Directors,
chaired by the Chiel Financial Officer

Cemmunity Investment Commitiee

- Ovarsees the strategic management
of the Community lowestment Fund

- Approves and monitors atl spend under
the Community investment Fund

- Reports to the Risk Committes
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

QOur governance structure is an

integral part of the way we design

and deliver our strategy

Compliance with the Code

The Board has continued to apply good governance praclices during
the year and co = that the Company has fully compliad with the
U¥ Corporate Governznce Code [the Code]. This section of the Annual

. Repori cuttines how we have applied the Code's principles and provisions.
threughoul the year. We are reporting against the Code which applies 1o
companies with reporting peniods beginning on or afler | Getober 2014,
A ropy of the Code is available at www frc.org.uk

For ease of reference. this is how we demonstrate our compliance
throughout the Governance and remuneration section of the 2017
Annual Report:

@ A. Leadership @ 0. Remuneration

© B.Effectiveness ) E. Relations with shareholders

@ ¢ Accountabitity

Leadership

The Board's tore responsibilities include setling British Land’s
strategic aims and leading the Company as & works 1o achieve these
ams and atiain long term success. The focus an strategy by the Board
centinues throughout the year with annuat Siraiegy Days providing an
opportynity o discuss, challenge and devetop the Company's strategy
as exptained in the box betow. Progress in delivery of the agread
sirategy is consujered at Board meetings during the year. The strategy
1s kept under review in tight of Company performance and changes

to the external enviranment.

Strategy Days

The annual Stralegy Days provide Non-Executive Directorsin
particular with a locused apportunity to consider, develop and
chatlenge the Company’s sirategy. As well as considering the
Group as a whaote, consideration s given o key parts of the
Group's current and prospective asset porifotia.

In 2017, the annual Strategy Days ware held al the beginning of
March. The Executive Directors. senior execulives and external
quests delivered a number ol presentations to attendoes proading
in-depth anatysis on aspecis of the business and the exiernat
environment. The days were carefully siructured to achieve

2 halance between presentations, debate and discussien,

Areas focused on at the 2017 Sirategy Days included: corporate
strategy. Canada Water, Oifice strategy, Reta:! strategy, tedmology
apportuenilies and chall

o
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of responsibdities b the Chairman fwho is
responsibie for running the Boardl and the Chiel Executive fwho
is responsible for g g the Company’s business) is sel out

inwriting and approved by the Boasd{A.2 1] &

The Board delegates authority lor 2rsuring thal the business is
run in accordance with the agreed strategy (o the Ohiet Executive,
with responsisiity for spechic areas of the business delegated to
the ather Executive Directors. The Execulive Directors are invoteed
in, or aware ol, all major activities snd are therefore axiremely wali
placed to ensure Lhal actions tahen atign with strategy.

The major decisions reserved lfor Board approval and other decisians
delegated to the Executive Directors are lormally documented and
reviewed regularly |A11)4D. The £xecutive Directors make decisions
within these predefined parameters although any activities sutside
the ordinary course of business may still he taken lo the full Board
for consideration and approval where this is considered appropriate,
evan if they fatl vathin those parameters.

The parameters and conlrols set by the Board wathin which the
management underlake the day-lo-day ruening of the business ensure
that decisions are taken by peopie with the correct authority 10 make
these dedsions. Management Cominittees deal with their spedfic areas
of responsibility before making decisions hwhere suthority has been
granted| or before récommenting actions for Board-level approvat.

The Chairman meets wilth individual Direciors oulside formal Board
meetings as part of each Director's continuing contribution to the
Company A4 2)@. This process aliows for open, twa-way discussion
about the eflectivenass of the Board, its Comamittees and individual
Direciors. In this way, the Chairman remains mindful of the ieves of
individual Directors and can acl as necessary ta deal with any issues
relating ta Board efleciiveniess before they become anisk ln the Company

Culture and composition of the Board

The compasition ol the Board is fundamentat to its success in
providing strong and efective leadership; the breadth of knowledga,
skilis and exparience of cur Non-Executive Direclors is detailed in
their biographies on pages 36 to 5% The Normination Committee

is responsible for reviewing the compaosition of the Board and its
Commitiees and assessing wheiher the balance of skifls, experience,

A dedge and ndependence is appropnale lo enable them 1o operate
e"eclwelylﬁ 2. 2]9

Foll g rec dations by the Norination Comrnillee, Lord
Macpherson was appointed a Non-Executive Director in December 2016
and we have recently announced hal Preben Prebensen will joinas a
Non-Executive Director ang member ol the Remuneration Committee
in Septerber 2017. These appointments will further strengthen the
mix of skills and expenence on the Board.




William Jackson will succeed Lord Turnbult as the Sentor Indepeadent
Qirector 3t the end of the 2017 AGM whan Lord Turnhull retires as

a Direcior and as Senior independent Director. Sinon Borrows wall
also step down as a Oirector at the end of the 2017 AGM.

Lord Macpharson joinad the Audil Commiltee 2nd Tim Score jotned
the Nomination Committee on 1 Aprit 20017,

_Our rigorous and lransparent proceduras for appainting aow
Direclors are led by the Nominalion Commiltez. Non-Executive
[hrectors are appownted lor speatfied terms and alt continuing Directers
offer themselves for election or re-etection by shareholders at the
AGM each year, if the Board, on the recoenmendation of the Nomination
Committez. deems it 2ppropriate that they do <0 [B.71}&.

Auntirey Adarns will have sarved as a Non-Frecutiva Direcior for almost
ninz years by the time of cur 2017 AGM. When a Non-Executive Direclor's
tenure goes beyond nine years, their indegrendence is carefully reviewed
and monitored. Following a parucularty ngorous reviaw of Aubrey's
contributions and independence by the Nominatien Commitlee,

the Board deteronined that he remains imdependent in character

and judgernent.

The Board has approved the recommendalion of the Nomination
Commattee that it is appropriate for Aubrey Adams o remain in office
as anindependent Non-Executive Director, and a member of the Audit
Committee. lor a further year. notwithstanding the length of his service.
Aubrey’s considerable expertice in the properly sector 1s an important
part of the mix ol skills and experience on our Board and we recognise
the importance of continuity and the value that Directors who serve

for many years bring to the Board. We are delighted he has agreed

to stand for re-elechon. The recruitment process to recruit an
additional director with property secior experiance is ongoing.

The Board censiders that Aubrey Adams, Simon Borrows, Lynin Gladden,

Wiltiam Jacksan, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull, L aura Wade-Gery and Lord
Macpherson are independent. In making this determination, the Board
has reviewed the Nomination Commitlee’s assessinent of whether each
Director remains independent in character and judgement and whether
there are relationships or arcumstances which are likely to aﬂecl

or could appear o aflect, thal judgement [(B1.1)©.

The Board believes that the Non-Executive Direclors are of the stature
and have the experience required \o perform their roles as independent
Directars propely. Following this year's Board evaluation, the Board
believes each Non-Execulive Directar standing for re-election at the
2017 AGM continues to fulfil effectivety and remains committed to their
role within British Land. The terms and conditions of appointment of
Non-Execytive Directors are available lor inspecBan al the Company's
regisierad office and at the AGM [8.3.2|9.

The Board cutture is one of openness and constructive debate: the
Directors voice their opinicns in a relaxed and respectiul environment.
altowing coherenl discussion. The Chairman is responsibie for
maintaining this cullure. He does so by ensuring information of an
appropniate quality is provided in a imely manner before Board meelings
which leads to focused discussion in the boardreom. When running
Board meetings the Chairman maintains a collaborative atmasphere
and ensures that alt Direclors contribule lo debates, The Chawman
arranges informal meetings and events throughout the year ¢ help
build consiructive relationships betwaen the Board members.

We continue o have a strong mix of expenienced indriduats on the
Board with the rajority heing independen] Non-Executive Direciors
whao are able to offer an external pavspective on the business and
constructively chatlenge the Exzoutive Direciors, parlicularty when
developing the Company’s strategy 18.1.2)©. The Non-Exacutive
Directors sorulinise the performance of managament i meeting thair
agreed goals and objactives, and monitor the reperling of payformance.

The high catibre of debate and the partxapation of all Divectors,
Execulive and Non-Execulive, allow the Beard to ulitise the experiance
and slalls of the indrdduat Directors to thair manmum paential 2nd
make decistons thal ara in the best interest of the Companmy.

Culture
Britsh Land recognises that:

- lhe behaviours and attiludes exrﬂnled im the way British Land
conducls business and in its relatians with stakehalders are a
key indicator of, and have a matenz] impact e, our culture and

- alignment of our business decistons with cur culiure. velues
and siratagy is koy to demonstirating our commitment to
developing 2 long term suslainable business

The Board takes account of these lactors when considerng
strategic and financial dedsions.

Effectiveness

Regqular Board and Commiltee medlings are scheduted throughowt
the year and the Directors ensure that they allocate sufficient bme lo
discharge their duties effecbvely. Oocasionally, Board meetings may
be held at shorl notice when Board-ievel decisions of a time-critical
rature need le be made.

For meeting attendance, see the table on page 50.

Non-Executive Directors’ lellers of apposntsnent set out the time
commiiments axpected and each Direclor's allendance record is
considered when assessing whether they should stand for re-election
by sharehotders. The Nomination Committee considers that all the
Directors coninue to devate sufficient time o discharging their

duties te the required high standard.

British Land’s policy is lo allow Executive Darectors to take one non-
executive direclorship at another FTSE company, subjecl to Briish
Land Board approval. External appointments of tha Direclers are
disclesed in their biographies and fees earned by Executive Direclors
are disclosed an page 86 of the Remuneralion Report (D.1.219.

The Directors are reguired ta notify the Company of any patential
conflicts of interest that may affect them in their foles as Directors

of British Land. All potential conflicts of iferest sre authonsed by
the Board al the earliest epportunily and the register of Directors
interests is reviewed by the lull Board at least annually.
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Key areas considered by the Board
during the vear:

~ culcomes of the annual Strategy Days and progress
towards agreed outcomes

- consideration and approvat of risk appetite

- principal rigks faced by the Company

- Brext and its aifect on the Group

- reports of the aclivities of the Audit {inctyding rick],
Remuneralion and Nomination Commiltees

- upd on the busi extzmal environment and
invastor relations

- updates on the portiotio. induding poss;ble davelopments,
acguititions and disposatls

- . updates on financing and capital structure

- results of the Board performance evaluation

- election and re-leclion of Directors at the AGM and
Camrnittee mambership

- canflicts of interest

- approval of year end and half year financial results,
the Annual Report and the MNotice of AGM

~ azpproval o the dindend policy and declzration of quarterty
interin gividends

- culyra

- people including training and develapment and
succession planning

- health ang safety

- sustainability

- cyber security and inforrnation technology

.

The Non-Executivae Directors are kept well intormed of the kay

evstgpments in the businass thiough regular reparts incuding a
Management Report delivered by the Chief Executive at each Board
meeting, a Finance Report and reqular updates on the activities of the
Risk and Sustainability Committees. Throughout the year presentalions
and reporis on speahc aspecls of the business and individual assets
are also delivered, 2long with updates on the regulatory and external
etwironment. Specific input from the Non-Executive Direclors is also
sought when significant investment decisions and strategic initiaiives
are reviewed and discussed.

Care is taken to ensure that information is dreulated in good time
belore Board and Commitiee meelings whenever passible, and that
reports are presented diearly and comlain Lhe appropriaie évet of detail
1o enable the Board to discharge its duties. It is the Company Secretary's
role to facilitate effective information ftows between the Board and

its Committees, and between senior managemant and Non-Exacative
Directors. As a resull_the Non-Executive Directors are able eflectively
to itor Manag L of the b and the impl tation of

the strategic aims as wall as being able to assess the perforrnance

ol the Chairman and Executive Dicectors [B5.11.

The Company Secretary is responsible. thirough the Chairman,
for adwising the Board on all aspects of governance (B5.2| &
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Board training and devel !
British Land provides zll NnmExecume Directors with 2 faitored
and thorough induction which includas brisfings on Direclors’ duties,
Group siralegy, one-to-ane mezlings with Executive Directors ang
othar sersr executives. They are also prowdzd with the apportunity
to visit key properiies and developments 1B.4.119.

The Cheirman reviews iraining and development needs with the
Directors annuatiy {8.4. 21 ©. Beard members are provided wilh
oppodtunities lo update and refresh their knowledge throughout
the year, ensuring that they are 2ble to hulfl] their rele as mambers
of the Beard and its Commiliees effectivety. During the year ended
31 March 2077, the Board considerad papers and presentations on
legat and regulaiory davelopments. tedaolegy opportunities and
chaltenges and sustatnability-refated developments as well as
raceiving reqular briefings on the viaws of stakeholders, the
externz] enwvironment and regulatory malters.

Board evalisation

The effectivencss of the Beard and ils Committees is reviewed
anmually, with an independen, externalty lacilitated review being
conduited ot least once every three years. The next external
revieve will be undertadien in 2018 (8.6.21 .

#n 2077 an internad evaluation of tfve Board and its Commitices. -
was conducted by the Company Secrelary and General Counsel
185118 In addition to the format evaluation. the Chairman met
each Non-Executive Director individually duning the year 1o discuss
their conlribution to the Board. The Sentor Independent Director
Led the aparaisal of the Chairman's performance by tha Non-
Execulive Directors. with the views of the Executive Directors

also being taken into consideration [B.6.319.

The Chairman and Chief Executive presented ther appraisals

of tha performance of the Chiel Execytive and other Executive
Directars respectively. These appraisals were taken into account
wiwen considenng the performance of the Board as a whole as
well 25 in relation ko annual 2nd long term incentive awards.

The evaluation of the Board and its Committees concluded that
the Board and its Commitiees cominued to operate effectively
with 3 high standard of performance throughout the yzar.

Accountability

The Boangd is responsible for prepaning the Annval Report and confirms.
wntha Directors responsibility staternent set gut on page 91 that they
believe 1hai this Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
undersiandable, and provides the information necessary o assess
Bntish Land’s pesition, performnance, business model and strategy
IC_1.1{€2. The basis on which the Company creates and preserves

value over the long term is described in the Strategic Report [C1.21€3,

The coesent of the Annuat Report is prepared by the relevant responsinle
indviduals across the business. Spedfic seclions are reviewed by
Department Heads and Exacotive Cammittee members as appropriate,
ensuring that key stakeholders are involved throughout the process.

The Executive Direclors are closelyinvolved in drafting and reviewing
their sections of the A t Report. A detailed and robust due ditigence
process is conducied o verily key stalemants made within the Annual
Report prior o its thorpugh review by the Audit Committee and
presentation o the Board for conssderation and approval.




The procedure undertaken to enable the Board 1o provide the far,
balanced and understandable confirmation to shareholders has been
reviewsed by the Autit Committee_ Meelings to review and document the
key considerations undertaken lo ensure that inlermabion presentad is
fair, batanced 2nd understandable are held belween the Chief Pinancial
Officer, Head of Investor Relations and the Group Finanoal Controller
ant other 2paropriate employees. A detailed report is then presented

" o the Audit Commitlee wiach indledas a summary of the process
undertaken io salisfy management thal the mnﬁrmauon lobe
given is appmwlaie amd acourate.

RH( management and internal control
The Board determines the extent and nature of the risks it is prepared
to take in order lo achieve the Company’s straiegic objactives.

The Beard has responsibality for the Company's overall approach te
risk managamend and intern2l control. The Board's responsibilities
include ensuring the design ang implementation of appropriate

nsk managemend and internal control systems. Oversight of the
effectiveness of these systems is defegated to the Audit Committee
which undextakes reguiar revievrs to ensure that the Group is
identifying. considering and ritigating, as far as practicable,

the most approprizte risks for the business IC.2.3)@.

Aswel as complying with the Code, the best practice recommendalions
in ‘Guidance for Risk Managament, Internal Control and Related Financial
and Businass Reporting have been adopted and the Company's internal
control iramework has been assessed against Lhe inlernationally
recognised COS0 interna! Control Integrated Framework. The latter
assessment shawed that all key control elements are.in place.

British Land's approach te risk, including the roles of the Board, the
Audit Commitiee and the Executive Risk Commitlee in setting risk
appetite and monitoring risk expocure, is detailed in the "Managing
nisk in delivering cur stﬁtegy saclion on pages 46 v 49 [C_2.1| .

Farmal and transparent arrangements exist for considering how
corporate reporting. risk management and internal control principles
are applied and for maintaining an appropriate relattonship wath the
Company's auditor.

The Group's internal controd system is built on the following fundamental
principles, and is subject 1o review by internial audi:

- adefined schedule of malters reserved for approval by
the Board

- a detailed authorisation process: no material commitments
are entered inlo wathoul thorough revizw and approval by
more than one authorised person

- lormal documentation of all signilicant transactions

- arobusl system of business and financial planning: including
cash Aows and profitabilily forecasting, with scenaris analysis
performed on major corporale, properly and knancing proposats

- arobust process for property investment appraisals

-~ monitoring of key outcomes, particutarly expenditure
and performance of signiﬁcam invesiments, against budget
ard lorecast

- clearly defined potn:les and reviaw of aciual performance
against policies

- benchmarking of property performance agains{ external
sources such as investmant Pmperly Databank

~ key controts testing”

— acomprehensive property and corperate insurance
programine and a formal whistle-blowing policy

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Groups

system of intaymal control annually, including the systems of control
for material joint verures and funds. During the cowrse of its review .
of the nisk management and miernat control systems dunag the

year ended 31 March 2017, and to the daie of this Report. the Audit
Commitlee has not idantifed. nor been advised of, a failing or
weakness whith it has determined to be significant [C.2.3162.

Anumber of policss and procedures have been adepted by the Group
1o ensure thal we nol onty rmeeel our legel obligations. but alse behave
ethicatly. act with mtegrity and pralect eur assets from the unlawhkol
activities of others. These induda policies on anti-bribary and
corruplion and rawed awareness and know-your-dient procedures.
All employees are made aware of the Group's polioes and receive
training appropriate o thasr roles snd responsibilities. -

Vizbility and going concern
The viability stalement is set out gn page 49 (C.22)@.

The Group has considerable undrawn deb? facilities and cash deposils
it excess of current drawi banking lecifies. There is substantial
headroom against the covarants for its unsacured banking fadilities.
It also benefits from 3 diverse and secure income stream from leases
with kong average isase lerms.,

Hawing assessed the principal risks and other malters discussed in
connaction with tha viatwlity statement, the Direclors believe thal the
Group is well placed lo manage its fnancing and olher business sisks
satistactorily. and have 2 reasenable expertation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resotrrces to continye i opesation for at leasl
12 months from the date of the Annual Report. They therelore consider
it appropriate lo adopt ibe going concern bass of accounting in
preparing the financiat sizlemenis 6.1.3]1@

Taxation .

Our principles of good governance extend to our responsible approach

o tax_ il remains imnportam to our stakeholters that this is aligned to the
long term vatues and siratagy of the Group. The Chuaf Finandial Officer,
with clese involverment of the other Executive Directors and semor
manag , is responsible for developing the Group's approach

‘10 lax. A tax updaie is presented to the Audit Commitiee annually.

Community investrnent

British Land's approach te cammunily investment is set oulin our
Local Charter which details how we build trusit by making positive
coninbubons tocalty. Gur Communily Funding Guidelines set out
how we aliocate Junding, with a particular focus on initiatives close
to our assets that provide opportunilies to local people through
education, employment and training. Both docuements can be
found on our websile at www_britichland com/policies

Our financial donations to good causes during the year lotalled
£1.351.000 [2M4: £1.371.000). Gur Eomenunity Investment Commitiee
approves all expendiiure from our Community Investment Fund

and reports Lo the Executive Comrnittee on an annual basis.

in addition to funding projects approved by our Community Investment
Committee, the Company also supports fundraising and payroll giving
for causes that matier to staff. This sepport indudes:

- 50% uplift of staff payrolt giving coniribulions {capped at £5,000
per person and £50,000 per annum for the whole organisatian] and

- a statt matched funding pledge, matching money raised for chanity
by stali up to £750 per person per year
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Goverganes

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

We 3lso support fundraising by the on site izams managing
our retail and office propertes areund the UK &y:

- maichirig up to £750 for bwo sile fundraising inilistives
per year, per localion and

- exteading ourstaif matched funding pledge to on site employzes
of Broadgate Estates Limited, our wholly-owned subsidiary

British Land doas not maka donations to palitical organisaiions.

Renmuneration
The Diveciors’ Remuneration Repart is sel out an pages 73 1o 88.

The Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders 5t the 2016
AGM and is summansed on page 75. Thz tull policy is avallable on

Key investor relations activities during
the vear included

May 2016 - Fult year resoits presentation
- Fuliyear reagshow, London
- investor proparty conference, Netherfands
- Private dient investor roundtable. Lond

Juge 2016 - lnvesior roadshaw, Edmbuargh
- lnvestor propesty conference, t andon
- tnvestor properiy tour. Paddington Central

Juty AN ~ Analyst reundtable, Retall stratagy, London
- 1 trading updatie
- ACM
- US Privatz Ptacement investor brinfing,
leieconierance

our website: weww.britishland.com/committeas. Wa are not making
any changes lo the Remuneration Policy this year.

Relations with shareholders

The Board remains ¢ slted o maintsining epen ch is of
corpmunicalion with sharcholgers. it is important that we cearty
explain e Compeny's siralegy and objeciives amd that feedbadk is
listened o and any issues and guestions appropriately considerned.

British kL and has a dedicaled Investor Relations team which

reports to the Chief Financial Qfficer. investors and analysts receive
requtar communicatiens frem the Company throughoul the year;
including Investor Relations events [sez box Lo the right), one-to-onz and
group meetings with Executive Directors and property or assel logrs,

as well as regular conlaci with the Investor Relations team. During

the year, the Chiel Executive, Chief Financial Officer and our Investor
Relations team met with representatives from over 205 insiitulions.,

We periodically commission an independent ir parception

study which i presanted (¢ the Board.

The Chairman encourages all Directors to 2tiend the AGM, providing
retail sharehetders in particular with an appertunity to hear from the
Board and to queshon the Directors in person.

Significant emphasis is placed on the importance of feeding shareholder
views, both pesitive and negative, back to the Board. The Chief Exacutive
pravides a writlen report to the Board at each scheduled meeting which
includes direct market feedback on activity during the period_ [E.1.1§9
IE1.219

British Land aims 1o be informative and accessible to all sharehelders.
Announcements refating to the Group's financial resuits and other key
matters are provided in a timely manner to both retail and institvtonal
shareholders. Our website also provides a number of case studies

for stakeholders’ infartnation covering topics from asset profiles

to sustainabitily activities. Shareholdars are also able ta contact

the Company directly via the contacts page on our websile: .
www.britishland. comicontacts

We are pleased with the level of engagerment with shareholders achieved
during the year and the Board also recognises the impaortant contribution
of providers of capital other than sharehalders, namely our leaders angd
bondholders. We maintain a regular and apen dialogue with our debl
providers 1o help us undersiand Yheir imesiment appelite ant criteria.

. As ever, our Senior Independent Director r i ilable lo address
any concerns shareholders may wish te raise. other thanvia the usaal
channels of ihe Chairman, Chiel Executive or other Execulive Direclors
86119
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September 206 - Invesior property conference, London
- Investor roadshow, US
- Private dient roadshow, London
Novernber 2006 - Hali year resulls presentation
- Halif year roadshow, London
- _imveslor property conference. Loaden

December 2016 - Direcl invesior readshow, Canada
- _{nvesior property conference, South Afnica
January 2017 - Q3 wading updale

- Investor property conferance i enden
— Anatyst and inveslor property lour,

Clamges. Mayfair
February 2007 - lwestor roadshovw, Nethertands
March 2037 - Investor sustainability workshep, London
- Investor proparly cenference, London

- Private cliznl roadshow, London and Edinburgh
- lowestor roadshow, Edinburgh




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We monitor the quality and integrity
of the financial reporting and

valuation processes

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Commiliee

Audit Committee members’ attendaﬁce
- for the year ended 31 March 2017

Timn Score [Chairman) 1A.1.2] @
Aubrey Adams

Sinon Borrows

&85

Terms of reference

The Committee's role and responsibilities are set outin the
terms of reference which can be found on our website at
www.britishland com/committees {C 3112 (C.321Q[C331@

| amn pteased o present the repor! of the Audit Commiliee lor the
year ended 31 March 2017

This year, the key areas of focus fer the Committee have been:

- scrutinising the valuation of investment and development praperties

- monitoring the effectiveness of the new internal auditor and
reviewing lhe internal audit plan

— agreeing a best practice policy for the appointment of the
Company's external valuers

- reviewang Lhe appropriateness of continuing to publish interim
managerment statements and

- manitoring the quality, consistency and integrity of the Comipany's
financial reporting, including assessing whether the Annual Report
is fair, balanced and understandable

Committee compesition and governance

Ouring the year, the Commiites was wholly composed of indapendent
Non-Executrve Directors, being Aubrey Adams, Simon Berrows

and mysell as Commitiee Chairman. With effect from 1 Apnt 2017
Lond Macpherson jowned the Committee.

| British Land has announced thal Simon Bormews will relive lrom

the Board, and this Commiltee, at the condusion of the 2017 AGM.
Twould like to thank Simon for his valuable contribution as a
member of this Commitlee.

The Board ramains satisfiad that each of the Commiltee members
is approprialely qualified and experienced to undertake their
roles. For the purposes of the Code, | am deemned to maet the
specific requirement of having significant, recenl and relevant
finandial experience [C.3.116.

By invitation, membersuf management altend Committee meetings.
These include the Chial Financia! Dificer, CHal Exacutive Officer,

‘Company Secrelary and General Counse, Group Financial Controller,

Head of investor Relations, Head of Finanaal Reporting and Head of
Planning and Analysis as well as representalives of both external and
internal auditors. The Committee met privately with both external
and internal auditors three times during the year and is satisfied

that neither is being unduly inAuenced by managemeny.

As Committee Chairman, | additionally hold regutar meetings
with the Chiaf Financial Othcer and other bers of
These mestings provide me with a better undersianding of key issues
and} idaniify those matters which require meaninghul discussion at
Committea meelings. | atso meet the external audit partner, internal
audit partner and represeatatives from each of the valuers to discuss
any matters or concerns they have.

geimea.

During the year, the Committee received reports from management,
external and internal auditors, exiernal valuers and the Risk Committee.
These reports have allowed the Committee to scrulinise and ask queshons
where further clarilication or discussion was required. Further details
on the waork undertaken by the Cammittee are set out in the section on
“Key aclivities duning the year on page 68,

1
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Role and responsibilities
The prinopal responsibilities of the Commitiee are-

1 Externatavdit - Owersight and remuneralion of the external
auditor. assessing effeciveness and making recommendations
10 the Board on the: appoinirent of, and the policy for, non-audit
Services pruvtded by the exteyna! auditor

2 Finandial reporting — Monitoring the integrily of ihe Company's
financial statements and any fermal arncuncements relating
1 I‘:nanqal parformance, and t:\mstdmng signilicant fnandat
reparting ¢ judi ts and

3 twestment and develop: nt propesty valimbipns — -
Considering thz valuation process and the effectiveness
of the Company’s valuers

4 Risk management and internal controls - Reviewing ll";e
system of internat conbrol and risk managemeni

]

internal audit - Monitoring and reviewing repor is on the work
petformed by the internial auditor and reviewing effectiveness,
audit plans and resourcng

Key activities during the vear
The key activilies underiaken by the Commitiee are set out below.

1. External audit

The G ittee is r bile for gverseeing the relationship with
the external auditor and for considering their terms of engagement,
remuneration, elfectiveness, indepandence and continued objectivity.

The Commitles annually reviews the audit requirements of the Groug,

for the business and in the context of the axternal emvironment, placing
greal importance on ensuring a high quatity. effeclive external audit
process. In parlicular, during the year, the Commiltee reviewed

ang approved Lhe annual awdit plan and reviewed the lindings of the
external audit and g I's responsi 10 those lindings.

In accordance with best praciice and its own terms of reference,

the Commitlee underiakes an annual review of the perforcnance

of the external auditor. During this review, the Commiltee considered
the externat auditor's technical competence, strategic knowledge,
repuorting, their ind: =, and compliance with rel t
slatulery, regulatory and ethucal slandards. IC.3.81@.

The Committee aoted the results of the Financial Reporiing Council's
Audit Quality Review [AQR} of PwC s audi of the Company, 2leng with
their perforrmance on other audits of listed companies.

The Cormilee reviewed Pwi's performance during the year ended
31 March 2017 and was content wath the quality of the audit work
undertaken and the knowledge and comgpetence of the audit team.
The external auditor confirthed to the Car thatit mawnk;
appropriale internal safeguards 16 ensure its independence and
objeclivity. The Commiltee considered and approved PwC's

nent ol its indepeadence and has recommended to the
Hoard that a resolution for the reappointment of PwC as external .
auditar be put to shareholders at the 2017 AGM IC 3.7/,

British Land undertoak a tender of external audit services in 2014
resulling in the appoiniment of PwC as external auditor. This is the
third year that PwC have audited the Annuat Report. The Comrmittee will
consider the need for a competitive tender lor the role ol external audikor
every five years, with a competitive tender aking place at {east every
ten years. There are no contractual obtigations which would restrict
the selection of a different audilor. The Committee wilt also ensure
that the rotation of audit partner is undertaken as required by
legislation Lo the extent that this is net undertaken eartier by PwC._
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Provision of non-audit services (C.3.81©

The Commiites has adopted 5 policy ior the previsien of non-audil
services by ihe external auditor. The policy helps 10 Safeguard the
external auditor's independence and ohjeciivily and vas reviewed
and updaiad during the year. The policy allows the axiarnal avuditer
to provide the lollowing non-audit services to Brilish Land where
they are considerad 10 b2 the most apprepnate provden:

- Audit relaled services: intuding fermal reporting relating ko
borrowings, sharehotder and other circulars snd work in respect
of acquisstions and disposals. In some arcumnstances, the external
audilor is required Lo carry out tha werk because of their office.

o gther drcumslances, selection would depand on which firm
was best suited to provida the sarvices roquired .

- Sustainability assurance: PwC currenily prowides an assarancs
opinitn {o the Company over selected sustamability data.
This appomunent is reviewad anauaily.

in addition, tha pro(oco(s that apply {o non-awdd (ees are:

- Totai non-audil fees are timied to 70% of the aud f22s in any one year.
Details of the audit and non-audit lees pzid during the year are set oul
in Note 5 on page 109. The audit and non-audit fees for the three year
average are calculated in line with the methedology set oul in the
2014 EU Requlations and indude fees for joint ventures and funds

- Commiitea approval is required where there might be doubis
as to whather the external auditor had a conflict of interest and

- Pre-approval by the Audit Committee Chatrman is required for
each additional project or incremental fee over £25.000 {previously
£100,000) and Committee approval required for any additional
projects over £100.000

During the yhar ane engagement relating to Susiainability assurance
required approval This was approved by the Audit Commitiee Chairman
an the basis that PwC were boest placed to pravide this sendce and

that it created no conflict of interest wikth their role a5 external auditor.

2. Financial repurting

Al the request of the Board lhe Committee reviewed the content and tone
of the preliminary resulls press release, Annual Report and hall year
resulls as well as the quarterly trading updates.

The Coromittee received a broad outne of the Annual Report structure
and content eartyin the pracess. Further dralts of the Annual Report
were reviewed by the Commiltee prior o formnal consideration by the
Board, wath sutficent time to allow leedback. The Committes considered
the key messages inctuded in the Annuat Repont, hail year results and
the trading updales issued during the year. As well as content and fone
of results, the Committee paid particular attention o financial reporting
matters it considers 1o be importanl by virtue of size, complexity, level of
judgement required and potential impact on the financal statements and
wider business medel. ldentification of the issues deemed to be significan?
took place following open and frank discussion between the Committes,
Chiel Financial Officer, PwC. internal audit and ather relevant British
Land employees,

Foilowing the Committee’s review, and receipt of an external audit
apinian from PwC, the Cemimittee kas satislied ilsell that controls
over the accuracy and consistency of the infarmation presented in the
Aanuat Repiart are robust. The Comemiltiee recommendad to the Board
that the Annual Repor t presented a lair, balanced and underslandable
overiiew af the business of the Group and that it provides slakeholders
with the necessary information 1o assess tha Group's position,
performance, business madel and strateqy (C.3.4}€.

The Committee also considered the continuing use of interim management
slalements between the full and half year announcements. Having taken
into account the views of investars, the Commitiee recommended o the
Board that the Company should cease publishing interim management
statemnents from 1 Aprit 2017,



The signilicant issues considerad by the Committee during the year ended 31 March 2017 and {he actions t2ken o address these i Issues, are seloutin
the table below [C3.81€2

Significant issues in relation to

financial statements considered
by the Committee during the vear

How these issues
were addressed
by the Committee

Viahility
statemment

Going convern
statement

Vahsation
of property
portfolio

Accounting
for significant

transactions

REST status

Revenue

recogniuoh

Whether the assessment
underizken by management
regarding the Group's long
term viability appropriately
reflects the prospects of

the Group and covers an
appropriate paniod of tmme.

The appropriateness
of preparing the Group
financial stalements on
a geing concern basis.

The valvation of rvestment
and devetopment properiies
conducted by externat valuers
is inherently subjectiveas it

is undertaken on the basis

of agsismptions made by

the valuérs which may not
prove to be accurale.

The oulcome of the valuation
is significant to the Groupm
terms of invasiment decisions._
resulls and remuneration.

The accounting treatment

.of significant preperty
acquisitiens, disposals and
financing transactions, is 2
recurming risk for the Group
wilh non-slandard accounting
eniries required, and in

SOme cases managament
judgement appliad.

" Maintenance of the Groaup's

. REIT status through compliance
wath certain condilions has
a significant impacl on the

Group’s resulls.

For certain transaclions,

judgement is applied by

management as to whether,

and to what exfent, they

should be treated as revenue
- for the linandial year.

The Committee considered whether the assessment performed by snanagement adequalely
reflecied the Group's risk appetite and principal risks as drsclosad on pages 50 1o 33; whelher
the period coverad by the statement was reasonzble given the strategy of the Group and the
erwironment in which it operates: and whether the assumpliens and sensibvibes idenbified
and stress tested represenied severs bul plausible scenarios in the conlext of sobvency

or liquidity.

: Follewang this evatuation, along with consideration of the extesnal awditer's report, the

Committee agreed with managemeni’s assessment and recomenendad the viability siatemant
for approval by the Board. The viabilily statement, together with further detaits on the
assessment andartaken, 15 sel out on page 4% of the Sirateqer Repart.

The Commuttee reviewad management s analysis supporting lhe gowng concemn bases
of preparation, including consideration of forecast cash flows, avadatslity of committed
debt ladliti=s and expeciad covenant headroom.

The Commitlee alse received a report rom the external audiler on the results of the testing
undertaken on management s analysis. As a result of the assessment underlaken, the
Commillee salisfied itsell that the qgoing corcern basis of pregaration remained appropriale.

The goang oovcern statement is el oul on page 85 of the Corporale Govermance Report.

The external valuers presented their r2ports to the Commitize prior to the half year
and full year results. providing an gverview of the UK property markel and summarising
the performance of the Group's assets_Significant judgements were also highlighied.

The Committee analysed the reports and reviewsd the weluztion sulcomss, chellensing
assumptlions where thought fil. in particular this year, the effect of the £U referendum
on property valuations and market senliment was examined in d=tait.

The Committee was satisfizd with the valvation process ani 1he effectiveness of the
Company's valuers. The Commiltee afso approved the relevant valuation disclosures
to be included in the Annual Report.

The Committee reviewed management papers on key judgements, induding those
for significant transactions, as well as the external auditor's indings on these matters.

in particular, the Committee considered the accounting tre2siment of The Leadenhalt
Building lransaction, the disposal of Debenhams, Oxford Street and the émpact of share
price movements on the accounting treatrnent of the 2012 convertible bond, mduding
the change in dilutive impact on the Company’s key metrics.

The axternal auditor confirmed thal management’s judgements in relation to thase
transactions were appropriate. The Comamitiee agreed with this condusion.

The Commiltiee reviewed the Campany’s compliance wath the REIT tests. Management
presented details of the methodology and resulis of their process for REIT lesting.
highlighting any change in long term trends and the currenl level o} headroom.

The external auditor presented the condusions of their review of the REIT tests performed
by management and the Commiilee concluded that the Company’s REIT status had been
maintained in lhe year.

The Committee and the external auditor considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relation to revenue recagnilion. In particular the
Commiltee considered the accounting of significant payments received in the year in
relation to the development and occupation of 5 Broadgate and were satisfied with their
treatment as capital ilems.

The Commitlee considered the scope of the accounhng stangdard and agreed wilh the
reasenableness of the judgement made.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTINUED

3. investment and development property valuations

The exiernal valuation of British Land's portiolio is 3 key determinant

of the Group’s balance shest, perinrmance and ey managament's
remuneration. in accordance vath its lerms of reference, the Commiitee
adopis a nigorows appreach ta itaring and reviewinyg the vatuation
process and the effectiveness of the Growg's valuers, Xraght Frank, CBRE
and Jones Lang LaSalle. The Commitiee reviews the affecin ot the
extermal valuars bi-annusily; focusing on a quanlitative aralyss of capital
values, yield benchmarking, avaitability of comparable markel evidence
and mazjor cutliers th subsecion 5 withan  quiatitaive
review of the tevel of service received from each veluer.

The valuers sttended the Commillee meetings which considerad the
hall year and annual results, and presented their reporis including
providing confirmation of the valuation process. markel conditions
and gignifcant judgements made. PwC revnewed the valuations and
valuation process, haviag had ull access lo the valuers ta detecmnine
that due process had been followed and appropriate information used.
1t reporied its firdings to the C ittee. The vatualion process was
alse subject to regular review by intermnal audit.

British Land has hized fee arrangemenls in place with the valuers
in relabion ko the valuation of wholty ed assels, in line with the
recomimendations of the Carsberg Commitlee Regorl. Cagies of the
valuation cerlificates of Knight Frank, CBRE and JLL can be lound
on the corporate websile 31 www. britishland com/reports.

The Company has adopted a best practice policy en the appointment
of external vatuers. The pelicy covers duration of appainiments and
the number of valuers engaged across the portfolio. implementation
of the poticy will commrence during the year ending 31 March 218
and further detads will be given in the 2018 Anrual Report.

4_Hick mansgement and internat contrels

The Committes is responsitile for overseeing the effect of

the Group's risk managernent and internal controt systems on behalf

of the Board, This Committee has oversight of the actvities of the Risk
Cammittee, receiving minutes of all Risk Commitiee meetings and
discussing any significant matters. Prior to the announcement of full
year and half year results the Commiilee reviews the Group’s principal
risks. This indludes a commenlary an how risk exposures have changed
during the perind and any emerging risks in the Company’s risk regisler.
In particular, consideration has been given to the effect on the Commpany's
exiernal zconomic and inlernal strategic 3ims following the EU
referendum resull, geopolitical unrest and capital growth forecasts.
The € itlee reviewed manag: ‘s response 1o these matlers
inctuding impact on neac term budgeting and fyture investment and
development strategy. The G itlee considered and rec ded
the Gruup's risk appelile {6 the Board for approval, ensuning that it

was sel al an appropriate level to achieve sirategic goals without taking
undue risk. The Committee reviewed the status of key risk indicalors
throughout the year against the risk appetile set, with focus on those
that were outside optimal ranges.

Half-yearly, the internal audilor reports to the Commitiee on the
effecti of manag ‘s internal conlrols. induding a thematic
analysis of control issues identified by rnanagement. Internal audit
and the Risk Commitiee work closely together to ensure that identified
cisk areas are incaryerated in the internial audit plan and similarly,

the findings of internal audits are taken into account when identifying
and evaluating rsks within the business, For the year ended

31 March 2017, the internal audilor confirmed that the system

of risk managerment and internal controls had been effective.

Further delails ol the Company’s internal control sysiems can
be found oa page 85 of the Corparate Gavernance Repoart.
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5. Internal audit

As sel outin the 2018 Annweat Report. aforma! tender of internal audit
sarvices Was imosriaien guring the first guariar of 201h. A saleciion
panal was esizblished which | chaired. comprising the Chiel Finandial
Gificer, Company Seoretary ang General Counsel and sentor members
of thz Finznce ieam. The principal criteria considered by the panel
inciudad the skills and exparvance of the proposed teams, cultural fit
with British Land, insight and external pecspeclives (o add value and
expaciad f2e arrangements. Ernst & Young LLPEY) were identified
at the prefarmed cndidaie 2nd appeimed o the role following
approval by the Board on the Committee’s recommendation.

The Commities reviewed and approved the infernat audit plan for the year,
including a consideraticn of its alkgrmant i tha prinapat risks of the
Group and ils jeint ventures. EY have attended all Committee meetings
during the yaar to present their observabons arising from tha audits
underizien and the skales of any resulling management actions,

fntarnat audits undertaken by Y amd reviswad by the Commitlee s the
year mcludad: property devetopmant including procurament third party
contraci manegement. property valustions and stalistics. property
managermvent coniract 2oguisitians, property disposals and the wider
sk managament process, treasury, payrotl and human resources.

The sudits revesled no significant issues however 2 number of process
and control impz s weve suygesied and impl ted in the year
by i EY also pr assurance gver ihe elfecliveness of
key inancial controls in the year and a rumber of advisory reviews were
conducied over bysiness contimanty and IT processas including the engoing
design ang implamentation of a new finance general ladger system,

The perlormance of internzl 2udit was monkiored throughout the
year through the review, challenge and discussion of £Y's finding
The Commiiles reviewad the internal audit charter which defines
EY's role and respensbilies. A lormal roview of the clfectiveness
of the internal audilar wes undertaken and, as a result of this review,
the Commitiee believed that £Y discharged its dulies effectively

IC 3.6/ during the year ended 31 March 2017

Other matters discussed and reviewed by the Committee
In addition to e key areas sei out above, the Commiltee considered
the following matters during the year ended 31 March 2017

Reporling and - [hanges lo accounting palicies
external audit - Annual awdit plan and externak
auditor's rermuneration

Risk andinternal - Review of the Treasury Policy including
control iquidity. interest rase and foreign
currency ignagement
~ Any-fraud and ant-bribery and corruplion
policies and procedures
- Whistleblowing arrangements [C 3519
- Cyber security
— Risk exposure aid reward outcome
- Insuramca for cofporate, property
and Jevelopment risks .

‘Intermial audil - Annual inkernal audil plan

- Internzlaudit charier setting out s role
and responsitililies
Other - Revievang the Commilkee's termns of reference
~  Annual tax update and approach to tax
Evaluation of the Committee s effecti

- B

Tim Score
Chairrnan of the Audit Commillee



REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Comunittee leads the process

Jor Board appointments

John Gildersleeve

Chairman of the Normination Committee

Nomination Committee members’ attendance
for the year ended 31 March 2017

John Gildersleeve [Chairman] {A1.21€2

William Jackson

S8R

Lord Turnbulk

Role and responsihilities

The Committee’s role and responsibitilies are sel oulin
its terms of reference found on the Company s websile at
www_britishland.com/committees {B.2.11€.

The Commillee’s prinopat responsibitities are:

- reviewing the siruciure, size and comgposition of the Board
and its Committees and recommending changes to the Beard

- considering succession ptanning for Directors and other
senior execulives

- reviewing the independence and time commibment
requirements of Non-Executive Directors and

- making recommendalions as (o the Directors standing
for elaction or re-election at the AGM

Welcome to the report of the Natnation Committee.

The Committee considers that the Baand consists of individuals with
the nght balance of skills, expenience and keowladge to prowde strong
and effectrve leadersiv of the Company. The majority of the Board

are independent Non-Executive Directors. and the Board's collective
expefience covers a range of relevant sectors, as dlustrated on page 54.
As well as a breadih of preperty and fnancial experience. many Board
members have personal experence of working in the relad and
corporale eavironments that are typical of many of our otcupiers.

in Decernber 2014 Lord Macpherson was appsinled as a Non-Execulive
Directar, In additien, on 1 Seplemnber 2017 Preben Prebensen will join
the Boaid and the Remenerabion Commiltee. Detzils of our appointment
process are given on page 72.

We recognise the imnportance of condinuity and the value that Directors
who serve for many years bring. Aubrey Adams will be approaching
the end of his ninth year 35 2 Non-Erecutive Direclor by thetime of

our 2017 AGM.

Aubrey's considerable expertise in the property seclor is an imporlant
pari of the mix of skills and experience on our Board. The Commillee
undertock a rigorous review of Aubrey's coninbutions te the Board and
the Audil Cosnmitize and his independence and detarmined that Aubrey

 remained independant in character and judgemeni. We are delighted

to recommend thal Aubrey he uwited to Serve as an independent
Non-Executive Director for a further one yaar lerm. The process to
recryit an additionat Non-Exacutive Director with proparty sector
experience is under way (B.2.31G.

- Committee mmpomt:on and governance

Membership of the Commitiee remained unchanged during the year
10 31 March 2017 and comprised William Jackson, Lord Turnbutl
and mysell as Commillee Chairtnan. With effect lrom 1 April 2017,
Timn Score, Chairman of the Audit Committee jowned the Committee.

We announced in March that Lord Turnbull will refire fram the Board,
and its Commitleas, at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. | would like

to thank Lord Turnbult lor th2 support and advice he has provided

1o the Nomination Committee during his tenure. His guidance and
experience will be missed. '

The Committee met twice during the year. By invitation, Tim Score
and Chris Grigg, Chiel Executive, altended both meetings.
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Govertanes

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Key activities during the vear
During the year, the Cormnmitlee has underlaken each ol its pnmlpal
respaasibililizs as set aut on page T1.

Compasition of the Board and Committees

The Comnmitlee reviewed the compaosition of the Board, and considered
whether the range of skills, exparience and knowtadge that the Direclors
tiring continue 1o provide strong and effective leadership of the Company,
andg their length of enursa.

The Zygos Partnership {Zygosi, an externat search agency, was engaged
by the: Committes to assist with the recruitment process in relatien

1o Lord Macpherson and Preben Prebensen. Zygos role incleded

the preparation of datailed role spadlications, seardhing for and
benchmarking suitable candidates, and produding detailed persenal
profiles for iha Committee’s cansidaration Other than the pravision

of recruitvent consultancy services, Zygos does not have any
conneciion with British Land {B_2.4] 6.

The Beard's colleclive expernente covers a range of retevant seclors,
as Mlysiraled on pages 56 to 59. The Commillea considered the shills,
experience and knowledge of each candidate as well as their ability
10 prvide the appropriale leval of scruliny and challenge expected

of indzpendant Non-Execulive Directors.

Throughou! the year, the membership of the Audit, Remunegation
and Nomination Commitizes comprised indepandent Mon-Executive

- Directors to the extent required by \he Code {B_2.11. William Jackson
sutceeded Lord Turmbull as Chairman of the Remuneration Commitlee
following the 2016 AGM when Lord Turnbull retired from that role.
Lord Turmbull remaing 3 member of the Remuneralion Comrmities
until the canclusion of the 2817 AGM whan he will stand down as
a Director and Senior independent Direclor. Wittiam Jackson will
succzed Lord Turndull as the Senigr Independent Dirscior gl that ime

0On 1 April 2017, Lord Macpherson was appointed (o the Audit
Comwnillee and Tim Score joined the Nomination Committee.

The Committee yndertook a detatled review of the continued
independence of each of the Non-Executive Directors, the ime
comnmilment required and whether it was in the best inlerests of

" the Company for each Director to be rec ded for re-appoi
Detailed consideration was given lo each Non-Execulive Direclor's
contribution to thz Board and its Committees, tagether with the overall
balance of knovwdedqe, skills, experiente and diversity on the Board.

in accordance with the Code, all conlinuing Directors will retire at the
Annual General Meeting in 2017 and submit themselves lor electien,
in the case of Lord Macpherson, or re-election by shareholders,
Foltewing thew review, the Committee is of the opinion that each
Direclor continues to demonsirate commitment to his of her role

as a mespber of the Board and its Commillees, discharges his or

her duties effectively and thal each makes a valuable eontribution

to the leadership of Lhe Campany for the benefit of ail stakeholders.
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Succession

The Commiites reqularty « the ad y of st
arvangements lor the Board, mcluding the Crae! Execuiive. and other
members of senior management. The Chizf Executive is responsible
for developing saccession plans for the remaining Executive Direclors
and senior management which are presented to and commented on
By the Committee. The Chainman is responsible for developing the
succession plan for the Chizf Executive, which is considered ot least
annually by the Committee.

Board diversity

British Land pays luil regard to the benefils of diversity. inciuding
gender diversity, both when the Nomination Committee is searching
for candidates for Board appoinimients and when the Cempany is
searching for candsiates for other appointents.

British Land currently has lhree lemale Board members: Lynn Gladden
ani Lavra Wade-Gery, boih Non-Exaculive Directors, and Lucinda Bedl,
Chiel Financial Officer. This represents 23% female Board membership
{2018: 25%). The percentage of female Bosrd members is expected fo
return to 25% once the anvounced Board chenges have Laken place.

Achieving 2 more diverse Board. including increasing in the percentage
of iemale Board members, will be subjzc ko the availability of suitable
candidates; the Board musl ensure thal appoinifneats are of the
candidates best able ta promaote the success of the Company.

Subject 1o this requirement, the Board remains commitied to further
strengthening diversily. including female representation. al Board

and senior management level.

Focus for the coming vear
For the coming year, the Commlllee will continua to reviesw and
p SUCK et g for Executiva Directors and senior

managemant 2nd will ovarses the 1rfsnnial extermally laciliteied
Board evaluation.

3. »

John Gildersleeve

Chairmnan of the Nemination Cammitiee



REMUNERATION REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Poliéy

aligns management incentives

with our strategy

William Jackson

Chairrnan of the Rernuneralion Committee

Remuneration Committee members' attendance
during the vear ended 31 March 2017 (L1.2)@

William Jackson [Chairman} &4
Lynn Gladden A 3
Lord Turnbultt &J&
Laura Wade-Gery &1

' Whillam Jackson succeeded Lord Turnbull as Chairman with effect from
the conclusion of the 2016 AGM,

Role and responsibilities

The Committee’s role and responsibililies are sel gutin
tha terms of reference lound on the Company's website
at www_britishland.com/cammittees {0.211HD.2.21©
The Committee’s key areas of responsibility are:

— Setting the remuneration potfcy for Executive Directors and
the Company Chairman: reviewing the remuneration policy
and strategy lor mermbers of the Executive Committee and
other members of executive management whilst having
regard (o pay and employment conditions across the Group

~ Determining the total individual remuneration package of
the Company Chairman, each Executive Director. Executive
Committee member and other members of management

= Maonitering performance against canditions attached {e alt annual
and tong-ierm incentive awards lo Executive Directors, Executive
Committee and other members of management and approving
the vesting and payment autcomes of these arrangements

- Selecting, appoinling and seiting the terms of reference of
any independent remuneration consultant or consultants

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’
Remnuneralion Report lor the year ended 31 March 2017,

This is my first report as Chairman of British § and's Remuneration
Committee, having succeaded Lord Turnbull al the 2016 AGM. | would
like to thank Lord Turnbull for bis stewardship over the {ast fewyears
and 2ro grateful tha! he has remained on the Commitiee until this
year s AGM and continued to offer his knowtedge and expertence

of remunzration matters within British Land. We look forward to
welcaming Preban Prebensen, whowill join as 2 Non-Exacultive
Director and a ber of this C itte2 on T September 2017.

Brilish Land operates v high standards of remuneration practice.

We would like lo thenk shareholders for reflecting this with their support
for the Remuneration Policy al the 2016 AGM, Over 7% supported

the naw Remuneralion Policy and over 6% supported the Directors’
Rermuneration Repart. -

The performance measures thal determine the levats of variable pay
fer Executive Directors are fully aligned with Lthe Company's business
sirategy. These measures are mainly retative and have the objective

of incentivising the Direclors to deliver bigher returns than the market.
This means that if in any year the Company delivers weaker performance
on 3 relative basis, variable pay is \ower. and if it delivers strongar
performance, variable payis higher.

Over the yrar unrer review, despite the Company detivering good
finandial results in an eventful year, our relative properly seclor
performance has been slightly above or just below markel level rather
than delivering the clear outperformance we aspire to achieve Asa
resuli, payouts from our annual incentive plans are lower than last year.
We axpecl the LPIP maturing this year will lapse as will hall of the MSP
awards vesting in June 2617, The Cemmittee believes thal this outcome
shows Lhat the Company's remuneration policies are working correctly
in the interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. '

We are not making any revisions to the approved Remuneration Policy
this yaar. However, we are aware of the current dehate on remuneration
practice and regularly review and challenge target selting for Executive
Direclors. We ensure Ins coraplies with best practice but alse that the
kargets set align management actions with qur stralegy and the long
term inlerests of shareholders and other stakeholders. During the year
we have continued to lake irio account the views of our shareholders,
invesior representative bodies and governance advisory organisations
in the way the Remuneration Policyis applied. In particutar we have
respondad to feedback about the imporiance of simnplifying executive
pay and remuneration reparting as well as ensuring that remuneration
is aligned with gur sirategy.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

When our Remuneration Policy was introduced in 2014 we moved to one
single {ong terfn incentive anrangzmeant 2nd selected thrze performance
measures which closety align with our siralegy Ise= full d=tails on page
77, In 2017 we are continuing {0 simpiify vur remunerstion structure

by reducding the number of quantitative maaswres for the annual incentive
arrangements, from five to tem, and intreducing weightings for the
propertion of maxmum annual incentive award opporiunity represented
by each maasure. The three measunes thalwill no {onger 2pply are
adeguately covered by the remaining measures in the Annual incentive
Plan and LTIP. The remaining parformance measures, sel oot in futl

on page 76, belter align the annual incenlive awards made Lo Executive
Directors with British Lands strategic focus on creating Places People
Preler and delivering sustainable long term vatue for 3l stakeholders,

In this Remuneralion Report, we have also flurther enhanced.our
disclosure of how we assess Exeautive Direclors” parformance tor
annual incenlive purposaes.

Our centinuing focus on better alignmeent of remuneration with
strateqgy is reflecled in aur decision lo use the investment Property
Databank IPO] March Anmpal Universe banchmark when 2ss253ing
performance against the Total Property Relurns measure for 2nnval
intentive awards and LTIP awards for the vear commencing 1 Ageil
2017. The March Annual Universe benchrnark is more appropnale

for this purpese as the companies frem which asset related information
is sourced are more representative of our peer group. In 2ddition
measuring our perforrnance against this benchunark, which includes
sales, acquisilions and developments and so lakes ateoun! of ackive
assel management, positively supports achi t of the C y's
sirategy. We waight 1his benchmark 1o reflect the sectors inwhich

our assets are classified.

Remuneration in respect of the year ended

31 March 2017

Remuneration within British Land continues 10 be closely tied 10 the
financial performance of the Group and the extert Lo which both shart
and long term strategic abjectives are met.

The annual incentive plan payout is based on performance against
unlevered capital return, total property returmn and profil growth,
wygether with qualitative measures supporting Places Peeple Prefer
and individual objectives, However, the quantitative objectives of total
accounting return vs property majors and ERV growth against IPQ
were bolh below median and as 4 result. do nok contribute Lo the
award. The resull of our performance gives an award of areund
ane-third of Lhe maximum. equivalent to approximately 50% of basic
satary. This is a significant reduction aver earlier years and shows that
our pay struciure is truly variable and reflects performance achjeved.

The LTIP awards gr anted in 2014 and vesling in June 2017 are based
on relatve performance for the three y2ars ended 31 March 2017,
These are expected to lapse in full. In addition, anly half of the MSP
award made in respect of 2014 is expected o vest, Once again these
significant reduclions in share-based variable pay show how the
siruciure is aligned (o performance outcomes over the longer term.,
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Remuneration in respect of the vear commencing

1 April 2017

Salaryand fees .

The Committee has discussed and reviewed the Company's annuzt

salary process for all employees. i has also reviewad the basic salaries , -
of the Executive Directors arnid the Chairman's anauat fee and concludzd ’

that these shoutd rermain unchanged lor the coming year.

Annual incentives

We have simiplified the gerformance es for the L
incentive awards and inlroduced sirct weighlings te each measune. '
For the coming year. 70% of any potential award vall be dependeat on
successiully achieving fnancial tergets with 20% based o achieving
qualitative and 10% on individual targats. Qur dacision o raduce

tha number of quantitative measures witl produce clearer argats.
Further infarrnation is provided on page 76.

Long-term incentives
The first long-tenm incentive awards under the Remuneration Palicy
approved i 2016 will be granted during this coming year.

Diversity and inclusion }
The Commitler carefutly monitors the Company's strategic fecus en

diversity and inclusion and has underlaken preparalory analyses for

the disclosure requirements of gender pay reporting. Full disclosures

will be published on our websile when complete. Diversity dala is

given in the Strategic Report on pages 24 and 25.

Remusicration consultants

In early 2017 a\ender of remuneration advisory services was
underaken, A panel was established o oversee the lender va behall
of the C ittee whose members induded Chris Grigg. Lord Turnbayll,
and Ann Henshaw HR Directorl. | chaired the panal, Several providers
were invited to present {o the panel and, afler due process and
deliberation_ the Commiltee appointed Kern Ferey Hay Group Limited
1o be ils remuneration adviser with effect from 21 March 2017 we
would like to thank FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP. and Alan Judes
in particular, for the adwice. guidance and supporl provided over the
years. We wish Alan a good retirement. -

<

Recommendation

Briish Land continues to Sirive to apply best practice in its rerauneratien
policies and 1o listen carefully o shareholder feedback, We therefore
hope that you all show your support for our approach io remuneration

by weting for the Directors Remuneration Report al the 2017 AGM.

“ﬁllmm Jackson

Chairman of the Remnyneration Cornmiliee



-REMUNERATION REPORT: ATA GLANCE

Executive Directors” Remuneration

The charts below show the 2017 aCtual remunes ation sgainsl potential apportunity for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2015 actual rﬂnmahm
for each Executive Birectar. Full disclosure of the single tolal higure of resnuneration for aach of the Directors 15 set out in the table onpage 78.
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! 2017 pateniia! assumes that both annugl and long-term inrentives pay out i il

Summary of Remuneration Policy

o a5 190 15 I8 25 30

The Remuneration Poticy summarised below was approvad by shareholders on 19 July 2016. The Policy is affective until the third anniversary of its
approval or a revised policy is approved, whichever is the sooner. The Remuneration Policy is set out in full in the 2014 Annual Report and is availzble

on our website www.britishland.com/committees

Framework

Maximum level cannot be greater than the upper quartile of the
comparator group. Reviewed annually and increases typically in tine
with inflation and general salary increases throughaut the Group.
Maximum fee of £1.500 p.a. in aggregate for all qualifying
appoiniments lo subsidiary boards

Benefils are restricted 1o a maximum of £28,600 p.a. for car allowsnce
“and the armwunl required Lo condinue providing other taxable and
non-taxable benefils at a similar level year-on-year.

Defined benelit scheme - target benafitis the pension that can
be provided by the 31 March 2012 [fetime allowanca [£1.8 million]
uplifted by RPt.

Defined contribution arrangements - cash allowances inlieu of
pension are made at betwsen 15-35% of salary.

Element of Link to strategy

resnuneration

Fixed Basic Attracts and refains Expert People with
satary the appropiiate degree of expertise and

exferience to deliver agread strategy.

Benehts
Pension
conltribution

Variable Annual Pet [armance measures retated to British
incentive Land’s strategic focus and the Executive

Director’s individual area of responsibility
are set by the Commiltee at the beginning

of the financial year.

Maxirmum oppor lunity is 150% of basic salary. Two-thirds is paidin
cash when granted with the remaining one-third Inet of taxd used to
purchase shares an behalf of the Exacutive Director [Annual Incentive
Shares] which must be held for a further lhree years trom the date

of grant whether or nol they remain an employee of British Land.

Long-term - Total Property Reiuwn [TPR] links

incentive

- teward lo gress property performance.

- Total Accounting Return [TAR] links
reward to nel property performance

and sharehulder distributions.

- Totalt Sharchotder Return [TSRE

directly correlates reward wilh

shareholder relurns.

Maxinnum value ol an LTIP award is 300% of basic salary which may
bein the form of performance sharas or marlel value options o7 a
combination of both.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Hose we intend to apply our

Remumneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2017

The following pages set oul haw the Committee intends to apply the Remuneraiion Poalicy during the Comning year.

Executive Directors’ Remuneration

Basic salaries
Basic salaries have been set at e follewing unchanged levels for the year cornmending § April 2007

Basic salary

Qirector . ) t
Chris Grigg 840,000
Lucinda Bell - £93.060
Charlas Maudsley U 8ab250
Timn Roberts 446,250

Annuat incentive awards

The maximum bonus opportunity tor Executive Directors remains al 150% of salary. The performance measures for the Annual Inceatwve awards
have heen selected o reflect a range of quantitative and qualitative goats that suppor! the Company s key sUralegic oljeciives. The performance
measures and weightings for the year commencing | Apnil 2017 will be: as follows:

Propariion of annual
Incenifve as a parcenlage

Measure o maxnum
Quantitative measures , ' . ) : 0%
’ Total property return relative to (PO [sector 1 ighted} ) £29%
Profit growth relative to budget . 8%
Qualitative measamres 20%
Right Places . - Progress on key projects including development 5%
Cuslomer Orientation ~ Company reputation with all stakeholders . 5%

Capital Eficiency ~ Execution of 1argeted acquisitions and disposals i '

=~ Progressaonsirengthening the dividend 5%
Experl People — _Promating an inclusive, performance driven cullure 5%
Individual objectives Performance against individual success factors ‘ 1%

The Committee has set targets for The quantitalive reasures and will disclose these in the 2018 Remuner ation Report as they are felt to be
commerdatly sensiiive. In assessing how the Executive Direclors performed during the year commencng 1 Apnt 2817, the Cormmittee walt take
into accoum their periermance against all of the measures and make an assessment in the round 10 epsure that performance warrants the
tevet of award delermined by the table above.

During the year, the Conmmittee considered whether the curcent invesiment Proper iy Databank BP0 benchmarks against whach the performance
of annual and long-term incentive awards is assessed were the most appropriate measures. Following discussion with the Committee’s adviser.
managament and sur own deliberations, the Commillea agreed that the sector weighted IPD March Annwal Universe benchmark which includes
sales, acquisitions and developments and so takes into account aclive asset rnanagement as well as being a more representative peer group,
would be most switable.

As a resull of this dedsion, from | April 2817, the disclosed performance against IPD metrics lor the annual incentive ptan wilt be based on IPD
eslimales. These estimates will be adjusted once the IPD March Annuat Universe data becomes available. No anawal ircenitve payments will
be made, ar LTIP awards granied. to Executive Direclors until the IPO March Annuat Universe data is available and the finai oui- turn known,
The linal awards under the annual incentive plan wilt be detailed in the next Remuneration Report. )

~
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Long-Term incentive awands

The first LTIP award under the new Remuneration Policy will be made to Executive Direciors during the year commencing 1 Apnl 2017 1tis
anlicipated thal the grani size of LTIP awands to be made in the year commancing 1 Agril 2017 will be 250% of salary for each Executive Director.
This is below the maximum available under the policy of 300% of salary approved by shareholdersiast year

The performance measures thal apply ko this, and any {uture. LTIP award will be a5 follows:

Measure Link ts strategy . Measured relative to . Weighting
Total Property Return [TPR) The TPR measure is designed lo TPR performance will be assessed against the " A0%
The change in capital value, link reward to skrong performance  performance of 2n IPD benchmark.

less any capitzl expenditure at the gross property level.

incurred, plus netincome. YPR

is expressed as a percentage

of capital employed over the

LTIP performance period and

is calculated by IPD.

Totat Accounting Return [TAR) The TAR measure is designed TAR will be measured retative to 3 comparator grnoup A0%
The growth in Brilish Land's . to link reward to performance consisting of the 17 largest FTSE property companies

EPRA NAV per share plus al the met property tevel that that use EPRA accounting linctuding British Landl.

dividends per share paid ovar takes accounl of g=aring and our

the LTIP performance period. distributions to shareholders.

Tatal Shareholder Return (TSR] The TSR measure is designed (o 50% of the TSR measure will be measured relative to 2%
The growth invalue of a British directly correlale reward with ihe the performanca of the FTSE 109 and 50% of the TSR

Land shareholding over the LTIP relurn delivered to shareholders. measure will be measured relative to the performance

perfermance period. assuming of a cumparaler group consisting of the 17 largest

dividends are reinvested to FTSE property companses 1hat use EPRA accounting

purchase addiional shares. . [including British Land],

Performance against the LTIP measures will be assessed over a period of three years. 100% ol the proponiien of the award attached to each
measure will vest if Brilish Land's performance is at teast at the upper guartile level. If performance against a measure is equal o the median,
20%. of the proportion atlached te that measure will vest and if performance is below median the proportion attached to that measure will lapse.
There will be straight-line vesling between median and upper guarlile performance for each rmeasure.

Chairman’s and Non-Executive Directors fees : :

'Fees paid to the Chairman and Nen-Fretutive Directors are positioned around the rnedian of our comparator groug of companies {FTSE 130
companies with broadly simitar market capitalisations to Bntish Land] with the aim of attracling individuals with the appropriate degree of experlise
and experience. The {ee struclure sel oul below was adopted at the 2016 AGM and no changes are proposed for the year commencing 1 Aprl 2017,

Chairman’s anpual fee £369.340
Non-Executive Direclor's annual lee £61.000
Senior Independent Birector's annual lee £10.000
Audil Comraatlee or Remuneration Committee Chairman’s annual fee E20.00e

" Audit Commitlee or Remuneration Commiltee member’s annual fee £8.000
£4,000

Mornination Committee member s annual fee
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REMUNERATION REPORT. ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

How we applied our Remuneration Policy
during the year ended 31 March 2017

The fnilumi;\g pages set out how we implemanted the Direclors’ Remuneration Policy during the year ended 31 Manth 2017 and the remunerabion
received by sach of Lhe Directors.

Single total figure of remuneration (audited information)
The foltgwing tables detail all elements of remunaration receivable by Britich Land's Directors ia respect of the year endad 31 Macch 2017 and show
comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2006,

Other
femsinthe  Pensionor
Tamble nature of pefish A {  long
- Salaryfives benefits ¥ ation | incenty incentives Total
M7 077 am7? my m? 7 2017
Chris Grigy B4g 23 14 298 18 56 1945
Lucinga Bell - 493 23 13 78 245 153 1,005
Charles Maudstey &46 23 13 67 23t 147 - 947
Tim Robers 448 23 12 85 222 167 957
2016 i3l 200 2016 2015 ma? 2006
. 000 e 1] 000 jarL:} £0UD 600 £000
Chris Grigg 840 21 13 294 840 1575 3.622
Lucinda Bell 493 21 8 . 82 410 693 1.727
Charles Maudstey £L4 22 17 &7 - 410 Big 1.780
Tizn Roberts 448 21 19 - 106 408 87 1.811

* The LNIP awards granted to Executive Direclorsin June 2014 will vast on 23 June 2017, These L.IP awards are expected 1o lapse in full. The MSP awards granted
to Execwiive Threciors in June 201 will vest on 30 June 2017, The TSR elernent of the 2014 award s cxpected inlaysem full whilz the GIG element is expectad 1o vest
ab 1003, Full details, including details of the petformance condilions, are set oul on page 8.
? The LTIP awsards granted to Executive Direclorsin June 2013 vested on 5 August 2016. These LTTP awands were subject o the same perforvnance conditions as Ue
L awards granted in 2014 {se= page 811, in the 2014 Annual Report, we disclosed that the TPR element of the 2013 LTIP award was expecied o vest at 693 while
the TAR elemenl was expected lo vest at £4%_The achual vesling percentages were conlirmed in July 201635 59% for TPR and 43.7% for TAR. The 2016 comparative
numnbers set outin the abGve table refiect the actual vesting values of the regd the estivnated g values disclosed in the 2014 Annual Report. The MSP
awards granted to Executive Direclors in June 2013 vested on 2 Augusl 2014 These MSPmrdsmsnb}equo Ihe same performance conditions as the MSP awards
" granted in 2014 {see page 811, As disclosed in the 2018 Arnuat Report, the TSR elemenl of the 2013 award did ot vest while the 616 element was expecied lovest a3
100%. The vesling percenlage lor the GIG element vwas conflimned by the Comritize in July 2016, In the 2015 Annual Report the share price [or the period 1 January
10 31 March 2016 was used. This has now been replaced by the actual price on the date ol vesting.

Fees Taxable benefits® Telal

: 2017 ' 2006 n1? 2015 017 206
Chairman and Not-Execitive Directers £000 000 foo0 €000 €oap £000
John Gildersieeve {Chairmanl 369 349 49 &0 418 £29
Aubrey Adams &9 68 - - ) 4% 48
Simon Borrovs &9 58 - - &9 48
Lynn Gladden - £ &7 1 1 70 &8
Wiltiam Jackson 87 70 - — 87 70
Lord Macpherson' 17 - ~ - 17 -
Timn Score 89 88 - 1 8y B9
Lord Turnbull 89 97 ~ - a9 97
Laura Wade-Gery &9 &4 ~ — &9 44

7 Taxable benefils include the Chatrman's chaufleur cost and expenses incurred by other Non-Executive Direclors. The Cornpany provides the tax gross up on these
benetits and the ligures shown above are the grossed up values.
* Lord Macphersanwas appointed as a Director on 19 December 2004,
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Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table
Executive Directors

Fixed Pay faudited information}

Taxable benefits: Taxable benefits indlude car allowance. private medical insurance and subswdsed gym membership. The Company provides the
tax gross-up on subsidised gym membership for employees and the figures induded on Lhe peevicus page zre the grossed up values.

Other items iv the nature of remuneralion include lile assurance, permanent health insurance, annuat medical check-ups, professional
subscriptions. the value of shares awarded under the all-employee Share incentive Pian and any notional gain on exercisz fer Sharesave oplions
that matured during the year. During the year ended 31 March 2017 there were no maiuritizs of Sharesave awards held by £xecutive Directors.

Pensions: Neither Chris Grigg nor Charles Maudstey participatz in any British Land pension plan and instead receive cash allowances of 35% and
15% of basic salary respectively in lieu of pension. For the year endzd 31 March 2017, these payments amounled te 294,000 for Chris Grigg and
£65 938 lor Chartes Maudslzy. ' .

Lucinda Bell and Tim Roberts are bath members of the British Land defined benefil pension scheme. The lzble below datails the defined benefit
pensions accrued 2t 31 March 2007

Defined benefit

pensionaooruedat - Normat
31 March 2017 retirement

Lucinda Bell . 105 &0
Tun Roberts .. _ ! 86 &0
! The aocrued pension is hased on service (o the year end and knal penstonable salary at thal date.
There are no additional benefits that wiil become receivable by a Director in the event that a Director relires garly.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

. Variable Pay

Annual Incentive

The Level of Annual Incentiee sward is determinad by the Comanittes based on Brilish Land's performanta and sach indivitlual Exeanive Birecior’s
performance against their individual tergets during the year. For the year ended 31 March 2017 the Commiliee’s assessment and sicomes are 521
ol below.

Ranga of performance
Betwaan 252 and 190%,
. 00 pap-on
f}lﬂ#m ﬁﬂ?ﬁnmm hisk Gutcsme
pay-qut above
R hﬁmmx in tine with this maxEmurmn ashef A
Quantitstive Measimes Weighting pain) expactaiions] pay-oulpoin]  Qutcome  salary  Performnance achicved agi v e
4000 690% - Target range of matching sedior weighited tdex
Untevered to outpertorming it by 1. Capital growth of -1.0%,
Pmpertycggtal 14% [ outparformeng weighied PO Index by Hbps; Retad
returnvs | operfarmed by 40 nd Offoes oupertormad
Property - by ihps thewr sachor mvdsons
retuTRs 367% 550% - Vargetrange ol matching sector weighted Index
Totah o outpurforming it by ¥4, Toldt property return of
lﬂun‘:sw.l 5% 9 3.3% outperkormning veighted D Index by 20bps.
Ragadl ouiperinrmead by &6ps and Offioes enatched
" Tolal accounti 0.00% DOD% - Targetvranoe of medianto top rank. Tolad accounting
i retymvs tmg wh @ retum of 279, below the estimated median of the
PrOZRny maprs property majors by Jlaps
‘0005 0.0p% - Targelrange of matthing the sector weighted
Index to outperforming it by 1%. ERV growth of
et rgroeth uh @ 1.4 underperiorming weighted IPD kndex by 30 prs;
. Raiail cutperinemad its sactor by 70bps, Offices
underparioomed by Vilps
- Targei vangeof matching i idget to ouiper furming
Yrdertyind  orofitvs B00% 1200% Y3 Sgwhcantmargn. Prok materially shead of
performance Svdgel % ® - - budget This target is commestially sensitive so has
nizl heen disdosed)
Sub-total 0% Sub-total 15.67% 23.50%
’ Cualitative Measires : Pert P——
. S00% 750% - Contractsexchangesinr Thel Brallting
Progress on - Gale of 334 ~ 338 Dehenhams siore bvalue £400m,
!‘apa?iec'-" Chiswick and Croydon Sanshry's
1 _ .
Rignt dﬁ;ﬁ:?ﬂ - ] l‘:limmg:v;:z;at Blassom Street, Eden Walk,
Places and Execution 3% ngston 5106 signad .
of largeted . - Planning for Meadonihail subrnitiest and 3 Triton SGuare
ac vigilions - Progress on Canada Water vision and plan
disposals - - Clarges B0% tai W00 Liverpool Stres! redevalopment
started on site
Company 250% 37%% -G isdatiion score Miintaived at 8 1/10
repulation with - Maimained inclusion in ot b targal £56 indices
Customer 3 sikeholders, {Dow Jomes Sustainabiity Indices 2016 Woatd and
Orientation  degivery of "3 5% Euwrope. FTSEAGov binfex 2018 2nd GRESB 2014
suslainabity - - Sigrificant footfall anvd sates oulheriarmance
objectives of benchmarks by just over 200bps
Progress of 2 175% ‘Nwmﬁ“ﬁl Budge:
Capital strenglhening % 'j_ Fron of WAIR 3.1}
- the dimdend: 5%
Efficiency  ang Execution of vswagespmadmsumratemw
debt linancings
. ‘ 250% 3.75% - Recruitrnest of Head of Campus Ragams Place,
Buality ol . Orector of Laasing. Birector of Marketing, HR Diretigr
CExpert  peopleand 5o . : - Best Companies Gne foWaich
People vl . - One of the lirst FTSE 108 companies 1o ivreduce
Paid Shared Parental Leave
Sub-total 20% Sub-totat 12.50% 18.75%
Guantitative and qualitative  28.17% 42 75%
individual Measures 10% 500%  750%'
Total 33.17% £%.75%
T QOut of the 10% apportunity the C d \he individual conlnibution against a series of preset objectives cdosely alighad to the qualitate measures sel

out in the table abave. The Cormmittee deterrined that the level o award woudd be 7.30% of basic salary for each Exacutive Birector excepl lor Charles Maudsley
who received an additienal 2% of basic salary reflecting his personal performance and that of the Retail husiness,
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Lang-term incentives {audited information}

The information in the long-tarm incenthves colurmn i the single Lotal figure of remuneration Lable [see page 78! retates to vesting of awards granied
undar the following schemes, inctuding, whera agplicable, dividend equivalent payments on those swards and interesi acorued on those dividend
equivalents. :

Long-term incentive PlaniLTiP] |

The awards grantad (o Executive Directors on 23 June 2014_ angd which will vest on 23 June 2017, ware subject (o lwo equally weighled performance
conditions over the three year period to 31 March 2017 The firs! measured British Land's TPR refative to the funds in the December iPD UK Annual
Property Index {the Indax), while the second measured TAR relative \o a comparaior group of British Land and 14 ather property companies.

The TPR element is expected to vest at (% based on Brittsh Lang's adjusted TPR of 10_7% compared to the funds inthe Index of 10.9% The TAR
" element is expacted to vest at 0%. The acluat vesting rate of the TAR elemant can anly be calcutaled once resslts have been published by alt

of the companies within the comparator greup. The actual percentage vesting will be conlirmed by the Commiltee in due course and included
inthe 2018 Remuneration Report,

Estanatedvalue Estimeatend divedand

FHuemiver of parformance of sy an vesting eguivalent and interes!

Execttive Birecos hipoes goanded in 2084 ) £080 ' o000

Chris Grigg ‘ 233.804 /] 0

Lucinda Bell . 135.898 (] (]

Chartes Maudsley L 125,208 0 B

. Tim Roberts . 124 208 0 . 0
Matching Share Plan [MSP]

_The perfesnance conditions for the MSP Matching awards granted on 30 June 2014 were [il TSR relative to a comparaltor group of British Land and 14
other proparty companies and [iif Brilish Land’s gross income growth (GIG] relative (o the IPD Guarterly Universe [the Universel. These performance
conditions are equalty weighted. The M5P Matching awards will vest on 30 Junz 2017, .

Acn Hewilt has confirmed thal the TGR element of the sward will not vest as British Land's TSR performance gver the pered was 1.9% compared to
amedian of 12.7% for the camparater group. The GIG part is expecied lo vest at 100% as Bnitish Land's annualised GIG over the period is expecied

_ o exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper hurdte of 1.5%. As a result, 50% of the MSP Matching awards granted in June 204 is
expected to vest. As disclesed for the 2014 LTIP above, the actual percentage vesting wilt be confirmed by the Committee and included in the 2018
Rernuneration Report.

Estimated value Estimaied dividand

. Mumber of Malching ol awerd on vesting eqpsvalent
Executive Birecior . Shares awarded i 2014 . €000 £000
Chris Grigg 111 766 309 47
LucindaBell ‘ 43814 . 123 20
Charles Maudsley 47.584 145 »
Tim Roberts ) 47,584 . 145 2
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Share scheme interests awnarded during the vear (audited information)

LTip . :

The fot2l vaive of cach Executive Director's LITP award for the year anded 31 March 2017 was equivatent to 200% of basic satary al granl. At grant
each Darecinr can mwdicale 3 preference a5 1o the proportion of the award that they wish 10 Tereive a5 sither peylermance sheres of market value
options. The share price used to determine the face value of performance shares and the fair velue of opitons. and thereby the number of
performance shares or opions awardad_is lhe average over the three daaling days immediately prior to the day o award. For the award granted
on 22 June 2016, s share price was 730.5 pence. The pedlormance condibions altached to these aemrds are identical to those for the awards
granied in 2014 which veslin Junz 2017 2nd are sel oul on page 51

Performance shares

Percentage vesting on
Number of Face vat End ol thievernent «f minimamn
pevtormance Fatevalue  performance parfenmance thrashold
Expcutive Director Grant date shares granted €900 perol  Veshog date . %
Chris Grigg Z2/042016 733973 1680  3RISF01F  22/06/201% 25
Lucinds Ball 22/046/2016 136976 985 3OYAOE  Z204/201% 25
Cherles Maudsley 22/0612016 122176 892 /IS 7242017 25
Tim Roberis 22/046/2016 4£).088 £46 AT 200400819 25

Market Value Options.
Number - End ol achievament of mantmum
of gplins  Facevaluz Fairvelue Exarciseprice  perforvnance perfermance thresheld
Expcutive Digednr Gramd dalz granied wohn [ari) pence period Vipsting date . %
TimRoherts . 72/04/2016 744,353 1.785 &46 7305 3132019 2206/2019 . 2

! Ophm_mmﬁydwdllaﬁﬂhdalmmdme face value of 3 pertormance shara
MSP .
The MSP awards made to Execulive Diraclors in June 2016 were the final awards which would be made under this Plan.

The total lace value of the MSP Matching Share award granted to each Execulive Director was equat to two-thinds of their gress annual incentive
award in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016. The share price used 1g determine the number of Malching Shares awarded was 599.4 pence,
being the market vatue of the Company’s shares on the day the propertion of the ahnual incentive was defered.

Matching Shares

Number of ' Perceniage vesling on
Percentage Matching Ered of achrevement of minitum
. of basic Shares Facevalue performance - performance threshold

Execulive Birector Award date salary awarded nos period  Vasting date i
Chris Grigg 29/0512016 &% 96.718 260 3320 29004219 25
Lucinda Bell . 29M08/2016 55% 47.206 273 31032019 T506/201% 25
Charles Maudsley 29/0672018 61% 47206 273 N30 29/04/2019 25
TimRoberts -~ 29/00/26)5 £0% 45,056 266 3M32NY_ 230L013 ' 25

The performance conditions altached to these awards are identical Lo those for the MSP awards vesting in June 2017 detailed on the previous page.
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Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited information)

Birectors’ shareholdings at 31 March 2017

The following table shows the Directors” interests in fully paid erdinary British Land shares including sharss hald by connacied persons and,
for Executive Direclors, inctuding MSP Bonus Shares and shares held in the Sharz Incentive Plan [SIP). Allimterests are benehaal.

. . Holding at Hanlding 21
Director ' I March 2017 38 March 2016
Chris Grigg : ] 1,257,358 LU0
Lucinda Bail I 226098 162,894
Charles Maudstey ' ] 230,383 159,887
Tim Roberts : 284714 173.042
John Gildersieeve ' 5,220 5220
Aubrey Adams . 30,000 20000
Simon Borrows . 300,000 300.000
Lynn Gladden 7.837 1.665
William Jacksan ) 123,858 120,304
Lord Macpherson! 2300 nfa
Tim Score ' 2415 12693
Lord Turnbull 21,258 20471
Laura Wade-Gery £,83 1,670

' Lord Macpherson was 2ppointes a5 2 Director on 19 December 2016 and purchased shares in the markat on 16 Mairch 2017,

Sharehalding guidelines
The minimum shareholding guldelmas require Exzcutive Direclors ta hold ordinary shares with a value equal te a sel percentage of salary.

There is no sel timescale for Exacutive Direclor to reach the prescribed target but they are expected to refain nel shares received on the vesling of
lang term incentive awards uniil the larget is achieved. Shares that count lowards the holding quideline are unferterad and benzficatly owned by the
Executive Directors and their connected persons. Deferred annusal incentive shares MS¥ Bnnus Shares, SIP matching, dividend and free shares
and all urvested awards do not cound towards the reguirement. .

The quidaline shareholdings for the year commencing 1 April 2017 are shown below:

Unisattered .
Guideline as hwlding as Tolal holdnyg as
percentage Unkettered pevcentage of Total a percentege
of basic Guideline holding sl basic solaryst  shareholdingatl of base salary at
Executive Dirvcter ’ salary hoiding' 31 Manch 2017 31 March 2017 I March 2017 31 March 20017
Chris Grigg . ! 225% 309.836 1176870 855% 1.252.368 NI%
Lucinda Bell ! 150% 121.230 1853805 231% 226,078 280%
Charles Maudsley 150%  109.734 190,589 261% 730.383 5%
Tim Roberts 150% 109.734 203,290 278% 284714 335%

! Calculated on a share price of 10 pence on 31 March 2017
! See Directors’ shareholdings lable above whichindude MSP Bonus Shares and 2l shares held in the SIP.

The shareholding quidelines for Executive Directors were last increased with effect from 1 April 2015 when the holding requirement for each Direcior
was increased by 25% of basic salary. The Commiitee continues to review the guidelines and the Directors’ sharehaldings.

Although there are no sharehalding guidetines jor Non-Execulive Directors, they are each encouraged to hold shares in British Land. The Company
facilitates this by offering Mon-Executive Directors the ability to purchase shares quarterly using their post-tax fees. During the year ended 31 March
2017, Lynn Gladden, Wiliam Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery have each recewed shares infull or part satisfaclion of their
Non-Executive Direciors’ fees.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Acquisitions of ordinary shares after the ysar end
The Executive Directars have purchased or been granted the following halty paid on:ﬁnarv British Land shares under ﬂ\e tesms of the parinership,
matchig and drvidend slements of the Share lacentive Plan:

i

Date o]
purchasear  Purchase Parinership Maiching Dividend
Executive Director award price shares shares shares
Chric Grigy 1Bf0sS 2007 554774 23 £ .

’ D505/2017 £5897% ¥

S0S/26Y7 - 672678 0 Ah

Lucinda Bell . 18042007 648274 23 (1]
' 05/05/2017 S5B974 %3

. 15/05/2017 872674 22 45

Charles Maudstey WBI0L/7017 B4 274 24 43
. 05052017 838974 T

VHO2017 472674 22 44

Tin Roberts . : afassmv 6442745 23 46
a5M%2017 658975 18

150542017 8712674 22 44

In addibon, on 3 Apnl 2077, the following MNon-Executive Directors were allotted shares at a pnca of 6§61 pence per share i fulf or part satisfaciion of
their fees:

. : Shares

Non-Executive Director . Alosted

Lynn Gladden ) 7 1.883

Whltiam Jackson . . 3643

Tim Score : ' - - 2999

Laura Wade-Gery &1
Unvested share awards

Numbar
cutstanding ~ Subjectio Endof
ai 31 March perforrrance parformhante

Executive Director Date ol grant 2017 measures period' Vasting date

Chris Gngg LTIP performance shares ‘ . 23/08/14 233,804 Yes J1A03/17 2304017

' LTIP performance shares 220805 154949 Yes /03NB 2270618

LTI perlormance shares . 22{us/18 229979 Yes 3169 22/06/19

MSP Matching Shares I8N 101,766 Yes 3037 30/M6S7

MSP Malching Shares 29/08/15 94,348 Yes IW03/18  29Mslw

MSP Matching Shares 0616 96,718 Yes 303119  29M0&6N9

Lucinda Bell LTIP perfermance shares ' 2364 135.898 Yes V0317 23M&M7

: LTIP perforrance shates 22f06/15 120254 Yes 31/M3/\8  22/068

LT gerformance shares G616 136976 Yes 31/83/\9 2200609

MSP Matching Shares IS4 43815 Yes 3W03/V  3D/osN7

MSP Malching Shares | . 290615 40,950 Yes 231/03/18  29/0418

MSP Matching Shares __ B 47206 Yes  3W03INT 29619

Chartes Maudsley LTIP performance shares 23064 124 208 Yes IWO3/17  23/0417

LTiP performance shafes 2288415 | 109756 Yes 310318 22/04/18

LTIP performante shares ' UMW 22T Yes V03N 2206N9

MSP Matching Shares 30/0514 47584 CYes  3/03N7  30/06N17

MSP Malching Shares 2906415 44228 Yes 3WO3NB  29/0&/1B

MSP Malching Shares . 29508416 42,206 Yes  31/03A19  2906/1%

Tirn Roberts LTIP gerfgrinance shares 2270604 124208 Yes 3103/17 230417

LTIP performance shares 226115 109.754 Yes 30318 2200618

LTIP performance shares . . 22081% 61.088 Yes 0319 2206N19

MSP Matching Shares ' 30/06/14 47584 Yes 310317 300417

MSP Malching Shares Z9%abf15 §6.682 Yes 310318 29/04/18

MSP Malching Shares 2900616 44,056 Yes  31/03/19_ 29/0612

! The L TIP and MSP awards granted in June 2004 are also included within the “2017 Long lerm incentives” columnn of the single folal figure of remuneration table on
page 78. The degree to which pesforspance measures have been, or are expected o be, achieved, and the resutlant wupomuns of the awands thal are expecled (o vest,
are detailed on page 81
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Unvested option awards [not avaitable to be exercised]

Rhemnber

outianding Subpal i End of Data
. at 31 March Dmmpm:e parfarmance perfamance beromas  Erendsable
Expoutive Diredtor ’ Date #d grant e TREARANTS parod’  ererasabiz unil-
ChiisGrigy LTIP epiicns 22/06415 204,592 B245 Yes 310318 22/061\8  22/05425
Lutinda Boll Sharesave oplions 23/04fi4 13587 LY/ %] No nfa  0VOIYT  28/0218
Sharesave options 2206015 1,291 4970 Mo nfa  OLB9N8  28/0219
Tim Roberis ’ Sharesave aptions 19/66N3 2348 sng No nfa ' 0YOYNE 28219
Sharasave oplions 23108114 3135 250 No nfa  OU0SHY 23040
LTIP options 2206016 248353 7305 Yes 33T 22/060\9 2306126
Yested option awands (available to be exercised)
Number
- N i g - - S
238 March Option pricz  Exercesable
Execulive Diredor Date of grant 2017 pehce untd
Chis Grigg LTIP options 29/06409 7751 87 2900817
L¥iP options AL 1073825 447  NWONH
LTIP oplions 286N 695,652 S5 28042
LTIP oplions 1470%/12 743,694 538 140022
Ludnda Belt LTIP oplions Nnouw &7.952 447  Nf0&f20
LTIP oplions 1412010 .76 N0 Whya
LTIP options 148092 138,289 538 14/G9/22
L.TIP oplions 05/88/13 154,742 £01  05/08/23
Other disclosures
Service contracts N
All Fxecutive Direclors have rolling service contracls with the Company which have noltice perreds of 12 months on either side [D.15)©.
The letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are subject to renewal on a triennial basis.
Normal notice Normatl notice
Date of serwe period lo be given penod to be given
Director contract by Company by Director
Cheis Grigg 19/12/2008 12 anonths 12 months
Lucinda Bell 10/83/2011 12 months 12 months
Charles Maudsley 032009 12 manths 12 tnonths
Tun Roberts 14112006 12months 12 months
Unexpired tarm
of appointmant at
Director 31 March 2017
John Gildersleeve {Chairman] 21 months
Aubrey Adams 5 months
Sanonh Borraws® 36 months
Lynn Gladden . 12 months
William Jackson' 1 month
Lord Macpherson 32 months
Tim Score 36 manths
Lord Tumbuli? 12 months
Laura Wade-Gery 13 months

' On 23 March 2017 the Board approved ihe renewal of William Jackson's appointment for a harther three year term, effective from 13 Apnil 2017,
* Sirnon Borrows and Lord Turnbull will both retire from the Board at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.

In accordance wilh the Code. all continuing Directors stand lfor eleclion or re-eleclion by the Company's shareholders on an annual basis [B.711©.
The Directors’ service contracts and letiers of appointenent are available for mspecuon duning normal business hours at the Company’s registered

office and will also be made available prior to the AGM [B.3.2)€.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

The Company may terminale an Txecutive Director’s appoiny t with & diate effact without notice or payment in lieu o notice under certain
circumstances, presoribed within each Dicector’s service centract. The appsintment of the Chatrman or any Non-Exaastive Oirectar may be
iertninated immediately without nolice if they are not reappainted by shareholders or if thay are removed irom the Board under the Company's
Articles of Association or il they resign and de nal ofier themselves lor re-election. in addition, thesr appointments may be termenated by cither
the individual or tha Company giving three months writien notice of lermination lor, for the Chairman, six months’ written nelice of termination].
Neither the Chairman nor the Non-Executive Direciars are eniitled to any compensatien {other than 2carued and unpaid fees and expenses for
the period up to the lermination] for loss of office fur a2y reasen.

Executive Directors’ external appointments
£xecutive Directors may take up ane non-exscutive directorship at anothec FT5£ company. suliject to British Lavd Board approval.

Chris Grigg was appainted a non-executive direcior of BAE Systems pte on 1 uly 2013. During the year 16 31 March 2017, Chris Grigg received z fee

of £84 000 fincluding £2.000 of exp } frosn BAE Syst pic. which he retained in full 2014: £84 £95). Lucinda Ball was appuinted a non-execulive
director of Rotoek plc on 10 July 2014, During the year to 31 March 2817, Ledinda Bell received 3 fee of £47230 from Roterk plc, which she retained in : !

full {2016: £43.6258 D121 .

Relative importance of spend en pay
The graph below shows the amourit spent or remunaratien of all employees fincluding Exaculive Qirectors] retzlive lo the 2mount spent on
distributions to shareholders for the years ta 31 Manch 2017 and 31 March 2016. The remuneration of employees increased by 2.5% relative to the

prioryear. while distibubions to shareholders inareased by 3.1%. Qistributions to shareholdars include ordinary and. wheve ofiered, scrip dridends.

No scrip alternative was olfered during the year ended 31 March 2017 The graph also shows the split between proparty income distributions IPHD)
and non-propenty income distributians nan-PIE).

Refative myportance of spend on pay Remuneration of emptoyees Oistribulions o sharsholders:
) including Diracters: B PID cash dividends paid
2016417 Ny oo . B Wages and salaries g shareholders
£296m Annuat Incentives B PID tex withhelding
B Social securitycosts B Mon-PID cash dividends
201516 [ Fii)] @Bim B Pension costs paid to sharehaiders
I BN o7 M Equily-setiled share-based B Net cash equivatent of new
payments shares issued under 2D
Scrip dividends
Totat Shareholder Return ang Chief Executive’s remuneration Tota! Shoreholder Return

The graph oppasite shows British Land's Totet Shareholder Retwrn tor Rebased to 100, 1 April 2607
the eight years from 1 Agril 2007 to 31 March 2017 against that of the

FTSE Real Estate lnvestment Trusts [REIT) Total Return index for the 00

same period. The graph shows how the total relurn on a £100 investment

in the Company made on t Aprit 2009, would have changed over the

eight year period measured, compared with the total retuim on a £100 ) /I
fnvesiment in the FTSE REIT Totat Return index. The FTSE REIT Total 308 i

Return Index has been selected as a suitable comparator because it

is the index in which British Land's shares are classified. %

N
[
/

The base point. required by the regulations governing Remuneration 200 // »
Report disclosures, was close lo the boltom of the preperty cycle at / Q /
1 April 2009. Since British Land’s share price had not fallen as much /

as the average share price of the FTSE REITs Sector at that ime a

higher base point for subsequent grawih was set.

The Iable below sels oul the tolal remuneration of Chris Grigg. Apd March  Math  Morch  Math ek Mandh Mach Mok

Chief Executive, over the same period as the Total Shareholder
Raturn graph, The quanturn of Annual Incentive awards granted
each year and long lerm incentive vesting rales are given asa
perceniage of the maximumn opportunity available,

W The Brtish Land Company PLC B FTSE REITs Sector
Source: Aon Hewtt

oce 0 0n 2 o3 s fri =Y ;s a7

Chiet Execytive 200910 2000/1) 20012 m2/13 2013/15 201/15 20151 208617

Chief Executive’s single total ligure

of remuneration [E060) ' ) 2082 2329 5353 4810 5398 459 3.623 1945

Annuat incentive awards against

maximun opportunity (%) : &7 83 75 75 90 96 &7 13

Long term incentives awards vesting
rate against maximum opportunity 1% nfa nfa 99 63 98 93 54
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Chisf Executive’s remuneration compared to remuneration of Britich Land employees

The table below shows the percaniage changes in dilferent elesnents of the Chial Execulive’s remuneration relative ta ihe previous fnancial
year and the average percentage changes in these elements of remuneration for amployees based at Bnlish Land's head office aver the
same period. Head office employees have been chosen as an appropriate comparasior group for this purpose as employees besedat
British Land’s haad office carry out work of the mosi similar nature o the Chief Executive.

. . feocage change

Valoe of Valua of Chind Change in TA FEfapha o

Chief Executive Exarutie Chizl Exacutive of British Land

remuneralion 2017 remuneration 2016 remuveration anpleyees

Remuneration element €000 L] % %
Salary ) . B840 840 Y 5.4
Taxabla benefits =} 2 109 153
Annual incentive . . 418 B40 -50.2 154

Remuneration Committee mefmbership

Membership of the Committes remained enchanged during the year and, as at 31 March 2017, the Committae was comprised wholly of indepandent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Lynn Gladden, William Jackson, Laura Wade-Gery and Lord Turnbull. Altendance by each memher 21 Committee
meetings is set out on page 73.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Commitize mastings ware attended by Chris Grigg [Chief Fxeculive), Flaine Willizms [Company Seoretary
and General Counsell, Ann Henshaw [HR Director] and Jolf Sharpe (Head of Operations), ather than lor any ilem relating to their own remunarabon.

The Committee Chairman holds regular meztings with the Chairman, Chief Executive and HR Directar 1o discuss all aspects of remuneralion
within British Land. He also meets the Committee’s independent remuneralion advisers prior 1o each subistantive meeting to discuss matlers
of governance, remuneration policy and any concerms they may have.

How the Committee dischargéd its respensibilities during the year
in addition to the Cammitter's key areas of responsibility, during the yaar endad 31 March 2017, the Comnmiltee also considered the
lollawing matiers:

- Reviewing and recommending to the Board the Remuneration Report to be presented for shareholder approval

- Consultation wilth major invesiors and deliberation of oulcomes in relation lo amendments io the LTIP

- Appraisal of the Chairman’s annual fee; remunaration of the Executive Direciors including achievement of corperate
and individual performance; and pay and annual incentive awards below Board-leval

~ Analysis of competitors’ refauneration structue and oulcomes

- Setting performance measwres for annual incentive awards

- Granting discrelionary share awards, considering the extent to which performance measures have heen mai and,
where appropriate, approving the vesting of annual incentive and long-term incentive awards

- Reviewing and updaling the Cornmittee (erms of reference

- Considering gender pay and future regorting requirements

- Recenving updates and training on corporate governance ang remuneration matters from the independent
remuneration consultant

- Reviewing ant lendering the rote of independent advizer ta the rnmmum
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED-

Remuneration consultants (D218

Alan Judes provided independent remeneration advice lo the Commilles prior to August 2015 when his inm, Strategic Renmuneration, marged

with 1T Remunaration Consuliants LLP. Fotlowing ihe manger, the Cemmites receivad independent resmunacatinn advice trom F{T Remuneration
Consubiants LLP. The serged firt is 3 member of the Remuneration Consultants Group znd adheres to thal group’s Code of Conduct. Sirategic
Remuneration and ST Remuneration Consultznts LLP alse provide advice to British Land on human resources and share plan matiers. Siralegic
Remuneration was appoinied as remuneration adviser by the Committes Inllowing a campeditive tender process. The Commiltee assasses the advice
given by its advisers to satisly itself that it is objective and indepentdent. The adviser has 2 private mesting with the Committee Cheirmman once a year
in actordance with tive Code of Conduct of the Remuneraiion Consyliants Group. Fees, which are charged on 3 tine basis, were £126.755 (extiuding
VAT] 2016: £48.400 excluding VATL.

With effect from 2§ March 2017, Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited were appointad to provide indapendent remunaration advica to the Committee.
Kom Ferry Hay Group hrmled did nok charge any Tees for the peried from their appointovent to 31 March 2017

Voling at the A L General Meeti
The resulls of the shareholder votes on the Directors’ Remunaration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration Report st the AGMheld on 17 July 2016
are set out in the table batow.

" Resolution Votes for Shbor  Volesagenst Uaganst Tollvoescrst  Volesvathheld
Approval of Directors’ Remuneration Repori 11‘5.“3,263 V%.Il‘l 29.690.657 359 T4 B03 920 11,784.372
Qp_rtwél of Uireciors Remuneration Policy T2F144 638 9713 21,895,166 287 748,628 804 7289489

This Rernuneration Report was approvad by the Board on 16 May 2017,

William Jackson
Chairmman of the Remuneration Commitlee
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DIRECTORS” REPGRT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors’ Report and additional disclosures

The Directors prasent their Reporl on the afiairs of the Group, tegeiher
with the audited linannial stataments and the report of the auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2017. Information that is relevant to this Repart,
and which is incorporaied by reference, including inlormation required
in accordance with the UK Companies Act 2006 and Lisling Rule 9.8.4R,
can be located in the following sections:

Infarmation Setion n Anmsal Repart Page
Future developments of the Strategic Report st025
business of ihe Company

Risk factors and principal risks Strategic Report 441053
Finanaat instryments - Sirateqic Report 43
risk rnanagement ohjectives

ang policies

Dividends Strategic Report 41
Sustainability governance Sirategic Report 38
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report 38
Viahility statement Slrategic Report 49
Gaing concemn statemneant Gavernance review [
Governance arrengemenls Governancereview 471088
Ernployment policies and Strategic Reporl 241085
employee involvement

Capitatised interest Finandal statements 11510 114
Additional unaudited Other information 16010 173
financial information unaudited

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annual General Meeting of The British Land Company PLC will be
held ai The Hyatt Regency London — The Churchill, 30 Portman Square,
Lendon W1H 78H on 18 july 2017 ai 11.60am. Further information is
available in the Notice of AGM [E 2 41 @,

The AGM 35 the principal occasion when shareholders are able o
ask questions of the Board and main Committee chairmen [E.2.3)@.

Board of Directors

The names and biographical details of the current Direciors and
details of the Board Commitlees of which they are members, are
sel oul on pages 56 Lo 59.

The Service Agreements of the Executive Directors and the Letiers
of Appoiniment of the Non-Executive Directer s are summarised

in the Oirectors’ Remuneration Report on pages 8%and 86 and

are available for inspection al the Company’s registered oflice.

In accordance with best praclice, all continuing Direclors will
retire at the AGM and will offer themselves for election or
re-eleclion. as required.

Directors’ interests in contracts and conflicts

of interest

Mo contract existed durng the year in retabon to the Compay’s
business wn which any Director was matenzity mieresiad.

Directors have a statutory duty to avoid sitealions an which they
hava, or may have, interests that conflict with those of British Land
unless that condlicl is first autherised by the Board. The Company
has adoplad procedures for managing conflicis of interest and the
Articles of Association alse contain provisiors whech allow the
Directors to authorise potential cenflicts of interast.

Directors must notily the Chainman and twe Company Seaelary of

all new outsida interests and achial or peroeived condlicts of interast
as they arise. New interesks or conflicts are considered by the full
Boerd at the next meeting and the full register of interesis is reviewed
alleast annuatly. Furthermore, the Board revisws the policy on
Directors interests on an annual basis. Following the last review

in November 2014, the Board concluded that the policy continued

o operate effectively.

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has indemnified each Direclor against any bahility
incurred in relation to acts o omissions arising in the ordinary
course of thair duties. The indemnity arrangesnents are qualifying
indemnity provisions under the Companies Act 2005.

The Company also has in place apprapriate Directors” and Officers’
Liability msuranca cover in respect of potential legal action against
its Directors [A1.316€.

Share capital

The Company has one class of shares, being ordinary shares of

25 pence each, all of which are fully paid_ At 31 March 2017 therz
ware 1,041,035 058 ordinary shares in issue. Further details relating
to share capital, including movements during the year, are sel out

in note 20 1o the financdial Statemenls.

At the AGM in 2014, the Direclors were givan the power by the
shareholders to make market purthases of erdinary shares representing
up to 10% of ils issued capital at that time and to altot shares within
cerlain imils. These authonities will expire al the AGM in Juty 2017

and renewals of those authorities will be sought.

The Company has riol purchased any of its own shares under the authonly
given at the 2016 AGM. Therelore, during the wihole of the year ended
31 March 2017, the Company held 11,265,245 ordinary shares in treasury.

‘Waiver of dividends

Blest Limited is a shareholder who acts as trustee [Trustee] of the
Company’s discretishary Employee Share Trust [ESTL. The EST hotds -
and, frorn tima to time, purchases British Land ordinary shares in the
markel, {or the benefit of employees, including to satisly outstanding
awards under the Company's varicus employee share plans. A dividend
waver is in place from the Trustee in respect of 3l dvidends payatle
by the Company on shares which it holds in trust.
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Govertasnes

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Substantial interests

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had been notfied under the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules IDTR 5) of the fallmmng ineresis |
in its ondinary shares:

Parteniage

m of
andinary sharesasa
shares 3t March 2007
Blackmck, Inc. 86,222.39% 83713
Norges Bank 51.439.045 &975
APG Assel Management NV SLh2178 5973
GIC Private Limited 41,121,137 3993

No dhanges 16 the above ifermation were received during the peciod from
T April 2017 to the dale of signing this Report. Noiifications made to Brilish
tand under DTR S are ble an the | 5 section of our websita.

Articles of Association
Fhe Company's Articies of Assaciation may only be amendad by special
resclution at a general meeting of shareholders.

Subject 10 applicable iaw and the Company’s Articles of Assodialion,
the Direclors may exercise all powers of the Company.

Significant agreements :
There are no significant agreements to which the Company is party that
take effect_ alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company.

Payvments policy

We recegnise the imparlance of good supplier relationships ta the
averall success of our business., We manage dealings with suppliers
in a fair, consisten{ and iransparent and have signed up to
the UK Government's Prompt Payment Code.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no repartable events after Lhe balance sheet date.

Political doaations -
The Company made no political donations during the year [2018: nil).

Health and Safety

We have retained lormal recognition of aur locus on haalth and salety
thriugh a successliyl audit of gur OHSAS 18001 acoreditation, We continue

10 improve our approach to health and safely management 1o ensyre thal

we consistently achieve best practice across all aclivities in the business
fconstruclion, managed porttobia and head office] to deliver Places People
Praler lo our employees and our customers.

RIDDOR? Year ended 31 March 2017

Total RIDDOR .
Accidents Artident Frequency Rale
@7 s @7 Al

Conslruction 2 3 0.08 034 per 100 000
R . haurs worked
fetatt 20 23 0.0% om per 100,000
. footfall
Offices 8 & 2151 885 per 199,000
workers
Head Office [ 0 0 1] per 100,000
fult time
equivalems

* Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerows Gecurrences Regutations 2013,
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Anditor and disclosure of information
Each of the Directors at the date of approval of this Report confirms that:

~ sofar as the Direcior s sware. there is no relevant audil wlormalk
that has not been brought ko the attention of the auditor and

~ the Director has taken all reasonsble sieps to make himseli/
herself aware of any refevant audit infosmabon and lo establish
such inferraalion was provided to the auditor

PuC has indicaied its willingness to remainan offite and, on the
recommendation of the Audit Commities. a resolulion lo reappoint,
PwC as the Comparny's auditor will be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

The Company confitms that it has complied with The S y Audit
Servites for Large © ies Market bwestigation [Mandatery Use
of Compenlive Processes and Avdii Committez Respansibilities)

“Order 2014 JAsticle 71, published by the CMA on 24 September 2014,

The Drectors’ Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2017
and signad on its behalf by-

Elaine Williams
Company Secrelary and General Counsel
The British Land Company PLC

Company Number: 08621920



DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

" The Directors are responsable for preparing the Annual Repert.
the Directors’ Ramunaration Report and the inanaial statemanis
in accordance with applicable taw and requlaiions.

Companyiaw requires the Directors la prepare linanaal statements
for each finandal year. Under that taw the Lhreciors have prepared the
Group linandial statements in accordance with Intemationat Finanaal
Reporting Standards [IFRSs) as adopled by ihe Eurapean Unien, and
the parent Company finandal stemants in accordance with Unitad
Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice [United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable Llawl:

Undar Company law the Derectars must nol approve the finanaal
slatemnents unless they are salisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the stale of alfairs of the Groug and the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing thase
finzncal statements, the Directors are required to:

~ select suitable accounting polides and then apply them consistently

- maka judgemenls and acoouniing estimates that are reasonable
2nd prudent

< state whether IFRSs as adepled by the European Union and
applicable UK Atcounting Standards have bean followed, subject
o any malenizl depariures disclosed and explained in the Group
angd parent Company finandal statements respectively and

- prepare lhe inanciat statemants on the going concemn basis
unless i is inzppropriate to presume thal the Company walt
continue in business

The Direclors are responsible fer keeping adequate accounting records
that are sutficiant o show and explain the Company's transaclions

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime the financial position
of the Company and the Group and enable them 1o ensure thal the
financial statements and the Direclors’ Remuneratian Report comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Requlation. They are also responsible
for salequarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for ihe prevention and detection of (ravd
and other irregularities.

The Dhrectors are responsible for the mainlenance and integrity of
‘the Company's website. L_egislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from {egislation in elher jurisdiclions.

The Direciors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken
a5 a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders ta assess the Company's
pusition and performance, business model and strategy.

Each of thz Directors. whose names and funclions are listed on
pages 54 10 59, confirm that 1o the best of thair knowledge:

- the Group finendal statemnents, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs 25 adopied by the ELL. give a irue and
Tair vizw of the assets, liabilities, inanciat position and profit
of the Group and

- the Straiegw Report and the Directers’ Report include o faw
review of the develapment and performance of the business
and the pasition of the Group, logether with a description of
the principat risks and uncerlzintes that it faces

By ueder of the Board.

Lucindn Bell
Chizf Financal Offcer

16 May 217
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Finanvial ftatesents

Financial.statements
and other information

independant auditors’ repoft io the mambers

of the British Land Campany PLC

Finandial stalemants
Conselidaled income statement
Consolidated staternent of comprehensive intonme
Consolidated balance sheet
Consolidated statemant of cash flows
Consolidated statement of changes in eguity

Notes to the sccaunts

Company batanca sheet

Company stalement of changes in equity

Supplementary disclosures unaudited

Yalding House, W1 {right]
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Financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

0OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statements
Qur opinian
In our opinion:

- the British Land Company PLC’s Group finandial staternents and
Company financial siatemeants [the financal statements | give atrue
and iair view of the stale of the Group's and of ithe Company’s alfairs
as a1 31 March 2017 and of the Group's profit and cash flows fer the
year then ended

- the Group financial siatements have been properly prepared in
accordance with Internahenat Finandal Raperbing Standards
{IFRSs'] as adopled by the European Union

- the Company financial statements have been property prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice

- the financial slatements have been prepared i accordance with
the requiraments of the Companips Act 2006 and, as regards the
Graup finandial statements, Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation

What we have audited
The linancal statements, inctuded within the Annual Report, comprise:

~ the Consolidated Balance Sheel as al 31 March 2017

~ the Company Balance Sheetas at 31 March 2017

~ the Consalidated Income Statement and Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flaws for the year then ended

- the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended

— the Motes to the Accounts, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information

Cerlain required disclosures have heen presented elsewhere inthe
Annual Report, rather thanin the netes to the financial statemems,
These are cross-referenced from the financial staternents and are
dentified as audiled.

The linancial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation ol the Group firancial staterment$ is IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, and applicable law. The financial reparting
framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the
Company financial statements is United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Frameworik’
lnited Xingdom Generally Arcepted Accounting Praciice),

and applicable law.
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Our auditapproach

Querview

Qur 2017 audit was planned and executed having regard to tha fact

that the Group’s operations were langely unchanged in nature from the
previous year. Additionally. thera have been no significant changas to the
valuation methodology and accounting standards retevant fo the Group.
In light of this, our approach 1o the audil in terms of scoping and areas

of locus was largely unchanged.

Afull scope audit was performed by the Group tearn for all subsidiaries
of Ihe Group, and tha following joint veniures: Broadgate, Meadowhall
and Leadenhall.

Materiatity

- Overall Greup materiality: £135 miltion IFY16: £138 miltiond which
rapresents 1% of tolal assets

- Specilic Group matesiality, applied o Underlying Profit: £19.4 mitlion
tFY16: £18 milkion) which represents 5% of undertying pre-tax prolit

Areas of focus

— Valuation of investiment and development properties
- Revenue recognition

- Accounling for {ransactions

- Taxation

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducled our auditin accordance with Internalional Standards
on Auditing {UK and Iretandl (15As (UK & fretand]].

We designed our audit by determining materiatity and assessing the
risks of material misstatement in he financial statements, In particutar,
we looked al where the Directars made subjeciive judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates thal involved
making assumptions and considering fulure gvents that are inherentty
uncertain. Asin all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management
overrige of inlernal contrats, including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias by the Oirectors that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud,

The risks of material misstalement that had the greatest effect on aur
audil, including the allocation of our resources and effort, are identilied
as "areas of focus in the labte below. We have also sel oul howe we
taitored our audit to address these specilic areas in order lo provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole. and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context.
This is not a camplete list 6f alt risks identified by our audit.



Asea of foqus

How our audlit addressed the area of foars

Vahuation of investment and development properties
Reler to pages &7 and 70 {Repdrt of the Audit Committeel, pages 105
1o 107 [Accounting policies] and pages 115 to 119 [Netes).

The Group's ivestment property portiolio is split betwsen office and
residentiafl propernies in central London, ratail and teisure properties
aross the UK, ard the assels at the Canada Water site in £ast London.
The valustion in the Consolidaled Balance Sheel is £9,073 million.

The valuation of the Groug’s invesiment property portfolio is inherently
subgeclive due to. 2mong other laclors. the individual nalure of each
property, Hs locabon and the expected uture rentals for that particutar
progerty. For developments_ factors include projected cosis to complete
and timing of practical completion.

The vatuations were carried out by third party valuers, CB Richard

Ellis, Jones Lang LaSalle and Knight Frank jihe valuers). The valuars
were engaged by the Directors, and performad their work in accordance
with the Rayal instittte of Charterad Surveyors [RICS ) Valualion

- Professionat Standards. The valuers used by the Group have
considerable experience of the markets in which the Group operates.

in determining 2 property’s vatuation the valuers take into account
property-spedfic information such as the current lenancy agreements
and rental income. They apply assumptions for yields and estimated
markel rent, which are nfluenced by prevailing market yields and
comparable market transactions, ta arrive at the final valuation. Fer
devalopments, the residual appraisal method is used, by estimating
the fair value of the completed project using a capitalisation method
tess estimaied costs 1o completion and a risk prermium.

The significance of the eslimates and judgements involved, coupled
with ihe fact that only a smali percentage difference in individual
property valuations, when aggregated, could result in a enaterial
misskatement. warrants specific audit focus in this area.

There were also certain speafic factors affecting the valuations

in the yoair:

- the nature of the Canada Water site, which the Group are
currently masler planning as a combined large scale, mixed
use development sile, resulted in our audit paying particular '
focus o the relevant valyaticns

- properties under devetopment, completed developments that
are now valued as standing investment properties and standing
imvestmnent proper ties that have been reclassified Lo development

- properties, conlinue to be an area of focus :

Wa read the valuation reports Ior all the properties and confirmed that the

" vatuation approach for each was in accordance with RICS standards and

suitable for use in determining the carrying value for the purpose of the
finanaal stalements.

We assessed the valuers” qualificalions and expertise and read thair
terms of engagement with the Group to detertnine whether there were
any matters thal migii have affecled their objeclivity or may have imposed
soope bimitations upon their work. We also considered fee arrangemanis
between the valuers and the Group and other engagements which might
exist between the Group and the valuers. We found no evidence to suggest
thiat the abjecteity of the vatuers m their performance of the valuations
was compromised.

We obtained details of every properiy held by the Group and set an
expected renge for yield and capital value movemend. determined by
referance to published benchunarks and using our experience and
knowiledge of the market. We compared tha investment yields used by
the valuers with the range of expected range of yields and the year on
year capitzl movement to cur expecled range We also considered the

- reasonableness of other assumplions that are nol so readily comparatie

with putilished benchmarks, such as Estimatad Rental Value. We attended
meelings with management and the valuers, at which the valuations

and the key assurnplions lherein were discussed, Dur work covered

the vatuation of every property in the Group, but the discussions with
management and the valvers focused on the largest properties in the
portiolio. praperiies under development ar where the valuation basis

has changed in the year, the Canada Waler site and those where Lhe yields
used and/or year on year capital value movement suggested a possible
oullier varsus exiermally published market data for the relevam sactor.

Where assumplions ware oulside the expected range or otherwise
appeared un L, and/or valuations showed unexpected movements,
we undertook further investigations and, when necessary, held

further discussions with the valuers and ohbtained evidence lo support
explanations received. The valuation commentaries provided by the
valuers and supparting evidence. enabled us to consider the property
spedfic factors that may have had an impact on vatue, including racent
comparable transaclions where appropriate.

We saw evidence thal alternative assumptions had been considered and
evaluated by management and the vatuers, belore delermining the final
valuation. We concluded thal the assumptions used in the valuations

ware supportable i light of avantable and comparable market evidence.

We performed testing on the standing data in the Group’s information
systems concerning the valualion process. We carried oul procedures,
on a sample basis. o satisfy cursetves of the accuracy of the property
information supplied ia the valuers by managernent, For devalopments,
we confirmed that the supporting infformaltion for construction contracts
and budgets. which was supplied to the valuers, was atso consislent
with the Group's records for example by inspecting original construclion
contracts. For developments, capitalised expenditure was tested on

3 sample basis to inveices, and budgeled costs to complele compared
with supporling evidence [for example construction coniracts).

Itwas evident from our interaction with managemnent and the valuers,
and from our review of the valuation reporis, thal close attention had
been paid to each properly’s individuat characteristics at a granular,
tenant by tenant level, as.well as considering the overall quality,
geographic tocation and desirability of the asset as a whole.

No issues were identilied in our testing.
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Financisl starcmenrs

INDEPENDENT AU{]ITQRIS' REPORT 10 THE MEMBERS

OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC CONTINUED

Area of fotus

How our 2t addressed the area of focus

Revenue recognition
Refer lo pages 67 to 70 [Report of the Audit Commilteel, pages 105
1o 107 [Acceunting polices) and page 109 (Notes).

Revenue for the Group consists primarity of rental inoame. Rental
incomne is based on tenancy agreements where there is a standard
process in pface lor recording revenue, which is system generated.
Thare are certain iransactions within revenus that wamrant additional
audit facus because of an increased imherent risk of efror due lo
their non-standard nature.

These inctude spreading of tenant intantives and guaranteed rent
intreases - these balances require adjustments made 1o rental
ncome o ensure revenue is recorded on & siwaight twe basis
over the course of the lease.

We carried cut lesis of controls over the cash and accoun! s receivable
processes and the retated 1T systems to obtain evidepce that postings to
these accounis ware reliable. For rental income balances, we then used
data bled audil technigues ta identify all standard revenue journals
posted usang these systems and processes.

The remaining journals related to non-standand iransactions. These
included reclassifications within revénue, actrued incomne, and bad debl
provisi For each category of non-standard revenue summarised
ahove, we haee underslond the nature and assessed the reasonablenass
of journals being generated, and performed substantive testing aver

a sample of these tems. Thers have been no exceplions arising from

our testing over non-siandard revenua ansactions.,

For balances not included wilhin rental income, such as service charge
income, we performed substantive testing on a ple basis. No i
were identified in our testing.

Acoourting for transactions
Refer ta pages 67 to 70 {Report of the Audit Commilteel, pages 105
to 107 [Accounting policies) and pages 108 (o 143 fiNoses to the Actounis),

There have been a number of ransaciions during the year. These
warranted addilional audit foous due to the magriteda of Tansactions
and the potential for complex contracival terms that intreduce
judgement into how they were accounted for. Key Irans2ciions
subject lo additionat audit focus weve:

- acquisilions of investment properties for £88 million

- disposals of investroent properties for £670 million, including
the disposal of Debanhams Oxford Street lor E397 million

- exthange of contracts for the Sale of Interest in the Leadenhall
Holding Co lJersey} Limited Joinl Venture which has been
accounted for as 3 joint venture held lor sale valued at £540 million

- advanced funds received on exchange of contracts for the sale
of shares in the Leadenhall Joint venture recorded as a finandial
assel and correspending financial Bability lor £144 mitlion

- amount of £10 million received from UBS in relation o the
develapment and occupation of 5 Broadgste, and subsequent
vacation of 100 Liverpool Street

For each irapsaction, we undersiood the nature of the Iransachion and
assessed the propesed accounting breatment in relation (o the Gmup -3
amcounlmg policies and relevant IFRSs.

For all acquisikions and disposals. we obtained and r d the ey
supporiing documentation such as Sales and Purchase Agreements
and complefion statements. Consideration received or paid was
2greed to bank statements. No material issues were found as 3
result of these procedures.

For the Leadenhall transaction which has been accounted for as a joini
venture held for s3le, we assessed the accounting treatment in relation to
IFRS S Nen-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and
1AS28 Irvestments in Assctiates and Joint Ventures. We have reviewed the
s3le and purchase agreement and agree that the exchange of contracts

1o sell the shares in the joint venture meet the criteria for recognition as
hetd for sale under IFRS 5. We have audited the carrying value of the joint
wenture at March 2017, including the valuation of the undertying investment
property. No material issues were found in relation to the carrying vatue.

We hava confirmed receipt of the advaaced funds received on exchange of
contracts, and tied this to the balances listed within the sale and purchase
agreement and to confirmations from the Group's lawyers. The monies
received are held in a client account held by the Group's lawyers and
reccipt is conditional on the completion of the sale, We agree with the
recognition as a finanCial asset and correspanding Gability.

For the £10 mitlion payment from UBS we have reviewed the originai
lease agreement and the amended lease agreement thal details

the payment. We have agreed receipl of the amoum received to

bank statements. We concur with the Wreatment adopted.

Taxation
Refer o pages 67 to 70 [Report of the Audit Commiilee), pages
105 to 107 lAccounting policies] and pages 111 and 126 INotes).

The Group's status as a REIT underpins its business model and
sharehotder returns. For this reason, it warrants spedal avdil focus,
The obligatiens of the REIT regime include raquiteiments lo comply
with balance of business, dividend and income cover tesis. The
Broadgate joint venture is also structured as a REIT and as such,
REIT compliance is also of relevance for this joint veniure in
addition to the overail Group. )

Tax provisions are in place Lo account for the risk of challenge

of certain of the Group's lax provisions, Given the subjeclive

nalure of these provisions. addilional audil locus was placed

on lax provisions.

We re-pecformed the Group's and annual REIT compliance tests,
a5 well as those 1esis for the Broadgate REIT. Based on our work
performed, we agreed with management’s assessmenl that all
REIT compliance lests had been met 10 ensure that the Group
and Broadgate maintain their REIT status.

We evaluated the lax provisions and potential expsyres as at

31 March 2D17. We used our knowledge of tax circ wes
and by reading relevant correspondence between the Group and
Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs and the Group's external 1ax
adwisors are satisfied that the assumptions and judg its
used by the Group are reasonable.
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How we tailored the audit scope -

We tailored the scape of our audit to ensure thal we periormed encugh
work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as awhole,
taking into account the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

The Group and Company firancial slatements are produced using a
single consolidation system khat has a direct interface with the general
{edger. We performed our audit procedures over the general ledger
system and tested the interface with the consolidation system.

A full scope audit was performed by the Group audi tearn for alt
subsidiaries of the Group, and the following joint ventures: Broadygate,
Meadowhall angd Leadenhall. This gives coverage over substantially
allof the Group.

In establishing the overall approach io our audiL we assessed thve risk
of material misstatemant, taking inte acceunt the nature, tikelihood and
poiential magnitude of any misstatemenl. Foligwing this assessmeni,
we applied professional judgement to determine the extent of testing
reguited over each batance in the finandal staternents.

The scope of cur audit was influenced by our application of mateniality.
We set cerlain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together
with qualitative considerations_ helped us to determine the scopa of our
audit and the nature, timing and exient of our audit procedures on the
individual financisl statement line items and disdesures and in evalualing
the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the inancial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgeiment, we determined mateniality for
the finandat staterments as a whole as follows:

Overall Group materiality . €135 million [2015: £138 million).
How we determined it 195 of lotal assels. ’
Rationale for benchmark apptied A key determinant of te Group's

value is direct property imestmants,

Due 1o this, the keyarea of locus

in the audit is the vatuation of
investment propearties. On this basis,
we sel an overall Group materiality
level based on tolal assets.

In addition, we sel a specific materiality level of £19.4 mitlion [2016:
£18 million] for items within undertying pre-tax profil. This equates to
5% of profit before tax adjusied for capital and ether ilems. In amriving
at this judgement we had regard to the fact that the undertying pre-1ax
profit is a secondary financial indicator of the Group [Refer o Note 2
of the financial stalements page 108 where the terti is defined in full).

We agreed with the Audil Cammittee that we woutd report to them
misstatements identified during our audit of underlying pre-taxitems
above €1 million 12014: £1 millionl as well as misstaternents below that
amount thal, in our view, warranted reparting for qualitative reasons.
We agreed wilh the Audit Committee that we would report to them,
any risstaternents identiied duning our audit of capital and other
items above £6.7 illion [2014: £4.9 million| as well as misstatements
below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting lor
qualitalive reasons.

Under the Listing Rules we are required 1o review the Direclors’
statemenl, s2i out on page &5, in relation lo going concern. Wa have
rothing (o report having perlorinad our ranew,

Under ISAs (UK & freland] we are required Lo report io you if we

hawve anything matenal lo add or to draw atlention ko in relation to the
Directors statemen! about whether they considerad it appropnate to
adopi the going concem basis in grepaning the ﬁnanuaul skatements.
We have nothing malzrial o 2dd or to draw allention 1o,

As noted in the Directors’ slatement, the directers have condud=d
that it is appropriaie to adopt the going conces basis in prepaning
the finandal statements. The going concern basis presumes that tha
Group and Company have adequale resources Lo remain in opasaiion,
and that the Directors intend them te do so, for 21 least ona yoar from
the dale the fmandial slatements were signed. A< part of our audit
we have concluded that the Directors” use of the geing concern basis
is appropriate. However, because not all rture events or condibons
can be predicted, these statements are nol 2 guarantee as to the
Gioup's and Company’s ability te continuz a5 a geing concern.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other reguired reporting
Consistency of other information and compliance
with applicable requirements

Companies Act 2005 reporting

in our opinion, based on the work undartaken in tha course of the audit:

~ the information givan in the Sirategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year jor which the linancal statements
are prepared is consistent with the finandial statements

- the Sirategic Repert and the Directors’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group,
the Company and thair environment shiained in the course of the
audit, we are requirad te report if we have identifiad any material
misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Direclors’ Report.
We have nothing lo Feport in this respect.

ISAs (UK & Ireland)] reporting
Under ISAs (UK & Ireland] we are required 1o report to you if,
1 our ¥

-y

~ informaiion inthe Annual Report is:

~ materally inconsistent with
the informalion in the audited

* linandial statements

— apparently raterially incorrect based
on, or materially inconsistent with, our
knowledge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of parforming
our audit

— otherwise misleading

We have no exceplions
to report.

-~ Ihe slatemen! given by the direclors on

page 84, in accordance with grovision
. 1. of the UK Corporate Governance

Code fthe Tode'l, that they consider the
Annual Report taken as a whote to be tair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for members to
assess the Group's and Company's position
and performance, business model and
strategy is materially inconsistent with
our knowledge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of performing
our audit

We have no exceplions
to regort.

The Directors’ assessment of thie prospects of the Group and of the
principal risks that woild threaten the salvency or Uguidity of the Group
Under 1SAs )UK & Ireland} we are required to report to you if we have
anything malerial ta add or to draw aitention o in relation lo:

- the Directors’ confirmalion on page 45 We have nothing
of the Annyat Kzport. in accardance with  matarial to add or
provisionC 21 ol the Code Ghattheytave  to draw attention fo.
carnizd out 2 robust assessment of the .
principal risks facing the Group. inclsding
thase that wauld threaten its business
modzl, fulure parformance, solvency
or liquidity

- 1he disciosures in the Annual Report
that desoribe thase nisks and exglain how
they are being managed or riligated

We have nothing
material to add or
to draw attention to.

- the Direclors explanation on page 49 We have nothing
of the Annual Reporl, w acoordance material toadd of
with provision C.2.2 of the Codz, as to to draw attention to.

haw they have assessed the prospects

of the Group, ever what peried they have
done so and why they consider that peried
o be approprate, and their statement

as to whether they have a regsonable
expeclation that the Group will be able

to cantinue in operation and meelits
liabilities as they fall due over the period .
of their assessment. including any related
disclosuras drawing attention 1o any
necessary qualilications or assumplions

Under the Listing Rules we are veguired to review the Directors’
stalement that they have carried ol a robust assessment of the
prindpat risks fadng the Group and the Direciors’ statement in relation
10 the longer-larm viability of the Group. Our review was substantially
less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries
and considering the Directors’ pracess supposting their statements;
checking lhat the slatements 3re in atignenant with the relevant
provisians of the Gode: and considering whethar the stalements

are consistent with the b Aedge acguired by us i the course

of performing our audil. We have nothing to repart having

performed our review.

Adequacy of accounting records and informnation and

— the seclion of the Annual Report on page £ We have no exceptions
as required by provision C.3.8of the Code, o report.
describing the work of the Audit Commitiee
does net approprialely address matters.
communicaled by us le the Audit
Committee

p received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report w you if,
in our apinign;

- we have not received all the infarmation and explanations
we require for our audit
- adequale accounling records have not been kep! by the Company.
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or returns adeguale {for our audil have nol been received from
branches nol visited by us; o -

~ the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Repor! 1o be audited are nol in agreement with
the accounting records and relurns

Wea have ng exceplions Lo report arising from this responsibility.



Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ Remuneration Repart — Companies Act 20056 opinion
In vur opinion_ the part of tha Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audiled hashampmpeﬂypr@pamdmmﬂamemm the
Companies Act 2006.

Qther Camnpanies Act 2006 reporting

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you if,

in our opinion, certain disclosures of Direclors’ remuoneralion specdified
by law are 710l made. We have no excepirons Lo reporl anising from

this responsibility.

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are reguired to reviaw the part of the
Corporate Govarnante Staternent relating to ten tucther provisions
of the Code. We have nothing o report having performed our review,

Responsibilities for the financial statements

and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
sel pui on page 91; the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial stalements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view.

Qur responsibility is to audit and exprass an opimon on the financdal
statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs [UK & lreland).
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Praclices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, indluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
Jof Part 16 of the Cornpanies Act 2006 and for no other purpose.
We da not, in giving these opinfons, accept oF sswme responsibitity

for any other purpase or to any other person to whoin this repert .

i shown or into whose hands it may come save whare expressly .
agreed by our prior consent in wanling.

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves oblaining evidence about the amounis and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficiant to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material rmisstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This indudes an assessment of:

- whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's
and the Company’s circumslances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed

- the reasonableness of significant accounting estimales made
by the Directors

- the overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarily focus aur wark in these areas by assessing the Direclors’
judgements agains! available evidence, forming our own judgements,
and evaluating the disclosures in the linancial slatements.

We {est and examine information, using sampling and olher audiling
techniques, to the extent wa considar necessary 10 provide a reasonable
hasis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through
tesling the eHeciiveness of conlrols, subslantive procedures ora
combination of bath.

In addition_ we read atl the finencial and non-finsndz! information

in the Annual Report to identify malerial nconsistendies with the
audited financial statements and 1o iWentily any information that is
apparenily matenially incorrect based on_ or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquirad by us in the course ol performing

the audst. I we become awars of any apparent material misstatements
of inconastencies we consider the implications for our report.

With respect to the Sirategic Report ang Direclors Report, we
consider whether thoss reports indude the disclosures raquired

by applicable legal requirements.

John Waters (Senior Statutory Anditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutery Anditors
{ondon

16 May 2017

- The meintenance and itegrity 7 The British Laod Company PLE welbsite
is the responsibility of the ffrectors; the wark carried out by the auditurs
does not invotve consideration of these matters and. socordmgly, the auditors.
accep! no responsiblity for 2ny changes that may have occurred o the
finandial stalements Since they were indtizily presenied on the website,

- Legislation in the United Kingéom govarning the preparation and dissemination
of finanaal statements may differ from legrslstrn o other prrsdictions.
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Finanvigh stapements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

m7 nks
Capital Capiial
Umdegtying'.  amd other Towlal Unierlying'  and olver Yozt
Noiz £m £m ~ Em Em £m im
Revenue 3 556 1 589 569 2 590
Costs 3 hzz2) (261 e8] 11231 (1l 1139)
3 L34 ¥i 41 441 10 451
Joint ventures and funds [see aiso belowd n 132 (80} 52 a5 262 397
Adminisirative expenses 841 - B84} 93 - 73
Valuation movement & - 42 (144) - F373 %
{Loss) profit on disposal of inveslment properiies
and invesimenis - s [L3] = 35 35
Net inanting tosts
~ financing income 6 2 £2 &4 ) . 45 0
~ financing charges [ 180) 29 109} [111)] 13£) _ s}
. {78 n {45) s} 3t 1751
' Profiten ordinary activities befure taxation L04 (20%) 192 3717 954 131
Yaxation 7 1 1 1 33
Profit for the year after taxation 195 1,364
Attributable to non-conltrotling interests 15 ml 3 14 5. 19
Attributahle to sharcholders of the Company 390 lim 193 363 982 1.345
£arnings per share:
- basic 2 18.8p 131.
_ diluted? 2 147p 1197
All results derive from continuing operalions.
2077 e
Undertying'  and ather Totl  Undertping'  and ather TotA
Note £m €m £m €m [ tm
" Resultsof jaint vegtures and funds accounted ' ‘ ‘ ’
for using the equity method :
Dnderiying Profil 132 - 132 135 - 135
Valuation movement & - 93] 3 - 245 265
Capital financing costs - i L] - - -
Profit on disposal ol investment properties,
trading properties and investments - 18 1. - 18 18
Taxation - 1 1 - N 13}
n 132 {s0) 52 135 262 397

! See definilion inGlossary,
* Prior yeor diluled EPS has been restated. See note 1.
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+

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

VY P11
£m Emn
Proht for the year after taxation we 1.364
Other comprehensiva [loss) income: '
tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Met actuarial loss on pension schemes 12 ]
Valuation movements on owner-occupied properties - 17
12} 18
Items that may be reclassified subsequentiy to profitor toss: ’
{Losses] gains on cash flow hedges
- Group 2 [24)
- Joint ventures and funds . 1 i3
120 1271
Transferred Lo the income statement lcash Aow hedges)
- Foreign currency derivatives - 2
~ Interest rate derivatives 14 10
16 12
Exchange differences on {ranstation of loreign operations
- Hedging and lranslation - 13
- Other - 3
Deferred tax on items of other comprehensive income - {15l
Other comprehensive loss for the year {18} 12}
Total comprehensive income for the yaar B0 1352
Atinbutabte to non-conh-ol!in§ interesis 3 ]
Atributable to sharehaiders of the Company 177 1,333
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Fimnelal stutemeuts

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
207 2014
Note &m . m
Non-current assets .
Investment and development properlies 10 9,073 9.643
QOwnar-ocoupied properties ’ L[4} 95 .95
’ 217 9.738
Gther non-current assets
frvestments in joint ventures and funds : 1] 2,766 3383
Qther investments 12 154 142
Delerred lax assets ’ 16 & 3
fnterest rote and currency derivative assets - 7 217 167
12,308 13.403
Current assets
Joint venture held for sale ’ n 540 -
Trading properties. 0 334 325
Deblors : px} m .33
Cash and shori term deposils Ly 114 114
. . . 1.15% 472
Total sssots . . 13,467 13875
LIABILITIES ' ' .
Current Liabilities
Shart term barrowings and overdralts ¢ 17 1544) 174)
Creditors ' 4 1458) {2181
Corporation tax ) : 130) {18}
1952} I3
Non-currentliabilities X -
Debentures and leans 17 12,8171 13.4871
Other non-current liabilities . 15 (78] 22
Interest rate and currency derivalive Liabiliies 17 1144) 1371
13.939) 139461
Total iabilities _ ' ‘ 2991 152581
Netassets ' ' B 9,478 92,619
EQUITY ‘ _
Share capital X 240 250
‘Share premiuvm 1,298 1.295
Merger reserve : 213 23
Other reserves . ' tom} {93t
Retained earmings ) . 7,547 T.667
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company ' - 9221 9362
Non-conirofling interests - 255 277
Yolal equity .476 2.617
EPRANAY per share’ ‘ ‘ ‘ 2 915p 919p.
(L -
John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Finantial Officer

The financial staternents on pages 100 to 143 were approved by the Board of Directors and sigred on its behalf on 16 May 2017.
Company number 621920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

av A6
Note G £m
Rental income received from tenants . 454 435
Fees and other income received &4 58
Operating expenses paid to suppliers and employees &N {152]
Cash generated from operaliens' e 381
Interest paid 92) 124}
Interest received 8 ]
Corporation taxation repayments received 9 8
Distnbutions and other receivables from joint ventures and lunds l{l 59 58
Net cash inflow lrom operating activities 353 794
Cash Rows from investing activities
Development and other capital expenditure 1225) 1754]
Purchase of investment properties 7 12431
- Sate of investment and trading properties 751 5464
Payments received in respect of future trading property sales 8 £0
Purchase of investments 19 -
Indirect taxes paid in rvespe‘cl of irvesting activibies m -
lrvestment in and loans o joint venlures and luads 59 261
Capital distributions and loan repayments from joint ventures and fends 83 366
Net cash inflow from investing activities £70 30
Cash flows From financing activities
Issue of ordinary shares 3 5
Purchase of own shares 8] -
Dividends paid 19 (295} 1235}
Dividends paid to non-contraliing interests (14} 114
Acquisition of units in Mercules Unit Trust ) ®1)
Closeout of interest rate decivatives 13 15
Cash callateral transactions - 124)
Decrease in bank and other borrowings 15281 i919)
Drawdowns on bank and other borrowings n 7]
Drawdown of zero coupon 2015 convertible bond - 344
Net cash ointflow from financing activities (833} {518}
Netincrease in cash and cash equivatents - &
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Aprit 14 108
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March - 114 L
Cash and cash equivatents consists of: ‘
Cash and short {erm deposils 17 "4 14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

and Re : ¥,
Share Share trenslation valuaian Woge Rewsseed coraraling Tolat
) capitzl  premRam  reserve' resave  fEMSVR  eEmEngs Toll inavests  equity
£m £rm . Em tm L {m m .£11] om
Balance at 1 Apni 2016 ) L 260 1,295 non 14 3 7687 9,342 277 9,617
Prufit for the year after taxation - - - - - w3 w3 ' 196
L osses on cash Rlow hadgas - - 121 - - - (Fq] - 21)
Exchanoe and h ‘-,“ G (T ts.in jaind vendyres
and lunds ) - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Rectassification of gins on cash flew hedges .
- Fereign cuirency darivatives - - - - - - - - -
- lnterast rate derivatives - - 14 - - - % - 1%
Mat actuarial loss on pensien sthemes - - = - - - 12 [LFd] - 112)
Other comprehensive Hoss! ingome : - - 15) 1 - nz el - &)
Total comprehensive intome for the year - - sl 1 - B m 3 1.
Share issues ' - 3 - - - - 3 - a
Fair value of share and share option awverds - - - - - 2 oz - 2
Purchase of gem shares : - - - - - t8) (8 - (e
Purchase of units from noa—contrelting inferests - - - - - - Co- (111 mi
Gain on purchasé of unils frem non-centrolling intesests - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends payable inyear [28.8p per share) - - - - - 12980 (298 . - [298)
Dividends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - = N4 14)
Balance at 31 March 2087 . 250 1.298 izl 15 . M3 1547 221 255 476
Balance at 1 April 2015 258 1,280 1761 25 ] 2i3 69353 8232 3313 8.565
Profit for the yeay after tazation ) - - . - - - 1345 1345 19 1384
Losses on cash flow hedges . - - 1241 - - - f2¢] - [¥4]
Revalustion of cwner-otcupied progerty - - - 1% - - ] - 9
Exchange and hadging movaments in joind ventures ; '
and funds : ' - - - i3 - - 13 - 131
Reclassification of {loss25) gains on cash ow hedges ’
- Foraign currency deﬂvames - ' - 2 - - - 2 - 2
- Interest rate derivalives - - 0 - co- - L] - 10
Exchange dillerences on ranslation of foreign operations - - (3 3 - - - - -
Net actuariat Loss on pension schemes - - - - - n- w - n
Qeterred tax on iterrs of other comprehansive icome - = 161 | = - s - 15l
Qther comprehensive floss] income - - 31l 20 - - L hai
Totat comprehensive income for the year - - 31 20 - 1,384 13313 19 1,352
Share issues 2 5 - - - nzt 5 - 5
Fair value of share and share oplion awards . - - - - - 8 8 - ]
Purchase of units from non-controlling inerests - ~ - - - - - {59 159
Loss on purchase of ufits from hon-controlling inerests - - - 7 - - N} n - 1]
Dividends payable in year (28 0p per sharel - ~ - -, - (287 28% - - (287
Dividends payable by subsidvaries . - - - -~ - Co- - 4] ]
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - ~ - - - 52 52 - 52
Batance at 31 March 2016 260 1,295 Ny W 213 7667 9,342 277 89

! The balance al the beginning of the current year includes £9m in relation to translation and If. 116m] in relation 1o hedging 12015414: £10m and [(BSmi).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1

1 Basis of preparation, significant accounting
policies and accounting judgements

The Rnandal statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have baen
prepared on the historical cosl basis, except for the revaluztion of
properties, investments held for trading 2nd derivatives. The financiat
statemnents have atso been prepared in accerdance with internatronal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and interprelations issued by the iFRS Interpretabions Commattee IFRS
IC], and therefore compty with article 4 of the EU IAS regulation, and in
accordance wilh the Companies Act 2005, in the current financial year
the Group has adopied a numbezr of minor amendments to standards
effective in the year issued by the tASB and endorsed by the EU. none of
which have had 3 malenal impact on the Group. The acoouniing pelicies
used are otherwise consistent with thuse contined in the Group's previous
Annuat Raport and Accounts for the yaar ended 31 March 2014

- Anumber of new standands and amerdmenls te standards and
interpreiations have been issued but are not yet élfective for the current
accounting period. None of these are expacied o have a material impact
on the consolidated financial statemants of the Group.

Certain standards which could be expecled lo have an imnpzcl on the
consolidated financial stalemeants are discussed in further delail belove.

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments leffectiva year ending 31 Manch 20191,
The new standard addresses the dassification, measurement and
recognition of linancial assets and finandat iabilities. It simplifies the
-existing categaries of finandial insruments, introduces an expecied
credit loss model and redefines the oritena required for hedge
efifectiveness. On adoplion of the new standard. these changes are
nol expecied to have a materialimpac on the consobdated financiat
statements of the Group. There will however be limited changes 1o
preseéntation and disclosure.

- IFRS 15 - Revenue from conlracts with customers lelfective year
endirig 31 March 2019). The new standard combines a number of
previous standards, setting out a five step model lor the racognition
of revenue and establishing prindples for reporting uselul information
to users of linancial stalements about the natura, amount. timing
and unceriainly of revenue and cash flows anising from an aality’s
contracts with customers. The new standard does nol 2pply to gross
rental income, but does apply o service charge income, management
and perlormance lees and trading property dispasals. The impact
of the new standard on these items of revenue is not expected to
have a malerial impact on the consclidated linancial siatements
of the Group. :

- IFRS 16 - Leases (eifective year ending 31 March 2020). For lessees it
will resull in atrnost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating and finance leases will be
removed. The accounting for lessors will however not sigrificantly
change._As a resull on adoption of the new standard, these changes
are not expected to have a materiat impact an the consolidated
financial slatements of the Group.

The Group conducted an impact assessment of the above new slandards
in the year, and conctudad that whilst adoption of these new standards
based on the Group’'s current activitias would lead to some limited changes
to presentalion and disclosure, they are not expacted to have a matenial
impact an the consolidated finandal statements.

Restatermnent

The IFRS diluted earmangs pei share for the year ended 31 March 2018
has been restated to refleci the full dilutive impact of the 1.5% 2012
convartinle bond. This restatemant regutes the diluted sarmings

per share measure from 124.1 pence to 112.7 pence shown on the
Consolidated lncome Statement and within the assotiaied noles.

This is the only inancal measure within these financiol skataments
impacied by this restalement,

Going concern
The financial statements are prepared an a going concern basis
as explained in the corporate govermance saclion on page 5.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates fincluding furds]

The consolidated accounts indude the 2coounts of the British Land
Company PLC and all subsidiaries (eniities controlled by British Land).
Control is assumed whene British Land is exposed, or has the rights,
to variable returns Irom its imvolvemant with inveslees and has the
abilily to aflect these returns through il's power over those iweslaes.

The results of subsidianias, jnind veptures or assoniales aoquired or
disposed of during the year are induded rom the effective dale of
acquisilion or up \o the effective date of disposal Accounting polices
of subsidiaries, joint ventures or assodiales which differ from Group
acrounting policies are adjusted on consolidation. '

Business combinations are acoountad for under the acquisition method.
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the lair
value of the agsets, liabilities and contingent liabtlities acquired and
resulling deferred tax thereon is recognised as goodwall. Any discount
received is credited to the income stalement in the period of acguisition.

Allintra-Group transaclions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on conselidation. Joint ventures and associates, including
funds, are accounted for under the equity mathoed, whereby the
consolidated balance sheet incorporales the Group's share linvestor’s
share] of the net assels of its joint ventures and associates. The
consolidated income slatement incorporates the Group's share

of joint venture and associate profits after 1ax. Their profits inctuda
revaluation movements on investment properties.

Distributions and other recaivables from joints ventures and associales
lincluding funds) are classed as cash flows from operating actvities,
except where they relate in a cash flow anising from a capital iransaction,
such as 2 property or investment disposal In this case they are classed
as cash {tows from invesling aclivities.

Properties .

Properties are exiermally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheet date. Investrnent and owner-occupied properties are recorded at
valuation whereas trading properties are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Any surplus or deficil arising on revaluing investmen! properlies is
recognised in the capital and other column of the incorne slatement.

Any surplus ansing on revaluing twher—-octupied properties above

cost is recognised in other comprehensive income, and any defict ansing
in revaluation below cost for cwner-occupied and trading properlies is
recognised in the capital and other column of the incoma statement.
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Finngacral starements

NGTES TG THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

The Cost of properties in the course of developmen! includes atiributabl

As definad by LAS 3%, cash flow and fair vale hedges are intially recogrised

interest and other assodialed ouigoings induding attribuizble developmant

aﬂa:malueail:edaie the dartmtive caniracts are antared inig, and

personnel costs. Interest is calculatad on the develop: ] dilure
by referance Lo spedfic borrowings, whete relevand, and othemnse on
the weighizd average raie interes! rale of British Land PLC borrowings.
Interest is not capitalised where no develapment activity is taking
place. A property ceases lo be lreated a5 3 developmem property

on practical cnmplahm

Invesiment property disposals are recogmsed on comptation. Prolits
and [osses anising are recognised through the capital and other cotumn
of the incorne staterrent. The profit on disposal is dalermined as the
difference betweén the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset at the commencement of the accounting period plus capital
expenditure in the periogd.

Trading propertiss are initially recognised at cost less impaiments,
and Urading prepesr Ly disposals are recognised ia line with the revenue
polices ouilined below. -

Where svestioent properlies are appropriated \o trading propertres.
gthey are transfermed at marked value. {f properties held for trachng are
2pproprizlad o invesiment properiies. they are transterved at bopok
value_in determining whether leases and related properties represent
operating or Etnance leases, cansideration is given o whether the
tenant or landlord bears the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets and liabilities
Trade debtors and credilors are infially recognised at fair value and
subsequernty measured at amortisaed cost and discounted as appropriate.

Other investments include loans and receivables held al amortised

cost and investments held for irading classified as fair value through
proft or loss. Amoriised cost of leans and receivables is measured using
the effective interest method, less any impairment. interest is recognised
by applying the etfective interesi rate. lrvestments held for Irading are
initially recordad at latr value and are subsequently externally valued on
the same basis at the balance sheel date. Any surplus or deficit arising
on revaluing invesiments held for irading is recognised in the capital

and other column of the ncome statement.

Where an invesiment groperty is held under a head lease, the head
lease is inilially recognised as an assel. being the surn of the premium
paid on acquisiion plus the present value of mnimum ground rent -
payments. The corresponding rent {rability to the head easeholder
isincluded in the balance sheet as 2 finance lease obligation.

Debl instruments are stated al their net proceeds on issue. Finance
charges including prermia payable on settiement or redemplion
and diract 1ssue costs are spread over the period to redemption,
using the effective interesi method. Exceptional finance charges
incurred due to early redernption lincluding premiums) are
recognised in the income statement when they occur.

Converlible bonds are designated as fair vatue through profit or loss
and so 3re initially recognised at fair value with all subsequent gains
and losses, including the write-off of 15sue costs, recognised in the
capital and other column of the income statement as a companent of
net financing costs. The interest charge in respect of the coupon rale
on the bosds has been recognised within the underlying component
of net linancing costs on an accruals basis.,
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by v ed at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derwatma-s that are designated and qualify as eifective cash ow hedges are
vecugnised diretty through other comprehensive incomz as a movesnent in
the hedging and ranslation reseqve. Changes in the kair valie of derivatives
that are designated and qualify 25 elfective fir value hedges are recarded
in the c2pital and other columa of the income statemen?. along with any
changes in the far valuz of ihe hedgad item that is altnbutatle jo the
hadgad risk. Any inzilective portion of all derivatives is recoanised in the
capilal and other column of the income stalement. Changes in the fair
value of darivalives that are nol in 2 designated hedging relat o under
AS 3% are recordad directly in the capital and othat column of the income
statement. These dervatrees are carvied at &air value on the balance sheet,

Cash equivalenis zre limited to instruments with 2 maturity of less than
three months.

Revere

Revenues comprises rentat income and surrender premia, seqvice charge
income, management and performance fees and proceeds from the sale
of trading properties.

1 Rental moosne, induding fixed rental uplitts, from investment property

leased ou! under an operating lease Is recognised a5 revenue ona .
straight-line basis over the lease termn. Lease incentives, such as real-free
periods and cash contribulions lo tenant fit-out, are recognised on the
same siraighi-line basis being an integral part of the ned consideration for
the use of the investment property. Any rent adjustments based on opan
market esh d renital are recognised, basad on management
estimates. froin the rent review date in relation te unseilled renl reviews.
Contingent rents, being those (ease payments that are not fixed at the
inceplion of the lease, inctuding for example tumover rents, are

recognised in the pervod in which they are eamed.

Sustender premia for the early determination of a lease are recognised
as revenue immediately upon receipt, nei of dilapidations and non-
recoverable eutgoings relaking to the lease concerned.

Service charge income is recognised as revenue in the pentd 1o which
it relates.

Managemant and performnance fees receivable are recognised as revenue
in the period to which they relate. Performnance leesare recogmsed at the
end of the performance penod when the fee t can be esti
reliably and it is vinlually cerizin that the lee will be received.

Priceeds from the sale of trading properlies are racognised when the
risks and reveards of ownership have been transferred to the purchaser.
This generally occurs on completion. Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties are recogimised as reverwe in the capital and other column of
the income statement. All other revenue described above is mcngmsed
in the underlying column of the income statement.



Tamalion ’ -
Curent tax is based on laxable prohi for the year and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacled or substantively enacied ail the
balance shesl dale. Tazable profit differs from net profit as reporiadin
tha income statement because it excludes ilems of income or expense
that are not taxable or tax deductible]. :

Deferred lax is provided on items that may became taxabte in the future,
arwhich may be used to olfsel against taxable profits in the future on
the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for finandal reporting purposes. and the amounts used lor
taxation purposes on an undiscounlad basis. On business combinations,
the deferved Lax effect of fair value adjustments is incorporated in the
conselidated balance sheel

Employee costs )

The fair value of equity-settied share-based paymenis to employees
is determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a straighi-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimale of shares
or options that will eventually vest. in the case of oplions granied,

{air valuz is measured by a Black-Scholes pricing model

Defined benelit pension scheme assets are measured using fair values.
Pension scheme liabilities are measured using the projecled umt aredit
methed and discounted at the rate of return of 2 high quality corporate
bond of equivalent lerm to the scheme liabilities. The net surplus [where
recovarable by the Group) or defict is recognised in fullin the consolidated
batance sheel. Asvy asset resulting from the calculation is limited to the
present value of available refunds and reductions in fulure contributions
to the plan. ‘

The current service cost and gains and Losses on sefilement and
curtailments are charged to operating profil. Actuanial gains and losses

- are recognised in full in the genied in which they sccur and are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Contributions to the Group's defined contribution schemes are expensed
on the basis of the contracted annual contribytion.

Accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors are required
1o make judgements and eslimales thai allect the limancial slalements.

Significan! areas of estimation are:

Valuation of properties and invesiments held for trading: The Graup
uses external professionat valuers to determine the relevant amounts.
The primary source of evidence for property valuations should be recent,
comparable market lransaciions on an arms-lengih basis. However,

the valuation of the Group's property portfolio and investments held

for trading 2re inherently subjeclive, as they are made an the basis of
assumplions made by the valuers which may nol prove ta be accurate.

Other less significan! areas of estimation include the valuation of fixed
rate debt and interest rate derivatives, the determination of share-based
payment expense, and the actuarial assumplions used in caiculating the
Group's retirement benelit obligations.

The key areas of accourting judgement are:  +

REIT status: British Land is a Real Estale Investment Trust [REIT]

and does Nl pay X on its propey MME oF gains on property sales,
provided thal at least 90% of the Group's proeperty incomeis disiributad
as a dividend 1o shareholders, which becomes taxable in their hands,
In addition, the Group has to meei certain conditions such as ensuring
the property rental business represents more than 75% of toial profits
and assets. Any poteniial or praposed changes to the REH lagistabion
are modnitored and discussed with HMRC. i is Management s intention
that the Group wilk continue a5 a REIT {or the loresesable uture.

Accouniing lor joind ventures and funds: In accordance with IFRS 10
‘Consolidated financal statements, IFRS 1t 2oint armmangements’, and
IFRS 17 'Disclosiras of intarests in oibver entilies’ an assecsmant is
raquired tu delertning the degree of control or influ=nce the Group
exercises and the form af any conirol Lo ensure thal the financial
slalernent realment is appropriate.

Interestin the Growp's joint ventures is conwaonly driven by the terms

of the partnership agreements which ensure that control is shared
hehween the pariners. These are accounied for under the equity method,
whereby thz consoltidatad balance sheet incarporates the Growp's share
of the net assels of its jom! ventures and associales. The consolidated
income statement incorporates the Grovp's share of jeint vaniure and
assodale profits after dax.

Accounting for transactions: Property iransacltions are complex in
nalyre and can be matersal to the financial statements. Assessment is
required to delesvning lhe most approgriate accounting treatment of
assels acquired znd of polentizl contractual arrangements in the legat
docurnents for both acquisitions 2nd dispesals. Management consider
each transaction separately and, when considered appropriate, ssek
indzpendent sccounting advics.

Held for sale asset: On 1 March 2617 the Group exchanged conditional
contracts on an agreement to sell its interest in Leadenhall Holding Co
{Jerseyl Limited, a joint venture with Oxford Properties. The nel
investment in the joint verdure has been reclassified as a held for sate
assel within current assels on the Group balance sheet, and the canrying
amount is disctosed separately from the investment in joint ventures and
funds within note 11 to the linanaal stalements.

Prior to rxchange, hald for cale critenia were not deemed o be met sinca
the transaction relates to an iltiquid asset and is subject lo significant
uncertainty prior to agreement of terms. However, upan exchange the
sale is deemed highly probable as detaded terms have been agreed upon
by retevant parties. At this poinl management expect the carrying
amount of the Group's ivesliment i the venture lo be recovered
principally through 3 sate transaction rather than conlinuing operalions.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Eamings per share

The Group measures financal performance with reference te underlying earmings per share. the Evropean Public Real Estate Assodation [EPRA]
" earnings per share and IFRS earnings, per share. The relevant amings and waighted average number of chares {including dilution adjustmenis)

for each performance measure are shown helow. and a3 reconritiation betwean these is shown within the supplementary distlosures (Table BL

EPRA earnings per share is calculated using EPRA earnings, which is the IFRS profit alter 1axation altributable lo shareholders of the Compary
excluding investment and development property revaluations. gainsflosses on investing ang trading property dispesals, changes in the fair value of
finantial Mslrumenis and 3ssocaled dose-gul Cosis ahg their related taxation. In the current year. diluted EPRA earmings per share did not intiude
the dilutive impac! of the 2012 convertible bond, as the Group's shafe price was below the axchange price of 693 pence. FRS diuted earnings par
share includes the ditutive impact as 1AS 33 ignores this hurdle ko conversion. In the prior year. both measures inclutded the dilutive impact of the
2012 convertibie bond. as the Group's share price was above the exchange price.

Undertying earnings per share is calculated gsing Underlying Profil adjusied for undertying taxation [see note 7). Undarlying Profit is the pre-tax

EPRA earnings measgure, with additional Compaizy adj No Company adjustments were madae in zither the cwrent or peior yaar.
017 @i
Relevant Relesani

Relewant Mnber Earnings Relowant morber Earnings

exrmings of shares per share earmings of shares par share
Undertying
Undeitying basic 90 1,029 379 385 1.025 356
Undertying diluted 390 1033 378 - 371 1089 340
EPRA ' )
EPRA basic 390 1,029 79 365 1023 356
EPRA diluted 390 1033 37.8 g 1.68% 34.0
IFRS ‘
Basic 193 1,029 188 1345 1025 131.2
Diluted* 140 1,991 14.7 1303 1,089 %7

* Prior year diluted EPS has been restated. Seenate 1, *

Hetassetvalue

The Group measures financial position with reference to EPRA nel asset value {NAV] per share and EPRA Iriple net aset valye [NNNAV] per share.
The nel asset value and number of shares {or each performance measure is shawn below, A reconciliation belween IFRS nel asseis and EPRA

net assets, and the relevant number of shares lor each performance measure, is sh wathin the suppt tary disclosures [lable B]. EPRA nat
assets is a proportionally consolidated measurs that is based on IFRS net assets excluding the mark-to-markat on effeciive cash flow hedges and
retated debt adjustments, the mark-to-markel on the convertible bonds as well as deferred taxation on praperty and denvative valuai:ons. They
include the vatuation surplus on {rading properties and are adjustad for the ditutive impact of share apiions.

As a\ 31 March 2617, EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAY did not include the dilutive irapact of the 2012 convertible bond, as the Gmup s share price was
below the exchange price of £93 pence. IFRS net assets includes the dilutive impact following the treatment of WRS earnings per share. ln the prior
year period, both measures included the dilutive impact of the 2012 coavertible bond,_ as the Greup's share price was abave the exchange price.

m7 s

Redevant Nedt asseq- . Relpvant Nk acung
Relevam number watue per Relevant mEnber value per
net assets of shares share nel Fsels ol shares shina
Net auset value per share m million pence fm metivon pere

EPRA ‘ '
EPRA NAY 9,498 1,038 215 106,074 1074 919
EPRA NNNAY 8,938 1.038 861 . 94640 1.0%6 0]

{FRS ) ’

Basic 9,476 1029 21 9.619 1.02% 935
Diluted ) 9878 1.095 901 10,09 1.0% 914

Total accounting return
The Group also measures fingncial periormam:e with reference (o tolal accounting return. This is calculated as the increase in EPRA net asset value
per share and dividend paid in the year as a percendage of the EPRA net asset value per share at the start of Lhe year.

2017 ‘ 21
Decreasein Dividend per Total  Increase intAY  Dividend per Total
NAY per share share paid accounting per share share paid aroounling
‘pence penoe netum pende pent: retum
Total accounting return 14} 28.78 2.7% 90 28.02 14.2%
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J Revenue and costs

2017 20156
Undertying  andofer Totd  Underbing  andother Tetd
£m £m m £m Em Em
$ent recervable ' &89 - &9 £37 - £37
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rant intreases 19} - 0] i2 - 12
Surrander premia 2 - 2 2 - 2
Gross rental income &442 - £42 451 - A51
Trading property sales procesds - 33 <) - 2% 21
Service charge income . 82 - 42 72 - T2
Management and performance fees lfrem joint ventures and funds) ? - 9 8 - 8
Other lees and commissions 43 - 43 38 - 3B
Revenue 555 33 589 o4% 2 590
Trading property cost of sales - 124) t281 - 1 ny
Service charge expenses s - - 62 72 - 74
Properly oparaling expenses (25) - i) 28] - 128
Other lees and commissions expenses . §35) - 135] 130) - 130}
Costs ) Nn22) 26} 1148] 128 i [LEs;]
534 7 £4% A4 10 451
The cash element of net rental intoma recognised during the year endad 31 March 2017 lrom properties which wara not subject to a sacurity
interest was £275m [2015/15: £229m. Property opersling expenses relating to investment groperlizs that did not generate any rental income
weie £2m [2005/16: £1mL Contingent rents of £2in [2019/16: E3ml were recognisedinthe yeas.  *
4 Valuation movements on property
7 2006
£m 3,
Consolidated income statement .
Revaluation of properties . 84 414
Revalualion ol properties held by jeinl venlures and funds accounted for using the equily method {93} 245
12371 861
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Revalustian of owner-gccupied properties - ”
2371 880
5 Auditors’ remuneration — Ptii:enuterhouse(:oopers LLP
am7 2014
£m tm
Fees payable ta the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.2 02
Fees payable lo the Campany s auditars for the audit of the Company's subsidianies, pursuant to legislation 0.4 ‘04
Total audit fees 0. 04
Audit-related assurance services 0.1 Q1
Total audit and audit-related assurance sefvices 0.7 0.7
Other fees
Tax advizory services - -
Other services (8] LA
Total 08 08

In addition to the above, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were remunerated for non-audit lees in PREF, an equity accounted property fund {see nate 1.

The Group's share of fees lotaited £0.1m [2015/16: £0.2m). PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are not the external auditors to PREF.

~
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

6 Net financing costs

2007 01
Em n
Undertying
Financingcharges )
Bank loans, overdralis and devivatives . . k] " 130
Other toans ‘ N 183) 1881
Obligations undar head leases 2 121
. . . (68} {200
. Development interast capitalised a8 ¢
801 i
_Financingincome
Deposits, securities and liquid invesimenis 2 3
Loans lo jaint ventures . - 2
2 B
Net finandng charges - undertying ' 78] -6}
Capital and other
Financing charges
Valuati ts on ranslalion of foreign currency dabt ’ - 2
Hedging reserve recycling ) ) - 2]
Valuation movements on {air valve derivatives ; 5t 54
Valuation movements on fair value debl {48) 153)
Recycling of [air value movement on dose-out of dervatives . ol B(4]
Capital linancing casts' 1s) 9
Fair value movement on non-hedge accountad.derivarives ) [v{] -
. 129 134)
Financing income
Fair value movement on convertible bonds. 4£2 b4
Fair value movernent on non-hedge accounted derivatives - 1
. - . 42 [
Net financing income - capital ) ) 13 N
!lét finanting costs
Total financing income &4 K]
Total financing charges . ‘ . 1091 nasi
Met financing costs 165] 175)

' Primarily debenture bords redemnplion and tender ofter and pun_:hase cosls,
Interest payahle on ur_nse-cured bank loans and related inlerest rate derivatives was £13m [2015/16: £19m). Inleresl on development expenditure

is capilalised at the Group's weighted average iferest rate of 2.4% [2015/14: 2.69]. The weighted average interest rate en a proporionatety
consolidated basis at 31 March 2017 was 3.1% 12015/16: 3.3%).
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7 Taxation

M7 - i1
£m £&mn
Taxation income {expense)
Current taxation: ' ‘
UK corporaluon taxation: 20% [2615/16: 20%) ) (&) (15}
Adjusiments in respect of prior years & 17
Total current taxation income - ' 1 2
Deferred taxation on revaluations and derivatives - 3
Group total taxation 1 3
Allributable lo joinl venturas and funds 1 m
Jotal taxation income 2 2
Taxation reconciliation
Profit on ordinary activities belore taxation - ’ 195 1.3
Less: profil attributable 16 joint ventures and funds' 152} {397
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation " 143 938
Taxation on profil on ordinary activities at UK corporation laxation rale of 20% [2015/14: 20%] ¥ )] (an
Effects of:
REIT exemp! income and gains ¢ 28 181
Taxation lgsses 12] n
Deferread taxation on revalualions and derivatives - n
Adjustments in respeclt of prior years 13 17
Group total taxation inceme 1 13

¥ Acurrent baxation expensa of Enil {2013/16: d\argedclmlandaddmmdlaxahnncmd’totnmtzmﬂls expense of Enil] zrose on profils attrbuiable tupmtmm
and funds. The low tax charges reilects the Group's REIT stalus.

Taxalion exgense attributable to Underlying Profil for the year anded 31 March 2017 was a Cnil [2015/16: £2el. Corporation taxation payable at
31 March 217 was £30m 12015/16: £18m] as shown on the batance sheet.

8 Staff costs
. 7 200
Staff costs fincluding Directors) £m Cmn
Wages and salaries 64 57
Social security cosls 8 7
Pension costs 7 7
Equily-settied share-based payments & 10
83 81

The average monthly number of employees of the Company during the year was 261 {2015/16: 250). The average monthly mrmber of Group employees,
including those employed direclly at the Group's properties and their costs recharged Lo tenants. was 771 [2015/16: 692). The average monthly
number of employees of the Company within each category of persans employed was as follows: Retail: 54; Offices & Residential: 71; Canada Water:
7. Support Functions: 129 ‘

The Executive Direciors and Non-Executive Directors are the key managemenl personnel. Their ermoluments are summansed below and furlher
detail is disclosed in the Rermuneration Report on pages 73 to 83.

. . 217 2006

Oirectors” emoluments 7 £ £m
Shorl term employee benefits 50 54
Service cost in relation to defined benelit pension schemes ) 02 0.2
Equity-settlad share-based payments - 19 5%
21 1.5
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

S Staff costs continued

Staff casts
The Group's equity-setiled sharc-based payments comprise the Long-Term incentive PlanllJlPlﬂ:s: Matching Share Plan [MSP), the Fund Managers'
Perfermance Plan (FMPP] and various savings related share oplion schames.

The Company expanses an estimate of how many shares are likely to vest based on the marke? price al the date of grant on (22 June 2018} taking
account of expecied performance against the relevant performance targels and senvice pariods which are discussed in burther detail in the
Remuneration Repori.

For all schemes except the Company's Long-Terts Incentive Plan share oplions, the fair value of awards are equal o the market vatue at gramt date.
The keyinputs used to value share oplions using a Black-Sdwles madel granted under the Cempany s Long-Term Incentive Plan are shown below.

Long-Term byweentive Plar: Awards in the year emded 31 March 2017 n%:l‘:
Share price and exercise price at grant date ’ p
Expected option life in years ' 5
Risk tree rate . 9%
Expecied volatitity 7%
Expected dvidend yield &%
Valye per opiior _ : B3p

Movemnenis in shores and oplions are given in noele 20,
9 Pensions

The British L and Group of Companies Pension Scheme [ihe scheme | is the prindpal delined benelit pension scheme in the Group. The assets of
the schewne are held in a truslee-administered fund and kept separate [rom those of the Company. It is not contracted out of SERPS [State Earnings-
Related Pension Scheme) and it is not planned 1o admit new employees to the scheme. The Group has three gther small defined benefit pension
schemes. There is also a Defined Contribution Pension Scheme. Contributions to this scheme are at & Aat rate of 15% of salary lor non-Directars
and are paid by the Company.

The tolal net pension cost charged for the year was £ 7m [2015/16: £7ral, of which L4m [2015/16: £4mn relales io defined contribution plans
and £3m {2015/16: £3m relates to the current service cost of the defined benefit sch

A Full acwarial valuation of the scheme was carried out at 31 March 2015 by consulling actuanies, ADN Hewitt Assodates Ltd. The employer’s
contributions witl be paid in the fulure at the raie recommended by the actuary of 72.9% per annum of basic salaries. The best estimate of employer
contributions expecled to be paid during the year to 31 March 2018 is £5m. The major assumglions used far the actuarial valuation were:

2017 . i1¢ . B 214 013

! %Npa Epa %pa % pa % pa

Discound rate 24 3z 3 £.4 &1

Salary inflation &9 £8 48 5.2 K7

Pensions increase a3 3z 32 35 31

Price inflalion 34 - 33 33 37 32
The marlalily assumptions are based on standard mortality tables which altow for future martalily impr 5. The ipliens are that a

member curtently aged &0 will live on average for a further 29.7 years if they are male and for a further 31.7 years il they are fermale. For a member
who retires in 2037 at age 60. the assumplions are that they will live on average lor 2 further 31.7 years after retirernent if they are male and for a
further 33.2 years alter relicement if Ihey are fernale.

Composition of scheme assels
7 2014
) €m £m
Equities ' &0 52
Diversiied growth funds 84 77
Other assels ] ‘ 10 ‘8
Total scheme assets 154 137

The vasl majority of the scheme assets are guoted in an active market,
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9 Pensions continued
The arnount induded in the balance shael arising from the Group's abligations in respett of 15 dafined banafit scheme is as follows:

an7y e 23 201 213

o . Cm Em O [ tm
Present vatue of definad scheme obligabions ' ' R | U5 17 L 17 I}
Fair value of schame assets ’ 154 137 137 131 120
Irrecoverable surplus n _ - . - 8l m

Liability recognised in the balance sheet ‘ 03l tsl {5l - -

The sensitivitizs of the defined benafit obligation in relalion lo the major actuanal assumplions used to messure scherme Liabilities are as follows: .

el s gt
. Changain 2007 0
Discount rate - ' . ' - +B5% e} {14}
Salary inflation - ' +I.5% 1 i
Pensions increase ' 5% 5 174
Price inflation ) . . - +0.5% 17 13
History of experience gains and losses

a7 0% 15 il l e 2013

Tolal actuarial toss recognised in the consolidated stalement of comprehensive income®
A " . ) ] N2} m - s 12 18}
Percentage of present value on scheme tiabilities B ) 7.2% 0.7% 3.6% 1.6% 31%

! Moverments staled after adjusting for imectverability o any surplus.
? Cumulative loss recogressd in the statement of comprehensive income is ££9m [201514: B?ml
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Fipancial staccients

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

9 Peansions continued

Movamenis in the present value of defined benehii shligations wara as follows:

my Wik
. £&m Tm
AL April ) ' 1% ] 1145}
Current service ¢ost ) 3%
Interest cost . ' i5) s
Acluariat floss) gain
(Loss) gain from change in financisl assumptions . : 291 4
Gain on schame liabilies arising from experienca : [ 3
Benelils paid ) 7 3
At 31 March ' ' 17 a3
Movernents in the fair value of the scheme assets were a5 lotlows:
- 7 s
€m &
AU April . w7 1
Interest incame an scheme assels ' & &
Contributions by employer 7 4
Actuarial gain [loss! . ' n 7]
Benefits paid , . . 51 i3f
At31 March - e 137

Through its defined benefit plans, tﬁe Group is exposed lo a number of risks, the mosi significan! of which are delailed below:

Asset volatility

The liabitities are calculated using a discount rate sel with 3 reference (o corparate hond yields: if assets underperform this yield, this will create
a deficil. The scheme holds a signiicant portion of growth assets lequilies and diversified growth funds] which. although expecied to oulperfoim
corporate bonds in the long term, create volatility and risk in the short term. The allecation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains
appropriate given the scheme’s long term objectives.

Changes in bond yields
Adecrease in corporale bond yields will increase the vatue placed on the scheme’s liabilities for accounting purposes, atthough this wilk be partially
affsel by an increase in the value of the scheme's hond holdings.

InRation risk

The magarity of the scheme’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities laithough, in mos! cases,
caps an the level of inflationary increases are in placé to peotect against extreme inflation). The majority ol the assels are gither unaffected by or
only loosely correlated with inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit. ’

Life expectancy

The majority of the scheme’s obligations are to provide benelits for the lile of the member. sa increases in ife expeclancy will resull in an increase
in the liabilities.
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10 Property

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2017

Inwestmient
trveshment
and
Office= & Canads devalopment Qumer-
Retal  ressdontad Vizer Dowlopments — propests ratng  ooouged
Leval 3 Leved 3 Lel 3 Leovel 3 Leveld puperiies Lt Tawal
£m fm & o m 1, ] {m . tm
Carrying value at 1 April 2014 547 3,436 256 334 9443 325 ] 10,053
Additions s
- progerty purchases a0 - 8 - &8 - - [}
- development expenditure ‘ 12 & 10 55 a1 56 - 137
- capitalised interest and stafi cosls - - 2 3 5 5 - 10
- capital expendilure on asset .
managerment iniiztives 82 ¥ 1 - ” - - 92
' ' 74 =] 2 58 264 8 - a7
Deprediation - - - - - - 1] 1)
Disposals (624) 9 - m [s70) 28) - 16%8)
Rectassifications - m 7 2m 7 n - -
Revaluations induded in income statement es) 5N i 3% 144 - - 44
Movernent i tenant incentives and conlracled )
rent uplift balances {41) i8) - - (3] 1 - [13:1]
Carrying value at 31 March 2017 5.021 3,616 284 150 2073 33-‘ 74 7.501
Head lease liabilities [note 15] , tad)
Valualion surplus on trading properties 83
Group property portfolio valiation at 31 March 2017 9520
Mon-controliifig interesls . {310}
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2017 attributable to shareholders 9.0
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Finanvial statcetents

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 Property continued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2816

imvestment
Imvestment
aed
Nau= & Canada development
Retall  resiential Waler Developments  properties Trading Cwvasi -
Level 3 Level3 Levl 3 [P k) Leweld proparties - coupied Tolak
&m trn m, &m - £m & tm &m
Carrying value at i Agril 2015 5584 2902 249 385 9120 222 60 9L5L
Additions:
~ properly purchases & 234 .- - 233 - - 238
~ devalopment expendiame 4 & 1 43 54 3 - "3
- capitalised interest and staff costs - - 1 3 4 5 - 9
- capital expenditure on asset )
management initiatives 9§ 2 1 - 14 - - 14
Vi 264 3 48 £12 &4 - &£756
Depreciation - - - - - - L] m
Uisposals {372} 1301 - ey 509] iy - 1520}
Reclassifications 135 Fzs - nra 0s) v 7 ~
Revaluations indiuded in income stalement 15} 39 4 92 ST - - 313
Revaluatian included in GC) - - - - - - 7 19
Movernant in lenant inceniives and contracled
rent uplift batantes © 10 7 - ~ L - - 1%
Carrying value at 31 March 2016 55617 3.436 256 334 9.643 375 95 10,063 .
Head lease liabilities Inote 15] L ’ 37
Valuation surplus on trading properties a5
Sruup preperty purtfolio valuatinn at 31 March 2016 : 1111
Non-controfling interests ' 1326)
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 9,787
Property valuation

The different valuation method levels are defined below:

Level¥: Quoted prices !unadlusladl in aclive markets for identicat assets or liabilities.

LevelZ: Inputs other than queted prices included within Level 1 thal dre observable for the asset or liability. either direcilyfie. as pneesl
‘gr indirectty {i.e. derived from pricesh

Level3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not bssed on ehservable market dala lunobservable inputs).

These evels are specified in accordance with {FRS 13 ‘Fair Vatue Measurement’. Property valuations ace inherzally subjective as they are made
on the basis of assumptions made by the valuer which may not prove Lo be accurate. For these reasons, and consistent with EPRA's guidance. we
" have dassified the valuations of aur property portfolso as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13. The inpuls to the valuations are defined as “uhohservable”
by IFRS 12 and these are analysed in 2 table o the following page. There were no iransfers between levels in the period.

The Group's tolal property portiolio was valued by external valuers on the basis of fair value, in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Professional
Standards 2014, ninth edition. published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The information prmnded 1o the valuers, and the otions ang val 1s models used by the valuers are reviewed by the pmp&rly portiolio
team, the Head of DHices. the Head of Retail and the Chief Financial Officer. The valuers meet with the exlernal auditors and also present direcily
ta the Audit Commtiee al the intarim and year end review of results. Ferther details of the Audit Committee's responsibiliies in relation o
valuations can be found in the Repart of the Audit Cormmittes [on pages 67 10 79).

Investment praperties, excluding properties held for develapment, are vakued by adopling the ‘investment method’ of valuation. This approach
involves applying capitalisation yields o cusrent and future rental sleeams net of income veids arising from vacandies or rent-free periods and
associated running costs. These capitalisation yields and future rental values are based on comparable property and teasing transactions in the
market using the valuers’ professional judgament and market ohservation. Other faclors taken into account in the valuations include the lenure
of the property. tenancy detaits and ground and structural conditions.
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10 Property continued

in the case of engoing developrnenls, the approach applied is the residual methoed’ of valuation, which is the investmant method of valuation as
desaribed above. wilth a deduction for 2l cosis necessary to complelz the development. including a notional finance cosl, logether with a further

allowance for remaining risk. Propzriies held for development are generatly valued by adopting the higherof the residual method of valuation,

allowing for all assodatad risks, or the investiment method of valiation for the existing assel. .

Copies of the valuation certificaies of Knight Frank LLP, CBRE and Jenas Lang EaSatle can be found at www_britishtand comfreports

A breakdown of vatuations splil between the Group and its share of joint ventures and funds is shown below:

o s
Jaint Szt
venitures VETRUTES.
Group and funds Total Group and dunds Toml
Knight Frank LLP 7.031 2,883 .Ns 1529 157 1165
CERE 2,489 1,380 3889° 2582 1.361 3943
Jones Lang LaSalle : - 538 538 - - -
Total property portfolio valuation 9,520 4,807 14,321 101 £937 15048
Non-controlling interasts 310} - 7Y (381 [324] 175} . laoui
Total property purtfolio valuation ’
attributable to shareholders 2210 £730 13,940 $.287 £861 14648
Information abaut fair value medsurements using unobservahle inputs [Level 3] for the year ended 31 March 2017
Fair a ERV per sq it . Equivalent Yield Cusls to complote por sq ft
I March 2017 Valuation Win Max  Average Min Max Avrage MEn | Max  Avorage
tvestment &m technique £ [ t % Sb % £ £ 4
’ irvestment
Retail £,987 methodology 2 77 prd 1 1 5 - 48 &
. lrvesiment
Olficest? : 3,695 methodology 7w 54 4 . 7 5 - 50 20
. Irvestrment
Canada Water 271 methodology 15 25 22 2 3 3 - 18 10
Residuat
Developments? 150 methodology 18 2 54 2 [ 4 - 816 508
Total : 9.103
Trading properiies
atfair value | 417
Group pruperty
portiolio vatuation 9.520
* {actudes uwfner-occupied. - .
? Includes Residential with an average capital vatue per sq It of (981 induding daveloprents at end value and mirxed use.
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NQOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 Property continued

Information about fair vatue measurements using unobservablte inputs (Level 3} for the year ended 31 March 201

Fair at - ERV per sqt Eqeaiont Yedd Costs locomplate per s )
34 March Hs Valuation Min May  fuerage Mn Max  Average Min Mar  Awrage
ettt Em technigue £ £ £ k3 k- % € . 3 [ S
- Envesiment ' ’ -
Retail 5.608 methodology Z [4) 22 3 1 5 - 45 8
* lewastment
Offices ©2 3.492 methodology [ 135 53 i 8 4 - 150 5]
Investonent
Canada Waier 250 mathodology 15 25 22 1 3 3 - 5 4
Rasidual
Deelapments? 343 methodology | &5 107 3 4 5 & - b4 £87
Total 9.493
Trading properties
at lair vatue 418
Group property )
portfolio valyation 10111 . -

' indudes gwner-occupied.
2 indudes Residantial with an 2veraga capital value par sq ft of £1.028 including davelopments al end valuz 3¢ eoed use.

taformation about the impact of changes in unobservabte inputs (Level 3) on the fair value of the Group's property portiolio for the year‘ended
31 March 2017

Fair value 2t Impacton W mpact on » 3 Impact on valuations
3 March 217 +5% ERV -&% ERV -ZShps NEY  +25bps NEY -7 costs +5% costs
X £m m &n €m £m £m m
Retait ' ' 4,987 27 f2s8) a5y i3 nla nfa
Offices’ . 4Nz 284 1278} 393 3521 nfa nfa
Canada Water : n i) [ib] 20 un n/a nfz
Development 150 9 n - 13l 5 i9)
Group proparty portfotio valuation 9520 580 {544} 772 (689 5 9

!includes rading properties at fair value.

inforrnation about the impact of changes in unobservable inputs [Level 3) on the fair value of the Group’s property portiolio for the year ended
31 March 2016

Fair alue 5t Impact onwaluations Ipact on vaualions Impact on valuatigns

31 March 2016 SRERY  GBEV  2psMEY ShgsMIY  Sheoosts +Shosts

. m m [T0] Em Ermy Em {m

Relail 5,408 136 124] 206 1an nfa nfa
Gifices! 3910 e 13041 £70 1470l ala nfa
Canada Water 250 n fin o 19l nfa nfa
Developments 343 24 [24) 9 f8) 12 [12)
Group pruperty portfolio valuation 1014 489 [663) 708 [634] g [12)

! Includes rading propeihes at lair value.

5
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10 Property continued

All ether faciors being aqual:

- ahigher equivalent yield or discount rate would lead to a decrease in Lthe valuation of an assal;

- anincrease in the current or estimated future rental stream would have the effect of inoreasing the capital value: and

- ahncrease in the costs to comgplets wauld lead to a decrease in the valuation of an asset.

Howseser, there are interrelationships between the unchservable inpuis which are partially determined by rarked condiions. which would impact
an these changes. There were no transfers between valuation levels in the pariod.

Additianal property disclasures — induding covanant information

AL31 March 2017, the Group property portiolio valuation of £9.520m |2015/16: £10,111m] comprises lreeholds of £5.576m 2015/16: £6,184m; mrl.ual
ireeholds of [BI%m (2015416 [785mi and long leaseholds of C£3,135m (2019/16 £3,02 im}. The hisloricat oost of properties was 06,024m [2895/16: T6,544m].
The propesty valuation does not include any investmant properlies held under operating leases [2013416: Endl

Cumulative interest capitalised against investment_ developmant and trading properties amounts to £%5m 12015/16: £88ml.

Properties valued at £1,682m {2015/15. (2.559m] were subject to a security interest and other propariies of non-recourse companies amounted
to £1.158m [2015/16: £1_244m). tolalling £3.040m (2015/14: £3.803ml.

Included within the propedty valuation is £62m 12015/14: £110mlin respect of accrued contracted rental uplilt income. The balance arises through the

IFRS treatmen of leases conlaining such arrangements. which requires the recognition of rental incusnz on 2 straight-tine basis over the lease term,
with the difference between this 2nd the cash receipt changing the carrying value of ihz property agains! which revaivations are measurad.

11 Joint ventures and funds

Summary movement for the year of the investments in joint ventures and funds

mm Funis Total Equty Loans Total

£rn Em Em £m Em tm

At 1 Agril 2_016 3.10% 264 3353 2833 520 3,353

Additions - 59 3 &2 B &} &% &2

Disposals 30 - (30] - £30i 1301

Share of prolit on ordinary activities after taxation ) &4 8 52 52 - 52
Distributions and dividends: I .

- Capital . 73 - 73) 173 - mnl

- Revenue . - 1451 sl s 159) - 159}

Hadging and exchange movaments 1 - 1 1 - 1.

Reclassification of venhure as held for sate asset [see page 124] - [540] - (5400  [355) ligs] (540)

At 31 March 2017 2525 261 2,764 2812 356 2744

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant information

Al 3t March 2017 the investments in joint ventures inctuded within the total investments in jaint ventures and funds and joint venlure held lor sale was
£3,299m [2015/16: £3,348m), being the £2.766m lotal investment shown above, plus the £54Dm joint veniure held for sale, tess the nel investment of
£7n [2005/16: L9n] in PREF. 3 property fund in Continental Eurape.
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Financial statements

NOTES 1O THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds

The summarisad income statemenls 2nd balance shests belvw and on the ﬁullmmng page show 180% of the resulls, assels ang babtibes o poant
ventures and funds. Whare necessary these have besn restated 1o the Group's acooenting pelicies.

Joint ventures” and funds’ summary financial sla‘leﬂ_luits fur the year ended 31 March 2017

Broadgate MSC Property 81 Szinshury
= Tlammediate Sarpersires - Temoo Mo
Lad? ings Lid L emtures?
Norges Bank
Furo Blusbelt LLP Irvestment
Partazrs IGICY Management J Sainsbury plc Tesce PLE
CityOffices  Shopping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhall Supersiores Suparsiores
Group share S0% 50% - S0%
- d i sk R L Em Tm L1
P— 268 99 & 9
Costs 52) iz3) - -
193 76 &9 L\
Administrative expenses ~ - - 21
Net interes| payable 182} - 1351 21 §9)
Underlying Profit m A 28 8
Met valuation mavament s} )] (asl [¥xy]
Capital financing cosls - - na -
Profit on disposal of investment properties and invesbmenlts - - 3 13
Loss) profit on ordinary aclivities before laxation 174) 40 127] 124)
ign - - - 2
{Lossl prafit on ardinary activities after taxation {741 40 [Fi/] (z2}
Other comprehensiva incorne 1 - - 1
Total comprehensive income 73 40 1271 21
British Land share of total comprehensive lexpense] income 1 20 st 1ol
British Land share of distributions payabl 2 7 55 &
Sumumarised baance sheets . E&m Em Em £
Investment and trading properties £A78 1842 8% 325
Current assets 2 5 - -
Cash and deposils 2%0 37 17 2
Gross assels 4770 1.984 786 327
Current liabilities 1851 1] 1222 12
Bank and securitised deht . [1.795) {668) 3&7) 183]
Loans from joint venture pariners (357 3] - -
Other non-curcent iabilities 154) 123) - 14)
Gross Liabilities . 12,2950 11.049) 1389 [kl
Net assets 2475 835 397 T 134
* British Land shara of net assets less shareholdat loans. 1.237 &7 199 &8

! Included wilhin Lhe Bma!lgale REIT net
uE5 Br

115 2 £20m p

. and sub vacation of 100 Liverpaol Street, including 8-10 Broadgate.

1 ‘.’m jointvertures inctude BLT Holdings {20101 Limited as a1 31 March 2017,
3 USS joint venlures include the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Farcharmn Property Partnarship.
1 The Leadenhall column shows the equity accounted prufit and loss lor {h period. Due to tha transaclion which exchanged in March 2012, the nel investmant in this

venjure was reclassilied as a held lor sale assel lsea page 124).

received i December 2016 from UBS A G. in relation 10 the devalppment and,

* Hercites Unit Trust joint verdures and sub-lunds includes 509 of the resulls of Deegdale Co-Dwnership Trust, Gibraltar Limited Partnershipand Valantine

Co-@wnership Trust and £1.25% of Birstall Co-Dwnership Trust, The balance sheet shows 50% of the assets of these joint veatures and sub-funds,

¢ Included in the column headed Omer joint ventures and funds’ are contributions from the following: BL Goodman Limited Parinership, The Aldgate Place Limited

Partrarship, Blueb

UK Limited. City of London Gifice Unit Trust and Pilfar Retait Europark Fund {PREF]. The Group's ownership

share of PREF is 65%, however as lheGrnup is frot able to exertise control aver significant dedsons of the fund, the Geoup equity actounts for ils interest in PREF,
7 Rewenue inclydes gross rental income al, 100% share of £437m (2015/14; £431m],

120 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017



uss Leadenhatl Hemudas Uind Truss Othesr Tatal
Tha SouthGate Limited Joink Holding Co juint veriuTes o vendures Totat Sy share
Partnarship Ventares® Dersey L and sub-funds* and tuds 2017 2007
Universities ’
Superannustion
Aviva Scheme Growp Oxford
Investors PLC Properties
Shopping Shopping City Offices Retall
Centres Centres Leadenhatt Parks
50% 50% 50% Varigus
£m Con m tm i m £m
17 14 &3 35 1 522 240
5] {51 {16] 14) 1] 100} . 50}
12 ? 33 3 - £22 210
[y} - - - 11 19 2
(11} - - {3 - 152) {78)
10 9 " k< 77 (111 265 132
L[] /] w7 163 - nast 193)
- - - - - 12 [13]
- - - - 34 34 18
& 2 140 1" B 105 51
~ - - - - 2 1
£ 2 140 1t 33 107 52
~ - - - - 2 1
& 2 140 n 13 109 53
2 1 70 5 7 53
1 - 5 1% 4 132
Em Em €m £m Em £m £m
264 247 - 403 1 8529 4,265
1 1 3 52 84 32
8 7 - 5] 25 399 200
273 255 - 418 a 8992 L4.497
[{1] 14} - no 9l (192) 194]
~ - - - nan - 3,153} 5
- 122) -~ - 2| 708} {354)
128) - - 1] - sl (s8]
(32} 128) - 53 {3 " 14,3481 12,0851
241 227 - 463 50 4,824 2,412
12 114 - 2N 25 2,412

The borrowings of joint ventures and funds and their subsidiaries are non-recourse to the Group. All joint veniures are incorporated in the United Kingdom, with

tha excaption of Broadgate REIT Limited, the Eden'Waltk Shopping Cenbre Unil Trust and Leadenhal Holding Co | lerseyl Linnited which are incorpoerated in Jersey.

Dithe funds. the Hertules Unit Trust FHUT] joint ventures and sub-Tunds are incorporaled in Jarsey and PREF in Luxemnbourg.

These financial stalements include the results and financial position of the Group's interest in the Fareham Property Partnership. the Aldgate Ptace Limiled Parinasrship.
. the B Goodman Limited Partnership, the Auchintea Partnership and the Gibraltar Limited Parinership. Accordingly, advantage has been taken of the exemptions
provided by Regulation 7 of the Partnership lAccounts] Regulations 2008. nat Lo altach the partnership accounts to these financial statements.
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Fingneixl staeemenes

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

The summarisad income statements and balance sheets below and on the foilowing page show 100% of the resulls, sssets and liabilities of joint
ventures and {unds. Where necessary these have been restated to the Group's accounting policies.

Joint ventures” and funds’ summary financial statements for the year emded 31 March 2016

Broadgate MSC Propevty Bl Samshry .
RET Intarmadiale Supariares Teson dang
Lad Holdings Lid Lixd Vertures!
Morges Bank
. Euro Bluebell LLP investment
Partners IGICI Manag i J Sainsbury plc Tesco PLT
‘ CiuyOffices  Shopping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhall Superstoras Superstores
Group share 50% 5% 50% 50%
£m €m £m £m
Revenue® 284 162 54 v
Casts - {48} 231 1] r =
196 74 35 ¢
Administrative expenses - - - -
Net interest payable [84) 38) {24) 9
Undertying Profil 311] &3 n 10
Met valuation mgvement 334 50 38l v]]
Profit on disposal of invesiment properties and investments = - 2 -
£rofit on ordinary activities belore taxalion 464 93 [5)] 1
Taxalion - - - 1
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 444 [ 13 2
Dther comprehensive income {expanditure] -5 - - 3
Total comprehensive income L49 93 13 5
British Land share of total comprehensive income 225 L] 21 3
British Land share of distributions payable ’ A4 7 n 4
Summarised balance sheets Em £ £m £m
Irvestment and rading properties ) 4622 1.784 946 354
Current assets ‘ ) & 5 2 -
Cash and deposits 233 32 80 [
Gross assels L% 1,823 1.028 340
Current liabilities 7 an © RY &
Bank and securitised deht {1842} {6941 (153 {ig4}
Loans from joint venture gactners [xX}i] 1261 - -
Other non-curvent liabilities 165} f26) - \F]
Gross lighilities 2,315) 11,010} 15921 1202}
Netassets 2,604 813 534 158
British Land share of net assets less shareholder loans 1,302 407 268 79
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Lesdantol Hernutizs Ut Teust

The SouthGate Limitad jﬁ Hokfing Co ot veninges join mm:-; Yot mﬁ :
_ Partnership Ventunes® Liarseyl Led and sub-funds” -and funals® 08 06
Universities
Supergnnuation
Aviva Schame Group Oxford
Investors PLC Properties
Shopping , Shuopping City Gffices Retail
Centres . Centres Leadenhall Parks
50% 50% 50% Varigus
&m £m Gn Em T £m €
19 2 35 a8 b sn 286
16) 131 10) 171 £t 9 {44)
1 ?- sl n 5 432 n
1} - 4] 16} 2 i 5)
1 - - {8l - {144) {82)
" ] 24 17 3 259 135
& 122 12¢ 4 7 490 245
- - - - 30 32 L)
1] 21 18 n 40 780 e
- - - - . [ 121 1]
. 15 2 148 n 37 778 397
- - - V] - & 3
15 21 s 1% 7 784 400
8 n 74 10 25 400
4 [ 3 59 .n 179
frn £m - Em £m & £m €m
267 252 942 &2 108 9,809 4,964
2 1 - & 14 32 1]
5 7 5 9 33 &£70 39
274 240 947 §25 155 10 5,201
4] 18} 18] ¥ 15 1215 fm)
- - - {139 - 3,321} 1,660)
- 201 3451 - 1431 1,640] 15240)
128l L - - 14) gl ns4) ™
{321 {28] {3711 {1501 132) 14,730 {2.388)
242 234 576 &75 23 5,861 2,833
121 Wz . 288 9 12 2,831
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

Joint venture held for sale ' .

On 1 March 2017 Ihe Group exchangad conditional contracls on an agresment to selt s inleresl in t 2agenhall Holding Co Uarseyj Limitad,

2 jnint venture with Oxford Proparties. The ransaction is expeciad o complete i the first hatf of the naxt finandal year. and therefors the nel
investment in Lhe joint verdure has bean recegnised as a held-for-sale asset from the date of exchange. The net invesiment 2s at 31 March 2017
is summarnised below :

Joint venture held for sate - summarised balance sheet for the year ended 31 March

=i
. am? 2014
) o €n
lnwvestment property - 1075 -
Current assels ' . 7 -
Current liabilities ' : ha -
Leans from joint venture partners [<ral] ~
Net assots % -
British Land share of net assots less shareholder 10ans 55 -
Operating cash flows of joint ventures and funds [Group share]
n7 018
£m Tin
Rentalincome raceived from lenanis . ' 07 208
Fees and ather income received - 1
Operating expensss paid to suppliars and employzes : 1200 {18}
Cash generated from operations 187 M
interest paid ' (84) 124)
Interest received : 1 1
UK corporalion lax paid 121 [ x1]
Foreign tax paid . . ‘ - 1]
Cash inflow fromn operating activities © 102 102
Cash inflow from operating activities deployed as: .
Surplus cash retained within joint venlures and funds 43 44
Revenue distributions per consolidated statemen of cash Aows 59 58
R distributions split ety controlling and non—<controtling interests
Atiributabte lo nan-controlling imerests & L1
Attributabte to shareholders of the C Y 55 54
12 Other investments
: 207 216
Loans, Invesitnent Loans,
heldfor  recetvables haldfor  recehables
trading and other Tatat rading and atlver Tetal
€&m £m tm Emn £m Em
Al 1 Aprit ’ 10 & 142 9% 280 379
Additions - 25 35 - 35 a5
Disposals - 12) 12) - 1273 1272}
Revatualion . 8l - (8 2 - r
Depreciation - 3 3 - {2l 2)

Al 31 March . 93 [} 154 101 At © 142

The investment held for trading comprises interests as 3 trust beneficiary. The Lrust's assels comprise freehold reversions.in 3 pool of commercial
properlies, comprising Sainsbury's supersiores. The interest was categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hiecarchy. is subjectio the same inputs as
hose disclosed in note 18, and its fair vatue was determined by the Oirectors, supported by an external valyation.
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13 Debtors

m7 by

&m Em

Trade and other debtors s 24
Depasits received relating to hetd for sale assel’ . 144 -
Prepayments and acorued income B 5 ?
‘ m 33

' Retaizs 1o deposi received on held for sate jind vendure ransacion isze nke lllmaaWammmdMsmwm
guaranieed as al the balance shasei date.

Trade and other debtors are shown after deducting a provision for bad and doubtful debts of E14m {201 5/16: E14m}k. The charge to the income
skatament in reation 1o had and doubtlut dabts was £im |2015I16 fim)

" The Direclors consider that the carrying amount of lrade and othec deb{ors is approximate o their fair vatue. There is no concentration of oredit
rish with resgect Lo Irade debiors 55 the Group has a karge nember of customers who are paving thair rend in advange.

As at 31 March, lrade and othar deblors oulside their paymanl lerms yet not provided for are as follows:

Wathin ot 1-2  Marethm

Tolad orefit terms morth manths 2menths.

2037 . 2 ? 9 & 2

2014 ' ' 2 12 n- 1 -
14 Creditors

an7 2016

£m o

Trade creditors ' . ‘ ' 127 39

Deposits received relating to held for sale asset® 144 -

Other taxation and social secunty : 32 34

Accruats : 83 72

Deferred income - . 72 73

458 218

! Relates \o deposit received on held lor sate joint venturz transaction [ses note III mcngmsedasafmanual llabiny the realisation of which is conditional and nol
quarantezd as al the batance sheet date. )

Trade crediters are inleresi-Free and have settlement dates within one year The Direciors consider that the carrying amount of irade and other
credilors 1S appracmale 1o their fair value.

15 Other non-current liabilities

a7 218

£m m

Other creditors . ' ' o o ] 70
Head leases' &5 Y3
el pension liabilities ' " 13 4
T 122

' Includes Enil in relation to head tease Labilities on rading properties held at cost {2015/14: £9m).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tax
The rovament on defermed 1ax is as shown below:

Deferved tax assets year ended 31 March 2017

' 1Ap CreEed tov Crodiied Wabited) Yransierred to 3 March
‘ . . s notTee toequity corporaton tax 7
' £m £m £m i €m
Interest rale and currancy derivative revaluations 5 n : - - 4
QOther tirning dillerences : ) ] 1 - - 7
" - - - n
Deferred tax Gabiliies year ended 31 Manch 2017
£m €m | £m £m €m
Property and imvestment revaluations m - - - m
tnterest rate and cusrency derivative revaluations - - - - -
Other timing differences . - ~ 1 -
: 18) - - 1 ' 1]
Netdeferred 1ax assets 3 - - 1 &
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2016
. 1Apdl Cretiied to  Credited [galited)  Translarad o 33 March
W5 ooTrae o eqaty jofat ventures 2016
fm Om Len m [£:1)
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluaiions - - , 5 - 5
Other tiring differences - & ~ - &
- & 5 - n
Deferred tax Gabilities year ended 31 March 2016 :
G am, rn Bl L.
Property and investment revaluations - - ia - m
Interest rate and currency derivalive revaluations 14l sl 21 - -
Other timing differences [&]] - - 2 m
ha 25 .23 2 . {8
Net deferred tax Hiability] assets 12 N bl 2 . 3

The following corporation 13x rates have been substantively endcted: 19% eflective from 1 Apnl 27 reducing to 17% effectiva from 1 April 2020,
The deferred tax assets and liabitities have been calculated at the 12x rate effective in the period that the tax is expacied 1o crystatlise.

The Group has recognised a deferred tax assel calculated at 17% [2015/16: 18%) of E5m 12005/16: Eéem)in fnsmsc! of capital losses from previous
years available for offset against lutute capital profit. Further unrecognised deferred tax assats in respact of capital losses of £129m [2015/15: £40mi
exist at 31 March 2017

The Graup has recognised delerred tax assels on derivative revalualions to the exteni that future matching taxable profils are expected to arise.

Al 31 March 2017, the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset calculated at 17% £2015/16: 18%)] of £50m (2015/16: (5im]in respect
of UK revenue tax losses from prevmus years.

Under the REIT regime, development pruperlles which are sold within three years of cornpletion do not benefit from tax exemption. A1 31 March 2017,

the value of such properties is {176 {2015/16; £967m] and if these pmpernes wese to be sold and no 1ax exemption was available, the tax arising
wiould be €13m (20157156 £56mi. .
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17 Netdebt

an? 2Ne
Footnate &m m
Secured on the assets of the Group
9.125% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 13 34 k!
5.264% First Mortgage Dabenture Bonds 20325 . n
5.8055% First Mortgage Amortising Debentures 2035 b 100
5.357% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 348 349
6.75% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 - 62
Bank loans 12,13 A7S 733
Loan notes 2 2
1,335 1691
Unsecured
5.50% Senior Notes 2027 102 L1}
3.875% Senior US Dollar Notes 2018 2 » 8
4.635% Senior US Doliar Notes 2021 2 m 145
4. 768% Senior US Dollar Notes 2023 2 k] 05
5.003% Senior US Dotlar Noles 2026 2 n 469
3.81% Senior Noles 2026 14 113
3.97% Senior Notes 2026 17 16
1.5% Convertible Bond 2017, 404 445
0% Converlible Bond 2020 o 334
Bank leans and nv;-_rdrafls £77 IXT4
. 1946 2110
Gross debt 3 3281 - 376t
interest rate and currency derivative tiabilities 144 137
Interest rate and currency derivative assets | {27 1167)
Cash and short term depasits 45 4} 4l
Total net debt 3,094 3.617
Net debi aliributable to non-controlling interesis {103 - {104)
Netdebt atiributable to shareholders of the Company m 3513
' Thess are non-recourse borrowings with no recourse for repay or assels in the Group:
m? 2016
i £m £
1.1 BLD Property Holdings Ltd 34 34
1.2 Hercules Unit Trust LTS5 443
1.3 THL Properlies Lunited and subsidiares - 790
509 767
2 Principal and interesl on these borrowings ware fully hedgad into Sterling at a floating rate al the m= of issue.
T The principat amommi of gross dabt at 31 March 2017 was £3.04%m [2015/16: £3.552ml. Included in this = the principal aenaun ol secured horrowings and other
borrowings of non-racoiirse coumpanies of £1.238m of which the borrgwangs of the partty-comed subsidiary, Hercules Unit Trusi_ not beaeficially ocwned by the
« mmcashand shofl tefm deposils is the cash and short term deposits of Hercules Unit Trust. of which £9m is the proportion nat beneficiaily owned
* g:gea?l?:::usim not subject to a securily interest amount to £99m (2015/18: £93ml. -
LS
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity analysis of net debt

m7? Foi1 1

[3 £&m

Repayable: within ere year and ondemand 484 74
Between: one and two years n 504
two and hive years ' 1,283 1691

five and ten years ' 783 807

ten and fileen years 132 =00

fitteen and twanty yaars 388 385

twenty and twanty five years - -

2817 3.487

Grossdebt : . 3.z 3.761
Interest rate and currency derivatives ) 39
Cash and short tertn deposils {114 il
Netdebt 3,09 3.617

1.5% Convertibte bond 2012 Imaturity 2017}
On 10 September 2012, British Land Llersey] Limitad [the 2012 Issuer}, a whotly-owned subsidiary of the Group, issued £E490 millicn 1.5% guaranteed
canvertibte bonds due 2017 {the 2012 bonds) at par, The 2012 Issuer is hully guaranteed by the Company in respact of the 2012 bonds.

Subject lo their terms, the 2012 bonds are convertible inte preference shares of the 2012 issuer which are automatiélty transferred to the Company in
exchanga for ordinary sharas in the Company or, 31 the Company's eleciion, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. Bondhelders may exerdse
their carwersion right at any time up to fbut excliding) the 20th dealing day before 10 Seplember 2017 lthe maturity datal.

The inilial exchange price was 9307 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusied based on ceriain evenls.

From 25 September 2015, the Company has the aption to redeer the 2012 bonds at par if the Company’s share price has traded above 136% of

the exchange price for a specified period. or al any time once 85% by nominal vatue of the 2012 bonds have been converted. redeemed, or purchased
and cantelied. The 2012 bunds will be redeemed al par on 10 Scptember 2017 {the matunity date} if they have nol already been converted, redeemed

or purchased and cancetled. No redemption of the bonds occurred in the yoar

0% Convertible bond 29!5 {maturity 2020)

On 9 June 2015, British Land iWhitel 2015 Limited fthe 2015 lssuer|, a whally-owned subsidiary of the Group, issued £350 million zero coupon

gquaranteed canvertible bands due 2020 lthe 2015 bonds] at par. The 2015 Issuer is hally guaraniced by the Campany in respecl of the 2015 bonds.
L

‘Subject 1o their terms. the 2015 bonds are converuble into preference shares of the 2015 issuer which are automatically irensterred to the Company
in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, al the Company s election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2015 up

to and including 29 June 2018, a bondbolder may exertise its conversion right if the share price has iraded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price far a specified period. Thereafter, and up 10 but excluding the 7th dealing day before 7 June 2020 lthe maturity date). a bendholder may convert
alany lime.

The initial exthange price was 1103.32 pénc‘e per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based an tertain events Isuch as the Company
paying dividends in any quarter above 3.418 pente par ordinary sharel. As at 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 1043 7% pence per ordinary share.

From 38 June 2018, the Company has the option lo redeem the 2015 bonds at par if the Company's share price has raded above 130% ol the
exchange price for a specified period, or at any time once B5% by nominal valua of the 2015 bonds have been conwerled, redeemed, or purchased
and cancelled. The 2015 honds will be redeemed at par on 9 Sune 2020 Ithe maturity date] if they have not already been converted. redeerned or
purchazed and cancelled.
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17 Net debt continued

Fair value and book value of net debt

o7 2016

Fairvatue Gookwaiue  Difference Farwatire Bookwiue  Diflerence

. . &m €m tm £ m &m

Oebantures and unsecured bonds 1682 1,590 2 1.637 1413 2%
Comestible bonds ) 737 - 779 E7s] -
Bank debt and other fleating rate deht %3 54 7 1.384 1.342 15
Gross debt ) 3382 3,281 101 3.860 3.761 39
{nteress rate and curmency darivative liabilities 154 184 - 137 137 -
Interest rate and currency derivative assets L Fay ] Fay)] - {1671 lsn -
Cash and short term deposils n4 mal - 1114) nal -
Netdeht 3195 2,094 101 3,656 3.617 ET)
Net debt aitribulable to non-controlling interests tws)  (we3) 7] nos) 1104} )
090 3.550 3.513 7

Met debt attributable ts sharsholders of the Company

.M 9

The fair values of debentures. unsecured bonds and the convertible bonds have been established by obiaining quoted matket prices from brokers.
The bank debl and aiher floating rate debt has been valued assurning it conld be rensgoiiated al contracied margins. The denvatives have boen
valued by catculating the present value of expecled future cash Rows, using appropnate markel discount rates, by an indepandent reasyry advisor,

Short term deblors and creditors and ather investments have been excluded from the disdlosures on the basis that the fair value is equivalent

1o the book value. The fair valuz hierarchy level {as defined in note 10} of dbl held at amorlised cost whose fair value is disclosed is level 2.

Group loan tovalue (LTV} .
mm? .11
£m Em
Group loan to value [LTV) ~ 2.48% 25. 2%
Principal amount of gross debt 3,049 3.552
Less debt attributable o non-controlling interasts 1z howl
Less cash and short lerm deposits [balance sheet) ma) M4
Plus cash attributable to non-controlling interests ? 8
Total net debt for LTV cateulation 2,852 3.337
Group property porticlio valuation [note 10] 92520 100
Invesiments in joint ventures and funds [note 11 2,765 3353
Joint venture held for sate Inote 111 540 -
Dther wwvestments (note 121 154 142
Less properly and investments attributable to non-controlling interests ’laul 1384)
Total assets for LTV calculation 12,6% 13.222
Proportionally cansolidated loan to value (LTV)
an? 206
m £m
Propartionally consolidated loan to vatue (LTV] 299% 321%
Principal amount of gross deht £,649 5217
Less debt atinbutable o non-conirolling inlerests 28 liz8i
{ ess cash and sharl term deposits 1323 £3531
Plus cash allributable o non-controlting interests 9 ki
Total net debt for proportional LTV calcutation £,207 8,745
Group property portfolio valuation [note 18] 9520 10,11
Share of property of joint ventures and funds inote 10] 4,801 4937
Other investments {note 121 154 142
Less other invastments attributable Lo joint ventures and funds (3 1&]
Less property attribulable to non-controlling interests {381] 14001
Total assets for proportional LTV calculation 14,01 14,788
2
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17 Net debt continued

British Land Unsecured Finandal Covenants
The lwo finencial cavenants applicable to the Graup unsecured dabt including comvertible bonds ave shown below-

an7 2816

£m fm

Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves . 2% . 4%
Principal amount of gross debt ‘ ' ‘ 3,059 3.552
Less the relevant proper tioh of lormowings of the parliy—nwned subsidiary/non-conlrolling interesis 2 fi0%)
Less cash and depasits fbalance sheei] _ ) il
Plus the relevant proportion of cash and deposits of the partly -owned subsidiary/non-conlrolling interesis ? 8
Net Borrowitgs . , ' 2852 3337
Share capital and reserves [hatance sheet] . 9475 9.419
EPRA delerred tax adjustment {EPRA Tabte A} 3 5
Trading property surpluses [(EPRA Table Al : . 83 73
Exceplional refinanding dharges isee belowl . : ' 275 287
Fair vatue adjustments of financial instruments {EPRA Tahte Al : 55 198
Less reserves attributable to non-controlling intevests [balance sheel) - lass) 2
Adjusted Capital and Reserves . 9734 9975

In calculating Adjustad Capitat and Reserves for the purpose of the unsecured dabt financial covenants, there is 2a adjustment of £274m (2015/16:
£287m] to reflect the curmstative nat amoriised exceplional ilems relating to the refinancings in the years. endad 31 Marnch 2605, 2006 and 2007.

2007 2006
€m m
Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unentumbered Assets : . 28% 9%
Prncipat aimount of gross de=bt . . 3,089 1552
Less cash and deposits not subject to a security interest [being £99m less the relevant proportion of cash and depesits of the tos) {88l
partly owned subsidiaryfaon-controlling interests of C3m| .
Less principal amount of secured and non-recourse bormowings 11,238) 1,563}
Net Unsecured Borrowings - 1,735 1901
Group property portiolio valuation Inote 10 9,520 1011
Invesimens in joint ventures and funds lnote 11] : : : : 2,756 3353
Joint venture held for sate lnote 111 S0 . -
Other investmenis Inote 12] ) 154 142
Less inweslments in joint ventures and joint venlure held tor sate [nole 11 13,2991 13,348
Less encumbered assets [note 10] . 13,040 (3.8031
Unencumbered Assets ) ) 6,641 6.455
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17 Net debt continued

Reconciliation of movement in Broup net debt for the year ended 31 March 2017

: Armangrmeat
Formigh osis
Shorl lerm bormowings N ' "% 174) Frvs = - ' - &84
Long term borrowings - 3,687 (423 1454) 49 (x73] A 2,817
Derivatives® (30) 1 - 48l 4 - m
Total Labililies from finanang actvilies 3,73 1£948) - 1 32 £ 3,208
Cash and cash equivalents (& - - - - - - 4
MNetdebt . 3,597 [496) - 1 32) & 3.094
Reconciliation of movement in 6royp net debt for the year ended 31 March 2018
B SavangEmE
Fareign ..o 3
205 Cashisax Transfars? exthamge Farvaiee  amostzsabion ms
Shori term borrowings _ 102 Ho4) 7 2 - - 7%
Long term borrawings 3.847 198) 178) 1% % 7 3487
Derivatives® 13 22 = il 128 - 301
Total tiabilities from financing scivities ) 3936 (180l - '3 £3s) 7 373
Cash and cash equivalenis hosl 16l - - - - 14)
Netdeht . _ 3828 {188} - 3 1351 7 367
} Gash Aows on derivatives indude £14m of ret recaipls on dornativeinterest,
? Cash flows on derivatwes incude E7m of net recepls on dierivative indanest.
* Transfars owmprisas dabt mahring from long lerm Ho shor teem borreerings.
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¥7 Net debt continued

Fair value hierarchy

The iable below provides an analysis of finandal instrumants carried a1 fair value, by the valuation mathod . The fair valus hisrarchy levels ate defined

i note 10. :
207 2014
Level 1 Level 2. Level 3 Totad Leved 1 Lewl?  Leel3 Tesat
£m £m £m £m . Im 1] frn m
Interest rate and currency derivative assels - 27} - 21 - (1671 - s
Other invesimants - avaitable for sale 118) - - (314] - - - -
Other invesiments - held fer irading - - 93 93} - - o hown
Assets 4 [Fak] (2] 324 - el hoy 1268}
interest rate and cumency derivative babilities - 164 - 144 - 137 - 137
Comvertitle bonds ™ - - prs 79 - - T
Liabilities 737 144 - 851 i 137 - 216
Total ) 23 73) 73} 7 il _ 1301 Hot 648
Categories of inancial instrumants .
2017 2018
m £m
Finandal assets
Fair vatue through intome statement
Other invesiments - held for trading 73 1t
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 215 166
Derivatives not in designated hedge acrounting relatianships 2 3
Loans andreceivables
Debtors 146 24
Cash and short term deposits - 14 1M
(iher investments - loans and receivables [ &
451 447
Financial Labilities
Fair value through income statemeant.
Convartible honds h 7371 (779t
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting retatinohships 143) na7)
Derivatives notin designated acceunting relationships (}3] -
Amuortised cost
Gross dett (2.544) t2.982
Head leases payable [&4) {64]
Creditors . {373) [v331
) 13,862) 14,0771
Tetal 321 [3.4300

Gains and losses on finandal instruments, as classed above, are disclosed in note & [net finanang costs), nate 13 idebtars), note 4 lvaluation

moveinents on praperiyl, the consolidated income statenent and the consalidaled statement of comprehensive income. The Directors consider

that the carrying amounts ol other investmenis and head leases payable are approximate to their fair value, and that the carrying amounts

are recoverable.
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17 Net debt continued

Capital risk managenant

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt and equalyalmbulable ta the equity holders of Tha Bnibsh Land Company PLC, comprising
issuad capital, reserves and retained earnings. Risks relating to capital structure are addressed within Managing risk in delivering Our strategy on
pages £4 10 49. The Group's objectives, polidies and processes for managing dabl are sei oul in the Finandial policies and principles on pages 43

to 45. '

Interest rate risk management
The Group uses interest rale swaps ta hedge exposure to the variability in cash Algws on lloating rete deby, such as revolving bank faclities
and Roating rale bonds caused by movements in market rales of interest.

At 31 March 2017, the fair value of these derivalives is a net liability of £143m. Inlerest rate swaps wuha fair value of £143m have heen designated
as cash flew hedges under 1AS 32, .

The ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement on cash flow hedgas in the year ended 31 March 2017 wes Eail [2015/16: Enil).

The cash Rlows octur and are charged to proht and loss unlil the maturity of the hedged debl: The table helow summarnses variable rate debtr
. hedged at 31 March 2017.

Cash flow hedged debt
2017 2015
£m Em
Ouistanding:  al one year . 450 513
at two years 450 863
ot five years . 250 250
3l ten years . 250 250

Fair value hedged debt

The Group usas nterest rate swaps (o hedge exposure on fixed rate ﬁnanual liabities caused by movernents in market rates of inlerest.

A1 31 March 2017, the fair value of these derivatives is 3 nel asset of £216m. Inlerest rate swaps with a lair vatue of £215m have been designated
as [air value hedges under 1AS 37 (2015/14: asset of C144mi,

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2073/2026 US Private Placements lully hedgz \he loreign exchange exposure at an average Roaling
rate of 144 basis points above LIBOR. These have been designated as fair value hedges of the US Private Placements.

Interest rate profile - including effect of derivatives

2007 2014

&m [

Fixed or capped rate ’ 1,604 2372
Variable rate Inet of cash] . » . 1490 1245
i ) 3,094 1.617

Al the debtis effectively Sterling denominated except for C11m [2015/14: £10m]) of Euro debit of which E1Im is at a fixed rate [2015/16: £10m}.

AL31 March 2017 the weighted average interest rate of the Sterling fixed rate debl is 3.3% (2015/16: 3.5%]. The weighted average period for which the
rate is fixed is 8.3 years 12015/16: 9.1 years). The floating rate debt is set for periods of the Company's choosing at the relevant LIBOR lor simitar] rate.

The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped rates of interest was 78% at 31 March 2017 on a spot basis, pro forma for the Leadenhall transaction

" |see page 124). The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped rates of interest as an average over the next five year forecast period, on a proportionally
consolidated basis, was 60% a1 31 March 2017. Based on the Group's interest rale profile_ al the balance sheet daie, a 575 bps increase in interest
rates would decrease annual profits by £87m {2015/14: £72m decrease]. Similarty. a 34 bps reduction would increase profits by €5m {2015/16: £7m
increase). The change in interest rates used for this sensitivity analysis is based on the largest annuat change in three monih Sterling LIBOR over
Lhe tast ten years. The impact assumes | IBOR doss not fall below 0%.

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017 133



NOTES 10 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

Interest rate profile - including effect of derivatives continued

Upward movements in medium and long term interest rates. associated with hugher inlerest rale expectalions, increase the vaive of the Group's
interest rate swaps thil prowds protection against such moves. The converse is true for dowmward movements in the yield conve, The majority of the
Group's interesl rate swaps which provide such proleciion qualify as eifective cash flow hedges under 1AS 39 therefore movements in the fir value
are recognised directly in equily rather than the inthme statemeni. A 204 bps shift represents the largest annual change in the seven year Sterling
swap rate gver the last ten years. At 31 March 20173 704 tips parallel upward shift in swap rates would increase the value of these interest rate

swaps by £82m [2015/16: C15Im). A 204 bps downward shift in swap rales would reduce the value of these interest rate swaps by £131m (2075715:
£197ml. Because the interes! rate swaps are matthed by floaling rate debl, the overall eflect on Group cash llaws of such movements is minimat.

The 1.5% 2012 Cornartible Bond and 0% 2015 Convertible Bond are hoth designated as frir value through profit or less. Principal componants of the
markel valye of both bonds indude British Land's share price and its wolatitity, and market interest rates.

The lair value of the 1.5% 2012 Convertible Bond at 31 March 2017 was a £488m liabitity. Al 31 March 2057 a 204 bps parailel upward shafl in mierest
rales would reduce the [ait value Babilily by E4m. and a 204 bps downward shifl in interest rates would increasa Lhe {air value liabitity try £4m.

The fair value of the (%6 2015 Convertible Bond at 31 March 2017 was a £331m Lizbility. At 31 March 2017 a 204 bps parallel upward shifl in interest
rales would reduce the fair value Liability by £21m, end a 204 bps downward shift in interest rales woutd increase the fair value lizbitity by £22m.

Foreign currency risk rnanagement

The Group's policyis ta have no malerial unthedged net asszts or liabilities denominated in foreign currenties. The currency risk on overseas
invesiments is hedgad via foreign currancy dennminaled horrowimys and dervatives. The Group has adopied nat invesiment hedging in accordance
with IAS 39 and therefore the poriion of the gain or 1053 oa the hedging instrument that is determined (o be an effeclive hadge is recognised du‘ectty
in equity. The ineffeclive portion of the gain or 1oss on the hedging instrument is recogrused immediately in the incoimne stalement.

. The Lable below shows the carrying amounts of the Group's loveign currency denominated assets and Gabilities. Provided contingznt tax on overseas
invesiments is not expected la otcur it will be ignoved lor hedging purposes, as is the requirement 1o fair value interes! rale swaps. Based on the

31 March 2017 position a 33% appredation [largest annual change aver the last ten years] in the Eura relative to Sterling would result in a £ndl change
£2015/16: Enitl in reported profits.

. Liabtii
a7 0% K07 2006
Em £m €m £m
Euro denpminated . 1" 0 1 10
Credit risk management
The Groug's appruach to credit risk manag nt of o parties is referred Lo in the Financial policies and principtes on pages 43 to 4% and the

risks addressed within Managing risk in delivering Our strategy on pages 46 to 49. The carrying amount of financial asseis recorded in the linancial
statements represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk withoul taking account of the vatue of any collzleral obtained.

Cash and short term deposils at 31 March 2017 amounted to €114m (2015/16: C174ml. Deposits and interest rate deposits were placed with financial
ingtitutions with BBB+ or better credit ratings.

AL31 March 2017, the fair value of all interest rate detivative assets was £217m (2015/16: E167ml.

Al 31 March 2017, prior to taking inle account any olfset arrangements, the largest combined credit exposure to a single counterpaﬂy arising from
maongy markat deposits, liquid invesiments and derivatives was £120m [2015/16: £85m). This represents 0.9% [2015/16: 0.6%] of gross assels.

The deposit exposures are with UK banks and UK branches of internalional banks.

The Group's expasure to credil risk in respect of its trade receivables is analysed in note 13. Provisions are made taking account historic credit losses
and the creditwarthiness of debiors.

Liquidity risk management
The Group's approach to liguidily risk management is discussed in the Financiat policies and principles on pages 43 to 45, and the risks addressed’
within Managing risk in delivering Dur sirategy on pages 44 to 49.

The foliowing table presents a maturily prolile of the contracled undiscouated cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest dale on which
the Group can be required to pay. The lable includes both interest and principal lows. Where the interest payable is not fixed, the amounl disclosed
has been determined by reference lo the projecked interest rates implied by yield curves at the reporting date. For derivative financial instrumenis
that selile on a net basis {e.q. interest rate psl the undis« ted net cash flows are shown and for derivatives that require gross seltiément
{e.g. cross currency swaps| the undiscounted gress cash flows are presented. Where payment obligations are in foreign currencies, the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheel date is used. Trade credilors and amounts owed ta joint ventures, which are repayablte within one year,
have been excluded from the analysis.
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17 Net debt continued

Liquidity risk management conlinued

The Group expects lo meet its imandial liablikes through the varioys available Gquidity sources, including 2 secure rental income profile, asset sates,

undravm commitied borrowing facilities and, in the lenger term, debi refinancings.

The Group leases out all its investimant properties undar opersiling leases with 2 weighted sverage lzase length of sight years. This sacure income
profile is generated from upward only rent reviews. long leases and high occupancy rates. The Ruture aggregate mimimum rentals receivable under
non-cancetleble oparating leases is also shown in the tablz below, Income from joint ventures and funds is nol included below. Additionat Gquidity
will arisa from letting space in preperlies under construction as welt 35 from distribubons receivad from joini ventures and funds.

xny
Three
Within  Following to fiva Ower Rve
one yeur year years yours Tolad
&m £m £m £m on
Debl* 259 n 1,240 1,420 3,152
Interes! on debt 89 8S 235 458 8§18
Derwvative payments ” &4 189 263 508
Head lease payments 2 2 7 8L 265
Total payments 562 145 1671 2.405 481
Derrvative receipts 128) s (255) (1) 593)
Net payment 534 104 1,416 2,154 £,210
Operating leases with lenants 405 382 984 1.750 3521
Liguidity surplus ldehcitl © Yy 27 1432} 404 1489)
Cumulative liquidity surplus (defict] LLEL 147 (285) taaol
2016
Theee
Within Following to free Over five
ong year year years years Toted
fro £m m En £m
Debt 7% 481 1471 1577 3.585
Interest on debt 103 100 268 538 1,009
Derivalive payments 13 2 77 3% 499
Head lease payments 2 2 & 239 249 -
Total paymenls 194 577 1822 2149 5342
Derivative receipts 1231 [25) (104) 1383) 1535)
Net payment 171 562 1718 2366 4,807
Operating leases with tenants £7 .. 419 1,133 2,389 4,378
Liquidity surplus [deficit) 266 133l {585 2 {&231
266 133 1452

Cumulative liquidity surplus [deficit}

14291

' Gross debt ol £3,281m (2015/16: £3.751m) represents the lotal of £3.132m, iess unamortised issue costs of (130 [2015/16: £19m], plus fair velse adiustments o dabl

of L1&&n [2015/14: £195m).

Any short term tiquidity gap between the nel payments required and the rentals receivable can ke met through other liquidity sources available

to the Group. The Group currently halds cash and short term deposils of £114m of which £99m is not subjecl to a security interesl [see foolnote 5
tonet debl table on page 127). Further liquidity can be achievad through sales of property assels or investments and debt refinancings.

The Group's property portiglio is valued externally al £9.920m and the share of joini ventures and funds properiyis valued at €4 801m.
The undrawn comimitted borrowing facilities available lo the Greup are a furliver source of iguidity. The matunly profile of committed

undrawn borrowing facilities is shown averleaf,

3
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17 Net debnt continued

Maturity of committed undrawn borrawing fadilities

a7 e

£m fm

Maluritydate:  over five years B F = -
beiwzen lour and five years ) 10 [RIK]

between three and four years i 58 93

Tatal acilities avaitable for more than three years . 1,293 1208

" Bebwzen hwvo and three years *uy 85
Between one and two years - . ' .- ~
Within ane year 2 &0
Total - , 1484 1353

The above facilities are comprised of British Land undrawn fadilities of £1.322m. plus undravm facilities of Hertules Unit Trust toialling £122m.

18 Leasing
QOperating leases with tenants ) :
The Group lzases oul all ol ils investmant properlies under pparating leases with a weighted Jversge lease lengih of eighl years [2015/14: nine years).
The future aggregate minimum rantals receivable under nan-cancellable operating leases are as followrs:

27 s

m Em

Less than one year 465 437
Between one and twoyears . 382 4i7
Between three and five years 9RL 1133
Between six and ten years 80 1.241
Betwszen eleven and fifteen yzars &0 &2
Belween sixteen and twenly years 181 357
AHer wenty years 129 165
Total ) 3521 4378

The Group’'s leasehold ivestmeni properties. are typically under non-renewable l2ases withoul Significant restrictions. Finance lease Labilities are
payable as follows; no contingent rents were payable in either period. .

2007 2014

Minimum MEwnum
tease teose
payments Interest Principad PlsyRTels interest Printipal
. Em fm Em O fm &n
British Land Group ’
Less than one year 2 2 - 2 2 -
Between one and two years 2 2 - 2 2 -
Betwaen 1wo and five years ) 7 . - ] [ -
More than five years 249 285 &4 37 . 193 L1
Totat ] 280 218 £ 249 203 46
Less luture finance charges 218) [zo3}
Present value of lease obligations 64 - &6
More than five years 13 &b N
Present value of iease obligations [ &6
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19 Dividend

The fourth quarter intenim dividend of 730 pance per share, tolztling £E75m {2015/14: 7.09 pence per share, telalling £73mi was approved by the Beard
on 15 May 2017 and is payable on & Augusl 2017 to sharehalders on the register at the close of business on 30 June 2007.

The Board wifl announce ihe availability of the Scrip Dividand Alizmative, if available, via the Regulatory Mews Sendce and on its wehsite
Iwww.britishland_com/dividends), no later than four business days before the ex-dividend date of 30 June 2017 The Beard expacis lo announce
the split bevwean Property Income Distributions [PID] and non-PID income at thal ime. Any Serip Dividend Alternative wit! not be enhanced. PID
dividends are paid, as required by REIT legistation, after deduction of withholding tax at the basic rate lourrentty 20%), wheve appropriate. Certam
dlasses of sharehalders may be able to elect to receive dividends gross, Pizase refer to our wabsite www britishtand.com/dividends for details.

Pente ger 7 016
Paymeni date Britend share £m Lm
Currentyear dividends
05.68.2017 2017 4thinterim 7.30
06.05.217 2017 3rd inlerim 730
12.02.2007 2017 2nd interim ) 730 ]
06.11.2018 . 2017 Istinterim 730 s
_ ' ' 2920
Prior year dividends
05.08.2004 2016 &th interim ' 789 r
04.05.2014 2016 3rd interim ‘ 702 7
12.02.2014 ' 2016 2nd intenm 709 Fx}
D&V 2NS 2016 1stinterim ) ) 7409 72
28346
07.08.2015 2015 Ath interim 692 n
04.05.2015 2015 3rd interim 492 n
Dividends in consolidated slatement .
of changes in equity 296 287
Dividends setiled in shares R . - 152]
Bividends seitled in cash ' 29 735
Timing difference relating to payment '
of withhalding tax m -
Dividends in cash flow slatement . .. ) 29 35
' Dhidend spli half PID, half non-FiD.
2 Lerip alternative treated as non-PID for this dnadend.
20 Share capital and reserves
- 07 085
Number of ordinary shares inissue al T April ' . 1,040,562,323  1.031.788.285
Share 1ssues £72,. 135 8774 637
M3 March I 1,041,035,058  1.040.562.323

‘

Of the issued 25p ordinary shares, 7.783 shares were held in the ESOP trust [2015/14: 627]. 11,266,245 shares were held as ireasury shares 12015/14:
11.266.245] and 1,029,761,030 shares were in free issue [2015}16 1.029.295.541). No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP trusi during the year.
All issued shares are lully paid.

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve comprises the eflective partion of lhe cumulative net change in the fair vatue of cash flow and foreign currency
hedging instruments, as well as all foreign exchange dillerences arising from the Iranstation of the financial siatements of foreign operations.
The ioreign exchange differences also include the translation of the babilities that hedge the Company s nel investment in a foreign subsidiary.

Revatuation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to owner-occupied properties and investments in joinl ventures and funds.

Merger reserve

This comprises the premiurn an the share placing in March 2013. No share premium is recorded in lhe Company's financial statements, through the
operation of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2004,
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

At 31 March 2017, options over 7535161 ordinary shares wa/e sulslanding under emphoy share oRion plans. The opli hat 3 weighted average |
life of 6.6 years. Detaits of outstanding share oplions and shares awarded to employees tncluding Execultive Directors are set out below gnd on the
followiry pages:

Exercisa'dates
A VA Veted bt Exercisedf A 31 March Exerce '
Oate of grant . .10 Gantad  not exerased estad L BT e pan Fom T
Share options Sharesave Schems )
010711 172 - - 7728 - - £73.00 002 280237
269512 42,698 - - - - 42498 39200 01.0917 = 010338
19.06.13 C AR - ’ - {31458 2sA 37 512.00 Q10946 280217
19.06.13 15.202 - - - - 15,202 511.09 010918 010319
23.06.04 _ 137256 - - 12055 1178621 115537 574.00 0L0217 GLBIA8
230606 127092 - - . 5268 1247 9R&S0 57600 010919 0L03.20
220605 6T - - ne3 3673 - 3vz05 3700 010918 010319
220615 58.350 - - - A79681. 20,382 69700 010970 0.0327
70.06.16 - 12,8206 ~ - [20719) 92,101 £08.00 610919 01.03.20
200616 - 78344 - - 09844l 59300 £08.00 010921 DLO3.22
498,827 171,164 — 152048)  [158.553) 484,192 '
Long-Term Incentive Plan — Options Vested, Not Exercised .
29.06.09 14,472 - - 5139 - 10,333 387.00 90632 290637
211209 72454 - - 12,245} - . 4710 446.00 219202 211219
11,0416 1.208.357 - . - {1.264} - 1207153 44700 10643 110620
141210 69.657 - - [9.095) 16391 59933 510.00 151213 1402.20
28.06.11 s/ 10847233 - - {260,007} 973} 823,253 575.00 806156 780621
wRn. 95575 - - 17568 HIsH 75828 5180 - 9RHB 1W9RD
14,0912 L1870 - - 4502 (157761 1055507 538.00 U095 150972
201212 120317 - - 133324 196481 77345 543.00 200235 2001222
05.08.13 6TV 663478 - 1248270 [(3125%4) 3339028 £01.00 05.08.16 0508.23
05.32.13 5766 402,400 - 142490 11940821 208,015 £00.00 051216 0512.23
23.08.14 . 7890 - - - {2890) - 48433 230817 2308624
. 3802157 1.046.278 - [402193] - 1546 7391 3,921,503 )
Long-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Options '
05.0813 563 678 C o~ 16636781 - - - 40100 050814 050823
053213 . 402,600 <~ (402.600 - - - 0000 - 050216 051273
230604 : 829708 ~ - - 165856) 763854 £84.33 230617 230624
123216 26327 - - - - 28127 ST 20207 120224
220835 1,199,207 - - - (87356} 1,021,852 824 50 20618 220625
720634 . - 133352 - - 16562) 1.317.342 730.50 220619 22.06.26
3.031.320 1333924 11,066,278 - hesTm) 3a291%
Tolal 7332304 2591366 11.066,278) 1449339  [B73.162) 7,534.8N
‘Weighted average exercise X
price af options {pence} 59% 468 401 557 538 &2 B
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20) Share capital and reserves continued

Share e

At Al Exarcicedy At Mardh  2tgemdae
Date of grant 20t8 Goanted Vested 207 pence  Vesting date
Performance Shares L ong-Term Incentive Plan
05.08.13 1036453 - BHIBN 1A% 784} - slIul UL ULIE
051213 ' 230,226 - hz2s%02 11053241 - 60000 031216
230614 1.359.223 - - 568291 1302354 68500 730617
121214 4354 - - - 4,354 75783 121207
22,0615 1.199.767 - - {48563 1151199 82450 220518
2206.16 - 1288356 - 114,602} 1273754 730.50 2205149
3830018 1288356 [70B.0591  [678.644) 31731681
Fund Managers” Performance Plan . :
§2.08.13 177.666 - 78330 1334} - 57900 020817
179.664 - {17e3308 . 11334 -
Matching Share Plan
02.08.13 348,890 - h7a.445) (374,445 - 60366  02.03.18
300614 28%.560 - - - 289560 70240  30.0617
29.06.15 282170 - - - 282170 80400 290418
29066 - 318932 - - 38932 80700  29.06.19
920620 318932 N74.a450 {174.4450 890.682
Total £930,302 1.607.288 (1.040.B441  [854.473) 4,422,323
Weighted average price of shares [pence) 497 746 602 623 749

21 Segment information

The Group allocates resources ta investrmen! and asset management according to the sectors il expecis to perform over the medwm lerm. s threz
principal sectors are Offices, Retail and Canada Waler. The Office sector inctudes residential, as Lhis is oflen incorporated into Office schemes. The

Offices sector atso includes the British Land share of the Leadenhall joint venture (see note 11). Tha Reta

incorporated into Retail schemes.

The relevant gross rental income, nel rentat income, operating result and property

. being the

i sector indudes leisure, as this is ofien

res of segment revenue, segment resull

and segment assels used by the management of the business, are set out betow. Managemeni reviews the performance of the business principalty on
a proportionally consalidated basis, which includes the Group's share of joint ventures and furuls on a line-by-line basis and excludes non-controliing

| interestsin the Group's subsidiaries. The chief operating dedision maker lor the purpose of segment information is the Executive Committee.

Gross rental income is derived from the rental of buildings and the sale of trading properties. Operating resull is the net of ret ru_antét income,
fee income and administralive expenses. No customer exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues in either year.
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21 Segment information continued

 Segment result
Offrces Reled Canada Water Oiherfunztorated Todz
2017 111 2017 2006 201 117 w7 P13 m? il
[ fm £m fm &m & £m Lo £&m £
Gross rental income
British Land Group 139 133 ol 29 9 8 - - &7 £32
Share of joint ventures and funds né 114 100 104 = - - 4 216 222
Tatat 255 247 379 395 ? ' - & 543 &54
Net fental income .
Brilish Land Group m 124 A4S 277 B8 7 w - 03 408
Share of join! venlures and funds 12 19 95 97 - - - - 3 207 212
Total 243 234 340 37 8 7 (L)) 3 &10 620
Operating result .
Briish Land Group - ) 27 nz ns 260 S 7 159) 166 37 33
Share of joint ventures and funds 109 10% % 102 : - - n L] 204 210
Total 36 221 ) 362 5 i 151) &7 541 543
F. i r) 206
Recordliation to Undertying Proft ‘ : £rn fim
Operating resutt A 541 543
Net finanding costs 151 {180}
Undertying Profit 390 353
Reconciliation to profit on ordinary attivities before laxation
‘Undertying Profit 390 353
Capital and cther 1209 954
Undertying Profit allributable te non-controlling interests i . 14 14
Total profit un ordinary activities before taxation ' w5 13m
Of the tgtal revenues ghove, Enil [2015/16: £4m] was detived from cutside the UK.
Segment assels .
Oifices Ratzil Canado Water Dtherfinaliveated Total
27 8 w7 .1 017 2016 mm7 W16 m? A
Property assets ‘
British Land Group 4,223 £,181 AT 533 n 283 - - 2.210 9787
Share of join! veatures and funds 2,792 2843 1938 2018 - - - - L4730 £ 8461

Total 7.016 7024 £,654 7341 n 283 - - 13940 14448
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21 Segment information continued

Recondliation to net assets

27 216
British Lare! Groug : ] @ tm
Property assats ' 13940 14448
Dther non-curren! assets ) 156 © 138
Non—current assets 14,095 14.788
Other net current liabilities : 1364} (257
Agjusted net debt 14,2230 {47251
Qther non-current liabilities ‘ 13)] B0
EPRA net assets fundiluted) . . 9,498 9678
Cornvertible ditution - - 400
EPRA netassets [diluted) . 2.498 10,074
Non-controlling interests k 255 77
EPRA adjustments 1277 73
Netassels Y475 9.619

22 Capital commitments

The aggregate capital comrmlmenls 1o purchase, construct or develop investmernd property, for repairs, maintenance of mhancernents. or fur the
purchase of investimenis which are contracted for but ncl provided, are set oul belov:

07 206

&m £m

British Land and subsidiaries lincludes share of development toan facility] . 8& A7
Share of joint ventures - 19 40
Share of wnds ) 2 2

’ 107 %

23 Related party transactinns

In the prior year the Group had provided a development lean of up to [320m to the Broadgate joint venture. secured against the 5 Broadgate
davelopment. The loan was fully repaid in the prior year and interest and commitment fees samed on the loan in the prior year were L4m.

Delaits of transactions with joint ventures and funds are givenin notes 3, 6 and 1. During the year the Group recognised joim venlure management
tees of E9n 12015/16: £8m). Details of Directors’ remuneration are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 73 to 88. Details of lransactions with
key management personnet are provided in note 8, Details of lransactions with The Brilish Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme, and other
smaller pension schemes, are given in note 9.

24 Contingent liabilities

Group, juint ventures and funds
The Group, joint venlures and funds have contingent Liabilities in respect of legal claims, guarantees and warranlies arising in the' ordinary course
of business. It is not anlicipated that any material iabilities will arise from conlingent liabilities.

A
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25 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Sat ot Selow is summarised finandat infornation ler each subsidiary that has non-cofrlling interasts that ane material te the Group,
Tha information below is the 2meunt before intercompany eliminations, and represants the consolidated resulls &f the Hercutes Unit Trust group.

Summarnised income statement for the year endéd 31 March

Horodas Uk Trust
7 Bs
. . . em m
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 10 59
Altnibutable to non-controtling interests 3 19
Attributable to the sharehalders of the Co ‘ . 7 &0
Surnmarised balance sheet as 3t 31 March
Hevoutes U Trust
- 2007 s
. ) £m £
Total assets ) . . : . 1,509 149D
Tolal liabilities 531 159
Netassets . 978 1,021
Noa-controlling interests ) 1255 1277)
Equity attrivutable ty sharehalders af the Campany ‘ ) 723 b
Summarised cash flows
Haroudins Und Trust
m? 2014
&m £m
Netincrease (decreasel in cash and cash equival ] (1] ist
Cash and cash equivalents at T April ) 30 35
Cashand cash equivalents at 31 March . . 40 30

The Hercules tnat Trust is a publicty tisted Unit Trust. The unit price at 31 March 2017 is €684 [2015/16: £719). Non-controlting interests collectivety
own 23 5% of units inissue. The British Land Gompany PLC owns 76.5% of units in issue, each of which confer equal voting rights, therefore is
deemed 1o exerase control over the trust. . S

- 26 Subsequent eveats

There have been no significant events since the yearend.
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27 Audit exemptions taken for subsidiaries

The following subsidianes are exempl from the requirements of the Companizs Aci 2004 relating lo the audit of indvidual accounts by virtus of

Section 479A of that Act.

Compantes House Companies House
Namez regnumber  Nama &g rasmbes
8F Propco [No 13) Limited 527027  Pitlar Ratall Parks Limited 2725163
Apartpowsr Limitad 2332059  Pillar Spake Limit=d 30674360
Pillarcaisse Management Limited 7941307  Wales City of i andon Proparties L imiled 1788524
Number 80 Cheapside Limited 636498  Meadowhall Oppoertumities GP Limfled 97253
BL HC Progerty Holdings Limited 6894046  Adamani investiment Corparation Lnited 25143
BL Health Ctubs PH Mo 1 Limited 5643248  Osnaburgh Sireel Limited 5886735
BL Hzalth Clubs PH No 2 Limited 94643261 British Land Property Advisers Limited 7193828
British Larwd Hercutes No 1 Limited 3527580  British Land Hereules No 4 Limited 3108851
PillarStore Limited 2850422  Broadgate IPHC 8] Limited 3707220
Parwick lvestments Limited 654239 British Land In Town Retail Limited 3325066
Hempel Holdings Limsted 5341380  Drake Cuvus Leisure Limited 2190209
Hilden Propertiss Limiled NiB42887  Diomedes PropertyNo 2L imited 5303524
20 Brock Street Limitad 7401697  tvoryhll Limited 7307407
BL Cliflon Moor Limited 7508017  Pardev (Broadway] Limiled 2891851
BL [Maidanhead] Cornpany Limited 7667834  Parirw Northern Limited 2223037
Bayeas| Property Co Limited 635800  Pillar [Kickcatdy] Limiled 3074412
Boldswatch Limnited 2307096  BL[Bursledon] Limited 3854557
Paddingion Central | IGP] Limited 3891376 Shopping Centres Linited 2230056
Paddington Central I {GP] Limited 5092409  BL Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited 2400407
TPPInvestments Limited 4843814  BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited 9400541
BL Osnabungh St Residentiat L id 6874523  BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limitted 9400411
Moorage [Property Developments) Limited 1185513  BL Broadgale Fragmem & Limited F4ialy
39 Victoria Strest Limited ) 7037133 Bl Broadgate Fragment 5 Limited - 9400413
Lancaster General Partner Limited 5457195  BL Broadgale Fragment § Limitad F400414
Teesside L eisure Park Limited 2672334
Cavendish Geared Limited 2779045

The iollowing partnerships are exempt from the requirements to prepare, publish and have audited individuat accounts by virtue of reguiation 7

of The Partnerships [Accaunts| Regutations 2008. The results of these parinerships are consolidated within these Group accounts.

Nams Name

Bl Shoreditch Limited Parinership Hereford Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
Bl Chess No 1 Lienited Partnership Bl Lancaster Limiled Partnership ’
Paddington Central ILP Paddington Block AP

Paddington Central | LP Paddington Block B LP

Meadowhall Opportunities Limited Partnership Paddington Kiosk LP

BL CW Upper LP

i
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Finapehal siatemenss

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

‘ 2017 2018°
Nat= £m - fm
Fixed assets
Invastments and leans (o subsidiaries b 27518 21518
Investmants in joint ventures D &N 95
Other investments o 35 17
Interest rate decivative assels E 27 167
Deferved lax assels ~ 1

. ' 28,201 8098

Current assels
Debtors G . 7 14
Cash and shorl termn deposils ' E K 36
54 50
Current tiabilities
Short terrn barrowings and overdralts E 163} 78}
Creditors ) H 1105) 177
Amounts due to subsidiaries h 119.410)  [1B.444]
119,578} nss9n
Net current liabilities - (19.522) 118.547)
Tatal assels tess current liabilities . ’ 8,679 9.551
Non-current liahitities
Debentyres and loans E nom 2218
Interest rate derivative liabilities E (134} mal
Arraunts due lo subsidiaries ’ 1331 1779)
Deferred tax and other non-curreny liabilities ) 13) -
12,446) [3.114)
Netassets ' ' , . 8,213 6,437
i ¥
Equity
Called up share capital | 260 . 260
Share premium i 1.298 1.295
Other reserves . 1134) va2ol
Merger reserve . 7 27m3 213
Retained earnings 4,595 . 4789
Total equity ) 6,233 6.437
The profit after ka for the year ending 31 March 2017 for the Company was £12tm lyear ending 31 March 2014: £171m).

B

UMt

John Gildersleeve o Lucinda Bell

Chairman ; Chief Firancial Olficer
Approved by the Board on 16 May 2017

Company number 621920
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 '

Profit and
Share Share Othar Mergar toss Tatal
capial promium RIS resave  aroount ity

&mn £&m £m £m Em {1

Balance at 1 April 2014 ] 640 1295 [1z0] 213 . 4789 8,437
Share isayes - ' ' - - 3 - - = 3
Dividend paid ' ' - - - - 1296} (296)
Fair valye of share and share oplion awards - - - - 2 2
Purchase of gwn shares - - - - 8 ()]
et actuanal less on pension schemes - - - - 4] 112
Profit for the year aller taxation - - - - Rl 1 F1]
Desivative vatuation n - - 17} - - 04l
Balance at 3% March 2017 . . 260 1,296 (134} 213 . 45% . 6233
Balance at 1 April 2015 ’ 258 1.280 (23] 213 4858 6315
Shareissues ) 2 15 - - hal 5
Adjustment for saip dividend elernent - - - - 52 52
Dividend paid - - - - {287) Iza7)
Fair valua of share and share option awards - - - - g 8
Net achzaral loss on pension schames - - - - i 1]
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - 171 m
Derivative valuation movement . - - - A28 - - 125}
Batance 3t 31 March 2014 ' 260 1295 11200 73 . 4789 6437

The value of distributable reserves within the profit and loss account is £2.913m (2019/14: £3.236m).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(\) Accounting policies

The imandial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been
preparad on the historical cost basis. axcept for the revatuation of
darivatives. These financiat stalements have also baen prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standavd 101 Reduced Disclosura
Framewnrk TFRS 107, The amendmants to FRS 101 12015/16 Cydlel
resued in_Juty 2014 and elfachve immadiaiely have been applied.

in preparing these financiat statements, the Compeny applies the
racognition. measuremeant and disclosure requirements of international
Financial Reporling Slandards as adupted by the EU { Adopted IFRSs,
bul makes amendmenis where necessary inorder to comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and has set out bitow where advantage of the

FRS N disclosure exemgplions has been taken.

The Company has taken advantage of tha following disclosure
exempiions undar FRS 101:

{a} the raquiresnents of [AS 1 ta provide 2 Balance Sheat at the
beginning of the pariod in the event of a prior period adjustment;

{bl the requirernents of IAS 1 to provide a Statemnent of cash flows
for the period:

lc) the requirernents of 1IAS 1 te provide a statement of compliance
with IFRS;

{d] the requirements of JAS 1 to disclose information on the
managament of capital:

le} the reguirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors o disclose
new IFRSs thal have been issued bul are not yal effective:

{fl the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures o
discipse related parly transactions entered inio between iwo
or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which
is a party to the transaction is wholly d bysucha b

Ig} the requirements of mgraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures to disclose key manag t personnel comp

{hithe requirements of IFRS 716 d|5clu5e financial instruments; and

lil the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement 10 disclose information of fair value vatuation

techniques and mputs.

Going contern
The financial statement s are prepared on the going concern basis
as explained in the corporate governance section on page 65.
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Investments and loans
Investiments and lsans n subsidiaires and joind venures are stated
a1 cost less pravision for impairmant

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The key source of estknation uncertainty relates to the Company's
investrents m subsidiaries and joinl ventures._ o estimating he
requirernent jor impainment of these investments, managemant
make assumplions and judgements on the value of these investments
using inharensty subjective underiying asset valuations, supmﬂ@d

by independent valuers,

(B) Dividends
Delails of dividends paid and prepesed are incdluded in note 17
du‘er L .y 'ﬁﬂ!lﬁja‘." Y i

{C) Emplomee information

Employee costs indude wages and salaries of C37m {2015/14: £35ml,.
social security costs of £5rn [2015/15: ES5m) and pension casts of £5m
12015/16: £4ml. Detzils of the Executive Direclors’ remunaraton are
disclosed in the Remuneration Report

Audil fees in relation (o the parent Company only were £0.2m .
125/16- £ 2vn).



(D) Lnvestments in suhsidiaries and joint ventures, loans to subsidiaries and other investments . -

lnvestivenis

Shares i Loans lo in joint
shsidiaries subsidiari o5 inves Total
€m Em m m tm
On 1 April 2016 20.268 7.250 395 17 27930
Additions 3 2155 3 21 2,283
Disposals 5351 {1.593] - 3 {2,131
Provision for imparment ' 581 = - ~ 58
As at 31 March 2017 Wwmse 7812 £31 35 27,984

The historical cosl of shares in subsidianes is £20,025m [2019/14: £20,52%m]. Investments & joint ventures of [431m {2005/16: £395m)includes
(245 (2015/16: €214 of loans 1o joint ventyres by the Coempany. Results of the joint venlures 2re set out innote 11 of the censolidated Anancial
statements. The historical cost of other investments is EABm [2015/14: EB7m]

(E) Netdebt
2017 018
£m Em
Secured on the assets of the Company
5.264% First Morigage Debanture Bonds 2035 n n
5.0055% First Mortgage Amortising Dabentures 2035 77 100
5.357% Firs| Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2078 ! 348 3489
8.75% First Morigage Debenture Bonds 2020 - &2
Loean notes .- 2
B24 8B4
Unsecured
5.50% Senior Notes 2027 102 m
3.893% Senior US Daollar Naotes 2018 k rd 23
£.635% Senior US Dollar Notes 2021 181 165
£ 766% Senior US Dollar Noles 2023} m 105
5.003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2026' 3 &
3.81% Senior Notes 2026 - . 1% 13
31.9F% Senior Notes 2026 . ) . 17 1
Fair value of oplions 1o iIssue under 1.5% converlible bond 2017 5 43
Fair value of options to issue ynder 0% convertible bond 2020 3 27
Bank Loans and overdratis ’ Lyid 634
1,217 "1 406
Gross debt 2,081 2,290
_ Interest rate and currency derivative iiabilities 134 ne
Interest raté and currency derivative assels 217} n&7
Cash and short term deposiis 1£91 351
Net debt 1,909 2.206

' Principal and interest on these bﬁrrwhgswem lully hedged into Sterling at a floating rate at the time of issye.

1.5% Convertible bond 2012 (maturity 2017}

On 16 September 2012, British Land Lerseyl Uimiled lthe 2012 |ssuerl, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. issued £400 million 1.5%

-guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds] at par. The 2012 Issuer is fully guarantead by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their terins, the 2012 bonds are conveslible inte preference shares of tha 2012 ssusr which are automatically ransterred ta the Company

in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or. at the Company’s election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. Bondhalders may

exercise their conversion right at any time up lo [but excludingl the 201h deating day before 10 September 2017 (the malurity datel.

Theinitial exchange price was 493.07 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusied based on certain events.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

(E) Net debt continued

From 25 Sepiember 2015, the Company has the option 1o redesrmn the 2012 bonds a1 par if the Company's share prte hat Waded 3!:&59 130% of

the exchange price for a speciliad pering, or at any time ence 85% by nominal value of the 2012 bonds have been converted, red G, or purchased
and cancelled. The 2012 bonds wilk be redeemed at par on 10 Septemaber 2017 [the maturity datel if they have not already been commerted, redzemad-
or purchased and cancelted. Mo redemption of the bonds occurred in the year.

The intercompany loan belween the Issuer and the Company arising from the transler of the loan procesds was initizlty recognised at lair valee,
net of capitalised issue Costs, and is acceunied for using the amortised cost method. in addilion to the intercompany loan, the Company has entered
inta a derivative contract relating lo its guarariee of the obligations of the Issuer in Tespect of the Bonds ang the cormenitmant to provide shares or
a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds. This derivative contract is included within the balance sheet a5 a liability carried at
fair value through profit and less. .

0% Convertible bond 2015 bmaturity 2020)

On? June 2015, British Land (Whitel 2015 Limiied ithe 2015 lssuerd. a whally-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued £350 snillion zeno coupon
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 the 7015 bonds) at par. The 2015 issuer is fully quaranleed by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds.

Subject 1o their lerms, the 2015 bonds are convertible inlp preference shares of the 2015 Issuer which are aulomalically ransferred 1o the Company
in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company o7, 3t the Company's eleckion, any combination of ordinary shares and cash, From 20 July 2015 up

1o and incteding 29 June 2018, 3 bondholder ray exerdise ils conversion right if the share price has tradad at a iev2t exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period. Therealter, and up to but excluding the 7th dealing day before ? June 2020 fthe maturity date, a bm\d&mtdermavm
at any time.

The initial exchange price was 1193.32 pence per 6rdimry share. The exchanga price is adjusied basad on certain avanls lsuch as the Company
paying dividands in any quarter above 3 418 pence per ordinary sharel. As al 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 143 79 pence per ordinary share.

From 38 Juna 2018, the Company has the oplion to redeem the 2015 bands at par if the Company’s share price has raded above 138% of ihe
exchange price for a specified period, or at any time ence 85% by nominal vatue of the 2015 bonds have been comverled, redeemed, or purchased
and cancelled. The 2015 bonds will be redeemed at par on 9 June 2020 the malurity datel if they have not already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

The infercompany loan between the {ssuer and the Company arising (rore the transler of the loan proceeds was initially recognised at fair vatue.

net of capitalised issye costs, and is sccounted for ysing the amortised cost methed. In addition to the intercompany toan, the Company has enteced
e 2 dertealive coniract relating 1o s guarantee of the ohiigations of the Issuer in r2spert of the bonds and the commitnent o provide sharzcarz
combination 6f shares and cash on conversion of the bonds. This derivative cantract is included within the balance sheet as a labitity carried at fair
value through prolit and loss.

Maturity anatysis of net debt
2017 2018
£m m
‘Repayabte within one year and on demand ' 53 74
between: one and two years B 13 189
iwe and five years ’ £42 L4
live and ten years 782 307
ten and fifteen years 32 500
fifteen and twenty years By 388
1978 2216
Sruss debt 2,041 2.290
interest rate gerivatives 183} 48]
Cash and short 1erm deposils . . . 1491 i36)
Netdeht ) : 1909 2,206

{F) Pension

The Briush Land Group of Companies Pension Scherme and the Defined Contabytion Pensian Scheme are \he principal pension schemes of the
Company and details are set out in noie ¥ of the consalidated finandal staternents.
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(G) Debtors

‘ 7 e
&m im
Trade and ather deblors. 3 L
Prepaymenis and accrued income 4 5
' 7 14
(H) Creditors )
207 28
- €m &m
Trade creditors 12 3
Corporation tax 3 9 L]
Other taxation and social security 2 rad
Accruals and defarred income v b4j
105 7
(1) Share capital
. o shares
. ] m of Bpuath
Issued, called and fully paid '
AU April 2016 ‘ 260 1,040,562.373
lssued - &12.T35
At31 March 2017 260 1,061,035,058
i shares
. £m of 75p each
Issued, calied and fully paid ‘
At April 2015 58 1831,788,284
issued 2 8774037
At31 March 2016 260 1.040.562.323

(J) Contingent liabiliﬁes, capital commitments and related party transactions

The Company has contingent labilities in respect of legal clains, guarantees and warranties arising in the ordinary course of business,

ILis not anticipated that any materiat liabitities will anise from the contingent liahilities.

A131 March 201;1. the Company has £1m of capital commitments [2015/1é: £13ml.

Retated party transactions are the same for the Company as for the Group. For details refer to note 23 of the consotidated financial statements.

)
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(K) Related undertakings siame m:’:
Disclosures relating to subsidiary undertakings MSC Property ntermediate Holdings Limited UK Tax Restdent
The Company's subsidiaries and ather related undertakings at 37 March [50% interest
2017 are listed below. Al Group entities are ncluded in the consolidaled | Plantation House Limited UK Tax Resident
financial results. Poory Park Merton Limited UK Tax Resident
Real Assel Insurance Limited lin liquidation) Ovevrseas Tax Resident
Unless otherwise staied, the Company halds 100% of the voling rights [Guernseyl
and benaficial interesis in the shares of the fottowing subsidiaries, Regis Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
partnerships. assaciates and joint ventures. Untess otherwise stated, The British Land Corporation Limited UK Tax Resident
the subsidiaries and © d undartakings are registerad w the Vilcreaie UK Tax Resident
Unilad Kingdom.
The share capital of each af the Companies, whare applicabl Indirect hotdings
3 a5, icable,
comprises oip;rdinazy shares unless otherwise slafe‘:‘l_ cf“‘"m‘f"’ um
The Company holds the majority of its assels in UK companies, 184 &7 Triton l{ml_lw UK Fax Resident
although some are heid in overseas companies. In recent years we 10 Brock Street L imited UK Tox Resident
have reduced the number of averseas camparies in the Group. 10 Poslman Square Unit Trust fersey) {Units)s Dverseas Tax Resident
10 Tnlen Street Limited UK Tax Resident
Unless noted ailverwise as pas the following key, the registered address | 17-19 Bediond Streel Limited UK Tax Resident
of each company is York House, 45 Seymour Street. Lundon, W1H 7LX. 1820 Craven Hill Gardens Limited UK Tax Rasident
* 1318 Esplanade. St Helies: JE1 18D, Jarsey. 20 Brock Street Limitd UK Tax Resident
* 1585 Broadway. 3N Floor, New York NY 10034 8293 Uniled Stales. 20 Triton Straak Lirnited UX Tax Resident
' 47 Esplanade, St Heliey, Jersey. JE198D. Jersey. 338 Eusion Road Limiled UX Tax Residant
. gﬁf;‘?;;;‘:“‘m tsde ??Lél 35 Basinghall Street First Limited UK Tax Resider
o e Ptar Fort 511 IVF. Gusemsty. 35 Basingholt Street Second Limited UK Tax Resident
* Leidsekeds W02 1817 PP, Amslerdam, Nethertands. 350 Euslon Road Limited LUK Tax Resident
. Quier megrmmﬂﬂg P ';ngm o OE 19801 39 Victaria Street Licnited UK Tax Resident
e o ompany. L Ay " " 8-10 Throgmarton Avenue Limited UK Tax Resident
Adamant Investment Corparation Limitad UK Tax Restdent
Direct holdings Adshilta Limited UK Tax Resitent
Ui/Overseas Tax | Aldgale Place (GP] Limited [S0% imerest] UK Tax Resident
Cormpary Mame ResidentStatus | Apartpower Limited : UK Tax Resident
BL Bluebution 2014 Limited UK Tax Resident | Ashband Limited LK Tax Resident
BL Davidson Lirited UK Tax Resident | B.L.CT. {12697} Limited UerseyP UK Tax Resident
BiL Exempt insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident | B8.L.C.T. {21560 Limited LlerseyP UK Tax Resident
BL intermediate Holding Comparyy Limited UK Tax Resident | B.L.CT. (29900 Limited Ljerseyl® UK Tax Resident
BLSSP 1Funding) Uimited . UX Tax Resident | B.L.U.(11192) Lirited erseypP UX Fax Resident
- Blyebution Property Management UK Limited UK Tax Resident | Balserva Limiled UK Tax Resident
{50% interest Barnclass Limited UK Tax Resident
Boldswitch {No 1] Limited UK Tax Resident Barndrilt Limited UK Tax Resident
Holdswitch Limited UK Fax Resident | pjveact Property Co Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land [arsey Limited | tersey] UKTazResident | Beile Limited UK Tax Residant
fFounder Shares —— | BF PropcolNo ¢ 1Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land City UK Tax Resident | o Bropts o (31 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land City 2005 Limited UK Tax Resid BF Propeg ING 19 Lirited UK Tax Resident
British Land City Offices Limited UK Taz Resid BF Propco iNo 3| Limited UK Yax Resident
British Land Financing Limited UK Tax Resident o {No & | Lirmited UK Tox Resident
British Land Investments Nethertands Holding Overseas Tax Resident BF Prapco — 2x = 5{:’
BV [Neiherfands]? - ) BF Propco INo S 1L UK Tax L
British Land Properties Limited UK Tax Resid BE Properiies [No 4 | Limited UK Tax Residant
British Land Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident | BF Praperties fNos jLimited UK Tax Resident
British Land Securities Limited UK Tax Resident agr‘;t;;l, ﬁ\al;.::l\]ership Trust [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident
British Land Sec!.lmls,atlon 1999 UK Tax R »‘ BL & N Acquisition Limited UK Tax Recident
Broadgate [Funding] PLC UK Tax Resident BL [Maidenhiad] Company Limited UK Tax Recidert
gxidcg:lﬁgzi:hes trsurance Mediation UK Tax Resident BL ISP} Canngn Street Wtw UK Tax Resident
Hyfleet Lirniled UK Tax Resident | BLISPA {1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Ringemere Productions Limited UK Tax Residern | BLISP] Investment 12] Limited UX Tax Resident
Linestair Limited UK Tax Resident | BLISPllnw L [3} Limited UK Tax Resident
t ondon and Henley Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident Bi. {SP] investment [4i Lirnited U Tax Resident
Meadowhall Persions Scheme Trustee Lirmited UK Tax Resident | BL Baker Co 2012 Limited {JerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
i BL Bradiord Forster Limited UK Tax Resident




Company UXfOverseas Tax | Company UK/Overseas Tax
Name Resdent Status | Name Residerst Siatus
BL Brislington Limited UK Tox Resident ngEigh '_-'nlurer?:rd:d Shopping Cznires Holding UK Tax Residant
BL Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited UK Tax Resident parny Limd :
BL Broadgate Fragrment 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Lancaster investments LW UK Tax Resident
B Broadgate Fragment 3 Limitsd UK Tax Resident ‘BL La"cas!ﬁ:;;“';eg Partnership UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragmenl 4 Lmuuzd UK Tax Res!denl BL Leadenhall Liersey Lid {JerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragrnent 5 Limitad LIX Tax Resident BL Leadenhall Holding Co Uerseyl Lid Ton Rosdent
BL Broadygate Fragmen! & Limited UK Tax Resident | 4 JerseyP
BL Chess Limited UK Tox Residenl | ) | escure and Industriat Holding UK Tax Resident
BL Chess No, 1 Limited Partnarship UK Fax Resident | Company Limited
[Partnership nterest] 8L Maytair Offices Limited UK Tax Resident
8L City Offices Holding Company § imited UK Taz Resident | B maadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tan Recdent
BL Clifton Moor Lirnited UK Tax Resident | B eadowhall Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Davelopments Limiled UK Tax Resident | 5 pcadomvhell No & Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | g) ggfice INon-City) Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lower GP Company Limited UK Tax Resident | B\ ptfice Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lower Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident BL Dsnaburgh St Residential Ltd UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lowar LP Company Limited UK Tax Residarit Bl Piccadilly Residential Limited UK Tax Residant
BL CW Upper GP Company Limited UK Tax Resident | |5y Piccadilly Residential Managemant UK Tax Resident
BL CW Upper Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident | Ca Limnited
BL CW Upper LP Company Limited UK Tax Recident { BL Piccadilly Residential Relail Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Cwmbran Limited LIK Tax Resident IBsh ql:esidenﬁe;t General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Detrs Limnited erseyP Overseas Tax Resident interest -
BL Depariment Slores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential No_ 1 Limied UK fax Resident
BL Doncaster Wheattey Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential No. 2 Limiled UK Tax Resident
81 Ealing Limiled UK Tax Resident | Bt Residusl Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Walk J2012 Limited UerseyP Overseas Tax Resident | BL Relail Holding Cornpany Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Waik Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Retail Invesiments Limited UK Tax Resident
BL ESOP Limited isle of Man} Overseas Tax Resident ﬂl- B;t;ilWarehoushq Halding Company UK Tax Resident
. T
%::;:?m‘::g Managerneni LLP UK Tax Resident BL Sainshury Supersiores Limied [50% interest] UK Tax Reswdent
BL Eurcpean Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Shorediich Geperal Partoer {imited UK Tax Resid
BL Fixed Uplilt Fuad Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident | BL Shoreditch Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uplif Fund Nominee | Limited UK Tax Resident | (Parinership interest] .
BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | Bl horeditch No. 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed UpLift Fund Nominee No.} Lirnited Overseas Tax Resident | B 2horediich No 21 imited - UX Tax Resident
erseyl BL Superstores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
!BL rl;:;g Uplift Fund Nominee No.2 Limited Overseas Tax Resident | BL Triton Building Residantial Limiled UK Tax Resident
Je Rl Unit Tryst [ Jerseyl? Overseas Tax Resident
Bl Fixed Uplift General Partner Limiled UK Tax Resident { BL Unitholder No. 1 {3} Limited {JerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL FW Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Unithotder No. 2 1)l Limited Uerseyl® Overseas Tax Residenl
BL Goodman IGeneral Pariner] Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Universal Limited UK Tax Resident
150% interesy BL Wardrobe Court Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Goodman [LF) Limited LK Tax Resident | 5 weor (Watling Houss} Limited UK Tax Resident -
BL GP Chesxs bo. 1 Limited UK Tax Resident Blackglen Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Guaranieeco Limited [Limiled by Guarantee] UK Tax Resident | ‘gyzcqeuail 1) UK Tax Resident
BL HB lvestments Limited UK Tax Resident | 'gyoomilt [Thirty | Lirnited UX Tax Resident
BL HC I9SCH] Limited UK Tax Resident | gioyrmin [Twenly-nine) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC IDSCL Limited UK Tax Resident BLD [A] Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Dollview Limited UK Tax Resident | gy 3 {Epury Gatel Limited UK Tax Residant
BL WC Hampshire PH LLP iMember interest] UK Tax Resident | gy 1S itwestments Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Heaith And Fitness Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | ) 075]) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC invic Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident | G101 and Limited UX Tax Residant
BL HC PH CRG LLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident BLD Propertiss Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HG PH L1 P {Member Interest} UK Tax Resident | By property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 1 LLLP {Member Interest) U Tax Ressdent BLT Holdings 2018 Ltd (50% intevest UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 2 LLP {Mernber Interest) UK Taz Resident | g1 1) Ectates Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No 3LLP {Member Interest] UK Tax Resident | gy |) property Management Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Property Haoldings Limiled UK Tax Resident BLU Securities Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident British Land Uoin! vemuresl Lirnited UK Tax Resident
BL Hezlth Clubs PH No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
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Compary UXfOverseasTax | Compary UX/Overseas Tax
Name Resideni States | Namme Resident Stanrs
British Land [Whilz] 2015 Limitad { Jersey) UK Tex Resident | Cityof London Uitice Urel Irust [ Jersey] iUniis] Overseas Tax Resident
[Founder SharesP [35.94% interestP
Brtish Land Acquisitions Limited UK Tax Re=ud Carges Estalz Property Management UK Tax Resident
Sritish Land Aqua Partnership {2} Limited UK Tax Resigeny | Colimited i
British L.and Aqua Partnership Limited UK Tox Residers | Comgenc Limited i — UK Tax Resident
Brilish L and Cumpany Secretarial Limited UK Tax Resident | Cosnish Residential Properties Trading Limiled UK Tax Resideat
British L_and Construction Limited UK Tax Resident EQ“E"“ Residential Property lovestments UK Tax Resident
— — P -
g::.]i::lhIt ﬁﬂn: Dmmepa?netif Limill:: = 3§ T:: g:saden: Crescent West Propertizs UX Tax Rosident
— pments — - Deepdats Co-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resident
British Land Fund Management Limited UK Tax Residen! | peomber interest] (37 66% mtarest)
British Land Hercules Limiled UK Tax Resident | g3y Investment Holdings Limited UK Tax Residant
Bnush Land Harcules No.1 Limited UK Tax Resadent Dirwwell Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No.3 Limited UK Tax Residen! | igmedes Property No.l Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No 4 Limited UK Tax Resag Dw a4 PmpenyNo_Z Linited UK Tax Resident
British Land HIF Limited UK Tax Resident | fyoocdes Propesty No.3 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land In Town Retail Lirnited UK Tax Resitent | 1xoomeges Property No.k Limired UK Tax Rosident
British Land Industrial Limiled UK Tax Resident | 1xomedes Property a5 Limited UK Taz Resid
British Land lnvestment Managennent Lirnited UK Tax Rasidant Diomedes Property No & Limited UK Tax Residant
British Land Investments N V NelherlandsD UK Tax Resident | {5 medes Property No 7 Limitad UK Tax Resident
British Land Leisure Limited UK Tox Resident | [5omedes Property No.8 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices [Non- Cityl Limited UK Tax Resident | /v Circus GP_LL.C {United Siates? Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Offices [Non-Ciryt No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | e Cirous Leisure Limited UX Tax Resident
British { and Otfices Limited UK Tax Resideni | oy e Circus Limited Partnerstp (United Overseas Tax Resideat
British E and Offices No.1 Limited UK Tax Resident | States) [Partnership Interest]?
British Land Progerty Advisers Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Circus Unit Trust lersey] [UnitspP Overseas Tax Resident
British L and Property Management Limited UK Tax Residani |- Drake Property Holdings Limited LUX Tax Resident
Brilish | and Regeneration Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Property Nominee [No. 1] Limited UX Tax Resident
Brilish L and Retail Warehouses Limiled UK Tax Resident | Brake PropertyNominee [No. 2] Limited UX Tax Resident
fin liquidation} Eden Walk Shopping Centre General Partner UK Tax Resident
British Land Supersiores [Non Securitised) UK Tax Residem | Limited (50% interest]
= 2Limited - Eden Walk ang Centre Unil Trust {verseas fax Resident
Broadgate {PHC 8] Limited UK Tax Resid {Jersey] [Units] {50% interest]®
Broadgate Adjoining Properties Limited UK Tax Resident Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust Uersey] (Units] Overseas Tax Resident
Broadgate Business Cenire Limited UK Tax Resident | [75.31% interestP
Broadgate City Limited UK Tax Resid El wvirtue Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Court Investments Limited UK Tax Resid Elk Milt Otdharn Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Eslales Limiled UK Tax Resid: Euston Tower Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estales People Managernent UK Tax Resident | Exchange House Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Finsbury Avenue Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Retail Managenment Limited UK Tax Resident { four Broadgate Limited U Tax Resident
Broadgale Exchange Square UK Tax Resident | FRP Group Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Irvestment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | Gar d Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Limited [Jersey] (50% UK Tax Resident | Gardenray Limited UK Tax Resident
interest]' Gibraltar General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Square Limited UK Tax Resident | {3746% interest
Broughton Retail Park Limited Uerseyl UK Tax Resident | Gibraltar Nominees Limited [37.66% interest) UK Taz Resident
253““' "‘“’“’5‘; R T 5 — Gilibrook Retail Park Nattingham Limited UK Tax Resident
roughton Unit Trust [Jersey] [Units erseas Tax Resident [y .
175.21% interzs1P Glermway leu}ed e UK Tax Res!dent
A - — — Hempel Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident
runswick Park Limited UK Tax | s n
- - Hempel Hotels Limted UK Tax Resident
BVP Developments L imited UK Tax Resident — - -
— T Hercules Property Limiled Partnership UK Tax Resident
Canatla Water Dffices Limited UK Tax Resident {Partnership Interest] {40.68% interest)
Casagood Enlerprises UK Tax Resident | yyorcules Praperty UK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Caseplanelimied UK Tax Resident | o ryles Property UK Limited UK Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared i Limited UK Tax Resident § yertules Unit TrustiJersey iUrits] Overseas Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Limiled UK Tax Resident | [75.31% interest?
Caymall Limiled UK Tax Residanl | Hereford Old Market Limited UK Tax Resident
Chantway Limited UK Tax Resid Hereford Shopping Centre GP Limited UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | Hereford Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident
Chrisity Norsirrees Limited UK Tax Resident | Partnership IPartnership Interest)
Hilden Properties Limited UX Tax Hesident
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Compsary UKfOverseasTax | Company URfOverseas Tax
Name Resident Status | Name Resident States
Hormdrifl Limited UK Tz Resident | Paddinglon Central il IGP] Limited UK Tax Residend
HUT Investments Limited [Jersey] Overseas Tax Resident | Paddington Centralll LP UK Tax Resideni
[7531% interestP® Paddington Central 1l Unit Trust Ovarseas Tax Residen
Industnal Real Eskate Limited UK Tax Resident { {Jerseyl(UnitsP
Insstrietal 2 Lirnited UK Tax Resident | Paddington Central IV Unil Trust Uerseyl Gverseas Tax Residerd
hvorydeil Limited UK Tax Resident g’af::l:g - ——
i Subssdiary Limited UK Tax Resudent ington Central Management UK Tax Resident
m;r";:l: Ceived UK Tax Resider | S2Ip21 Limited 187.50% interesy)

— - Paddington Kiosk [GP] Ltd UK Tax Regidant
Jetbloorn Limited UK Tax Residant . ~ .
L & H Davalopmants Limited UK Tax Resideru | 2ddingion Kiosk LP _ UK Tax Resident
Lancaster General Partner Limited UK Tox Residery | Lardev(Broadwayl Limited M Tox Ressdonl
Lancaster Unit Trust Jerseyl {UnitsP Oversezas Tax Resident Par?iw RLuten} Lm?‘“_!d LK Tax Res,denl
Leadennall Holding Co Lizrseyl Ltd {erseyl G 2= Tax Resident Parinv Northesn Limited UK Tax Resident
[S0% interest]' Parwick Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Management Company Limited UK Tax Residen | Parwick Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
[50% interest} PC Baltic Wherl Limiled UK Tax Resident
Liverpoot (ne Managemenl Services Limiled UK Tax Resident | PC Canal Limited UK Tax Resident
London and Henley [UK] Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Lease Nominee Lid UK Tax Resident
London and Henley Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Parinership Nominee Lid UK Tax Resident
Lonebridge UK Limited UK Tax Resident | Piccadilly Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
Longford Sireel Residential Limded UK Tax Resident | Piltar [Becklon] Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgale invesiment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | Piltar {Birstatl Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate West Limited UK Tax Resident | Piltar [Erddewood] Limited UK Tax Resident
Manbnig Properties UK Tax Resident | Fillar [Dartford) Limited UK Tax Residant
Marble Arch House Unit Trust [erseyl [Units)? Overseas Tax Resident | Pillar (Futham] Limited UK Tax Residenl
Maytair Properties UK Tax Resident | Piftar (Kirkcaldyl Limited UK Tox Resident
Mayllower Relail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Auchinlea Limited UK Tax Rasident
Meadowbank Retail Park Edinburgh Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Broadway Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centro 1999] Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Cheatharn Hill Limited UK Tax Residen?
Meadowhall Centre Limited LK Tax Resident | Fillar City Plc UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Pension Scheme Trustees UK Tax Resident | Pillar Dartford No.T Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Pillar Danton Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Eslates [UK] Limiled UK Tax Resident { pijiar Developments L imited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Group [MLP] Limited UK Tax Resident | Pintar Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | pjliar Estales No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities Nominee T Limited UK Tax Resident | pijar Eurupe Management Limiled UK Tax Resident
Meadowhail Opportunities Neminee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident Pillar Farnborough Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Training Limited UK Tax Resident | pyiar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari UK Tax Resident | pijiar Fylham No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercan Haldings Limited UK TaxResident | pifiar Gallions Reach Limited UK Tax Resident
Minhill Investments Limited UK Tax Resident | oipar Glasgow | Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorage {Property Devetopments} Limited UK Tax Resident | pijar Glasgow 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moarfields Nominee 1 Lirnited UK Tax Residen! | piltar Glasgow 3 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moarfields Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | pjijar Hercules No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Nugent Shapping Park Lirmited UK Tax Resident | pingr Kinnaird Linmited UK Tax Resident
Number 80 Cheapside Liited UK Tax Resident | pillar Nugent Limited UK Tax Resident
OM Investments Limited Llerseyl* Overseas Tax Resident | pigar Projects Limited UK Tax Residenl
QOne Hundred Ludgate Hill UK Tax Resident | piar Property Group Limited UK Tax Resident
One Sheldon Square Limited { JerseyP Overseas Tax Resident | pijtar Retail Europark Fund {Pref] Overseas Tax Resident
Orbital Shopping Park Swindon Limited UK Tax Resident | |[Luxembourg] [Member Interest}
Osnaburgh Street Limited UK Tax Resident | 165.30% interestl®
Paddington Block A IGP] Lid UK Tax Resident Pillar Retail Parks Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block A LP [Partnership lnterest} UK Tax Residery | Pillar Speke Limited i UK Tax Resfdenl
Paddinglon Block B [GP) Lid UK Tax Resident Eig;’r?nﬂmdamgemenl Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block B LP IPartnership Interest] UK Tax Resident | — —— -

" — I Pillarrman Limited UK Tax Hesident
Paddington Cenlral | IGP) Limited UK Tax Resident | — — .

- - - PillarStore Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Central | LP [Partnership Inlerestl UK Tax Resident | — —— -
Padiington Ceniral | Nominee Limited UK Tax Resident | Diarstore Mo 3Limiled UK Tax Resident
Paddington Central | Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident | Bymouth Retail Limited UK Tax Resident

Power Court GP Limited UK Tax Resident

{Jerseyl [UnitsP
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Company . UYX/OverseasTax { Company UK/Overseas Tax
Name Resilent Status | Narme Resident Saies
Power Court Lutan | imited Parinership UK Tex Resident ] Toltgate Centre Colchester Limited UK Tax Resident
{Partnership interesi] : TPP Imvestments Limited UK Tax Residen
Power Court Nominee Limited UK Tax Resident § Tuweed Premier 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Nominees No. 2 Limilad UK Tax Resident | fweed Premier 2 Limited UK Tax Resid:
:’Lﬁﬁfn*‘;oﬂa;?sﬂem Company SA Overseas Tax Resident { fweed Premier & Limited UK Tax Resident
u u . - - . .

Project Sunrise lovestments Limited UK Tax Resigant | o Property Corporabion Limited_ LR Lo ey

i —— * Union Property Holdings {Landon] L UK Tax Resident
Project Sunrise Uimited ____ UK Tax Resident | 1, g Kingdum Property Company Limited UK Tax Rasidont
Project Sunrise Progerties Lirited UK Tax Resident | {4 on Estates Management Linited UK Tax Resident
Reboline Limited UK Tax Residenl 1 gin Liquiation}
Regent’s Place Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident | valentine Co-ownership Trust IMembar UK Tax Resident
Regents Place Managemenl Company Limized UK Tax Residant | interest] [37.46% interest) :
Renash UK Taz Resident | Vatenline Unit Trust Uersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Rasident
Rigphune Lirnited UK Tox Resident [ [T331BinterestP
Ritesol . UK Tax Resident Vidinitee Limited UK Tax Residant
Rohawk Properties Lirnited UK Tax Resident Vintnars' Place Limited UK Tax Resident
Salmax Progerbes UK Tax Resident Wardrobe Court Limited UX Tax Restdam
Seymour Street H Limited UK Tax Regident Wardrobe Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Limited UK Tax Rasid! Wardrobe Place Lynited UK Tax Resident
Six Broadgale Limited UK Tax Regdent | Wates Cily of Londen Propertizs Limited UK Tox Residont
Southgate General Partner Limited 150% UK Tax Resident | Wates City Point timited UK Tax Resident
interest] Wates Cily Properly Management Limited UX Tax Residant
Southgate Property Unit Trust [Jerseyl Overseas Tax Resident | Westboume Terrace Partnesship UK Tax Residant
Units| 150% inlerestP {Parinership Intetest) -
Speke Unil Trust Jersey] [Units] Dverseas Tax Reswd Weslside Leeds Limited UK Tax Resident
165 9% interesil? Whiteley Shopping Centre Unit Trust Ovarseas Tax Resident
Sprint 1118 Lirniled UK Tax Resid Uerseyl {UnilsP ‘
St James Parade |43} Limited UK Tax Resid WK JAustral House) First Limiled UX Tax Resident
St James Retail Park Northampton Limited UK Tax Resid WX lAustral House] Second Limited UK Tax Resident
5t. Stephens Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | WK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Stockion Retail Park Limited UK Tax Recid York House W1 Limited UK Tax Residen)
Surrey Quays Limited UK Yax Resident
Sydale UK Tax Resident
T [Partnershipl Limited UK Tax Resident
Tailress Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL 1Brent Parkl Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Bromieyl Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL. |Burstedon] Limited UK Tax Residant
TBL. [Buryl Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Ferndownl] Limited UK Tax Rasident
TBL ILisnagelvin] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBI. [Maidstone} Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Milton Keynesl Limited UK Tax Resident
1BL [Peterborough) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL Holdings Limiled UK Tax Resideni
T8L Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Jeesside Leisure Park Limiled [51% inlerest) UK Tax Rasident
The Aldgate Place Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident
{Partnership interest! {50% interesi}
The Dartford Partnership [IMember Interesd UK Tax Resident
{50% interest}
The Gibrallar Lirnited Partnership UK Tax Residenl
{37.66% interesi|
The Liverpool Exchange Cornpany Limiled UK Tax Resident
The Mary Street Estate Limited UK Tax Resident
The Meadowhall Education Centre UK Tax Resident
[Limnited by Guar ] 150% interest)
The Relail and Warehouse Company Limiled UK Tax Resident
The TBL Properiy Partnership UK Tax Resident
{Partnership Interest]
The Whiteley Ca-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resident

iMember Interest) {509% interest)
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

* UNAUDITED

Table A: Summary income statement and halance sheet

Summary income statement based on propurtional consolidation for the year ended 31 March 2017
The foltowing pro forma infermation is unaudited and does nolt form part of the consolidated pnmary statements or the noles therets. It presants the
results of the Group, with ils share of the results of joint venlures and funds included on a {ine-by-line basis and exctuding non-controlling interesis.

Year ended 31 March 27 Yaor ended 31 March 20816
" Joint Less Jaint Less
£m £m £m m . Im Em €m m
6russ rental income 442 220 : n9 643 451 231 280 454
Properly operaling expenses 1251 ol 2 133) (28] kiR 1 (3£
Net rental income £17 210 own &10 425 Yr44 27 Y.
Adminisirative expenses 184) (Vi) - 88 K3 51 & el
Net [ees and olher income 17 - - 17 16 - - 17
Ungeared [ncome Return 350 208 un S41 348 nr za 543
Net financing cosis {78} 176 3 1151) Nnas) 182] 8 f180)
Undertying Profit 272 132 114] 390 242 135 014] 353
Underlying 1axation - - = - 2 - = 2
_ Undertying Prafit atter taxation 272 132 [14) 390 244 135 1141 355
Valualion movement (z3n) B&1
Other capital and taxation (neil’ 1433) 48
Capital and other 1&70) . 909
Total return ) . f280) 1274
' Indudes other comprehensive income, moverment in ditution of share options and the in itemns excluded {or EPRANAY.
S rary b e sheet based on proportional consolidation as at 31 March 2617 -

The foilowmg pro forma information is unaudited and does not form part of the consolidated primary statements or the notes lhereln It presenls
the caraposition of the EPRA net assets of the Group. with its share of the net assets of the join! venture and lund assets and Labdilies included
on a line-by-line basis, and excluding non-controllng interests. and assuming full dilution.

Mark-to- ,
market on \
. effecive

Share of Less cash flow Valuztion EPRANet EPRAN=t
joint non- hedges and surplus on assels assets
venlures controlling Share Delerred related debt Head trading 3 March 31 March
Group & funds  interesls ophons tax adjustrnents leases  propertieg a7 206
Em (3] Em tm £m Em £m Em £m _ Em
Retail properties 5066 20 381) - - - 152} - &,658 7341
Otfice properties . ANSS 2792 - - - - 3] 83 7.015 7024
Canada Water properies 280 - - - - - 191 - n 283
Other praperlies ’ - ~ - - - - - - - -
Total properties 9.501 £813 138 - - C - 78} 83 13,940 15,648

Investments in joint ventures and -
funds . 2766 12.766) - - - - - - - -
Jaint venture held for sale 540 1540} - - - - - - - -
Other invesiments 154 I3} - - - - - - 151 138
Other net {lizbilities) assels [3sy oy 7 36 3 - 76 - 370} . 1347
Net debt (30941  (1.403] ny - - 155 - - 16,2231 {4.785)
Dilytion due to convertible bond - - .= — = - - - - 400
Netassets 9476 - {255] 36 3 133 - 83 92498 10,074
EPRA NAV per share [note 2] 915p 1%
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED
~ UNAUDITED
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Tahle A continued
EPRA Net Assets Movement
Year ended Yaar ended
31 March 2017 31 March 20
Pence per Penee per
£ shara € share
Opening EPRA NAY 10,075 - e 2035 829
Income raturmn 390 35 345 34
Capital return 16701 * 113) 903 77
Dividend paid {298} n {235 rd}}
Closing EPRANAY 9498 75 007 919
Table B: EPRA Performance measures -
- EPRA Performance measures symmary tahlie .
7 2016
Pence per Pence per
m shage Ern share
EPRA Earnings - basic , 396 79 355 354
- giluted 390 378 371 341
EPRA Net Initial Yizid L% A%
EPRA "topped-up’ Nel Intis! Yield £5% 4.5%
EPRA Vacancy Rate £.8% 2.0%
217 2015
Netasset Nl assal
value per value per
Melassets sharepenoe Nel asseis share pance
EPRANAY 9,498 ns 10072 919
EPRARMNAY 8938 861 9640 - 886
Catculation and reconciliation of EPRA/IFRS earnings and EPRAIFRS earnings per share
Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company Ly 1345
Exclude:
Group - current Laxation 11] 12
Groyp - deferred taxation . - 31
Jeint ventures and Junids — current 1axation - 1
Jont vertures and iunds - deferred laxation - -
Group - valualion movement L[73 16161
Groug - toss [profit] on disposal of investment properties and investments 5 3%
Group - profit on disposal of trading praperties m o)
Joint ventures and lunds - net valuation movement fincluding result on disposals) 75 1262)
Joing ventures, and funds - capital financing costs ) 6 -
Changes in fair value of financial instruments and associated close-out €0sts 13 i3y
Non-conlrolling interasls in respecl of the above m 5
Underlying Profit .390 363
Group - underlying current taxation - 2
EPRA earnings - basic 390 365
Dilutive effect of 20312 converiible bond - T
EPRA earnings - diluted 390 37
. Profit atiribulable to the shareholders of the Company 193 1,345
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond' 133] 42|
IFRS earnings - diluted* 150 1.303
' The 2014 comparative figures; for the dilutive effact |;l the 2012 convertibie hond and IFRS diluled have bedn 1 d - sea Noe 1.



Table B continued

017 2046
Number - Number
mallion milion
Waighted avarage number of shares 1,040 1036
Adjustment for Treasury shares m 1
IFRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares {hasic} 1029 1075
Dilylive effact of share options 1 2
Dilutive eftect of ESOP shares 3 &
Dilutive elfect of 2012 convertible bond 58 58
IFRS Weighted average number of shares [diluted) ,0N 1,089
Ditutive eifect of 2012 convertibla bond 58] -
'EPRA Weighted average number of shares [diuted] 1033 1,089
Net assets per share
2017 ] 2014
. Pence Pence
£m  pershare Em  pershare
Balance sheel net assets 2476 9.6i%
Delerved tax arising on revaluation movements 3 5
Mark-to-market ot effective cash How hedges and related debt adjustments 155 198
Dilution effect of share oplions 38 36
Surplus on rading properties 83 b )
Corvertible bond adjustment - 410
Less non-controlling interests (2551 12771
EPRA NAY 7.498 15 10.074 919
Defesred tax arising on revalyation movements ) W (24}
Mark-to-market on eifective cash flow hedges and related debt adjustrmenls 1sst {153
Mark-1a-markel on debl {38¢8) (257
EPRA NNNAV 8,938 861 9640 880
EPRA NNNAY is the EPRA NAV adjusted 1o reflect the fair value of the debt and derivatives and o include the deferred taxabion on revaluations
and derivatives.
2017 261
Number Nuraher
milion million
Number of shares at year end 1.OAQ 1,040
Adjustment for treasury shares 101} (111]
IFRS/EPRA number of shares [basic} 1,029 1.029
Ditutive elfec of share oplions 3 2
Ditutive elfect of ESOP shares & 7
Dilutive effect of 2082 convertible bond 58 58
IFRS number of shares [diluted) 1,096 1096
Ditutive effect of 2012 convertible band {581 -
EPRA number of shares |diluted]} 1,038 1.0%
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDITED
Table B continued
EPRA Net Initial Yield and “topped-up” Net Initial Yietd

207 .17

£m L

lvestment property - wholly-owned ) . - . 2210 9787
Investiment property — share of joinl veatures ang funds 4,730 L.
Less developments, residentiat and tand’ - 798) B9sl
Campleted property partiolio . 13142 13,754
Aliowance for estimated purchasers’ cosis ] 897 985
5 up completed property portfolio valuation (A) . 14,939 14,739
Annualised cash passing rental income ‘ 407 . 607
Property outgoings : ) 9l [8)
Annualised net rents (8] 598 9%
Rent expiration of rent-free periods and Hixed ugliits’ 30 63
“Topped-up’ net annualised rent{C) 428 b62
EPRA Netinitial VieW (8/A] ' : : FE LV%
EPRA “mpped-up” Net Initial Yield (C/A) 45% 45%
Including fixed/mini uphifls received in lizu of rental gnowth n 24
Total topped-up’ net rents {D) 439 684
O W “topped-up” Net fnitiat Yield [BJA} A.8% 4 7%
Tepped-up’ net annualised renl 428 642
EftVvacant spaca . 34 173
Reversions ) . . 38 42
Total ERVIE] 700 718
Net Reversionary Yield (E/A) . 5.0% £.9%

1 The weighted average period ovas which rent-free periods expire is 1 yaar [2015415: § year).
The above is stated hor the UK portiolio onty.

EPRA Net initial Yield INIY) basis of calculation

EPRA NIY is calcutaled 2s the annualised net rent {on a cash Row basis). divided by the gross value of the completid property portiolio. The valuation
of aur completed property portfolio is determined by our exlernal valuers as at 31 March 2017, plus an allowance for estimated purchaser s costs.
Estimaled purchaser’s costs are delerminad by the retevant stamp duly liabiiity. plus an estimate by cur valuers of agent and legal fees on notionak
acquisilion. The net rent dedyction allowed for property outgoings is based on our valuers’ assumptions on lulure recurring non-recoverable
revenue expenditure.

In talculating the EPRA “topped-upg’ NEY. the annualised net rent is increased by the Lolzl conlracled rent fromn expiry of reat-free periods and future
contracted rental uplifls where defined a5 not in tieu of growth, Qverall topped-up” NIY fs calculated by adding any other contracted fulyre uplift to
the ‘topped-up’ net annualised rent_

The net reversionacy yield is calcutated by dividing the total estimated rental value [ERV! for the completed property partfotio, as determined by
our external valuers, by the gross campleted properly portfolio vatuation.

The EPRA vacancy raie is caloutated as the ERV of the unrented. tetiable space as a proportion ol the teZal rental value of the completed groperty partfolia.

EPRA Vacancy Rate
2017 206
£m ) £
Annualised polential irental valut of vacant premises . 34 14
Annualised potential rentaf value for the completed proparty portfolio 710 728

EPRA V. y Rate i 4.8% 2.0%

The above is stated for the UK parifolio only. A discussion of significant faclors affecting vacancy rates is included wathin the Sirategic Report
Ipages 28 to 30. ’
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Table B continued

EPRA Cost Ratios -
2017 2016
£&m £m
Proparty operating expenses 2 5
Adrninistrative expenses 84 %0
Share of joint ventures and funds expenses 12 13
Less: Performance and managemeant fees [from jeint ventures and funds) 1£4] 4]
Nat other feas and commissions {8l 18
Ground rent cosls ) 131
EPRA Costs [including direct vacancy costs) (A} 180 108
Direct vacancy costs 12) 111}
EPRA Costs [excluding direct vacanty costs) (B} 88 97
Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs £12 £29
Share of joint ventures and funds {GRI less ground rent costs) e 22
Tolal Gross Rental income kess ground reat costs (C) 173 £51
EPRA Cost Ratio [including direct vacancy costs] (A/C) 15.6% 16.6%
EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) (B/C) 13.7% 4%
S 4

Overhead and operating exp capitalised [including share of joint ventures and funds}

In: the current year, employee cosis in relation 1o staff lime on development projects have baan capitalised inlo the Basa cost of relevant development assets.

Table C: Gross reatal income

017 mé
£m | £m
Rent receivable 633 815
Spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed renl increases’ 8 3
Surrender premia 2 3
87055 rental income 643 654
The currenl and prior year intormation is presented on a propertionally consolidated basis. excluding non-conirolling interests.
Table D: Property related capital expenditure
2007 . . 201
Joim . Joink
vyeRhures ventyres
Group antfunds Totat Group  and funds Total
Acguisitions 88 - as 238 - 238
Development 13 1% 145 104 58 62
Like-for-like portfolio 47 47 1% .| & 105
Olher 20 2 2 . 25 15 40
Tuotal property related capex 306 43 34897 AbS Lid 545

The above is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis, excluding non-controlling interests and business combinations. The ‘Other’ category
contains amounts owing to ienant incentives of £10m {2015/16: £27ml, capitalised staif costs 6f £5m [2015/16: £4m) and capitalised interest of E7m

2015/1&; £9ml.
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Ouhier infermmiion

Other information ‘

Other information lunaudited]
Acquisitions and Disposals
Partfolio Valuation
Gross Rental Income
Porticlio Yield and ERV Movements
Ratail Portfolio Vaiuation - Previous Classification Basis
Partiolio Neat Yields
Paortlolio Net Yields - Previous Classification Basis
Total Praperty Retum [as calcutated by IPD]
Decupiers Representing over 0.5% of Total Conlracted Rent
Major Holdings
Lease Length & Otcupancy
Portfolic Weighting
Annualised Rent and Estimnated Rental Value [ERV)
Renl Subject to Dpen Market Rent Review
Rent Subject to Lease Break or Expiry
Superstores
Recently Comgpleted & Committed Develbpments
Near Term Development Pipeline
Mediyrm Term Development Pipeline
Residential development programme
Sustainability performance measures
Ten year record
Shareholder information
Glossary

Glasgow Fort lright}
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Cthee inforamation

UNAUDITED

Acquisitions sad Disposals

Acquisitions N
, Price Anmzal
Pooe [Brtsh Land Passing
’ 1Gross} share) Rani
From 1 April 20%4 Sector ' [2,:] £m £mt
Completed ' K
New George Streal Estate, Plymouth Retail 64 .13 5
10- 40 The Broadway, Ealing® Retail 49 49 2
Harlech, Newporl - Tesco exchange? Retail 41 20 1
Tesco, Bristinglon - Tesco exchange? Reatail &6 23 2
Harcules Unit Trust umit purchase® . Retail ] 8 18 1
Teaesside Leisure Park Retait : 13 13 ]
Dock Otfices Canada Waler 8 8. -
Total 239 195 12
' Proparty acquisition exch d and compiated post year end,
T Property acquisiions exchanged and completed past year ehd as part o) a Tesgo JV swap transaction resutting in a net E73m disposal of supersiore assets.
? Units purchasad ovae the Course oF tha year. £18m represents purchased GAY.
* Brilish Land share of annualited rent topped up for rent brees.
Bisposals :
Price Anmsal
Price (Brilish Land Passing
iGross] shara] Hent
From | April 2016 . Sector Im Em Em?
Completed |
Debenhams, Oxlord Street - . Retail 400 400 13
Superstores* ] Retail : 410 224 12
Portlclio of retail asssts '
[Debenhams Manchester, York Clifton Moor, Wakefield Westgate) Retail ikl L I 12
EburyGate Otfices 34 34 2
Durniries Cuckao Bridge Retail 20 20 1
56 - 70 Putney High Streel . Retail 20 20 1
Lisnagekvin, Londonderry Retal 15 15 1
Luton Pawer Caurt : Retait 9 9 -
The Hempet Collection ) Residential -~ 14 14 -
Atdgate Place . ' - Residential &b 2 s -
Exchanged® . ]
The Leadenhall Building . Oifices 1.150 575 17
Clarges_Mayfair . Residantial X3 19 -
Total . ' 2,328 1,546 59

' Of which £116m [British Land share] exchanged and compleled post yzar end as part of a Tesco JV swap transaction resulting in 3 net [73m disposal of superstore assets.
? Sales completing past year end.
* gnlish Land share of annualised rent topped up far rent Irees.
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Portfoliv Valuadon!

Change &*
M58
Group Fimds Toial

A3 March 2017 Em Cm m Hi H2 FY

Regional Lilestyle 1120 1834 2954 12.8} 10 [1F: ]
Local L ifestyle 161 &7 2148 is8) 04 14 5}
Multi-lets ) 2N 2.m 5,102 a7 a7 13.0)
Oepartment Stores & Leisure 574 1 57% 32 a1 51
Superslores 104 524 632 13.00 25 5.2)
Solus/Other 345 - 345 37 18 55

Retait 31,815 2,838 8,854 2.4) 07 1.8)
West End 3940 - 3940 124 17 0.5
City 108 277 2884 1591 44 [(i%:]]
Offices 4,068 2,776 © 5,844 (3sl 28 nn
Residential® 156 15 V4] - 54 42

Offices & Residentiat 4,226 2,791 2.015 13.3) 29 ins)
Canada Water ‘ m - n {21 9.0 (K]
Tatat 8,31 5,629 13940 1281 14 n.4
Standing Investments 780 5,487 13,368 iz 13 n.e
Developments 490 142 832 13.0] 48 17

' On & proportionally ¢ § hases mcluding the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.

? Valuation roverneant during the year (after taking accouni of capital expenditure] of propar ties held at the balance sheet date, induding davelopmeals
[classiliad by end use), purchases and sales.

* Standalone residential

Gross Rental Income'=

12 months 16 31 March 2017 Annuatised as at 31 Mareh 2007
Ve & Vs &

Group Funds Taotal Greup Funds Total
Arcounting Basis Ern Em m £m 1,5 Em
Regional Lifestyle 40 8é 144 3] 88 147
Local Lifestyle 98 27 5 88 2 14
Multi-lets 158 11 Fya e 12 28Y
Department Stores & Leisure 48 - 48 38 - 38
Superstares 9 32 41 & 32 38
SotusfOther 20 - 20 20 - |
Retail 235 145 380 213 144 357
West End 129 - 129 125 | - 125
City 5 14 21 4 104 108
Offices 134 6 20 129 104 233
Residantial®. 4 - & 4 - &
Offices & Residentiat 138 116 254 133 104 237
Canadz Water 9 - 9 8 - 8
Total 392 26 643 354 - 248 £02
' Gross rental income will dilfer from annualised rents due o accounting adjustiments for fixed and minimum contracied rental uplilts and lease incentives.
? Ona proporiionally consolidaied baﬁs incleding the Group's share of joint venlures and funds.
* Standalone rasidential .
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Other inforatation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Portfolio Yield and ERV Movements!

NEY TRV Crowith %7 NEY vizdd Movement bps?
" A3 March2917 ) HY Kz FY HE M2 FY
Regional Lifestyle L9 13% 1% 23% 113 181 12
© Local Lilestyle 94 1.3% 1.2% 25% 9 [11] 27
Multi-lets 51 LI% 1.1% 2.4% 22 3} 18
Dapartmen! Stores & Lgisura 59 DA% 10.1%) 0.£% 4 gl sl
Superstores 55 {3.0%) 1.0%l 15 0% B 13 21
Solus/Gther 57 45% 0.0% 48% ¢ o 14}
Retail 5.2 0.9% 0% 4% 18 13} %
West knd &% 0.3% 0.5% 21% 16 m 13
Ciy* 4.5 {0.2%) B.4% 8.2% 27 1234 15
Olfices 45 1% A% 0.5% 1 1] 15
Canada Water 34 0.9% 10.1%) 0.9% . & 5 9
Totat ' 48 5% 0a% 1% 19 5l 5
' Do a proport litarael basis inciudding the Group's share of joim ventures and hawds. Exdusteg ¢ and residential assets.
2 As calcutated by IPD.
* including notienal purthaser's costs.
a ClinE‘hsA &%pm forma lor sale completion of o 30% interest in The Leadanhalt Buulmvnm:udmmm;mr
Retail Portfolio Valuation — Previous Classification Basis'
Valuation Change %* ERV Growth %° NEY Yizld Movesnent bps
Ar31 March 2017 fm Hi H2 FY HI W2 (24 HI w2 FY
Shepping Parks 3167 8. 07 133} 1.4% 0.5% 2.6% 26 L4l 20
Shopping Centres 2.2% 124 0.8 n3l 3% L3% 2.6% 1] ‘|3l 12
Superslores 632 138 2.5 5.2 [3.0%) ol [4.0%] 8 3 2
Departraent Stores 166 56 0 | 67 04% 2.3% 0.7% 3 [0} 18]
Leisure 413 [0.5) 32 27 0.4% 10.2%] 0.2% 21 117
Retail 6,854 (2.41 07 (18l 0% 67%  14% ® 13w
' On 3 proportionall idat ‘hasasmcludmgmeGmnpssharenhomlvenlumsamlfunds.

? Vﬂuam:nmem quring the year lafier taking accaint of capital expenditure] of properiies keld at the batance sheet date, including develupments

[dassified by end used. purchases and sales.
1 As catculated by IPD.
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Portfolio Net Yields!'>?

EPRA IW Ova‘altmed Net Nl
 EPRAR& vanel m!kd U g autist equralent reverswnay
initia! yiele nald

A1 31 March 2017 ] ® by [N % %
Regionat Lifestyle - o 45 ¥ 47 . 49 50
Local Lifestyle . 51 2.2 53 5.4 54
Multi-lets ) 47 49 49 5.1 52
Depariment Stores & Leisure 60 & 72 59 &4
Superstores . 56 5.6 54 53 - 53
SolusfOther R 546 - 54 5.2 48
Retail 49 51 5.2 52 5.1
Wesi End 35 37 18 45 48
City 37 &1 4.1 45 51
Offices : 34 39 39 45 49
Canada Water L ’ 28 29 29 14 as
Total : 4.3 L5 AL .. . &8 5.0
' Ona proportionally consolidaled hasis including the Group's share of joint ventures and hunds.
» lm:luﬁmg nohonal purchaser's costs.
? Excluding cominaited devel and residential assets.
? Induding reml contracted fmnu:pirydnmum periods and fred uplifis not in lieu of ranial growth,
3 Inctuding foed/minimum uptifts lexdudad from EPRA definition).
* City nel equivatent vield is 4 6% and EPRA nel initial yield is 4 2% pro forma bor 5ate completion of cur S0% imterest in The |_eatdenhatl Bultding which exchanged i the year.
Retail Portfolio Net Yields'2? — Previous Classification Basis
) EPRA topped  Overall tepped Nel Na\
EPRAnst up e natsal vp el mabal equivalant  reversionary
At 31 Rarch 2017 % %2 B - %
Shopping parks . &9 7 s -3 52 57
Shopping centres . 85 47 a7 50 51
Supersiores 56 56 Sé 55 53
Department stores : 5.1 51 66 50 39
Leisure 63 63 74 6.2 T 47
Retail ' ‘ (X 51 52 5.2 s
' Opa pmpnrﬁomiiy consolidated basis including the Group's share of jomt ventures and flunds.
? Induding national p!.nthasa‘ s cnsts.
* Exdluding « ¥ !
* Including rent contracied lmm expiry of rent-free periods and fixed uplifts not in lieu of rental growth.
3 Including fived/minirum uplifts lexcluded from EPRA 2efinition).
Total Property Returm (as calculated by TPD)
Retai Qifices Tatal
. Brilish Land IPD  British Land 1PD  British Land IPD
Full Year to 31 March 2017 % % % % % %
Capital Return . an 2.3 0.6 hot 2 0.1
- ERV Growth 16 02 05 20 11 19
~Yield Expansion’ 14bps 12bps 15bps 3bps 15bps 4bps
tncome Relurn - - ‘ 5.3 51 35 38 4.3 47
Yotal Property Return as 28 28 28 31 &6

' Ona proportionally cunsubdated basis incheding the Group's share of j |omt ventures and lunds.
* Net equivalent yield movement,
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Cther informtion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Occupiers Representing over 0.5% of Total Contracted Rent!

AY 31 March 2017 T 2 of intat repnt ol sl ram
Tesco pic? ’ 54 Voedalons ' o3
J Sainsbury plc s 48 Asda Group : 4%
UBS AG 34 BonPic ' 09
Debenhams .33 SpertsDirect 03
Kingfisher {BAQ) 28 Microsolt 03
HM Governrent ' 25 JDSports . 03
Next ple 24 Deutsche Bank 7 08
Virgin Active 19 Resd Smith 038
Facebook 18 HEM ' ) o.7
Dentsu Asgis 1.7 Mayer Brovn _ 87
Spirit Group ‘ 17 Mathercare 07
M&S pic ’ 16 1G] Fridays 0.4
Wasfarmers {Homebase/Bunnings) s 1ICAP Pic 0.6
Allance Boots . 146 River Istand : ’ 0.6
Visa Inc 15 MS Aralin Ple L2
Dixons Casphone 1.4 Credil Agricole . 06
Arcadia Group - 13 Pets at Home . 05
Herbert Smith 13 Henderson . . a5
RBS - ) 12 Primark 05
TK Maxx .10 Aramco a5
Gazprom : ' g House of Fraser as

New Look 1o Steinhalf . : - 0.5

" ! On a groporiionally consolidaled basis incduding the Group's share of jginl venures and funds.
¥ &.7% pro forma for post year end net dispesal of £73n in 2. Tesco IV swap ransachion.

Major Holdings

' British Land Ocoupancy, Lease
share Sqft Rent rale tength

AU March 2017 ) o % ol £m pa' w
Broadgate ' 0 4850 190 983 82
Regent’s Place 100 1590 7% 991 T4
Paddingtan Central 100 958 s oad 58
Meadowhall, Shetfield 50 1,500 84 979 [ ¥4
The Leadenhall Building® v 50 603 40 99 103
Sainsbury’s Supecstores® 3l 2,184 48 100.0 s
Teessida, Slockion® a0 569 17 969 54
Orake’s Circus, Plymauth’ . 160 1,132 4l 759 B89
Glasgow Fort 77 510 21 8.3 5%
Ealing Braadway ) 100 £70 13 93.7 . 5%

v Anmualised EPRA contracied rentincluding 100% of Joint Ventures & Funds.

® Intluding accommodation under offer including post year sransactions al 2 Finsbury Avenue and 4 Xingdom Street] o subject 1o asset rmanagement
fincluding space being prepared lor fiexible workingl or assets being readied for development in the near term 11 Finsbury Avenuel. .

¥ Weighted average to first break, . .

¢ Sale exchanged in March 2017 with completion due post year end.

* Comprises sizndatone siores.

¢ includes Teesside Leisyre Park acquired in the year.

! includes New George Sureet Estate, Plymouth acquired during the year.

e p
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Lease Length & Occupancy

Avprage lease length years Ocaspancy rate %
AT March 2017 Toexpiry Tobresk  EPRA Occupancy Ocoupancy’
Regional Lifestyle 79 &7 973 977
Local Lifestyle 79 [%:} 973 979
Mult-lets 79 ] 973 ¥ie
Departmeni Stores & Leisure 174 17.4 998 98
Supersiwres ny i3 100.0 160.0
SolusfOther * 125 123 100.0 i09.0
Retail .5 84 979 %3
West End 920 73 930 970
City® 98 85 S 91 B
Offices 94 78 921 77
Canada Water 68 &5 976 988
Total 2.4 8.3 5.2 | 980
' On a proportionath lidated basis including the Group's share of joint vantures and funds.
L hdudmgamnodahmundaoﬁuhﬂduﬂm past yaar ransactions at 2 Fushury Avenue anid 4 Kimgdom Streal) or subject te o552 managesment
linctuding space being prepared for Aexible working] or assels being readied for develapment in the regr borm [ Finsbury Avenual,
3 City average lease lergth lo break is 8.2 years pro lorma for sate completion of aur 50%4 <t o The Leadenhall Bulding.
Portfolio Weighting!
2007 2017 27

2016 losreny) - feurrent)  lpro fema’)
A 3T Rardch % % Em ®
Regional Lifestyle 194 23 2954 2146
Local Lifestyle 163 15.4 2148 161
Multi-tets BT 8.7 5,102 77
Department Stores & L sisure 69 &1 575 42
Superslores 23 43 8§32 39
Solus/Other 23 25 345 25
Retail 50.2 £1.8 4,654 483
West End 2646 84 3940 28
City 197 207 2834 187
Offices 463 £9.1 6,844 485
Residentiat? 1.6 1.2 m 12
Cffices & Residential 47.9 50.3 7,015 £9.7
Canada Water 19 19 m 20
Tokal 100.0 1000 13,940 100.0
0t which London 58% 58% 8,050 S58%

! On a proportionally consolidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.
? Proforvna for developments uhder construction and commitiad & i

end ransactions inchuding the expecied sale completion of our 30% interest in The Leadenhall Building and the Tesco JV swap bansaction.

! Standzlone residential.
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Crther infe

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Annualised Reant and Estimated Rental Value (ERV)!

Annalised rend

hratuation baus) Em® ERV m Sver gz red Lpesd

AY A1 March 2007 Group Fjl:s‘:; Toal Fotat Cootractad® Ry
Regional Lifestyle &1 87 48 We kTR Kk}
Local Lifestyle 90 28 na 126 %9 - 261
Multi-lets 151 1% 286 9% 280 294
Department Stares & Leisure 36 - 3% 28 "o 104
Supersiores & 32 38 36 N3 FORE
Solus/Other 20 - 20 17 198 70
Retail 213 7 340 n 245 T 244
West End* 132 - 132 17 542 £2.2
Cityss y 1] Wz 150 525 £0.2
Officest 136 103 239 kv 534 612
Residentiat® 4 - & [

‘Gtfices & Residential 140 103 243 33

Canada Water 8 - 8 '3 %4 no
Totat 341 250 M 714 30.3 232

* On a proportionally consclidated basis inchading the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.

? Gross rents plus, where rent reviews, ate tastanding, anvy
\eases, axcudes contractad real subject to rent free and Tulure uplift.

3 Annualised rent, ples rant subject to rent free.

* £psl metrics shown for office space onty.

m-;esmmlasdemnnmedbyme&nupsmmmmmwgmndmmsmuemmd

* City average rant psi on a contvacted hases is £90.1 andmanERVhass-sEST&pmlmmhrsalecompleumdmrm inThel B3 q.

* Standalenc resdential,

Rent Subject to Open Market Rent Review!

AL31 March 2117

018 2009 2020 20N 022 2018-20 08-22

For year 1031 March fm 25 [0 £m Lin Em &m

Regionat Lilestyle - ‘ 13 17 2 18 n 42 3

Local Lifesiyle 24 17 10 LI [ 51 &8

Multi-lets . - 37 34 22 29 19 93 141

Depariment Siores & Leisure - - - - - . -

Supersiores ) & 7 10 12 3 21 36

Solus/Other . - - - - - - -

Retail - ‘ ' & & 32 & > 1% 77

West End : 2% 0 15 0 9 59 78

City 4 14 1 Y3 5 1 32 [

Offices - 28 34 Fal 5 Ll kal 126
" CanadaWater 1 ’ - - - 2 2

Total , 70 % 81 & ) 207 205

' On a proporiienatly tansolidated hasis iacluding the Group s share of joitst ventures and funds.
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Rent Subject to Lease Break or Expiry!

At March 2017

2018 2019 2020 2071 02 28-20 mnie-22
For year to 31 Mardh Em €m Em £&m {214 Em
Regional Lifestyte 19 0 14 10 13 43 &8
Local Lifestyle B 7 ] ? n F &) 45
Multi-lets 7 17 2% 19 28 &8 "3
Department Slores & L eisura - - - ~ - - -
Superstores - - = - - - -
Solus/Other - ] - - - 1 1
Ratail 27 18 24 " 26 49 1nL
West End & W 3 17 21 19 57
City 7 n n 9 2 % il
Offices 13 21 14 24 23 &8 97
Canada Water 1 1 - 1 - 2 3
Total 41 &0 38 48 49 ne Fily
% of contracted rent &.3% 6.3% &.0% 7% T ' 18.6% 334%
! On a properticnaily consolidaled basis ivcluding thve Growp's share of joint ventures and funds.
Superstores )
E‘A#daione Superstores’ In Mulli-let asseis? Tota! Exposare™™®
Valuation Valuation Valuation -
{Briush  Capital [British  Capital IBriish  Capital
Store Sire Noof Land share| Valua Leasa - Noof Land sharz| Value Lease Moof Land sharal Valua Lease
‘D00 sq B Stares &m pst  leogi® Stores &m pst tenglh?® Siores  Em pst lengih!
=100 [3 152 71 L L R | 4 284 49 11 10 438 388 11
75-190 10 -7 384 L3 3 73 274 15.0 3 244 342 125
50-75 12 179 364 08 - - - - 12 179 34 a4
25-50 3 15 272 81 3 32 £56 8.5 [ &7 £1) 147
6-25 2 ] 138 81 21 78 445 10.2 23 04 409 10.0
March 2017 33 523 352 109 n 489 397 12246 &4 1,012 k) 1.7
- March 2016 £7 . 7483 383 .19 24 537 482 12.2 Fi 1,301 419 135
Geographical spread ross Rent [British Land share) Loase Strutture
London & South 58% Tesco £29m RP1 and Fixed 0%
Rest of UK 42% Sainshury’s £26m OMRR 0%
QOther E5m

Tabte includes £43m ar.ﬁuisiljnns and £116m disposals that exchanged and completed post yzar end as part of 3 Tesco JV swap ransaciion resulting in a net E73m

dispasals of suparsiore assats

! Excludes £13m non-loodstora occupiers in superstore led assels.

? Excludes non-icod format stores e.9. Asda Lrang.

3 Excludes £93m of invesiments held for irading comprising frechold reversions in a pool of Sainshury’s Supersiores.

“ Weighted average lease tength to Hirst break.

4
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Ochier iaformarian

UNAUDITED CONTINUED -
!

Recenty Culnpletad and Committed Developments!

3 Estimated headtine rental value net of rent payatite under head leases lexcluding tenant incentives).
portiolio over the next 12 monihs relating to leasing and assel enhancemnent.

* Forecast capital © i weithin our i
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Ly &
British Land PC Currant Cost o Under
* shara gt Calendar Yol Comme T OERY Gl
AN March 17 Secior % 050 Year m? £m? £m* £m
4 Kingdorn Street Otfice 100 w7 Qw7 151 8 95 70
Clarges Mayfair - Olfices Office 1G0 51 Qz220t6 135 4 54 43
. Glasgow Fort Leisurz Quartes Retail 77 12 Q32016 8 - 0.4 02
The Hempat Phase 1 Residentiat fulil 5 QA 2016 £ 3 - -
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 100 33 QdAM6 £5 3 - -
Aldgate Place Phase 1 Residential 50 N Q2 206 - 7 - -
Tolal Complated in Year 4BY A3 37 155 ns
108 Liverpool Streel Office 50 520 Q4 2019 12 %52 18,6 -
Speke |Leisure) Retail : 87 &6 Qz2018 4 14 12 08
Clarges Mayfair - Relait and Residential® Mixed Use 100 104 (4 2017 362 . 52 1.8 -
Toma! Committed 590 &78 18 208 (%]
Retail Capex® m
' On a3 proportienally © ligh hasusmdudinglheGrrmpsshateohmnlvmluresandfm\dsleam:imuﬁudusﬂmmna&lllﬂ'ibl
? Exdudes compleied sales of £12Gm.
* From 1 Ape 2017. Cosl to comne axcludes notional interest as intarast i capitatised individually on aach development at s capitalisation rate.
* Cstimaled headline ramal valse net of rent payabite under head teases lexcluding tenaat incentives).
% Current vatuz indirdes units exchangad and not completed of E278m0.
* Eapex commilled amd enderway vwithen our Bwvasimen! portiolio relating lo L angassat
Near Term Development Pipeline!
British Land Expected Current Costio
. share Sqlt Start Value Come f2:14
At 31 March 17 Secior % ‘000, On Site Em? (S48 Cmt GBS
135 Bishopsgate ’ Difice 50 325 2017 w7 55 94  Submilied
1 Triton Square OHice 100 366 2018 161 200 233 Resolution
’ ' to grant
1 Finshury Averwe : Olfice 5¢ 238 217 77 © 35 77 Submnitied
Plymouth lLeisurs) . Retail 100 104 2018 — 48 31 Consented
Total Rear Term ) 1.083 345 38 43.5
Retail Capex* 75
? On a propoerticnally ¢ i haslsmdudmgtheGroups;hareulpmluzn(msandﬁmd'shmewamawhdusshma( mﬂ%]
? From 1 Apedl 20017, Cost 10 come'saxiudes notional interest as interest is capitali ty on each d t &t our Gapl rate.



Medium Term Development Pipeline

' share Sqi
AL March 17 Sector R 00 Status
2&3 MNinzbury Avanue ' Qlfie S0 563 Consenizd
" 1-2 Broadgate OHice ' 50 7S Pre-submission
Blossom Sireet . " Qflice 100 340 Consented
S Kingdom Sireet’ , Offica - 11 I <) Consented
Gateway Building Office , 100 i Pra-submission
Meadowhall L eisure) Retail _ sn 322 Submitted
Peterhomugh {t eisure] Reiail 10} 182 Pra_cubmission
Teesside [Leisure| Retail 100 a0 ‘Pre-submission
Bradford [Leisure] Retail 100 &9 Pra-submission
Aldgate Place Phase 2 Residentiat 50 145 Consented
Eden Walk Retail & Residential Mixed Use 50 538 Consented
Total Medium Term excl. Canada Water } 3,01
Ganada Water? : Mixed Use we” 5500 - Pre-submission
' Planwing consent for previous 240,000 sq ft scheme. '
! Acqupned nel area based on gross area of up o Fm sq .
Residential development programme’
’ Sates
: . o
Brisish Casrrent Costio - &not
Land share Sqft Total No. No. Units P°C Value™ Coma? Comgloted®* Value tosell
At 31 March 17 % a0 ) Umts to sell Oate Em Em £m fm
Glarges Mayfair o 090 9 34 N Q42017 - 347 52 278 150
The Hempel Phase 1 100 25 15 1 04 20t [ 3 ’ - 7
The Hempet Phase 2 100 33 18 13 ai2u 45 3 - 46
Aldgate Ptace Phase | 50 221 154 1 Q2 2014 - 7 - 7
Total Committed Residentiol 373 221 26 ‘ 3% &5 278 . 210

' On a proportionally consolidated basis inctuding the Group's share of joimt ventures and funds lexcept aree which is shown et 1007,

* Excludes complated sates of £120m.

2 From | Aprit 2017. Cost o come excludas notional interest as intarest is capitalised individually on sach developmen a1 our ceptalisation rate.
* M agreed sates price. . . .
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Cicher information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustainability performance measures
Alignerd fo cur corporate sirategy. our 2076 susiainability strategy s built arnund four focus areas. which address major seoial. aconomic and
environmental trends 1o creste value for sur stakesholdses and the business. '

The data below covers up to 7% of cur multi-lel managed portiolic by value {719% of under manay 1and 100'% of developmand prajects,
exrapt for EPC ang Nood risk 8212, where the scope povers 100% of 2ss2is undar managemenl. Please see the scope column for indicaier spacific
reporting coverage.

Salected data has been indepandently assured lor a decade, Selecied data for 2017 has heanindepsndenity assured by Pt in acoordance wah
ISAL 3000 {Revised] and I1SAE 3410. In prior years, selected data was 2ssured by Pwl and other providers. For the 2017 PwC assurance statement,
more detaited data on all these indicators ang addiional imdicators, please see our Sustainability Accounts 2017 www. britishland com/dats

British Land has bean a signatory to the United Nations Glabat Compact since 2009, For our 2017 Communication en Prograss, visit

www britishtand com/: inabilityreport
Performance
fassalis or

2020 vavgel W7 Y unitz)
Wellbeing '
Detiver WELL certified commercia office 1o shell and core, and set onrparate policy Beliver  Onyack  Targel eslablishad -
fr futuine developments ‘
Develop and pilot redail wetibeing spedification Oaliver Onwack Targei esiablished -
tncrease the sense of weltbeing for shoppers, retailers and socupiers at our places Inoease  Oniack Baseline éstablished -
Define and trial methodology formeasuring producthaty in offices Deliver  Onirack  Target established -
Research and publish on how devetopment design mpacts public health outcomes Daliver ~ Onwack  Target blished -
Cammunity
Implemnent our Local Charler at 3 stalied ts and major develop W% nir. nfr - -
British Land emplayee volunteering W% 90% 85% -
British L and ernployee skills-based volunteering ) 2% 1% 18% -
Community programme heneficiaries n/a 35.625 29,482 -
Futureproofing lalso see Carbon Reporting on page 38 ang EPRA on page 73]
Developraents on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent far offices and Excellent 100% 2% BZ% 133
or Very Gogd for retail
Carbon |scope | and 2} intensity reduction versus 2009 lindex score] 55% A4% £0% &HT3

- 341100 &0/100
Landlord enargy intensity reduction wersus 2007 lindex scorel 5% 35% 36% &
657100 62/100
Landiord embadied carbon intensily reduclion per m? on projects over £50m versus 2015 15% nfr ofr -
Waste diverted from landfill: managed propesties and developments 100% 8% 98% 104171
Energy Pesformance Certificates rated F or G fa % I 2296/7389
Orisite renewable energyincome nfs  £BY.060 £37.000 33
Partiatio at high risk of Hood [by vatuel . nfa I% 5% 252/259
Skills and opporiunity [also see diversity data on pages 25 and 72]
Tier 1 and 2 contracts Supply Chain Charter compliant 100% nir nfc ~
Hor prioritised contracts) . .
Tier 2 supply cthain spend within 25 miles Managed propesties nfa 3% 8% 94104
Developments na £0% 40% i

Prioritised supplier worklerce who Tier | suppliers % 7% nfr -
are apprentites - based on pitgt study Tier 2 devetopment suppliers 1% 3% ' nfr -
Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage ’ 100% 100% 100% -
Suppiter workforce paid Living Wage Foundation wage at managed properlies nfa ™8 0% 8/104
Supplier workfarce living within 25 miles of our places | nfa 70% &M% WS/
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Sustainability performance measures continued
British Land has recaived EPRA Gold Awards for susltainzbility reporting five years rurming.

Sope
{asssmar
27 216 7015 unitsd
EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainabitity reporting'
Totat eleciricity consumption [MWh| 172127 172.238 171,619 105
Tolat disirict heating and cooling consumnglion IMWhI 0 a 0 ;)
Total huel consumption [MWh} 3939 38,734 36399 44448
Building energy intensity IXWhi Offices [per mil BT 155.64 150.45 223
Retail - endlosed lpar m?) 151.89 15697 177.08 557
Retail - opan air :
Iper car parking space] 15001 13366 12488 357
Tota! direct [Seope Y greenhouse gas emissions ltonnes C0,e) 7,509 7927 750 9B
Tolal indirecl [Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions ltonnes CO,e) 34,269 ~ 387W 42503 98/1312
Greenhourse gas intensity from bunwlng energy consumplion Offwees lpermd nose 0075 007 2029
ltonnes CO2) Retaill - endosed [per m?) 0.067 0.073 0.088 a7
Relall - open abr
, {per car parking space) 0.084 0.063 0043 35/37
Toial waler consumnption im] 663561 553490 557.041 &0/65
Building water intensity [m? per FTE or 10090 visitors] Offices 159 1508 1496 28127
Retail - enclosed 9.47 10.29 10.23 &7
Retail - open air 2848 177 198 1820
Tatal waste by disposal route [tonnes and %} Re-ysed and racydad 12,168 12899 n2z 45177
‘ ' 56.8%]) 160.8%] 160-3%} 3
Incinesated 9,235 8132 £.701 65177
143.0%) i38.3%) 136.0%)
Landfilled K - 184 &80 &5/77
o.2%) 29%l 37%
Suslainably cemﬁed assels - Energy Performance AwnB 2% 30% 22% 77367389
Certificates [% by valuel CroE 4% 6T% 7% _2296/7389
FtoG 4% % 3% 22962389

! As per EPRA besi practice recomrmendations, total energy and water data covers energy and waier procured by British Land. Energy and carbon intensily data covers
commen parts and shared services for Offices and common parts for Relail. Water intensaty dita covers whaole buildings for Offices and common parts for Retail,
Intensity data lor previous years has been restated to align with sur intensity index methodstogy. Per m comprises nat internal areas for OFfices and commeon parts for
Relail. Waste data for previous years has bean restated to apportion Matenial Recovery Fadility handled waste to recyding, intineration and/or landlill as appropriate.

For our full meﬂ\odclogy and more delailed daia on alt these indicators and additional indicators, please Ses our Susiamabtllly Accounts 2017

www.britishland.com/data
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Orher information

TEN YEAR RECORD

Tha kable below summanses the 1ast ten years results, cash flows and balance sheets. .

o s AN 2004 w3 mz P w0 om0y s
&m im im T Em  fm im £ im (3] [1-
income’ :
Gross rental income 843 454 a8 597 567 572 541 561 450 769
et rental income &m 620 585 562 541 544 si8 545 578 C 867
Net iges and other incomne . 17 17 17 15 15 17 18 15 20 &l
Interest expense [net} 1159 1han) {2011 | 1209 (208} j218) 1212} 1244} 12921 1350t
Administrative expense 184} 194) {88l {78} i76) 176) 168) 163} [150)] 173}
Undertying Profit ) - v 383 313 297 27 269 256 259 268 284
Exceptional costs i
Inot included in Underiying Profit? , - - - - - - - - - g -
Dividends declared 95 287 Yyl - 266 234 2N . Z23% 225 98 L
Summarised balance sheets :
Total properties a valyalion™® - 13940 14648 13677 12040 10499 10337 9572 8539 8425 13471 .
Netdeht W23 16785 |1598F  (4.890) l6268) 1ledy0] LT3 0BT 951 8.4
Other and tiabilities 219 wm 276 11231 1265 12661 12980 L R C£4 122
EPRA NAV/Fully diluted adjusted net 498 10074 1.035 1.027 5967 5.3 510 é.&(j‘l 3387 6936
Cash flow muverent — Group onty
Cash generated from operations 379 341 318 243 %7 m 182 248 404 &77
Cash outflow from operations 1nét (&1 133 (24 7] [ . T A 1204} 1295}
" Net cash inflow [rom operaling activilies. 353 294 85 2% L 06 20 136 05 182
Cash inflaw loutftow] fram capital )
expendilure, vesiynents, acquisitions ’ )
and disposals &70 236 1131} 6601 (2074 15471 (2401 391 418 857
Equity dividends paid 295) 12351 228§ {59t {203| [212i 391 {1541 [issa] EI4]]
Cash loutfiow| inflow from management - :
of liquid resources and financing {s538] 263} 20 07 23 630 157 1485} 58} 18730)
increase [decreased in cash® = 3 B4 7 ] 77 41 isén 3 &8
Capital returns X ;
{Reduction] growth in net assels? 1S.7% N5%  284%  178% MR 55% I57% 301%  1BLME [218%l
Total retysm 2.7% 14.2% 245% 20.0% 4 5% 25% 17.7% 335%  l6Ta%l a1
Total retum — pre-exceptional 2.7%  142%  245% 200% 4.5% 95%  127A 335% 03wl heaw)
Per share information” .
_ EPRA net asset value per share ?15p ?9p  B2%s  488p 596p 595p 567 Sip  3I98p L1Mp
Memorandum .
Gividends declared inthe year | i 292p 28.4p 277 27.0p 28.4p 26.1p 28.0p 260p 298p 290p
Dividends paid in the year | eBp  288p 273p  WJIp  263p  2wUp  280p  273p  Ibp  M%Ip
Dituted earnings . )
Underlying EPRA eamings per share 378 3l 3W4p 94p  203p 9% 2%  284p 410p 443
IFRS earmings lloss] per share? 47 W2  Wllp . N0Zp 3.5p 53.8p 95.20. 1324p &Ml 1251.0p]

! Including share of joint ventures and funds.

2 Represenis movement in diluted EPRANAY.

3 Including surplus over book value of rading and davalopraent properiies.

¢ Induding restalement in 2015 [see note 210 the & il ). and exceplional linance cosls in 2009: 119 milkion.

S 7008 restated lor IFRS, The UK GAAP accounts shows gross rental incomne of €620 mitfion and Underiping Profit of £173 rrullion.
* Reprasenls movement in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movements in cash under UK GAAP. .

1 Adqusted lor the rights issue of 341 million shares in March 2009.
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SHAREHOL DER INFORMATION

Financial calendar

20718

Fourth quarter ex-dividend daie 29 Junz 2017
Fourth quarter dividend payment data 4 August 2017
First quarter ex-dividend date 05 Ociober 2017
First quarter dividend paymeni date 10 November 2017
Half year resulls T Novernber 2007
Second quarter ex-dividend date Januery 2018
Secand quarier dividend payment daie February 2018
Third quarter ex-dividend date March 2018
Third quarter dividend payment date May 2018
Full year results May 2018
Fourth quarier ex-dividend dale ! June 2018
Fourth quarier diidend payment dale August 2018

It offerad, the Board will announce the availability of » Scrip dividend alternalive via the Regulalory News Service no later than lour husiness days
before each ex-dividend date. Scrip dividend allemalives will not ba enhanced. The splil between PID and non-PlD income lor eath dividend will

be announced al the same lime.

Refleciing the long lerm nature of our business, we will cease publication of first and third quarter irading updates going forward. We wall continue
to provide trading updates ahead of our AGM each year. The naxt AGM is scheduled for 18 July 2017 and we will conlinue to provide limely updates

on the business as apgropnate.

Analysis of shareholders — 31 March 2017

Nurmnbes Balance a6 al
Range of haldings ] 31 Masch 2B %
1-1.000 5835 55.87 2541358 024
1.001-5.000 3.0460 29.30 6775824 0.65
5.001-20.000 &b62 &34 6,413,736 042
20.001-50,000 238 2.18 7.5354 711 073
50,061 -Highast 649 4.21 1017789427 977
Total 1444 100.00 1041035058 100.00
Numbar Balance as al
Holdertype  © of holgess % 31 March 207 %
individuals 6.410 4137 11.740.359 113
Nominee and institutional inveslors 4,034 3863  1.029.294.499 98.87
Tolal 10,444 100.00 1.041.035058 100.00
' Excluding 11,266,245 shares held in breasury.
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Orgher informarion

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Registrars

British Land has 2ppoimted Eguinili Limited
[Equinitil ta administer its sharsholder register.
Equiniti can be contactad at:

Aspect House, Spencer Road,

Lancing, Wast Sussex 8NP 6DA

Tet: 0371 384 2143 UK callers)

Tel: +44 [ON21 415 7047 |Overseas callers)

Lines are open rom 8:30am to 5:30pm
tdonday to Friday exduding public holidays.

Equiniti's website is: wwwt_shareview.co.uk
By registesing with Shareviews, sharsholders can:

- view yadr British Land shareholding andine:
- updaie your detoil's; and
~ elect 10 receive shareholder

mailings electranically.

Equiniti is alse the Regisirar for the BLD
Property Holdings Limited Stock

British Land's Debentures Regisirar is Capita
and can be contacied at:

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road Beckenham, Kent
BR34TU

Tel: 0871 644 0300

Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus nelwork
extras. Lines are open from 9.00am to 5.30pm,
Monday io Friday exciuding public holidays.

Share dealing faciliies

By registering with Shareview, Equiniti
also provides existing and prospective UK
sharehalders with a shiare dealing facility
for buying and selling British Land shares
online or by phone.

For more information, contact Equiniti
al wwyw_shareview.co.ul/dealing or call
03456 037 037. Lines are open Monday to

Friday. 8.00am to 4. 30pm_Existing British Lang

sharehtlders will need the reference mimber
" given onyour share certificate to regisier.

Similar share dealing facilities are provided by
other brokers, banks and linancial services.

Registered office
The registered office of The British Land
Company PLC is situated at:

Yark House

45 Seymaur Street

London WIH 7LX

Tel: +44 10120 72486 4466
Websile: www britishland.com
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A 1 General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of The British
Land Compary PLE will b keld a1 The Hyalt
Regency London - The Charchill. 30 Portrman
Square, London W1H 78H cn 18 July 2077

at 11.08am.

Dividemds

As a REIT, British Land pays Property
Income Disteibution {PI0) and non-Property
Income Distribution {non-PiB} dividends. -
More information on REITs snd PiDs can

be found in the Glossary on page 177 or

in the kvestors section of our website at
www.britishland.com/dividends

British Land dividends can be paid directly
into your bank or building society acoount
instead of being despatchved by chequa

More informalion about the benefils of having
dividends paid diractly into your bank ot
building society account, ang the mandate
form to set this up, can be tound in the
Inveslors section of our wabsite al
www.britishland com/fdividends

Serip Dividend Scheme

British |and may olfer shareholders the
apportunity 6 patticipate in the Scrip Dividend
Scheme by offering 3 Scrip Alternatve to 3
particular dividend fram time 0 lime. The
Scrip Uividend Scheme allows participating
shareholders to receive additional shares
ins\zad of 2 cash dividend, Morz infermaticn
is available on the Investors section of

our website at www.britishland.com/
scrip-dividend-scheme’

Website and shareholder communications
The British |_and carporate websile contains a
wealth of material for shareholders, induding
the current shate price, press releases and
information dividends. The website ¢an be
accessed al www.britishiand.com

British Land encourages its shareholders

to receive shareholder comnunications
elecironically. This enables shareholders to
receive infarmation quickly and securely as
well asin 2 more environmentally friendty and
cosl-effective manner. if you would like further
information, please visit www.shareview.couk
or telephone the Sharehotder Helpline.

Sharcholder fraud warning

Sharehnlders are remninded to be veryvigilant
of share fraud. This might include unsolicited
tetephone calls or letters offering free
investment advice or offers to buy and sell
shares at discounted or inflated prices.

The Financial Conduct Authority [FCAJ has
published lats of uselul advice on haw i
protect yourself from investment scams. This
infarmation is available on the FCA website
www fca.org.ukfscams or by calling the
Consumer Helpline on G800 111 6768.

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

ShareSift .
Sharehatders with 2 small number of shares,
the value of which mahes il uneconomic D
sell thein, may wash (o consider donating their
shares lo charity. ShareGift is a registerad
charity fNo. 1852684) which collects and sells
ymwantad shares and uses the proceads

to support a wide range of UX chariljes,

A SharaGift donaten form can be obizined
froin Equiniti and further infermation is
available at:

ShareGilt

The Orr Madkintesh Foungation Lirmited,
17 Carlten House Terrace,

Londan SWIY 5AH ’

Tal: +54 D20 7930 3737

Website: www.sharegift.org

Unsolicited mail

British Land i raquired by law to make its
share regisler available on reques! to other
erganisations. This may result in the recaipl
of unsoliciad mag_ Te lirnit this, shareholdars
may register wilh the Mailing Preference
Service. For more inforrnation, ar to register.
wES: www.mpsontine.orguk

Honorary President

in recognition of his work building British Land
inta the indusiry leading company it is leday,
Sir Jotin Rithlat was appointed as Honarary
President on his retirernent {rom the Board

in December 2006,

Tax

The Group elected for REIT status on 1 Janwary
2007, paying a £308m cunversion charge to
HMRCG in the same year, As a consequence of
the Group's REIT status, kax is not levied within
the corporale group on the qualifying property
rental business but ic instead deducied from
distributions of such income as Properly
Income Distnibutions lo sharehoiders. Any
mncomne which does nol Iall within the REIT
reqgime is subject bo tax within the Group in the
usual way. This includes profils an property
trading activity, properly refaled fee incorne
and interest income. We continue to comforiably
pass all REIT tests ensuring that our REIT
slatus is mainkained.

We work proactively and apenly to maintain

a canslructive relalionship with HMRC We
discuss malters in real-Gme with HMRC and
disclose all relevant facls and dircumstances,
particylarly where there may be tax unceriainty
or the lawis unclear. HMRE assigns risk ratings
10 all large compamies. We have a low appetite
lor tax risk and HMRC considers us (6 be Low
Risk’ {a slatus we have held since 2007 when
the raling was first introduced by HMRCI.



GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt is the Group net debt and
ih2 Group’s share of joint venture 2nd funds’
net debi excluding the mark-to-market on
elfactive cash flow hedges and retated daht -
adjustments and non-controlling interests.
A reconclialion between Group aet debl and
adjsted nel deht is included in Table A within
the supplemeniary disclosures.

AGM s the Annual General Meeting of The

British L and Company PLEC. The 2017 AGM will .

be hetd an 18 July 2017 at The Hyati Regency
London - The Churchill, 38 Poriman Square,
London WiH 78H cermmencing at 11.00am.

Annuatised rent is the gress property reat
receivabte on a cash basis as at the reporting
daie_ Additionally, it includes the extemal
valuers’ estimate of additonal rent in respect
of unsaitied ren! reveews, iwmaver rent and

_ sundry income such a5 that frem car parks
and cominerdalisation, less any ground
rents payahte under head leases.

Assets under management is the fell value
of all 2ssets owned and managed by Brtish
Land and includes 100% of the value of afl
assels owned by joint ventures and funds.

BREEAM [Building Reszarch Eslablishment
Environmental Assessment Method] assesses
the sustainability of buildinrgs against a range
of sociat and envirohmentat criteria.

Capital return is calculated as the change
in capital value of the portfolio, less any
capex incurred, expressed as 2 percenlage
of capilal employed Istart value plus capital
expenditure] over the period. as caleutated
by IPD. Capital retuns are calotated
monthly ard indexed to provide a return
aver the relevant period.

Contracted rent s the annualised rent
adjusting for the inclusion of rent subject
ta rent free penicds.

Customer satisfaction combines survey
results on ovarall experience ralings from
decision makess, property directors, store
managers and visitors acress our retail
and office businesses.

Developer’s profit is the profit on cost
eslimated by the valuers that a developer
would expect. The developer's profil

is typicatly calculated by the valuers to
be a percentage of the estimated total
development costs. including land and
notional finance costs.

Development cost is the lotal cost of
construction of a projecl to completion,
excluding site vatues and finance costs

. {finance costs are assumed by the valuers
at a noticnal rale of 5% per annum).

Devetopment uplift is the 1otal increase

in the valye {after taking accoounl of capax
and capitatisad interest of properties held
for development during the paniod. it also
indudes any developer's profit recognised
by valuers in the peniad. .

EPRA is the European Public Real
Estate Association, the industry hody
for European RE(Ts.

EPRA cost ratio fincluding direct

vacancy costs)] is a proportionatly consolidated
measure of the ratio of net ovarheads and
operating expenses against gross rental
income fwith both amounts excluding ground
rents payabliel. Net overheads and aperating
expenses relate to alt administrative and
operating expanses, nel of any senace tess,
recharges or other income specifically intanded
ta cover overhead and property expanses.

EPRA cost ratio lexduding direct

vacancy costs]is the ratio calculated ahove,
but wilh direct vacancy costs removed
from the nel overheads and operating
expenses balance.

EPRA carnings is the IFRS profit after
taxation atirnbutable to shareholders of
the Company excluding investment and

‘developonent property revaluations, gains/

losses oninvesting and trading proparty
disposals. changes in the fair value of
inancial instruments and associated”

"close-out costs and their related taxation.

These ierns are presented in the capital
and other column of the income statement.
A reconciliation between profit altributable
1o shareholders of the Company and '
EPRA earnings is included in Table B
within the supplementary disclosures.

EPRA NAY per share 1s EPRA NAY divided
by the diluted aumber of shares al the
period énd.

EPRA net asset value [EPRA NAVtis a

‘proportivnally consclidaled measure,

representing the IFRS net assets excluding
the mark-to-markel an effective cash How
hedges and related debt adjusimants, the
mark-to-market on the converlible bonds
as well as deferred taxation on property
and derivative valuations. ltincludes the
valuation surplus on trading properlies
and is adjusted for lhe ditutive impact

of share aptions. A recendliation between
IFRS net assets and EPRA NAV s included
in Table B within the Supplementary
Disclosures.

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017

EPRA net initiat yield is the annualised rents
generaied by the gortiolio, alter the deducton of
2n estimate of annual recurring irvacoverable
proparty outgomngs, expressad as a parcantage
of the purtiotic vatuation f2dding notional
purchaser’s cosis), excluding developmenl
and residential progerties. :

EPRANNNAY is the EPRA MAV adjusted (o
reflect the {air value of debl and derivatives and

1o include deferred 3x3alion on revaluations.

EPRA occupancy rate is the ERV ol occupied
space dividad by ERY of the whole portiolio,

ing developments and residential
preperty.

EPRA topped-up net initial yield is the
azrrend annualised rent, net of cosis, tapped-
up for contracted uplifts, where these are
nat in liew of rental groweh, expressed as

a percentags of capitat value {adding

motonal purchaser's costs)

EPilAvacancy rateis the ERV o} vécam space
dividad by ERV of the whole portfolio, excluding
developments and residential property.

Estimnated rental value IERV] is the external
valisers’ opiinion of the opan market rent which,
on the data of valualion. could reasonably be
expacled to be obtained on a new letting or
renl review of 2 property.

ERV growth 15 the change in ERV over a

period on the standing investment properties
expressed as a percentage of the ERV at the
start of the period. ERY growth is calculated
maonthly and compounded for the period subject
to measurement, as calculated by IPD.

Fair value movement is the 2ccounting
adjestment to change the book value of
anasset or Lability to its markst value,

Footfall 15 the estimated annualised number
of wisitors entering our assels.

Footfall growth is the like-for-like movement
in footfall against the same period in the prior
year, g properties ewned throughout bath
cornparable periods, aggregated al Bnitish
Land's ownership share for each asset.

Gross investment activity is our share of
acquisitions, sales and capital expenditure
oninvestments and development.

Gross rental income 1s the gress accounting
rent receivable [quoted either lor the period
or on an annualised basis] prepared under
IFRS which requires that rental income from
fixed / minimum guaranteed rent reviews and
lenanl incentives is spread on a straight-line -
basis over the lease period to earliest
termination date. This can resull inincome
being recognised ahead of cash flow.
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Orther infermasion

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Group ic The British Land Company PLC

and ils subsidiaries and excludes its share

of joint venlures and funds fwhers not treated
as a subsigiaryl on a Uine-by-line basis

li.e. not proportionalty conselidated).

Headline real is the contractad gross rent
recenable whith becorpes payable ahier all the
lenant incentivas in he ieting have expired.

1FRS are the Intermational Finandial Reparting
Standands as adopted by the European Union.

Incamee return is calculated as net incarne
expressed 3s a percentage of capital employed
wver the period, as calculaled by IPD. Income
returns are caleulated monthly and indexad

e provide a relurn over the relevant period.

Interest cover is the number of tirnas net
financing costs are covered by Underlying
Prufit helore net Bnanging costs and laxalion.

1PDis 3 brand of real estate indices, owned by
MSCH, which produce independent benchmarks
of property retuns and British Land UK
portfolio returns.

Lettings and tease renewals are compared
bath to the previous passing rent as at

the start of the financial year and the
ERVimmediately prior ta lefting. Letting
performance against ERV compares of
achieved letiing terins onlang term letlings
and renewals against valuation assumplions
on lke-for-tike space, €alculated on a nel
effective basis, aggregated al British Land’s
gwnership share for each assel.

Leverage see foan to vatue [ETV]..

Like-for-like rental income growth

is the growth in net rental income on properties
owned throughout the curtent and previous
peciads undes review. This growth rate includes
revenue recognition and lease incenlive
adjustments but excludes properties held

Ior development in either period and lease
accounting adjusiments refated o fixed and
RUNITILNT Fenl reviews., :

Loan te value [(LTV] is the ratio of principat
value of gross debt less cash, shari term
deposits and biquid investments to the
aggreqgate value of properties and investments.,

Managed portfolin consists of multi-tet
properties where we have conlrol of facilities
and utilities management.

Mark-to-market is the difference between
the book value of an asset or Liability and its
markel value.

.
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Netdevalopment valye is the esiimated end
value of a development project as delesvnined
by the extarnal valuers when the building is
completed and fully fet [kang into acooun!
tanant incentives and notional purchaser's
cests). ILis based on (he valver's view on ERVs,
yaelds, lethng vouds and tenant incentives.

Net effective rent is the contracted grass
renl receivable teking inte acoounl any
rent-free pariod or other tenant inCenthres,
The incentives are treatedt as 2 cost-lo—rerd
ang spread over the lease period to the
earliest ermination date_

Nedetuivalent yield (NEY] is the ime weighted
average return lafter adding nottonal purchasers
costs) ihat a property will produce. in acenrdance
with esual praclice, the equivalent yizld las
dalermined by the external valuers) assume
rent is received annually in anrears,

HNetinitial yield (NIY] is the current annualisad
renl, nel of costs, exprassed asa parcentage
of capital value, after adding notionat
purchaser’s cosis.

Net rentat income is the rental income
receivable in the period after payment of direct
propesty outgoings which typically comprise
ground rents payable under head leases, void
osts, fet service charge expenses and other
direct irrecoverable property expenses. Net
refiat income s guoted on an accouniing basis.
Net rental income will difiér from annualised
nel cash renis and passing renl due tothe
effects of income from rent reviews, net
property outgoings and accounting adjusiments
for fixed and minimum contracted rent reviews
and [ease incentives.

Net reversionary yield INRYE i€ the anlicipated
yield to which the initial yield will rise for fald
once tha renl reaches the estimated renlal value.

Cctupancy rate is the estimated rental value of
tet units as a percentage of the total estimated
rental vatue of the porifolio, excluding
development and residential properfies. it
includes accammadation under offer, subject
10 asset management lwhere they have been
taken back for refurbishmenl and are net
available to let as at the measurement date) .
or occupied by the Group.

Omni-channet retailing seeks to provide the
cuslemer with a searnless shopping experience
across channels, including stores, online and
mabite. This empowers customers lo switch
between channels during the shopper joumey
acording o their preferences. For example, they
can use mobile in-Store to research or make a
purchase, buy online and coliectin-store, or they
can huy in-store and initiate 3 returs online.
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Ovar rented is the 7emmn used (o desoribe
when the confracied rent is ahove the eshmated
rantal value.

Overall topped-up net initial yield [TUNTY]
is the EPRA topped-up nel witiel yidd. adding
att contracied uplifts to the annualised rends.

Passing rent is the gross rand, less any
greund rent payable under head teases.

Pruperty income distributions (PiDs) are
profils distibulad to shareholders which are
suhbjact to tax in the hands of the sharcholdars.
as property income. M0s are normatly paid
net of withholding tax, currently at 20%, which
the REIT pays o the tax authorities on behalf of
the shareholder. Cerlain types of sharehoider
le.g. pension funds) are tax exempl and retenve
PiDs withaust withholding Lax. REfTs also

pay out normal dividends. calted nen-PIi0s,
which are laxad in the same way 33 Shidends
received from nen REIT companies; these

are not Subject to withholding tax and for

UK individual shareholders qualify for Lhe

tax free dividend aliowance.

Portfolio vatuation is reporied by the Group's
external valuers. In accordance with usual
praciice, they report valuations net, afler the
deduction of notonal purchaser's costs, ncluding
stamp duly land tax_agant and legal fees.

Propurionally consstidated measures intude
the Group's share of joint ventures and fungs
and extlude non—corirolling interests in the -

" Groug's subsidiaries.

Rack rented is the term used to describe when
the conlracted rent is in line with the estimated
rental value, implying nil reversion,

Rent-free pe;md see Tenant for leasel incentives.

RE{Ts are praperty companies that attow
people and arganisations (o invest in commencial
properly and receive benefits as it they dicectly
owned the properties themselves. The rendal
income, afler costs, is passed directly (o
shareholders in the form of dividends._ I the
UK REITs are required to distribute at least
90% f their tax exempt praperty income 1o
shareholders as dividends. As a resoll, over
time, a sigrificant propartion of the total retura
for shargholders is likely lo rome from dividonds
The effect is thal laxation i$ moved from the
corporale levet o the level asi s
‘are liable for lax as il they owned the property
directly. British Land became a RE!T in
January 2007.




Rent reviews lake place 2l intervals agreed
inthe lease [typically every five years] and
thair purposs is usually to adjust the rentlo
the current market level at the review date. For
upvards-onty rem reviews, the rent will either
remain at the same tevel or increase (if market
rents have increased] at the review date.

Rents with fixed and minimum uplifts are
either where renls are subject lo contracted
uplifts at 3 tevel agreed at the ime of letting; or
where the rent is subjecl o an agreed mimmum
tevel of uplift at the spedfied rent review.

Retailer sales growth is the Like-for-like
movemant in cetailer In-siere sales against
the same peniod in the prior y2ar, on occupiers
remaining in the same unit, providing sales
data throughout both comparable peniods,
aguregated al British Land's cwnership

share for cach assel.

Relail planning ennsents are separaled baiween
Al AZ 2nd A3 - as sel out in The Town and
Country Fiznning (Use Classes) Order. Within the
Al category, Open Al permission allows for the
majority of types of retail including fashion to be
accommadaiad. while Restricted Al permission
places limits on the types of retait that can aperate
lfor example, a restriction that enty bulky goods
operators are allowsd la trade at that sitel.

Use for alifany of the
following poposes

Class Description

Shaops, retail warehouses.
hairdressers. undertakers,
ravel and ticket agendies,
pasl offices, pet shops,
sandwich bars, showrooms,
dorneslic hire shops dry
cleaners, funeral directors
and inlernet cales.

Al Shops

Finanial services such as
banks and building societies,
professionat seraces {other
than heatth and medical
services)] and including

" estale and employment
agendies. |t does not include
batting offices or pay day
{oan shaps - these are now
dassed as “sui generis_ uses.

A2 Financial
and
professional
services

For the sale of food and

drink for consumption on

the premises - restaurants,
. snack bars and cales.

Restaurants
ang cales

Cinemas. music and concert
halls, binge and dance

halls {bui not night clubsl,
swimming baths, skating
rinks, gymnasiums or areas
for indoar or outdoor sports
and recreations.

D2 Assembly
and leisure .

Reversion is change in rent estimated by
the external valuers, where the passing rent
is different lo the eslimated renial value.
The increase or decrease of rent arises on
rent reviews and letting of vacant space or
re-leiling of expiries. .
Scrip dividend For cartain peciods, British
Land offers its shareholders the opportunity to
recemve dividends in the farm of shares inslead
of cash. This is known as a Scrip dividend.

Standing investments ara assets which are
not in the course of, or held for, development,

Tenant {or lease) incentives are incentives
oflered lo occupiers to enter into a lease.
Typically this will be an inital rent-{ree period, or
a cash contribation to it-out. Under accouniing
rules the value of tease incentives is amortised
through the income statement on a straight-

line basis lo the eartiest lease terminalion dale.

The residual site value of 2 development is
calculaled as the zstirnated net development
value, less development profit, all development
construction costs, finance cosis fassumed al
a notional ratel of a project to compietion and
national site acquisilion costs. Tharesidual is
determined to be the current sile value.

Topping out is a traditional consiruction:
ceremceny Lo mark tha nccasion when
the structure of the buitding reaches
the highest peinl.

Total property return is catculated as

the change in capital value, less any capex
incurred, ptus net income, expressed as

a percentage of capital employed over the
period, as calculated by 1D, Tolal property
returns are calculated monthly a2nd indexed
to provide a return gver the relevan! period.

Total accounting return is the growth in
EPRA NAV per share plus dividends paid,
and this can be expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NA¥Y per share at the beginning

of the period.

Total shareholder return is the growth

in value of 3 shareholding over a specified
period, assuming dwvidends are reinvested
to purchase addikional units of stock.

Total tax contribution is a more
comprehensive view of tax conlrbutions
than the accountancy-defined tax figure
quoted in most financial statements.

It comnprises taxes and levies paid directly,
as well as taxes collected from others
which we administered.

Turnover rent is where all or a porlion of
the rentis linked to the sales or turnover
of the occupier.
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Under rented is the termn used \o descnbe
when the contracted rentis betew the
eslimated rental value [ERVL, imgplying

2 posilive reversion.

Undertying earnings per share (EPS)
gonsists of Underlying Proht alter tex dinded
by the diluted weighted average number of
shares in issue during the peniod.

Undertying Profit is the pre-tax EPRA eamings
rmneasura with additional Cempany adjustmeants.
No Company adjustments were rada in either
the current or prior pertod.

V¥aluation movement is the change in the
particlio valuation and sales receipls of
properbizs sold duning the period, nat of

capital expenditure, capitalised interest and
development team costs, and ransaction oosts
incurred, expressed as a percentage of the
portiolio valuation at the start of the period plus
‘niel capex, capilatised interest and development
team costs, and ransaction costs.

Virtual frechold represents a long ieasehold
tenure for a period of up to $9¥years_A
‘peppercorny’, er nominal, rent is paid annuatly.

Weighted average debt maturity is calculated

by multiplying each tranche of debt by the

remaining period 1o its malunily, with the

surn of the results being dividad by totat
tinissue 2l the period end.

Weighted average interest rate is the loan
interest and net derivative Costs per annum
at the pericd end, divided by total debt in
issue al the period end.
Waeighted average unexpired lease term
is lhe average lease term remaining to
first break, or expiry. across the portfolio
weighted by contracted rental income
[includmng rent-frees). The calowation
excludes residential leases and properties
allocated as developments.

Yield on cost is the estimated annual rent
of a completed development divided by
the total cost of development including
site value and nolienat finance costs to
the paint of assumed rent commencement,
expressed as a percentage return.

Yield shiftis a movemenl {usually expressed
in bpslin the net equivalent yield of 3 property
assel, or like-for-like portiolio, overa given
period, weighted by net capitat value,

179



Forward-looking staterments
This Annual Regorl conans cerian Iamn!-laokmg stataments. Such
staterments reflect current views on, among other things, our markeis,
aclivilies, pmleclmns obp(lwes and prospects. Such forward-looking
can . but nol ab . be idantified by their relerence
to a daie or point inthe hnure orihe use ni forward-losking” terminotogy.,
including terms Such as ‘believes’, ‘estmaies’, aniicipates . ‘expecls,
“ferecasis’, intends’ “due” ‘plans’ ‘projecis’, geat’ ‘eullook | “schedule’
“arget’, aimy, ‘may’, Tikely to', will”. "would'. ‘could’, sheuld’ or similar
expressions or i each tase their negative or gther varialions or
comparable terminology. By their nature, forwand-{ooking stalements
involve inherent risks, assumptions and uncertainties because they relate
10 tuture evemts and d d on cire Ces vehiCh oy of By IO OLTUT
and may he beyond our ability @ controf or predict. Forward-inoking
chould be regarded with caulion as 3clual resuils may differ
materially from those expressed in or impliad by such stalements.

Impor tant fat tors that could cause actual sesulls, perlormante oF
achievements of British Land to differ materially irem any outcomes

. ar results expressed or wnplizd by such forward-looking s1atemants
include_ among ather things: lal generat business and politicat. social and
economic conditions gloy ", ihlthec guences of the referentum on
Brilain leaving the £0_Icl & y and market trends [including demand
in the pmperty investment market and property price volatilityl, la}
competition, (2] the behaviaur of ather market participants. f] changes in
governmeak and other regulation, including in relation 10 the envic
heatth and safety and taxation {in particutar, in respect of British Land's
stalus as a Real Estata investmant Trusil. gl inflation and consymer
confidence. [h} labour relations and work st . 1) natural disasters
and adverse weather conditions, {jf terrorism and acts of war, ikl British
Land's everall business strategy. risk appelile any invesimeni choites
in its porifolio management. Il] teqal or other proceadings against or
aftecting British Land. [ml reliable and secure IT infrastructure, (o}
changes in occupier d d and lenant default. lo) chanyes in hnancial
and equity markels including interest and exchange rale fluctuations,
[pl changes in accounting praclices and the interpretalion of accounting
standards and lq) the availability and cost af finance. The Campany's
principal risks are described in greater detail in the seclion of this Annual
Reporl headed Risk Manag t and Principal Risks. Forward-looking
st in this A { Report, or the British Land website or made
subsequenily, which are atirtbutable 1o Beitish Land or persons acting
on its behall should therelore be construed in light of all such factors,

lafor ton € ined in this A L Repurt relating to British Land or
its shate price or the yield on its shares are nol guarantees ol, and shoutd
nol be relied upon as an indicator of, iuture perlormance, and nothing
in this Anpual Report should be construed as a profit forecast or profit
estimate. Any forward-looking stalements made by or on behall of British
Land speak onty as ol the date they are made_Such lorward-louking
slaternents are expressly qualified in therr entirely by the faclers refecred
to above and no representalion. assurance, guarantae or warranty is given
in relation Lo themn fwhether by British Land or any of ils assaciates,
directors, ailicers, employees or advisers}, including as 10 their
completeness, accuracy or the hasis an which they were prepared.

Other than in accordance with our legat and regulatory obligations
{including under the UK Financial Conduct Authorily s Listing Rules.
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and 1he Markel Abuse Regulations],
British Land dees not intend or underiake 1o update or revise forward-
tooking statements lo reﬂecl any changes in Bnlish Land s expecialions
with regasd therete or any changes in infor . conditions

or circumsiances on which any such statement is based. This dooument
shali nol, under any circwnstances, creale any implicalion that there
has been no change in the business or alfairs of British Land since the
date of this documeni or thai Lhe information contained herein is correct
as 3! any lime subsequent io this date.
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